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MATERIAL CHANGE REPORT

Filed pursuant to Section 75(2) of the Securities Act (Ontario)
and corresponding provisions of the
securities legislation in other provinces

1. Reporting Issuer
The name and address of the reporting issuer is: = -~
N
Mosaic Group Inc. =
469A King Street West =2
Toronto, Ontario Iy
M5V 3M4 “
2. Date of Material Change T

The material change occurred on Tuesday, November 6, 2001.
3. Press Release

The press release reporting the material change was issued on November 6, 2001 in
Toronto, Ontario. A copy of the press release is attached as Schedule "A".

4. Summary of Material Change

Mosaic Group Inc. (the "Company" and, together with its subsidiaries, "Mosaic") has
amended the Amended and Restated Merger Agreement dated December 14, 2000, as
subsequently amended by Amendment No. 1 thereto dated January 25, 2001 (as so amended, the
"Merger Agreement"), between the Company, certain direct and indirect subsidiaries of the
Company, Paradigm Direct LLC ("Paradigm") and the equity holders of Paradigm (the
"Vendors"), pursuant to which Mosaic acquired Paradigm. The amendments to the Merger
Agreement fix the amount of the remaining earnout consideration payable by Mosaic to the
Vendors pursuant to the Merger Agreement. The amount of such earnout consideration is
payable through a combination of cash and the issuance of common shares of the Company
("Common Shares"). The amendments to the earnout consideration are conditional upon, among
other things, the approval by the Company’s shareholders of the issuance of the maximum
number of Common Shares that could be required to be issued to the Vendors as earnout
consideration,

5. Full Description of Material Change

Background

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Mosaic acquired Paradigm from the Vendors on
December 14, 2000 for initial cash and Common Share consideration of US$102 million.
Mosaic also agreed to make future earnout payments to all but one of the Vendors (the "Earnout
Vendors") based upon Paradigm's financial results for its 2000 and 2001 fiscal years (the
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“Paradigm Earnout”). No such earnout payment was required in respect of Paradigm's 2000
fiscal year. The final earnout payment in respect of Paradigm's 2001 fiscal year (the "Final
Merger Consideration™) was to be due on or after April 1, 2002 and was to be payable in cash or
Common Shares or a combination of both, at Mosaic's option. The number of Common Shares
issuable by the Company in satisfaction of all or a portion of the Final Merger Consideration was
to be determined based on the weighted average trading price of the Common Shares on The
Toronto Stock Exchange (the "TSE") for the ten trading days preceding April 1, 2002.

In the Company’s second quarter 2001 report to shareholders, management of the
Company estimated the Final Merger Consideration to be in the range of US$100 to US$125
million. As a result of the size of the potential payment, management of the Company is of the
view that it is in the best interest of the Company to provide certainty with respect to the
Paradigm Earnout because of the potentially significant dilution and/or debt incurrence arising
from this earnout obligation. This concern arose through a combination of better than expected
Paradigm financial performance in 2001 increasing the anticipated size of the Final Merger
Consideration combined with a significantly lower price of the Common Shares.

The Amending Agreement

On November 6, 2001, the parties to the Merger Agreement entered into a second
amending agreement to the Merger Agreement (the "Amending Agreement" and collectively
with the Merger Agreement, the "Amended Merger Agreement") which among other things
replaces the Final Merger Consideration with a pre-determined range of cash and Common Share
payment obligations (the “Amended Consideration”). The parties also entered into related
amendments to certain other documents originally entered into in connection with Mosaic’s
acquisition of Paradigm (collectively with the Amending Agreement, the “Amendments”). The
entering into of the Amendments was approved by the directors of Mosaic on November 5, 2001.

The Amended Merger Agreement provides, subject to the satisfaction or waiver of
certain conditions set out therein, that the Paradigm Eamout will be satisfied as follows.
20,540,000 Common Shares (the "Initial Shares") will be issued to the Earnout Vendors on a
date which is expected to be in January 2002 and, subject to obtaining the consent of the
Company's principal bank lenders, up to a further US$26,500,000 in cash will be paid on such
date. 75% of the Initial Shares issued to Earnout Vendors who are senior management
employees of Paradigm will be placed in escrow. One third of the Initial Shares will be released
from escrow on December 31, 2002 with the remaining Initial Shares being released on
December 31, 2003. On April 1, 2002, a final payment on account of the Amended
Consideration is to be made consisting of the unpaid balance of the US$26,500,000 cash amount
referred to above and a further US$26,000,000 to be satisfied, at the Company's option, by cash
or through the issuance of Common Shares at a ratio of 0.48 Common Shares per US dollar of
consideration payable, to a maximum of 12,480,000 Common Shares.

The maximum number of Common Shares issuable as Amended Consideration as
described above, and the 2,344,728 Common Shares issued to the Vendors on December 14,
2000 as part of the initial merger consideration, collectively comprise 35,364,728 Common
Shares. 18,000,000 of these Common Shares have previously been conditionally approved by the
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TSE for issuance pursuant to the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement. The TSE
has conditionally approved the issuance of the additional 17,364,728 Common Shares which
may be required for the Amended Consideration (the “Additional Shares”), subject to the
approval of the Company's shareholders (excluding votes attached to Common Shares held,
directly or indirectly, by the Vendors or their respective associates or affiliates) being obtained at
a special meeting of the Company’s shareholders to be held on January 7, 2002 (the “Special
Meeting”).

Mosaic’s entitlement to pay the Amended Consideration described above is conditional
upon, among other things, the approval by the Company’s shareholders at the Special Meeting,
in the manner required by the TSE, of the issuance of up to the maximum number of Additional
Shares, and a related amendment to the Company’s shareholder rights plan. If all of the
conditions have not been satisfied or waived on or prior to January 15, 2002, then the Amended
Merger Agreement provides that the aggregate amount of the Paradigm Earnout will be
increased and fixed at US$125 million, payable through a combination of cash and Common
Shares (the “Alternative Consideration”).

As provided for in the Amendments, Mr. Marc Byron, previously the Chief Operating
Officer, Performance Marketing of the Company, was appointed Vice Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer designate and a director of the Company effective November 6, 2001. Mr.
Byron will assume his role as Chief Executive Officer of the Company effective January 1, 2002,
subject to the negotiation of a mutually satisfactory employment agreement. Mr. Michael
Preston, the Company's current Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, will remain as Chairman
of the Company after such date. In addition, as soon as practicable following the first payment
of the Amended Consideration or the Alternative Consideration, as the case may be, the number
of directors of the Company will be increased from seven to eight and the board of directors will
appoint a second nominee of the Vendors to fill the vacancy created effective as of a date on or
before April 1, 2002, at such individual's discretion.

Based upon the closing price of the Common Shares on the TSE of C$2.80 on the day
before the Amendments were entered into and the noon spot C$/US$ exchange rate of 1.5956
quoted by the Bank of Canada on that day, the following table summarizes the estimates by the
Company’s management of the ranges of the financial impact of the Amendments upon the
Company and its shareholders:
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4.
Estimated Range as of
November 5, 2001°

High Low
Final Merger Consideration, prior to the Amendments US$125 million US$100 million
Amended Consideration, after Amendments US$89 million US$84 million
Savings from adoption of Amendments and payment of US$41 million USS$11 million
Amended Consideration'
Additional Common Share dilution avoided by adoption of ~ 23.4 million 6.3 million
Amendments and payment of Amended Consideration’ Common Common

Shares Shares

Notes:

' The low end of the savings range is calculated by subtracting the high end of the Amended Consideration
range from the low end of the Final Merger Consideration range, and the high end of the savings range is
calculated by subtracting the low end of the Amended Consideration range from the high end of the Final
Merger Consideration range.

? Equal to the number of Common Shares whose value equals the savings from the adoption of the
Amendments and payment of the Amended Consideration.

3 Based upon the closing price of the Common Shares on the TSE of C$3.70 on November 19, 2001 and the
C8/USS exchange rate in effect on that date, the estimated ranges set out above would be the following: Final
Merger Consideration — same as above; Amended Consideration — US$100 million to US$104 million;
savings from adoption of Amendments and payment of Amended Consideration — an additional cost of US$4
million to savings of US$25 million; and additional Common Share dilution avoided by adoption of
Amendments and payment of Amended Consideration — increased dilution of 1.7 million Common Shares to
dilution avoided of 10.7 million Common Shares.

In addition to the estimated savings set out above, management of the Company believes
this transaction has significant benefits for its shareholders as: (i) it provides finality and
certainty with respect to the amount and timing of the Paradigm Eamout, including the
maximum number of additional Common Shares issuable; (ii) it eliminates the risk of possibly
higher shareholder dilution than may otherwise have occurred under the terms of the original
Merger Agreement; and (iii) it allows the Company to retain financial flexibility in terms of the
ultimate level of debt incurred.

Certain of the Earnout Vendors are directors or senior officers of the Corporation or its
subsidiaries, including Paradigm Holding Company, the indirect subsidiary of the Corporation
which acquired Paradigm, and as such are “interested parties” for purposes of Ontario securities
laws. Such interested parties and their associates and affiliates are collectively entitled to receive

approximately 53% of the Amended Consideration or Alternative Consideration, as the case may
be.

The Company’s market capitalization (determined in accordance with Ontario securities
legislation) on October 31, 2001 was approximately C$296 million, based upon 75,401,612
Common Shares outstanding at the close of business on such date.
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6. Reliance on Section 75(3) of the Act

Not applicable.

7. Omitted Information
Not applicable.

8. Senior Officers
Mr. Ben Kaak

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Telephone: (416) 813-4272

9. Statement of Senior Officer

The foregoing accurately discloses the material change referred to herein.

SIGNED November _27 , 2001, at Toronto, Ontario.

“Catherine Barbaro”

Catherine Barbaro
Vice President Legal
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SCHEDULE “A”

For Further Information Please Contact:
For Further Information Please Contact:

*
s
Ben Kaak, EVP and CFO (416) 813-4272 GQ\/D A
Mosaic Group Inc. m P \\
Email: kaakb@mosaicgroupine.com i 4 / A

Donna Cox-Davies, Director of Communications . (416) 8134279 MOSAIC GROUP INC
Mosaic Group Inc.

email: cox-daviesd@mosaicgroupinc.com
¢ For Immediate Release: Tuesday November 6, 2001

Mosaic Group Finalizes Contingent Consideration Payable to Former
Paradigm Direct Equity Holders

Toronto, Ontario — November 6, 2001 — Mosaic Group Inc. (MGX: TSE), North America’s leading
independent marketing solutions company with capabilities in Canada, the US and the UK, today
announced that it has signed an agreement to fix the additional contingent consideration payable to the
former equity holders of its wholly owned subsidiary, Paradigm Direct (“Paradigm”). Paradigm is a US-
based company that uses a technology-based direct marketing platform to acquire customers for some
of the world’s largest Fortune 500 service brands.

Mosaic acquired Paradigm on December 14, 2000 for initial cash and share consideration of US$102
million.  Under the original terms of the merger agreement, Mosaic agreed to pay additional
consideration to the former equity holders of Paradigm based upon Paradigm’s financial results for fiscal
years 2000 and 2001 (the “Paradigm Earnout”). The Paradigm Earnout was to be paid in cash and/or
Mosaic shares at the option of Mosaic. Any shares issuable by Mosaic in satisfaction of the Paradigm
Earnout, in relation to fiscal 2001, would be valued based upon the average trading price of Mosaic
shares on the TSE for the ten trading days prior to the April 1, 2002 payment date.

In the second quarter report to shareholders, Mosaic management estimated the Paradigm Earnout to
be in the range of US$100 to US$125 million. As a result of the size of the potential payment,
management is of the view that it is in the best interest of the Company to provide certainty with respect
to the Paradigm Earnout because of the potentially significant dilution and/or debt incurrance arising
from this earnout obligation. This concern arose through a combination of better than expected
Paradigm financial performance in 2001 increasing the anticipated size of the Paradigm Earnout
combined with a significantly lower Mosaic share price.

Mosaic and the former equity holders of Paradigm have agreed to amend the merger agreement to fix
the amount of the Paradigm Earnout. Under the terms of the amended merger agreement the total value
of the Paradigm Earnout, based on the Company's share price just prior to the date of the agreement, is
approximately US$100 million.

The Paradigm Earnout, as amended, will be satisfied through the issuance of 20,540,000 Mosaic
common shares on closing which is expected to occur in January 2002. 75% of the shares issued to
senior management employees of Paradigm will be placed in escrow. One third of these shares would
be released from escrow on December 31, 2002 with the remaining shares released on December 31,
2003. In addition, cash consideration of US$52.5 million will be payable on April 1, 2002, of which $26.5
million could be payable earlier in certain circumstances. At the option of the Company, up to US$26
million of the cash consideration may be satisfied through the issuance of common shares at a ratio of
0.48 shares for each US dollar of consideration payable to a maximum of 12,480,000 common shares.
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The parties agreed to the financial terms of the earnout based upon the financial results of Paradigm to
date, expected future financial results and the current trading price of Mosaic shares on the TSE.

In addition, Mosaic has agreed to appoint Marc Byron, currently Chief Operating Officer of Mosaic
Performance Solutions, as Chief Executive Officer of Mosaic effective as of January 1, 2002 and to
appoint two representatives of the former equity holders of Paradigm, one of whom being Marc Byron, to
the Board of Directors of Mosaic.

Mosaic believes this transaction has significant benefits for its shareholders as: (i) it provides finality and
certainty with respect to the amount and timing of the Paradigm Earnout to the former equity holders of
Paradigm, including the maximum number of additional Mosaic common shares issuable; (ii) it
eliminates the risk of possibly higher shareholder dilution that may otherwise have occurred under the
terms of the original merger agreement; and (iii) it allows the Company to retain financial flexibility in
terms of the ultimate level of debt incurred.

‘I am extremely pleased that we have eliminated the uncertainty of the Paradigm Earnout and the
resulting negative impact it had on Mosaic’s shares price” said Mike Preston, Chairman & CEO of
Mosaic. “It is also terrific to see that Paradigm has grown its revenues and earnings so strongly in a very
difficult economic environment in 2001. | look forward to the complete integration of the Paradigm team
into Mosaic over the next several months as the earnout is put behind us.”

The Paradigm Earnout, as amended, is subject to and conditional upon the approval of Mosaic’s
shareholders, the listing of the additional Mosaic shares on the TSE and compliance with applicable
securities laws.

Mosaic Group Inc., with operations in Canada, the United States, the United Kingdom, and Ireland,
provides marketing solutions on an integrated basis to leading corporations serving international
markets. Some of the world’s largest brands turn to Mosaic to develop innovative solutions to increase
product sales and build brand awareness through performance marketing, electronic marketing, e-
commerce, new media services, contract sales, merchandising, field marketing, direct marketing,
database development and management, product promotion, corporate communications and sales for
training. Mosaic trades on the TSE under the symbol MGX. Further information on Mosaic can be found
on its web site at www.masaicgroupinc.com.

-30-
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MOSAIC GROUP INC.

MATERIAL CHANGE REPORT

1. Reporting Issuer

Mosaic Group Inc. (the "Company")
469A King Street West

Toronto, Ontario

M5V 3M4

Ny <0

[
(W

2. Date of Material Change

SIRRACY

June 20, 2001

3. Press Release

A press release was issued on June 20, 2001 through Canada NewsWire. The press
release is attached hereto as Schedule "A".

4. Summary of Material Change

In a press release dated June 20, 2001, the Company announced a private placement
of US$57 million in 10.50% senior subordinated notes due June 15, 2009 constituting
Canadian Originated Preferred Securities.

5. Full Description of Material Change

See attached press release dated June 20, 2001.

6. Reliance on Confidentiality Provisions of the Securities Acts
Not applicable.

7. Omitted Information
Not applicable.

8. Senior Officer

Inquiries in respect of the material change referred to herein may be made to:

Mr. G. Michael Preston

mereportmosaic.doc




Chairman & Chief Executive Officer
(416) 813-4271

Mr. Ben W. Kaak
Executive Vice-President
(416) 813-4272

9. Statement of Senior Officer

The foregoing accurately discloses the material change referred to herein.

DATED at Toronto, Ontario this 29™ day of June, 2001.

MOSAIC GROUP INC.

(Signed) “Ben W. Kaak”

Ben W. Kaak
Executive Vice-President

mcreportmosaic.doc
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r f BC-Mosaic-priv.-placemnt 06-20 0703
News release via Canada NewsWire, Toronto 416-863-9350
Attention Business Editors:
Mosaic Group issues US$57 million in subordinated securities
-~ Canadian Originated Preferred Securities Due June 2009 --

TORONTO, June 20 /CNW/ — Mosaic Group Inc. (MGX:TSE), Canada’s leading
outsourced marketing services agency, today announced a private placement of US$57 million in
Canadian Originated Preferred Securities (“COPrS”). The issue was placed with the US investment
arms of three major insurance companies, and was arranged in the US by Memill Lynch.

The COPrS will have a final maturity in June 2009 and will be retired in three equal
annual installments beginning in June 2007. Distributions on the COPrS would be paid quarterly, and
are based on an annual rate of 10.50%. At Mosaic’s option, all distributions and redemption amounts
may be paid in either cash or shares of Mosaic. Any shares issued will be priced at the market price at
that time, though the company intends to satisfy the obligations in cash.

Under Canadian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), the COPrS will
be accounted for as equity and accordingly be included in share capital on Mosaic’s balance sheet.
Distributions will be reflected, net of tax recovery, as a reduction of retained earnings.

The proceeds of the issue will be used to pay down over $85 million of the amount
currently drawn on Mosaic’s existing $400 million revolving senior credit facility. Following the
repayment, Mosaic will owe approximately $150 million under this facility.

“I am delighted that we have been able to add a new dimension to our capital
structure,” said Mike Preston, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Mosaic Group Inc. “Having an
instrument like the COPrS provides our company with a higher degree of financial flexibility. This will
enable us to grow our business even farther in the coming years. As we have previously stated, we
intend to supplement our organic growth with strategic acquisitions in 2002.”

“As we evolve into a new phase of development, we are focusing on putting the right
financial structure in place to ensure strong, responsible growth. This means taking our capital structure
to a different level,” said Clint Becker, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, Mosaic
Group Inc. “Longer term financing products such as this reduce our financial risk exposure and provide
us with a stable platform from which to grow our business going forward.”

Forward Looking Statements

mcreportmosaic.doc




Statements, estimates and projections in this press release regarding the business of
Mosaic Group Inc., which are not historical facts, are “forward-looking statements and projections” that
involve risks and uncertainties. Substantial risks and uncertainties exist with respect to such factors as
the maintenance of client relationships, client credit risk, the performance of capital markets, changes in
interest rates, changes in foreign currency exchange rates, the retention of key management and
availability of employees for hire, changes in labour and other laws to which the Company 1s subject,
competition, and overall economic performance as well as various other risk factors that will be listed
from time to time in Mosaic’s reports or other forms of public disclosure whether written or oral.
Because of these risks and uncertainties, actual results could differ materially from those contained in our
projections or other forward-looking statements. Accordingly, we caution readers to consider the risks
and uncertainties inherent in relying on forward-looking statements we have made at this or any other
time.

Mosaic Group Inc., with operations in Canada, the United States, the United Kingdom,
and Ireland, provides outsourced marketing services on an integrated basis to leading corporations
serving international markets. Some of the world’s largest brands turn to Mosaic to develop innovative
solutions to increase product sales and build brand awareness through performance marketing,
electronic marketing, e-commerce, new media services, contract sales, merchandising, field marketing,
direct marketing, database development and management, product promotion, corporate
communications and sales force training. Mosaic trades on the TSE under the symbol MGX. Further
information on Mosaic can be found on its web site at www.mosaicgroupinc.com.

%SEDAR: 00002180E
-0- 06/20/2001

For further information: Please Contact: Clint Becker, Senior Vice President & Chief
Financial Officer, Mosaic Group Inc., (416) 813-4275, email: beckerc(at)mosaicgroup inc.com;
Donna Cox-Davies, Director of Communications, Mosaic Group Inc., (416) 813-4279, Email: cox-
daviesd(at)mosaicgroupinc.com/
(MGX.)

CO: Mosaic Group Inc.
ST: Ontario

IN:

SuU:
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ResponNstniLiTy FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The information in this annual report is the responsibility
of management. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared by management in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and in
accordance with the accounting po]icies set out in note |
to the consolidated financial statements. The preparation
of financial statements requires management to make
cstimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the datc of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the year. Management believes that
reasonable care and judgement is applied in making such
estimates and assumptions. Management maintains a system
of internal accounting controls to provide reasonable
assurance that asscts arc safcguarded and that transactions
are authorized, rccorded and reported properly.
Management reviews these accounting controls on an
ongoing basis and reports its findings and recommendations
to the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors,
The Board of Dircctors carries out its responsibility for

the consolidated financial statements principally through

its Audit Committee, consisting of three members who are
outside directors. This committee reviews the consolidated
financial statements with management and the independent
auditors, Ernst &Young LLP, prior to submission to the
Board for approval. It also reviews the recommendations
of Ernst & Young LLP for improvements to internal
controls as well as the actions of management to implement

such recommendations.

e

G. Michael Preston
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

e
X, KU,
e \
Ve Ben Kaak

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

February 21, 2001

AupiTtors' ReprortT 7O THE SHAREHOLDERS

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of

Mosaic Group Inc. as at December 31, 2000 and 1999,
and the consolidated statements of operations, retained
carnings and cash flows for the ycars then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management, Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits, We conducted our audits in accordance with
Canadian gencrally accepted auditing  standards,
Thosc standards require that we plan and perform an
audit to obtain rcasonable assurance whether the financial
statements arc free of matertal misstatement. An audit
includes cxamining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles

used and significant estimates made by management,

as well as cvaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. In our opinion, these consolidated
financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as at
December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended
in accordance with Canadian gencrally accepted

accounting principles.

Chartered Accountants

étwf % oy

Toronto, Canada
February 21, 2001
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands of doliars, except per share amounts)
Years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999

2000 1999
(note 13)
Revenues $ 493,662 $ 378,006
Dircct costs 318,760 252,393
Gross profit 174,902 125,613
Selling, gencral and administrative 107,605 88,492
Earnings from continuing operations before depreciation and amortization,
interest, minority interest and income taxes (EBITDA) 67,297 37,121
Depreciation and other amortization 9,422 5,241
Interest, net 8,994 6,445
Minority interest (393) -
Earnings from continuing opcrations before income taxes
and goodwill charges 49,274 25,435
Income taxes (note 8):
Current 10,651 1,278
Future 976 4,075
11,627 5,353
Earnings from continuing operations before goodwill charges 37,647 20,082
Goodwill charges, net of income taxes of $1,088 (1999 ~ s918) 6,738 4,569
Earnings from continuing opcrations 30,909 15,513
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations before goodwill charges,
net of income taxes of $2,154 (1999 — ($1,033)) (note 13) (3,078) 2,686
Goodwill charges relating to discontinued operations (note 13) (25,218) (483)
Net carnings s 2,613 ‘ s 17,716
Earnings per share (note 9(a)):
Basic H 0.04 $ 0.27
Fully diluted s 0.04 $ 0.26
Earnings per share from continuing operations (note 9(a)):
Basic $ 0.43 S 0.23
Fully diluted 3 0.42 $ 0.23
Earnings per share from continuing operations before goodwill charges (note 9(a)):
Basic $ 0.52 N 0.30
Fully dituted $ 0.51 $ 0.29
Weighted average number of shares outstanding (in thousands) (note 9(a)):
Basic 72,060 66,468
Fully diluted 75,131 70,294

See accompanying notes to consolidated financio! statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS 0F CasuH Frows

(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts)
Years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999

2000 1999
(note 13)
Cash provided by (used in):
Operations:
Earnings from continuing operations s 30,909 S 15,513
Items not involving cash:
Depreciation and other amortization 9,422 5,241
Non-cash interest and finance costs 910 639
Future income taxes 1,807 3,395
Goodwill chargcs 7,826 5,487
Other (393) 67
Cash flow from continuing operations 50,481 30,208
Net change in non-cash operating working capital from
continuing operations 13,318 (17,106)
Cash flow from discontinued operations (2,069) 3,055
Net change in non-cash opcrating working capital from
discontinued operations (944) (5,485)
60,786 10,672
Financing:
Issuc of common shares, net of costs and share repurchases 6,301 41,814
Minority investment in subsidiary 2,909 -
Proceeds on issuc of long-term debt 181,800 55,184
Repayment of long-term debt (34,587) (39,858)
Increase (decrease) in bank indebtedness (1,219 2,774
155,204 59,914
Investments:
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired,
continuing operations (169,544) (24,706)
Additions to property and cquipment, continuing opcrations (26,530) (17,356)
Additions to other asscts, continuing opcrations (9,529) (12,775)
Acquisitions of businesscs, discontinued operations (2,587) (8,518)
Additions to property and equipment and other assets,
discontinued operations (1,834) (1,426)
(210,024) (64,781)
Impact of foreign exchange cftect on cash (589) (504)
Increase in cash 5,377 5,301
Cash, beginning of ycar 10,036 4,735
Cash, end of year s 15,413 $ 10,036
Cash flow per sharc from continuing opcrations (note 9(b)):
Basic S 0.70 $ 0.45
Fully diluted s 0.68 S 0.43

Supplementary cash flow disclosures (note 9(b))

See accompanying notes to cansalidatcd_ﬁnancial statements.

-
<
I

[~
<
3
z
%

<
o
®
5
2

=




Mosatc 2000 ANNuUat Rerory

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands of dollars)
December 31, 2000 and 1999

2000 1999
Asscts
Current assets:
Cash § 15,413 s 10,036
Accounts receivable 77,387 53,068
Work in progress and unbilled revenue 23,430 19,942
Inventory and other current assets 16,299 5,806
Income taxes receivable - 1,933
Net assets of discontinued operations (note /3) 5,781 25,430
138,310 116,215
Property and equipment (note 3) 45,763 22,971
Goodwill, nct of accumulated amortization of
$18,298 (1999 — 511,417) 430,824 185,303
Future income taxes (note 8) 7,020 9,843
Other asscts (note 4) 26,168 14,790
$ 648,085 § 349,122
Liabilities and Sharcholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Bank indebtedness (note 5¢a)) $ 3,145 s 4,364
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 129,130 53,589
Deferred revenue 23,576 17,563
Accrued acquisition liabilities 38,424 8,805
Income taxes payable 2,424 -
Current portion of long-term debt (note 5(b)) 272 380
196,971 84,701
Long-term debt (note 5(b)) 227,337 77,564
Future income taxes (note 8) 14,287 13,949
Minority interest 3,321 50
Sharcholders’ equity:
Share capital (note 6) 187,442 148,770
Foreign currency translation adjustment (13,630) (6,367)
Retained carnings 32,357 30,455
206,169 172,858
Commitments (notes 2 and 10)
Contingencics (note 2)
§ 643,085 $ 349,122

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

On behalf of the Board:

/é/ Dircctor

z 7 ,/"‘"“ Director




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF RETAINED EARNINGS

(In thousands of dollars)
Years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999

2000 1999
Retained carnings, beginning of year $ 30,455 s 13,046
Nct carnings 2,613 17,716
Repurchase of shares in excess of average issuc price (711) (307)
Retained carnings, end of year § 32,357 $ 30,455

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial siatements.

NoTeEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Tabular amounts in thousands qf dollars, except for share and per share amounts)
December 31, 2000 and 1999

Mosaic Group Inc. (“Mosaic” or the “Company”) is incorporated under the laws of Ontario. Mosaic, with operations in
Canada, the United States and Europe, provides outsourced marketing services on an integrated basis to leading
corporations serving international markets. Fortune 500 companies turn to Mosaic to develop innovative solutions to
increase product sales and build brand awareness through performance marketing, clectronic marketing, e-commerce,
new media services, contract sales, merchandising, field marketing, direct marketing, database development and

management, product promotion, corporate communications and sales force training.

1, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

These consolidated financial statements are the representation of management and have been prepared in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, The preparation of financial statements requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that aftect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and cxpenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Significant accounting policies followed by the Company are summarized below:
(a) Principles of consolidation:
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries from the dates of

acquisition. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.
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NoTEs ToO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars, cxcepzﬁ)r share and per share amounts)
December 31, 2000 and 1999

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

b)

()

(@

®

Revenue recognition and multi-year contract accounting:

Revenue is recognized as scrvices are provided. Work in progress is recorded at the lower of cost and net
realizable value, Revenue billed in advance is recorded as deferred revenue. Revenue which has been earned but
not billed is recorded as unbilled revenue,

Revenue from fixed price, long-term service contracts is recognized over the contract term based on the
percentage of services provided to date compared to the total estimated services provided over the entire
contract. Losses on fixed price contracts are recognized during the period in which the loss first becomes
apparent. Contract development costs incurred prior to the commencement of new contracts are deferred and
amortized over the term of the contract.

Revenue from customer acquisition services is gencrally recognized at the time the customer is provisioned
into the client’s billing or data systems and all services related to the delivery of the customer are complete.
Allowances are provided for estimated customer attrition or churn, where such attrition is charged back to
the Company.

Investments:

Investments over which the Company docs not exert significant influcnce are accounted for using the cost
method. If there is other than a temporary decline in value, investments are written down to provide for the loss,
Property and cquipment:

Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided using the

straight-line method over the following periods:

Building 40 years
Computer hardware 3- 5 years
Computer software 1 -7 years
Office furniture and equipment 3-10 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Leaschold improvements Over the initial leasc term, plus one renewal period
Goodwill:

Goodwill, which represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair values of net identifiable assets
acquired, is amortized on a straight-line basis over its cstimated life, ranging from 10 to
40 years. Goodwill charges are presented net of the related income tax benefit of deductible goodwill.
Periodically, management reviews the carrying value of goodwill to determine if an impairment has occurred.
The Company measures any potential impairment by comparing the carrying value to the undiscounted amounts
of expected future cash flows,

Deferred financing costs:

Deferred financing costs represent the unamortized costs related to the establishment of the revolving term
credit facility. Amortization is provided on a straight-linc basis over the initial term of the revolving facility plus

onc renewal period, and is included in interest expense for the year.




NoTEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars, except for share and per share amounts)
December 31, 2000 and 1999

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

(8

(b

1)

Pre-operating expenses:

The Company capitalizes expenditures net of incremental revenues incurred to develop significant new lines of
business. Capitalization occurs where the expenditure is incremental in nature and directly related to placing the
new business into service, and where, in the view of management, it is probable that the expenditure is
recoverable from the future operations of the new business. Capitalization ceases when the business is ready to
commence commercial operations. Capitalized pre-operating expenses are amortized on a straight-line basis over
the cxpected period of benefit, to a maximum of three years.

Foreign currency translation:

Monctary asscts and liabilities denominated in foreign currencics are translated into Canadian dollars at the
exchange rate in cffect at the balance sheet date. Revenue and expense items arc translated at the exchange rate
in cffect at the date of the transaction, except where hedged. Resulting exchange gains or losses are included in
income. Unrealized gains or losses on long-term debt are deferred and amortized over the remaining term of the
debt, except for unrealized gains or losses on long-term debt which is designated as a hedge of the self-sustaining
operations, which are deferred and included as a separate component of sharcholders’ equity.

The Company’s foreign subsidiaries are classified as self-sustaining forcign operations and, therefore,
the Company uses the current rate mcthod, whercby the asscts and liabilities of such forcign operations are
translated at the exchange rate in effect at the balance shect dates. Revenues and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rate for the year, Translation gains or losses are deferred and included as a scparate component
of sharcholders’ equity.

Financial instruments: :

The Company cnters into interest rate swap arrangements to manage its exposure to interest rate fluctuations.
The Company accounts for these interest rate swaps as hedges and, as a result, the carrying values of such swaps
arc not adjusted to reflect their current market valucs, The differential paid or received on interest rate swap
agreements is recognized as part of interest cxpense,

The Company enters into short-term forcign currency forward contracts to manage its exposure to foreign
currency fluctuations, wherein the Company sclls specificd foreign currencies for Canadian doilars for
settlement on specified future dates which coincide with the receipt of contracted foreign currency revenue
streams. The Company accounts for these foreign currency forward contracts as hedges and, as a result, the
carrying values of such contracts are not adjusted to reflect their current market values. The underlying exchange
ratc in the forward contract is used to translate the revenue stream from the hedged instrument.

Income taxes:
Effective January 1, 2000, the Company has rctroactively adopted new accounting standards issued by
The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants in respect of income taxes. The Company now accounts for

income taxcs using the liability method.
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NoTEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars, except for share and per share amounts)
December 31, 2000 and 1999

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)j

0

Q]

Income taxes (continucd):
Income tax cxpense is based on reported carnings before income taxes, adjusted for permanent differences.
Future income taxes reflect the temporary differences between assets and liabilitics recognized for financial
reporting and the related amounts recognized for income tax purposes, giving rise to future income tax assets
and liabilitics. Future income tax assets and liabilitics are measured using the enacted or substantively enacted
income tax rates cxpected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. The effects of changes in tax rates on future income tax assets and liabilities
are recognized in income in the period that those changes are enacted or substantively enacted.

In order to record a future income tax asset, the realization of that asset must be more likely than not.
Where this requirement is not met, a valuation allowance is recorded to offset the future income tax asset.

The cffect of the adoption of the new accounting standards related to income taxes on current and prior
periods was not material.
Stock-based compensation plans:
The Company has stock-based compensation plans which are described in note 7. No compensation expense is
recognized for these plans when options are issued to employees or directors. Any consideration paid by

cmployees or directors on exercise of options is credited to share capital, net of related costs.




NoTEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars, except for share and per share amounts)
December 31, 2000 and 1999

2. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND INVESTMENTS:

In 2000 and 1999, the Company completed a number of acquisitions which are summarized below.

Transactions completed in 2000:

Paradigm M:ADRIVE Other Total
(@) (b)
Date acquired November April
2000 2000
Domicile USA UK
Percentage acquired 100% 100%
Cash, including
transaction costs,
net of cash acquired s 147,851 $ 20,621 s 20,811 $ 189,283
Common shares
of the Company 25,799 3,008 95 28,902
Additional futurc
consideration to be
satisfied with shares
of the Company — 5,700 186 5,886
173,650 29,329 21,092 224,071
Costs of integration 4,114 500 450 5,064
Total consideration,
after integration costs s 177,764 s 29,829 S 21,542 s 229,135
Assigned value of asscts
and liabilities acquired:
Property and cquipment $ 2,470 $ 911 s 487 S 3,868
Other asscts 2,543 - - 2,543
Goodwill 212,235 28,514 21,524 262,273
Long-term debt - - (154) (154)
Non-cash
working capital (39,484) 404 441 (38,639)
Minority investment - - (756) (756)
s 177,764 $ 29,829 s 21,542 5 229,138
Goodwill amortization period,
straight-line basis 40 years 30 ycars 10 - 30 years
Number of common
shares issued 2,344,728 196,960 25,013 2,566,701
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NoTeEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars, except for share and per share amounts)

December 31, 2000 and 1999

2,

BUsINESS COMBINATIONS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED):

With the exception of the 20% purchase of Intelecom Systems Inc. in 1999, which is being accounted for using the cost

method, acquisitions have been accounted for using the purchase method.

Shares to be issued in the future to satisfy additional consideration are issucd at the then current trading price.

Integration costs only include costs directly related to the acquisition, which are incremental to the Company and were

identified at the time of the acquisition. Generally, integration costs include costs for workforce reductions, premises

closures and the implementation at the acquired company of Mosaic systems and processes.

(@)

(b)

©

Paradigm Dircct LLC:

On November 16, 2000, the Company acquired 100% of Paradigm Direct LLC (“Paradigm”),
a New Jerscy-based company that uses a technology-based direct markcfing platform to acquire customers for
some of America’s largest Fortune 100 service brands in telecommunications, financial services, insurance and
home services.

Additional consideration of up to a maximum of US$198 million ($297 million) will be payable bascd on
Paradigm’s 2001 financial results, with total consideration equaling between 7.5 and 8.5 times 2001 EBITDA.
The contingent payments will be made in April 2002, in either cash or shares at Mosaic’s option.

M:\DRIVE:

On April 19, 2000, the Company acquired 100% of M:\DRIVE, a UK-based agency that provides integrated
marketing services to the IT industry. M:\DRIVE offers a fully integrated array of marketing and sales services,
including field marketing and merchandising, training, data management, dircct marketing, sales promotion
and telemarketing,

Additional contingent consideration of up to GBP. 1.7 mitlion ($3.8 million) will be payable based on the
financial results of MiADRIVE for calendar ycar 2001. The contingent consideration will be payable in cash/loan
notes and shares in the ratio of 65% cash/loan notes and 35% common shares of the Company.

During the year, a further $2.5 million in additional cash consideration and 219,034 common shares valued at

$3.4 million were paid to the vendors in respect of prior years’ acquisitions.




NoTEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Tabular amounts in thousands qf dollars, excepzjbr share and per share amounts)

December 31, 2000 and 1999

2. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED):

Transactions completed in 1999:

STH Booster Intelecom Other Total
(a) () (<)
Date acquired April November November
1999 1999 1999
Donmicile UK France USA
Percentage acquired 100% 100% 20%
Cash, including
transaction costs,
net of cash acquired 18,256 3,743 S 9,148 5,442 S 36,589
Common shares
of the Company 3,913 1,376 - - 5,289
Additional future
consideration to be
satisficd with shares
of the Company - 935 - 598 1,533
22,169 6,054 9,148 6,040 43,411
Costs ofintcgration 599 550 - 550 1,699
Total consideration,
after integration costs 22,768 6,604 S 9,148 6,590 § 45,110
Assigned value of assets
and liabilitics acquired:
Property and equipment 486 145 s - 202 $ 833
Goodwill 22,730 6,385 - 6,715 35,830
Long-term debt - - - (286) (286)
Non-cash
working capital (448) 74 - “41) (415)
Cost of investment - - 9,148 - 9,148
22,768 6,604 H 9,148 6,590 S 45,110
Goodwill amortization period,
straight-line basis 30 years 30 years - 30 years
Number of common
shares issued 957,167 177,284 - - 1,134,451
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NoTEs To CONSOLIDATED FiNANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars, except for share and per share amounts)
December 31, 2000 and 1999

2. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED):
(d) stretch the horizon:
On April 6, 1999, the Company acquired 100% of stretch the horizon (“STH”). STH is a
United Kingdom-based marketing services agency focused on providing high-impact direct marketing and sales
promotion solutions.
(¢) Boostergroup:
On November 2, 1999, the Company acquired 100% of Boostergroup (“Booster”). Booster is a
France-based provider of in-store sales, training and product demonstrations serving clients in the information
and convergent technology sector.
In Junc 2000, a further $2,112,000 in additional cash consideration and 32,749 common shares valued at
$382,000 were paid to the vendors of Booster.
(f) Intclecom Systems Inc.:
On November 3, 1999, the Company acquired 20% of Intelecom Systems Inc. (“Intelecom”). Intelecom is an
information technology services company that provides sophisticated comparison billing technology to clients in
the telecom and utilitics industrics.
3 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
Accumulated
2000 Cost depreciation Net
Land and building $ 9,361 $ 52 S 9,309
Leaschold improvements 7,462 1,561 5,901
Computer hardware and software 36,967 14,240 22,727
Office furniture and cquipment 13,045 6,246 6,799
Motor vehicles 1,892 865 1,027
§ 68,727 § 22,964 § 45,763
Accumulated
1999 Cost depreciation Net
Land and building s 5,139 S - s 5,139
Leasehold improvements 4,689 1,418 3,271
Computer hardware and software 15,942 6,951 8,991
Office furniture and cquipment 10,269 5,099 5,170
Motor vchicles 1,216 816 400
§ 37,255 $ 14,284 $ 22,971

Depreciation expense for continuing operations for the year amounted to $6,152,000 (1999 — $4,008,000).




NoTEs ToO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Tabular amounts in thousands qfdollurx, exceptfor share and per share amounts)
December 31, 2000 and 1999

4. OTHER ASSETS
2000 1999
Investment in Intelecom at cost (note 2) 5 9,148 $ 9,148
Contract development costs 7,449 2,460
Deferred financing costs, net of accumulated amortization
of §1,554,000 (1999 — $644,000) 5,200 2,366
Other 4,371 816
5 26,168 § 14,790
5. BANK INDEBTEDNESS AND LONG-TERM DEBT:
(a) Bank indcbtedness:
The Company has a £1,250,000 (1999 — £1,500,000) sterling demand facility, bearing interest at the LIBOR
(“London Inter-Bank Oftering Rate”) plus 1.5%, secured by accounts reccivable. The amount drawn under this
facility was nil at December 31, 2000 (1999 — £826,000). At year-end, the effective interest rate under this
facility was 7.5%.
Bank indebtedness at year-end relates to amounts drawn under facilities in Continental Europe.
(b) Long-term debt:

2000 1999

Revolving committed term debt $ 225,497 $ 77,400
Other 2,112 S44
227,609 77,944

Current portion 272) (380)
$ 227,337 § 77,564

Interest expense on long-term debt for the year ended December 31, 2000, was $8,594,000
(1999 - $6,466,000).

Revolving committed term debt:

The Company's credit agrcement was amended and restated on October 4, 2000. The amended agreement
provides a §400 million committed revolving term facility, which can be drawn in Canadian or US dollars.
The term of the facility is threc years, which can be extended for a further year on cach anniversary of the facility,
currently due October 2003. Terms of the expanded and amended facility are not materially different from
previous terms, with the exception of interest rates and standby charges. Interest rates on the facility are variable,
based on the level of the funded debt to EBITDA ratio. Canadian dollar loans bear interest at bankers' acceptance
rate plus 1.4% to 2.3% or bank prime rates plus 0.65% to 1.5%, with US dollar loans bearing interest at US
base rate plus 0.65% to 1.5% or the LIBOR plus 1.4% to 2.3%. At ycar-cnd, the weighted average effective
interest rate under the facility was 7.69% (1999 — 6.99%),
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NoTEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars, except _for share and per share amounts)
December 31, 2000 and 1999

5.

BANK INDEBTEDNESS AND LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED):

At Deccember 31, 2000, borrowings under the term facility included USs113 million
(1999 — US530 million) in US dollar denominated debt, all of which was determined to be a hedge of the
Company’s investment in its US opcrations, A five-year interest rate swap for notional principal of U$$25 million
was purchased during 1998 to fix the rate of interest on a portion of debt with the year-end rate at 7.25%
(1999 - 7.1%).

Under the terms of the term debt facility, the Company is required to maintain certain financial ratios and is
restricted from paying dividends. In addition, future acquisitions arc subject to lender review and must compl)'
with certain predetermined criteria,

The term debt is secured by the pledge of a debenture secured by fixed and floating charges on substantially

all of the assets of the Company and the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary companies.

SHARE CAPITAL:

(a)

)

Authorized:

The authorized share capital of Mosaic consists of the following:

(i) Unlimited number of preference shares. Subject to the Company’s articles, the Board of Directors is
authorized to fix before issuance the description, rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attaching to
the preference shares of cach serics; and

(i) Unlimited number of common shares, without par value.

Issued and outstanding at December 31:

Number of
sharcs Amount
Common sharcs outstanding, December 31, 1998 60,828,272 5 98,415
Issued on public share offering 6,100,000 39,053
Issucd on acquisitions (note 2) } 1,134,451 5,289
Issued on cxcrcise of options (note 7) 1,234,613 2,074
Issucd on conversion of debentures 1,290,900 1,810
Other, net of sharc repurchases under a normal
coursc issucr bid 331,324 2,129
Commion shares outstanding, December 31, 1999 70,919,560 $ 148,770
Issued on acquisitioﬁs {note 2) 2,785,735 32,323
Issued on exercisc of options (note 7) ' 1,037,763 2,720
Other, net of share rcpurchascs under a normal
coursce issuer bid 267,134 3,629
Common shares outstanding, December 31, 2000 75,010,192 s 187,442

On July 29, 1999, the Company sold through a public share offering 6.1 million common shares for gross
proceeds of $6.60 per share or $40,260,000, resulting in net proceeds of $39,053,000 after issue costs and
related income tax bencfits.




NoTeEs ToO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars, except for share and per share amounts)
December 31, 2000 and 1999

7.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANSY:

(a) The Company has two fixed stock-based compensation plans.

(b)

@)

(i)

Under the Incentive Compensation Plan (*ICP”) introduced in 1998, the Company is permitted to issue to
employees, officers and directors up to 4,539,000 options to acquire shares in the Company. Generally,
under the plan, options are granted with a strike price equal to no less than the fair market value of the
common shares at the time of grant. Options vest annually over a four-year period and are exercisable over
a five-year period from the datc of grant,

During 2000, the Company granted options to purchase 150,000 common shares under the ICP
(1999 ~ 2,129,000) at an excrcise price of $14.75 per share (1999 — $3.90 to $10.30).

The Company has granted a total of 4,089,000 options to purchase common shares under the ICP,

at prices ranging from $2.75 to $14.75. During 2000, 467,700 options to purchase common shares were
exercised at an average price of $4.23.
Under the 1998 Employee Share Ownership Program (“ESOP”), the Company is permitted to issue to
employces, officers and directors up to 1,087,500 options to acquirc common shares.
The ESOP provides that for cach common share of the Company purchased by an employee at fair market
value, he or she is entitled to receive one option to purchase an additional common share at the same price.
Options granted under the program vest annually over four years and are excrcisable for five years from the
datc of grant.

During 2000, the Company granted options to purchase 278,614 common shares under the
ESOP (1999 — 379,398) with excrcisc prices ranging from §11.05 to $21.19 per share
(1999 — $3.00 to $10.24). The Company has granted a total of 842,447 options to purchase common shares
under the ESOP at prices ranging from $2.25 to $21.19, During 2000, 56,230 options to purchase

common shares were exercised at an average price of $5.71.

The Company has reserved 1,111,273 common shares for cmployees’ and directors’ options exercisable at prices

ranging from §1.90 to $3.25 over periods up to 2003. The reserved amount represents options to purchase

common shares that were issued to employees and directors prior to the introduction of the ICP. During 2000,

513,727 options to purchasc common shares were excrcised at an average price of §2.23,
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(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars, except for share and per share amounts)

NoTes To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2000 and 1999

7. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (CONTINUED):
(c) During 2000, the following options were granted, exercised, cancelled and outstanding:
Expiry Exercise December 31, 1999 2000 Transactions December 31, 2000
Year Price Outstanding Exercised Outstanding Exercisable
Range Options Granted  or Cancelled Options WAP* Options WAP*

2001 s 1.15-1.70 100,000 - 100,000 - 3 - - § -

2002 1.90-2.70 755,000 - 272,727 482,273 1.94 482,273 1.94

2003 2.25-3.31 2,678,769 - 669,455 2,009,314 2.88 1,030,392 2.90

2004 3.00-4.12 211,152 - 33,266 177,886 3.66 58,968 3.67

2004 5.00-7.04 477,151 - 112,301 364,850 5.84 112,844 5.69

2004 7.53-10.30 1,815,326 . - 65,822 1,749,504 10.25 665,782 10.25

2005 11.05-14.80 - 272,226 10,330 261,896 13,47 44,123 13.92

2005 16.42-21.19 - 156,388 1,246 155,142 17.00 30,032 17.02
§ 1.15-21.19 6,037,398 428,614 1,265,147 5,200,865 § 6.46 2,424,414 5§ 5.2

WAP* s 5.22 s 1470 N 3.31 6.46 5.25

* Weighted Average Exercise Price

(d) During 1999, the following options were granted, exercised, cancelled and outstanding:

At December 31, 2000, the weighted average remaining contract life of outstanding options was
34 months (1999 — 46 months).

Expiry Excrcisc December 31, 1998 1999 Transactions December 31, 1999
Year Price Outstanding Exercised Outstanding Excrcisable
Range Options Granted  or Cancelled Options WAP* Options WAP*
2001 s 1.15-1.70 730,434 - 630,434 100,000 s 1.70 100,000 s 1.70
2002 1.90-2.70 1,325,000 - 570,000 755,000 2.05 693,000 2.00
2003 2.25-3.31 2,764,179 - 85,410 2,678,769 2.85 1,091,097 2.84
2004 3.00-4.12 - 214,950 3,798 211,152 3.68 38,432 3.66
2004 5.00-7.04 - 478,092 941 477,151 5.82 94,489 5.81
2004 7.53-10.30 - 1,815,356 30 1,815,326 10.24 363,035 10.24
§ 1.15-10.30 4,819,613 2,508,398 1,290,613 6,037,398 § 522 2,380,053 s 3.81
WAP* H 2.40 8.84 $ 1.73 5.22 3.81

*Weighted Average Exercise Price




NoTeEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars, except for share and per share amounts)
December 31, 2000 and 1999

8, INCOME TAXES:

Effective January 1, 2000, the Company retroactively changed its method of accounting for income taxes from the
deferral method to the liability method of tax allocation as required by The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants,
Section 3465 Accounting for Income Taxes (sce note 1(j)). The effect of the adoption of the new accounting standards
related to income taxes on current and prior periods was not material.

Significant components of the income tax cxpense attributable to continuing operations for the years ended

Deccember 31 are as follows:

2000 1999

Current income tax expense, exclusive of reduction for previously

unrecognized income tax losses and credits $ 9,553 § 993
Future income tax expense, including future taxes arising from

goodwill amortization of §1,561 (1999 — §1,995) : 1,807 3,442
Reduction in income tax expense arising from realization of

previously unrccognized income tax losses and credits (821) -
Total provision for income taxes 10,539 4,435
Add bencfit of deductible goodwill included in

goodwill charges 1,088 918
Income tax cxpensc $ 11,627 s 5,353

Future income taxes arise from the temporary differences between assets and liabilities recognized for financial
reporting purposes and those as per the tax laws in the jurisdictions in which the Company operates. The naturc and tax
effect of the assets, liabilities and unused tax losses that give rise to the future income tax asscts and future income tax
liabilitics are as follows:

2000 1999
Future income tax asscts:
Tax benefit of unused tax losses S 7,020 s 9,843
Futurc income tax liabilitics:
Goodwill $ 11,170 $ 10,261
Other 3,117 3,688
§ 14,287 $ 13,949
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NoTes To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars, except for share and per share amounts)
December 31, 2000 and 1999

8. INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED):

Income tax expense differs from the amount that would be computed by applying the Canadian federal and provincial

statutory income tax rates of 44.0% (1999 — 44.6%) to income from continuing operations before income taxes and

goodwill charges, with the differences as follows:

2000 1999
Income taxes at statutory ratcs $ 21,681 $ 11,344
Increase (decrease) in income taxes resulting from:
Non-deductible expenscs 221 270
Income tax rate differential berween Canadian and
forcign jurisdictions : (10,250) (6,242)
Other (25) 19)
Income tax expense from continuing opcrations before
goodwill charges 11,627 5,353
Benefit of deductible goodwill included in goodwill charges (1,088) (918)
Total provision for income taxes s 10,539 S 4,435

The following table gives details of unused income tax losses and related income tax reductions as at December 31, 2000.

Losses Tax

Losses expiring:
2006 7,980 3,681
2007 969 432
2014 7,268 2,907
Total $ 16,217 s 7,020

9. SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES:

(2) Earnings per share:

Basic and fully diluted carnings per share, basic and fully diluted carnings per share from continuing operations

and basic and fully diluted carnings per share before goodwill charges and discontinued operations have been

calculated using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year. For purposes of

determining fully diluted carnings per share and fully diluted earnings per sharc before goodwill charges, only

the rights to acquire common shares, including contingent share consideration on acquisitions, that would be

dilutive to earnings have been considered.




NoTeEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Tabular amounts in thousands qfdo”ars, except for share and per share amounts)
December 31, 2000 and 1999

9.

SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED):

(b) Consolidated statements of cash flows:

10.

O]

The consolidated statements of cash flows exclude the following non-cash transactions:

2000 1999
Conversion of convertible debt to common shares S - s 1,810
Tax benefit of share issue costs credited to share capital - 1,070
Common shares issued on acquisitions $ 32,323 § 5,289

(i) During 2000, the Company paid $3,816,000 in cash taxes (1999 — $3,759,000) and $7,769,000 in cash

interest (1999 — $5,890,000).

(iii) Basic and fully diluted cash flows per share from continuing operations have been caleulated using the cash

provided from operations, excluding net changes in non-cash operating working capital.

COMMITMENTS:

The Company is committed to payments under operating leases for cquipment and buildings, with the following

minimum annual lease payments:

2001 $ 8,044
2002 7,253
2003 5,749
2004 4,894
2005 3,380
Thereafter 10,673
$ 39,993
11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS:
(2) Risk management activities:

@

(i)

The Company manages its credit risk in respect of trade accounts receivable by primarily dealing with large
creditworthy customers and by collecting in advance of rendering services. Management is of the view that
the Company is not subject to a significant concentration of credit risk, with only one customer accounting
for 10% of revenues (1999 — 6% of revenues).

The Company is subject to risk in respect of fluctuating interest rates as a portion of its borrowings is
subject to floating rates of interest. As described in note 5(b), the Company has fixed the interest rate on
USs25 million debt at 7.25%. Based on its estimated discounted cash flow using applicable current market
rates, the Company’s interest rate swaps have a fair value liability of $17,500 at December 31, 2000
(1999 — $1,138,000 fair value asset).
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NoTEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars, excepzfor share and per share amounts)
December 31, 2000 and 1999

11, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED):

(iii) The Company operates in the United Kingdom, the United States and in Continental Europe.
At December 31, 2000, the Company had USs113 million in US dollar denominated debt, which was
determined to be a hedge of the net investment in US operations.

(iv) The Company has entered into a series of short-term foreign currency forward contracts to manage
its exposure to movements in the UK pound and the US dollar, The forward contracts are designated
as hedges against the UK pound and US dollar receipts under certain long-term client contracts.
At December 31, 2000, the nominal value of the UK pound forward contracts amounted to $29.9 million
(£13,348,000) and had a fair value of (8§599,000) and the nominal value of the US dollar forward contracts
amounted to $30,855,000 (US520,570,000) and had a fair value of $159,000,

The Company does not currently engage in any other hedging or other foreign exchange management
strategics and, accordingly, earnings will be impacted by movements in the values of the UK pound,
US dollar, Euro and non-Euro European currencies in relation to the Canadian dollar.
(b) Fair values:

The carrying values of cash, accounts reccivable, bank indebtedness, accounts payable and accrued liabilities and

accrued acquisition liabilities approximate their fair values due to the relatively short periods to maturity of the

instruments. The aggregate fair values of long-term debt, calculated at the present value of contractual future
payments of principal and interest, discounted at the current market rates of interest available to the Company

for the same or similar instruments, approximate their current carrying values.

12, SEGMENTED INFORMATION:

The Company's continuing operations have two operating segments: North America and the United Kingdom and
Ireland. During 2000, the Company changed its segmented reporting such that the UK and Ireland are now reported as
a scgment scparate from Continental Europe. Segmented reporting for 1999 has been restated to reflect the presentation
adopted in the current period. The determination of business segments is based on the identification of the core
management tcams which operate the Company’s business in its principal geographic markets, and the inherent
operating risks of those segments,

The accounting policics of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting
policies in note 1. The Company cvaluates performance based on profit or loss before interest, income taxes,
non-recurring gains or losses, forcign exchange gains or losses, and goodwill charges in relation to the net investment in
the operating scgment. The Company considers the net investment to be total assets, less current liabilities adjusted to

exclude cash, bank indebtedness and the current portion of long-term debt.
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NoTeEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Tabular amounts in thousands (j"dollar:, cxcepzfor share and per share amounts)

December 31, 2000 and 1999

12. SEGMENTED INFORMATION (CONTINUED]):
2000 North America UK & Ireland Corporate Total
Revenues $ 294,197 $ 199,465 5 - $ 493,662
Earnings (loss) before depreciation and

amortization, interest and income taxes $ 40,345 s 30,617 S (3,665) $ 67,297
Depreciation and other amortization 6,290 2,964 168 9,422
Earnings (loss) before interest, income

taxes and goodwiﬂ charges s 34,055 s 27,653 s (3,833) $ 57,875
Goodwill charges, net of income taxes s 3,134 s 3,604 s - s 6,738
Investments during the year:

Capital assets, excluding goodwill 14,293 12,237 - 26,530

Goodwill (note 2) 217,550 42,086 - 259,636
Net investment, end of year 308,409 114,363 ' 1,363 424,135
1999 North Amecrica UK & Ireland Corporate Total
Revenues $ 212,140 $ 165,866 5 - § 378,006
Earnings (loss) before depreciation and

amortization, intercst and income taxes § 21,234 § 18,631 $ (2,744) $ 37,121
Depreciation and other amortization 3,030 2,081 130 5,241
Earnings (loss) before interest, income

taxes and goodwill charges s 18,204 s 16,550 S (2,874) S 31,880
Goodwill charges, net of income taxes s 2,330 s 2,235 § - S 4,569
Investments during the year:

Capital asscts, excluding goodwill 9,873 7,447 36 17,356

Goadwill (nate 2) 3,300 25,281 - 28,58t
Net investment, end of year 134,998 89,744 (1,968) 222,774

Geographic information:
The Company opcrates primarily in Canada, the United States and the United Kingdom and Ireland. Revenues are

attributed to customers based on where services are provided.

Capital assets and

Revenues goodwill
2000 1999 2000 1999
Canada $ 116,705 § 108,846 S 54,894 § 44,815
United States 177,492 103,294 286,240 74,141
UK and Ireland 199,465 165,866 135,453 89,318
$ 493,662 $ 378,006 § 476,587 $ 208,274
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NoTEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars, cxcept for share and per share amounts)
December 31, 2000 and 1999

13, SUBSEQUENT EVENT ~ DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In completing its strategic review, management determined in February 2001 that the development of the Continental
European business, based in 11 countries, no longer constituted a strategic priority. As a result, management determined
that it would divest the Company of its Continental European operations in order to focus its management and capital
resources on the North American, and United Kingdom and Ireland-based businesses.

Included in the goodwill charges relating to discontinued operations is a goodwill write-down of $24.5 million
representing the net book valuc of the goodwi]l rclating to the Continental Europcan segment. For 2000, the
Continental European segment is disclosed as a discontinued operation, although due to the measurement date being
subsequent to year-end, the financial impact of the divestiture will not be recognized until 2001, For 2001, the
divestiture of the Continental European segment will be treated for accounting purposes as a discontinued operation
with the anticipated first quarter charge related to the loss on discontinuance of the operations estimated to be in the
range of 35 to $10 million ($0.06 10 $0.12 per fully diluted share).

The December 31, 1999, consolidated balance sheets and consolidated statements of operations and cash flows have
been reclassified to reflect the discontinued operations disclosure adopted in 2000.

a) The revenues of the discontinued operations are as follows:

2000 1999

Revenues of the discontinued operations $ 27,801 $ 22,420

b) The consolidated balance sheets include the following amounts related to the discontinued operations.

2000 1999
Accounts reccivable s 8,759 $ 10,889
Work in progress and unbilled revenuce 114 843
Inventories and other current assets 228 424
Income taxes receivable 1,688 -
Current assets of discontinucd operations : 10,789 12,156
Property and cquipment 2,586 1,058
Goodwill - 19,686
Other assets 309 769
Total asscts of discontinued operations 13,684 33,669
Accounts payable and accrued labilities 7,635 © 6,472
Income taxes payable - 1,032
Deferred revenuc 268 213
Current liabilities of discontinued operations 7,903 7,717
Long-term debt - 522
Net assets of discontinued operations § 5,781 § 25,430




QuARTERLY HIGHLIGHTS

(In millions qfdollars, except per share amounts, unaudited)

2000 1959 | 1998 1997 1996

Q3 Q2 Qb Q3 Q2 iy Qv Q3 @ QU r 3 Q2 Qi v Qd 2 QY

Statement

of operations:
Revenues S1458 1465 1103 91111029 1120 83,1 0.0 830 881 447 368! 379 396 269 183 97 128 77 60
Gross profit 5 516 310 394 319 322 384 296 254 280 270 160 126% 93 113 93 671 30 37 21 4§
EBITDA S 208 204 152 98 92 128 92 60 79 92 48 31! 41 38 27 15i 11 10 07 05
Earnings

from continuing

operations before

goodwill charges 5 105 133 85 491 58 73 44 27 48 44 26 12} 22 13 13 06 03 04 04 01
Earnings

from continsing

operations 5 83 117 74 35 46 61 32 16i 34 33 19 07 18 L5 10 05 02 04 04 02
Net carnings S(180) 1.1 63 32] 64 63 33 18] 40 35 19 07] 18 15 10 05! 02 04 04 02

Per share amounts:

Earnings
from continuing
operations before
goodwill charges:
Basic 5 014 008 012 007) 008 041 007 004} 009 007 005 003; 006 005 0.0+ 002] 002 003 00+ 002
Fully dilured 5 004 048 012 007] 008 010 007 004} 008 007 005 0.03; 005 005 003 002001 003 004 002

Earnings from

continuing

operations:
Basic 5 011 016 010 005{ 006 009 005 003 006 006 00+ 002 005 004 003 002{ 002 002 003 002
Fully diluted S 011 06 010 005{ 006 008 005 003!006 006 003 002; 004 004 002 002] 001 002 003 0.02

Net earnings:
Basic 5(0.25) 0.1

009 005009 009 005 003| 007 006 004 002} 0.05 004 003 002} 002 002 003 0.02
Fully diluted $(0.25 015 009 005i 009 009 005 003i 006 006 003 002] 0.0+ 004 002 002{ 001 002 003 002

Balance sheet:

Cash position, net 5 123 128 161 561 37 (0) 12 124} 31 117 72 @ 16 19 38 26| 85 66 26 (O
Total assets S648.1 422.8 3929 358713465 3149 3042 272012720 2596 2070 119.411099 822 844 3051257 199 71 72
Long-term debt,
including current
portion $2276 1133 988 832} 785 423 991 7420 675 729 531 1941 198 138 144 38 38 38 - -
Sharcholders’ equity $206.2 2015 1895 178.21172.9 1690 1181 118011186 1085 928 302} 457 388 373 263] 74 47 06 07
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This sHiort form prospectus constitutes a public offering of these securities only in those jurisdictions where they may be lawfully offered for safe and in those
Jjurisdictions only by persons permitted to sell such securities. No securities regulatory authority has expressed an opinion about these securities and it is an offence to
claim otherwise, Information has been incorporated by reference in this short form prospectus from documents filed with securities regulatory authorities. Copies of the
documents incorparated herein by reference may be obtained on request without charge from the Corporate Secretary of Mosaic Group Inc. at 4694 King Street West,
Toronto, Ontario M3V 3M4, telephone 416-588-7788. These securities have not been and will not be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, (the “1933 Act”) or any state securities laws and may not be offered or sold within the United States or to or for the account or benefit of United States

persons unless regisiered under the 1933 Act and applicable state securities laws or unless an exemption from such registration is available. See “Details of the
Offering”.

Short Form Prospectus

New Issue March 1 11 2002
*
o ? P
MO S AIlC G ROUP I NC Ii:‘)
Mosaic Group Inc. A
$45,600,000 .
12,000,000 Common Shares ==

-y

This short form prospectus qualifies for distribution 12,000,000 common shares of Mosaic Group Inc. (the “Company™) at-a*price of
$3.80 per share (the “Offering Price”) in all the Provinces of Canada (the “Offering”), pursuant to an underwriting agreement dated
March 4, 2002 (the “Underwriting Agreement”) among us and Yorkton Securities Inc., Scotia Capital Inc., BMO Nesbitt Burns Inc.,
CIBC World Markets Inc., HSBC Securities (Canada) Inc., and TD Securities Inc. (collectively the “Underwriters”). The common
shares of the Company (“Common Shares™) are listed and posted for trading on the Toronto Stock Exchange (the “TSE”), under the
trading symbol “MGX”. On February 28, 2002, the date of the announcement of the Offering, and on March 8, 2002, the closing
prices of the Common Shares on the TSE were $4.19 and 4.01, respectively. The TSE has conditionally approved the listing of the
Common Shares qualified by this short form prospectus. The Offering Price of the Common Shares offered hereunder was determined
by negotiation between the Company and the Underwriters.

Price: $3.80 per Common Share

Price to Public Underwriters’ Fee!" Net Proceeds to the Company® &
Per Common Share........... et $3.80 $0.1862 $3.6138
TOtal oo $45,600,000 $2,234,400 $43,365,600

" The Underwriters® fee for the sale of the Common Shares offered hereunder is 4.9% of the gross proceeds.

@ Before deducting expenses of this Offering, estimated to be $300,000 which, together with the Underwriters’ fee will be paid from the gross proceeds of the
Offering.

® The Company has granted to the Underwriters an option (the “Over-Allotment Option™), exercisable for a period of 30 days from the closing date of this Offering,
to purchase an aggregate of up to 1,800,000 Common Shares on the same terms as the above solely to cover over-allotments, if any, and effect market stabilization
operations. If the Over-Allotment Option is exercised in full, the total price to the public, the Underwriters’ fee and the net proceeds to the Company will be
$52,440,000, $2,569,560 and $49,870,440 respectively. This short form prospectus qualifies the disteibution of the Over-Allotment Option to the Underwriters and
the Common Shares issuable on the exercise of the Over-Allotment Option. See “Plan of Distribution”.

The Underwriters, as principals, conditionally offer the Common Shares hereunder, subject to prior sale, if, as and when issued and delivered by the
Company and accepted by us in accordance with the conditions contained in the Underwriting Agreement referred to under Plan of Distribution and
subject to the approval of certain legal matters on behalf of the Company by Fraser Milner Casgrain LLP and on behalf of the Underwriters by
Goodmans LLP.

Subscriptions for the Common Shares offered hereunder will be received subject to rejection or allotment in whole or in part and the right is reserved

to close the subscription books at any time without notice. It is expected that certificates evidencing such Common Shares will be available for
delivery at the closing of this Offering, which is expected to take place on or about March 19, 2002, or such later date as we and the Underwriters

may agree, but not later than March 28, 2002,

Each of Scotia Capital Inc.,, BMO Nesbitt Burns Inc.,, CIBC World Markets Inc., HSBC Securities (Canada) Inc., and TD
Securities Inc. are subsidiaries of Canadian chartered banks (collectively the “Banks”) which are lenders to the Company. The
Company will use a portion of the net proceeds of this Offering to reduce its indebtedness to the Banks. Consequently, the

Company may be considered to be a connected issuer of these Underwriters under applicable Canadian securities legislation.
See “Plan of Distribution”.

The Common Shares offered hereunder will not be precluded as investments under certain statutes. See “Eligibility for Investment”.
Unless otherwise noted or the context otherwise dictates, Mosaic Group Inc. and its subsidiaries are referred to herein as the “Company” or

CEINTS

“Mosaic”, “us” or “we”.
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ELIGIBILITY FOR INVESTMENT

The eligibility of common shares in the capital of Mosaic Group Inc. offered hereby (the “Offered
Shares”) for investment by purchasers to whom any of the following statutes apply is, in certain cases, governed by
criteria which such purchasers are required to establish as policies or guidelines pursuant to the applicable statute
(and, where applicable, the associated regulations) and is subject to the prudent investment standards and general
investment provisions they provide for:

Insurance Companies Act (Canada) Loan and Trust Corporations Act (Ontario)

Trust and Loan Companies Act (Canada) Pension Benefits Act (Ontario)

Pension Benefits Standards Act, 1985 (Canada) Trustee Act (Ontario)

Financial Institutions Act (British Columbia) an Act respecting trust companies and saving
Pension Benefits Standards Act (British Columbia) companies (Québec) (except trust companies with
Loan and Trust Corporations Act (Alberta) respect to funds, other than deposits, which are
Alberta Heritage Savings Trust Fund Act (Alberta) administered for other purposes)

Employment Pension Plans Act (Alberta) Supplemental Pension Plans Act (Québec)
Insurance Act (Alberta) an Act respecting insurance (Québec) (in respect of
The Pension Benefits Act (Manitoba) insurers other than mutual associations, insurance
The Insurance Act (Manifoba) funds established by professional corporations or
The Trustee Act (Manitoba) guarantee fund corporations)

In the opinion of our counsel, Fraser Milner Casgrain LLP, and counsel to the Underwriters,
Goodmans LLP, the Offered Shares, if issued on the date hereof, will be qualified investments for trusts governed by
registered retirement savings plans, registered education savings plans, registered retirement income funds or
deferred profit sharing plans under the /ncome Tax Act (Canada) and the regulations thereunder.

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This short form prospectus, and the documents incorporated in this short form prospectus by
reference, contain forward-looking statements which reflect the expectations of our management regarding results of
operations, performance and business prospects and opportunities. Wherever possible, words such as “anticipate”,
“believe”, “expect”, “intend” and similar expressions have been used to identify these forward-looking statements.
These statements reflect management’s current beliefs and are based on information currently available to
management. Forward-looking statements involve significant risk, uncertainties and assumptions. A number of
factors could cause actual results, performance or achievements to differ materially from the results discussed or
implied in the forward-looking statements. Substantial risks and uncertainties exist with respect to such factors as
the maintenance of client relationships, client credit risk, the performance of capital markets, changes in interest
rates, changes in foreign currency exchange rates, taxation, the retention of key management and availability of
employees for hire, changes in labour and other laws to which the Company is subject, the impact of terrorism on
consumer and business behaviour, competition and overall economic performance, as well as various other risk
factors included in the “Risk Factors” section of this short form prospectus or as may be discussed from time to time
in the Company’s public filings with Canadian securities regulatory authorities. These factors should be considered
carefully and prospective investors should not place undue reliance on the forward-looking statements. Although the
forward-looking statements contained in this short form prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference are
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based upon what management believes to be reasonable assumptions, we cannot assure prospective purchasers that
actual results will be consistent with these forward-looking statements.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Information has been incorporated by reference in this short form prospectus from
documents filed with securities commissions or similar authorities in Canada. Copies of the documents
incorporated in this short form prospectus by reference may be obtained on request without charge from the
Company’s head office located at 469A King Street West, Toronto, Ontario M5V 3M4, by telephone
(416) 588-7788 or by accessing the Company’s disclosure documents available through the Internet on SEDAR at
www.SEDAR.com. For the purpose of the Province of Québec, this short form prospectus contains information to
be completed by consulting the permanent information record. A copy of the permanent information record may be
obtained from the Company at the above-mentioned address and telephone number.

The following documents that we have filed with the securities regulatory authorities of the
provinces of British Columbia, Alberta, Saskatchewan, Manitoba, Ontario, Québec, New Brunswick, Nova Scotia,
Prince Edward Island and Newfoundland are specifically incorporated in this short form prospectus by reference and
form an integral part of this short form prospectus:

. Annual information form dated May 18, 2001 for the year ended December 31, 2000, other than the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis portion of such annual information form that has been superseded
by the Management’s Discussion and Analysis of the financial condition and operating performance of
Mosaic for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001 referred to below;

. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of financial condition and results of operating performance of
Mosaic for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001;

. The audited Consolidated Financial Statements of Mosaic as at December 31, 2001 and 2000, and for each
of the fiscal years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 and related notes thereto, together with the
accompanying auditors’ report;

. The Management Proxy Circular dated as of May 3, 2001 prepared in connection with the Company’s
annual and special meeting of shareholders held on June 7, 2001 other than those portions of the
Management Proxy Circular that need not be incorporated by reference into this short form prospectus;

4 The Management Proxy Circular dated as of November 29, 2001 prepared in connection with the
Company's special meeting of shareholders held on January 7, 2002 other than those portions of the
Management Proxy Circular that need not be incorporated by reference into this short form prospectus;

. The material change report dated June 29, 2001 concerning the private placement of US$57,000,000 in
10.50% Canadian Originated Preferred Securities (“COPrS”); and

. The material change report dated November 27, 2001 concerning Amendment No. 2 to the Amended and
Restated Merger Agreement dated December 14, 2000, as amended by Amendment No. | thereto dated
January 25, 2001.

Any of the following documents filed by us with the various securities commissions or similar
authorities in the provinces of Canada after the date of this short form prospectus and prior to the termination of this
Offering will be deemed to be incorporated by reference into this short form prospectus:

. material change reports, except confidential material change reports;
. comparative interim financial statements; and
. comparative financial statements for our most recently completed financial year, together with the

accompanying report of the auditor.

Any statement contained in this short form prospectus or in a document incorporated or deemed to
be incorporated by reference in this short form prospectus will be deemed to be modified or superseded to the extent
that a statement contained in this short form prospectus, or in any subsequently filed document which also is or is
deemed to be incorporated by reference in this short form prospectus, modifies or replaces that statement. The
modifying or superseding statement need not state that it has modified or superseded a prior statement or include
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any other information set forth in the document that it modifies or supersedes. The making of a modifying or
superseding statement will not be deemed an admission that the modified or superseded statement, when made,
constituted a misrepresentation, an untrue statement of a material fact or an omission to state a material fact that is
required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstance in which it
was made. Any statement so modified or superseded will not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to
constitute a part of this short form prospectus.

THE COMPANY

Mosaic Group Inc. was incorporated by Articles of Incorporation under the Business Corporations
Act (Ontario) on June 28, 1995, amalgamated with certain of its subsidiaries on January 1, 1998 and carries on
business both through Mosaic Group Inc. and a number of operating subsidiaries. Mosaic Group Inc. and its
subsidiaries are referred to herein as the “Company” or “Mosaic”, “us” or “we”, unless the context otherwise
requires. In October 1995, Mosaic completed an initial public offering of its commeon shares (“Common Shares™) in
Ontario. Mosaic’s Common Shares trade on the Toronto Stock Exchange (the “TSE”) under the stock symbol
“MGX".

The diagram below outlines the corporate organization of Mosaic and its significant operating
subsidiaries as of February 28, 2002. Unless otherwise indicated, all such subsidiaries are 100% owned, either
directly or indirectly, by Mosaic.

North American Operations

Mosaic Group Inc. (Ontario)

|

Mosaic eForce Corp. Mosaic S&MG Field Medium One Mosaic Mosaic Group
Organizationat {Ont,) Marketing Merchandisers Productions inc. Performance us)
Performance Services Inc, Ltd. (Ont.) (68%) Solutions Limited Inc. (Del.)***
Group Ltd. (Ont.) {Ont,) {Ont.) (Ireland)

T
[T J [ 1 | 1

Mosaic Mosaic TMG Mosaic Retail Mosaic Mosaic Mosaic
InfoForce GP InfoForce LP Selutions Ine. Solutions Inc, Relevance Relevance Performance
HOIdCO“[‘"‘C- HOldCOv‘L“f' (Del.) (Del.) Marketing LP | | Marketing GP Solutions

(Del) (Del.) Inc. (Del yr+* Tnc. (Del.y*** Inc(Del))

% 50% 1% L

Mosaic InfoForce 99% Mosaic Mosaic
LP (Del) Relevance Data
Marketing LP Solutions
. Del.
UK Operations ©eb) Ine. (Del)

Mosaic Group Inc. (Ont.)

|

l Mosaic Investments Inc, (Ont) ***

[

Mosaic Group
(United Kingdom)***

[ _ |

Mosaic Group Mosaic Performance

Solutions Solutions
{Europe) Limited (UK) Limited

{UK) (UK)

FMCG Home

Service Limited
(UK)

Notes: *** Non-operating company.




BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY

Mosaic Group Inc., with operations in Canada, the United States, and the United Kingdom, is a

leading provider of results-driven, measurable marketing solutions for global brands. Mosaic specializes in three
functional solutions: Direct Marketing Customer Acquisition and Retention Solutions; Marketing & Infrastructure
Solutions; and Sales Solutions & Research, offered as integrated end-to-end solutions. Management believes that
Mosaic differentiates itself by offering solutions steeped in technology, driven by efficiency and providing
measurable and sustainable results for its brand partners.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

The following is a summary of significant developments in the operations and affairs of Mosaic

occurring since January 1, 2001:

I.

On February 21, 2001, Mosaic entered into a shareholders rights plan agreement with CIBC Mellon Trust
Company (the “Rights Plan”). The Rights Plan became effective immediately and was approved, ratified
and confirmed by a resolution of shareholders at Mosaic’s annual and special meeting of shareholders held
on June 7, 2001 and amended at a special meeting of the shareholders on January 7, 2002.

On February 21, 2001, Mosaic announced that it would divest itself of certain Continental European
operations in order to focus its management and capital resources in its three major markets - Performance
Marketing, Mosaic’s North American operations, and Mosaic’s U.K./Ireland operations. The Company
substantially completed the divestment in the first half of calendar 2001.

On June 20, 2001, Mosaic completed a private placement of US$57,000,000 in COPrS. The COPrS will
have a final maturity in June, 2009 and will be retired in three equal annual instalments beginning in June,
2007. Distributions on the COPrS will be paid quarterly and are based on an annual rate of 10.50%.

On July 18, 2001 Mosaic completed a transaction with Intelecom Systems, Inc. (“Intelecom”) whereby we
exchanged our 20% common share holding in Intelecom for the 25% common share holding of eForce
Corp. previously held by Intelecom. As a result of the transactions, Mosaic directly holds 100% of the
common share capital of eForce Corp. and no longer has any direct or indirect ownership in Intelecom.

On August 30, 2001, Clint Becker resigned as the Chief Financial Officer of Mosaic. Ben Kaak then
became the Chief Financial Officer of Mosaic, a position that he held prior to Mr. Becker’s term, during
which time Mr. Kaak served as the Executive Vice President of Mosaic, a position Mr. Kaak continues to
hold as of the date of this short form prospectus.

On September 24, 2001, Mosaic announced that its Performance Solutions division in the United States
signed three significant agreements to expand on its existing relationship with a major US satellite TV
services provider into the 2002 fiscal year.

On November 6, 2001, Mosaic announced that it had amended the Amended and Restated Merger
Agreement dated December 14, 2000, as subsequently amended by Amendment No. 1 thereto dated
January 25, 2001 (as so amended, the “Merger Agreement”), between the Company, certain direct and
indirect subsidiaries of the Company, Paradigm Direct LLC (“Paradigm”) (now Mosaic Performance
Solutions Inc., a part of the Mosaic Performance Solutions division in the United States) and the equity
holders of Paradigm (the “Paradigm Vendors™), pursuant to which Mosaic acquired Paradigm. The
amendments to the Merger Agreement fix the amount of the earn-out consideration payable by Mosaic to
the Paradigm Vendors pursuant to the Merger Agreement. The amendments provide that the remaining
earn-out payments to the Paradigm Vendors would be satisfied with the issuance by Mosaic of 20,540,000
Common Shares in January 2002, cash consideration of US$26,500,000 payable on or before April 1, 2002
and US$26,000,000 of additional consideration also payable on or before April 1, 2002. The additional
consideration - may be satisfied either in cash or in Common Shares, at the Company’s option. Such
consideration may be satisfied through the issue of Common Shares at a ratio of 0.48 Common Shares for
each US dollar of consideration to a maximum of 12,480,000 Common Shares. The Company has also
agreed with the Underwriters that no more than 50% of such additional consideration shall be paid in cash.
The amendments to the earn-out consideration were conditional upon, among other things, the approval by
the Company’s shareholders of the issuance of the maximum number of Common Shares that could be

required to be issued to the Paradigm Vendors as earn-out consideration. This approval was obtained on
January 7, 2002.
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On January 15, 2002, the Company satisfied the first two of these earn-out payments by the issuance to the
Paradigm Vendors of an aggregate of 20,540,000 Common Shares and the payment to the Paradigm
Vendors of an aggregate of U$$26,500,000. It is the Company’s current intention to satisfy the remaining
US$26,000,000 in unpaid consideration through the issue of 12,480,000 Common Shares.

8. On January 1, 2002, Marc Byron, formerly the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) of our subsidiary Mosaic
Performance Solutions, was appointed the Vice Chairman and CEO of Mosaic. On January 7, 2002, Paul
Alofs resigned as a member of our Board of Directors and Gregory Kiernan was elected by the Board of
Directors to fill this vacancy on February 26, 2002.

9. Effective January 2002, Mosaic discontinued its direct marketing customer acquisition contract with AT&T
Wireless as profitability levels on this contract fell below target levels. Mosaic is currently negotiating the
financial arrangements and other terms of the discontinuance of this work.

10. On January 24, 2002, Mosaic announced that commencing on or about January 28, 2002 Mosaic will begin
marketing Worldcom Wireless consumer wireless services across the United States on a non-exclusive
basis.

1. On January 24, 2002, Mosaic announced the details of its “Go Forward Plan”. The plan addressed and

described Mosaic’s priorities and plans as an organization strategically, financially, operationally and
culturally. A cornerstone of that plan is to simplify the operating structure of Mosaic by establishing four
operating Divisions.

Mosaic also announced on January 24, 2002 that it will undergo a review of its capacity which will likely
result in headcount reductions in selected divisions. The Company expects to eliminate approximately 10%
of its workforce and consolidate a number of its locations. The Company is currently estimating the costs
related to this restructuring to be in the range of $10,000,000 to $14,000,000. The Company intends to
announce additional information in respect of its restructuring plans, related costs and anticipated savings
as the “Go Forward Plan” unfolds and is implemented in the first half of 2002,

12. On January 25, 2002, Mosaic acquired Custom Offers LLC (“Custom Offers”), an internet marketing
solutions company, focused on aggregating large volumes of data and then monetizing that data through
performance driven marketing programs. Upon acquisition, Custom Offers was immediately renamed as
Mosaic Data Solutions. The purchase price for Custom Offers consists of (i) US$6,000,000 satisfied at
closing by the issuance of 2,293,067 Common Shares and the payment of US$300,000; (ii) an additional
payment of US$4,000,000 if Custom Offers achieves pre-tax earnings of US$2,000,000 in 2002, with such
payment being made in cash or Common Shares, at Mosaic’s option; and (iii) additional earn-out payments
in 2003 and 2004 based on a multiple of up to five times average 2002 and 2003 pre-tax earnings and will
be settled primarily in Common Shares, however, no less than 20% of such payments shall be made in
cash. The maximum consideration payable pursuant to the Custom Merger Agreement is US$49,900,000,
with any Mosaic shares issued subject to a floor price of US$1.80.

DETAILS OF THE OFFERING

The offering consists of 12,000,000 Offered Shares at a price of $3.80 per share (the “Offering”).
Each Common Share entitles the holder to one vote per share held at a meeting of shareholders, to receive such
dividends as declared by us and to receive our remaining property and assets upon dissolution or winding up. Our
Common Shares are not subject to any future call or assessment and there are no pre-emptive, conversion or
redemption rights attached to such shares.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

Under an agreement (the “Underwriting Agreement”) dated March 4, 2002 between Yorkton
Securities Inc., Scotia Capital Inc., BMO Nesbitt Burns Inc., CIBC World Markets Inc., HSBC Securities (Canada)
Inc., and TD Securities Inc. (the “Underwriters”) and us, we have agreed to issue and sell, and the Underwriters
have severally agreed to purchase, on March 19, 2002 or on such other date as we and the Underwriters may agree,
but in any event not later than March 28, 2002, subject to compliance with all necessary legal requirements and to
the terms and conditions contained in the Underwriting Agreement, 12,000,000 Offered Shares at a price of $3.80
per share (the “Offering Price”), payable in cash against delivery of the certificates representing such shares for an
aggregate price of $45,600,000. The Offering Price was determined by negotiation between us and the Underwriters.



In consideration for their services, we have agreed to pay the Underwriters a fee equal to $0.1862 per Offered Share
sold.

The Company has granted the Underwriters an option (the “Over-Allotment Option”), exercisable
within 30 days after the closing, to purchase an aggregate of up to 1,800,000 Offered Shares on the same terms as
set forth above solely to cover over-allotments, if any, and to effect market stabilization operations. This short form
prospectus also qualifies the distribution of the Over-Allotment Option and the Offered Shares issuable upon the
exercise of the Over-Allotment Option. We have agreed to pay the Underwriters a fee of $0.1862 per Offered Share
in respect of Offered Shares purchased pursuant to the exercise of the Over-Allotment Option.

We have agreed to indemnify the Underwriters and their directors, officers, employees and agents
from and against liabilities arising from this Offering, including any Company non-compliance or alleged non-
compliance with securities legislation.

Pursuant to the policy statements of the relevant securities commissions, the Underwriters may
not, throughout the period of distribution, bid for or purchase Common Shares. These restrictions are subject to
exceptions, as long as the bid or purchase is not engaged in for the purpose of creating actual or apparent active
trading in or raising the price of such securities. Exceptions include a bid or purchase permitted under the rules and
requirements of the TSE relating to market stabilization and passive market-making activities and a bid or purchase
made for and on behalf of a client where the order was not solicited during the period of distribution. Pursuant to the
first-mentioned exception, in connection with this Offering, the Underwriters may effect transactions which stabilize
or maintain the market price of the Common Shares at levels other than those which might otherwise prevail on the
open market. Such transactions, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time.

The Offered Shares have not been and will not be registered under the United States Securities Act
of 1933, as amended, (the “/933 Act”) and, subject to certain exceptions, may not be offered or sold in the United
States or to, or for the account or benefit of, United States persons. The Underwriters have agreed that they will not
offer or sell the Offered Shares within the United States, except in accordance with the Underwriting Agreement and
pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of the 1933 Act provided by Rule 144A under the {933
Act, and in compliance with applicable state securities laws. This short form prospectus does not constitute an offer
to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy any of the Offered Shares in the United States. In addition, until 40 days
afier the commencement of the Offering pursuant to this short form prospectus, an offering or sale of the Offered
Shares within the United States by any dealer (whether or not participating in this Offering) may violate the
registration requirements of the /933 Act if such offer or sale is made otherwise than in accordance with Rule 144A
under the 7933 Act and other applicable United States state and federal securities laws.

The Company has agreed that it will not, without the prior consent of the Underwriters, offer, sell
or otherwise dispose of any Common Shares, or any securities convertible into or exchangeable for or exercisable to
acquire Common Shares (other than the Offered Shares pursuant to this short form prospectus, Offered Shares
issuable upon the exercise of the Over-Allotment Option, Common Shares issuable pursuant to presently
outstanding rights or agreements, Common Shares issuable upon exercise of the Rights Plan, Common Shares
issuable pursuant to the exercise of the options granted under the Company's stock option plan or stock purchase
plan and Common Shares issuable as consideration for any future acquisitions by the Company for not greater than
an aggregate 10% of the number of Common Shares outstanding immediately following completion of this
Offering) for a period of 90 days from the closing date of this Offering.

The obligations of the Underwriters under the Underwriting Agreement are several and may be
terminated upon the occurrence of certain stated events. It is a condition, subject to waiver by the Underwriters, that
the Company’s senior bank lending syndicate agree (prior to the closing of this Offering) to amend the Second
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of October 4, 2000, as amended (the “Senior Credit Facility”),
by revising the definition of EBITDA therein to expressly exclude (or “add back™ as the case may be) in the
calculation of EBITDA during the 2002 fiscal year, any accrued restructuring charges recorded in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) during that period, up to a maximum of $12,000,000.
The Underwriters are, however, obligated to take up and pay for all of the Offered Shares if any of such Offered
Shares are purchased under the Underwriting Agreement. Subscriptions for the Offered Shares will be received
subject to rejection or allotment in whole or in part and the right is reserved to close the subscription books at any
time without notice. It is expected that certificates evidencing the Offered Shares will be available for delivery at the
closing of this Offering, which is expected to take place on or about March 19, 2002, or such later date as we and the
Underwriters may agree, but not later than March 28, 2002,
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Scotia Capital Inc., BMO Nesbitt Burns Inc., CIBC World Markets Inc., HSBC Securities
(Canada) Inc., and TD Securities Inc. (the “Connected Underwriters”) are subsidiaries of Canadian chartered banks
which are lenders to the Company (collectively the “Banks”). The Company will use a portion of the net proceeds of
this Offering to reduce its indebtedness to the Banks. See “Use of Proceeds”. Consequently, the Company may be
considered to be a connected issuer of these Underwriters under applicable Canadian securities legislation. The
Banks have agreed to make available to the Company credit facilities or financings in the maximum aggregate
principal amount of approximately $252,450,000. As at February 28, 2002, the Company was indebted to the Banks
in respect of such credit facilities or financings in the aggregate amount of approximately $205,056,800. As of the
date hereof, the Company is in compliance with the terms of its indebtedness to the Banks. The indebtedness is
secured by substantially all the assets of the Company. Since entering into the Senior Credit Facility, the Company
has made a number of acquisitions funded in part or in whole by drawdowns pursuant to the Senior Credit Facility,
which acquisitions have resulted in increases in the security granted by the Company under the Senior Credit
Facility. In addition, the financial position of the Company has changed since entering into the Senior Credit Facility
as disclosed in the Company’s periodic public filings of its consolidated financial statements and related information
with Canadian securities regulatory authorities. The decision to distribute the Offered Shares and the determination
of the terms and conditions of the distribution were made through negotiations between the Company and the
Underwriters without the involvement of the Banks. The Connected Underwriters will not receive from the
Company any benefit from this Offering, other than their respective portions of the Underwriters' fee payable by the
Company.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds to the Company from the Offered Share sale are estimated to be $43,065,600
(approximately $49,570,440 if the Over-Allotment Option is exercised in full), after deducting the Underwriters’ fee
and other expenses of the Offering estimated at $300,000. We will use the net proceeds of this Offering to reduce
our indebtedness under the Senior Credit Facility. The Senior Credit Facility being paid down is a revolving facility
used for working capital, acquisition and other corporate purposes and, as such, the indebtedness under such facility
fluctuates on a regular basis. It is our intention to reduce the available commitment under the Senior Credit Facility
from $300,000,000 to $260,000,000 effective with the Closing of the Offering. Pending such pay down, the
Company will invest the net proceeds of the Offering in short term, interest bearing, investment grade securities.

DESCRIPTION OF SHARE CAPITAL

Mosaic has an authorized share capital consisting of an unlimited number of Common Shares and
an unlimited number of preference shares, issuable in series. As at March 8, 2002, there were 98,200,275 Common
Shares issued and outstanding as fully paid and non-assessable shares and there were no issued and outstanding
preference shares.

Holders of Common Shares are entitled to one vote for each Common Share held at any meeting
of shareholders of Mosaic. Holders of Commeon Shares are entitled to receive dividends when declared by the board
of directors of Mosaic. Holders of Common Shares are also entitled to receive the remaining property of the
Company upon dissolution or winding up.

CONSOLIDATED CAPITALIZATION

Since December 31, 2001, we issued the following Commaon Shares:
(i} 27,000 Common Shares upon the exercise of previously issued options.

(ii) On January 15, 2002, 20,540,000 Common Shares were issued, in the aggregate, to the Paradigm
Vendors in connection with the amendments to the earn-out consideration payable under the Merger
Agreement.

(iii) On January 25, 2002, 2,293,067 Common Shares were issued, in the aggregate, to the equity holders in
Custom Offers LLC pursuant to a merger agreement dated as of January 21, 2002 among Mosaic
Group Inc,, Custom Offers Holding Company, Custom Offers Acquisition Corp., Custom Offers LLC,
Lawrence P. Organ, Michael A. Organ and the other equity holders of Custom Offers LLC named
therein. See paragraph 12 of “Recent Developments” with respect to additional shares that may be
issued in respect of this merger.




As described above, Mosaic is obligated to satisfy on or prior to April 2002 a payment obligation
to the Paradigm Vendors in the amount of US$26,000,000, payable at the discretion of Mosaic in either cash or
Common Shares. Such consideration may be satisfied through the issuance of 0.48 Common Shares for each US
dollar of consideration payable to a maximum of 12,480,000 Common Shares. The Company has also agreed with
the Underwriters that no more than 50% of such consideration shall be paid in cash. It is the Company’s current
intention to make this payment in Common Shares.

The following table sets out the capitalization of the Company as at December 31, 2001: (i) on an
actual basis, as reflected in the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2001; and (ii) on a
pro forma basis to reflect the issue of the Company’s 12,000,000 Offered Shares for gross proceeds of $45,600,000
after estimated issue costs of $2,534,400 and the application of the net proceeds as described under “Use of
Proceeds”. This table should be read in conjunction with the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements and the
notes thereto and Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
incorporated by reference in this short form prospectus.

December 31, 2001
Actual Pro Forma"”
(audited) (unaudited)

Debt
Bank indebtedness'™ ... $ 5,943,000 $ 5,943,000
Senior Credit Facility ® ............co.cooovvioiooioeeveeeeeceere, 162,710,000 161,779,400
Accrued acquisition liabilities ® .............cccoo.ccooovvcornercoreer e 72,845,000 30,710,000
Obligations under capital leases (including current portion).............. 10.465.,000 10,465,000
TOtA] DIEDL vt cicasnissnsassissntssresssssansssasassseresnessons 251.963.000 208,897,400
MINOFItY INTErESt .ovvverurnnrenreerserernsaorerasnerensanns 2,685,000 2,685.000
Shareholders’ Equity
Common Shares, without par value, unlimited authorization; issued

75,194,371 as at December 31, 2001; Pro forma 95,734,371 .... 191,578,000 249,090,000
12,000,000 Common Share Offering ® ..........ccooovovevcorrccorreeerrnes - 44,043,900
Other equity instruments

COPES @ ettt 85,350,000 85,350,000

Paradigm earn-out obligation ~January 15,2002 @ ..........c........ 57,512,000 -

Paradigm earn-out obligation — April 1,2002® ... 41.340.000 41,340,000
Total Share Capital 375,780.000 419.823.900
Cumulative foreign exchange translation adjustment (3,849,000) (3,849,000)
Retained armings ......cccovvvceeiiiiiniiiieee e 47,057,000 47.057.000
Total Shareholders’ EQUILY ....cccivererienserrennariceressossnssssassassonsassanses 418.988.000 463,031,900

Total Capitalization........cvivrvvrvinnisirenasnesnmemmmnaen. 5 0673636000 § _ 674,614,300

(D]

The above table assumes the Over-Allotment Option is not exercised and reflects on a pro forma basis the results of the issuance of the Offered
Shares and the payment of the obligated US$26,500,000 cash and share portion of the Paradigm earn-out payment and share issue subsequent to
December 31, 2001.

See Note 5(a) of the Notes to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for information concerning bank indebtedness.

The net proceeds of $43,065,600 from the Offering will be used to reduce the balance owing under the Senior Credit Facility. See Note 5(b) of the
Notes to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for information concerning the Senior Credit Facility.

On January 15, 2002, the cash portion of the Paradigm earn-out payment of US$26,500,000 (C342,135,000) was settled increasing the balance
owing under the Senior Credit Facility,

After deduction of the Underwriters® fee of $2,234,400 and estimated expenses of the Offering of $300,000, net of applicable income tax benefits of
$978,300 in the aggregate.

See Note 6(c) of the Notes to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for information concerning the COPsS.

Share capital at December 31, 2001 includes the Paradigm earn-out obligation which was settled in part on January 15, 2002 by the issuance of
20,540,000 Common Shares of the Company. See Notes 2(a) and 6(d) of the Notes to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company
for information concerning the payment of the January 2002 Paradigm earn-out obligation,

Share capital at December 31, 2001 includes the balance of the Paradigm earn-out obligation which is to be settled on April 1, 2002. It is the
Company’s current intention to satisfy this obligation by the issuance of 12,480,000 Common Shares of the Company. See Notes 2(a) and 6(d) of the
Notes to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for information concerning the payment of the April 2002 Paradigm earn-
out obligation.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Except for distributions on other equity instruments, neither the Company nor its predecessors has
declared any dividends on its Common Shares since their respective dates of amalgamation and incorporation and
the Company has no plans to declare any dividends for the foreseeable future. The Company intends to retain future
earnings to finance the development of its business and has no current plans 1o pay any dividends on the Common
Shares.
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PRICE RANGE AND TRADING VOLUME OF COMMON SHARES

Our Common Shares are quoted for trading on the TSE and began trading there in October of
1995 under the trading symbol “MGX”. The following table sets forth the price quotations and the trading volume
for the Common Shares for the periods indicated:

Calendar Period Price Per Share Share Trading Volume
High Low

1999 Ist quarter 1999 $4.20 $2.75 5,658,004
2nd quarter 1999 6.90 3.90 6,189,944
3rd quarter 1999 7.80 6.50 8,551,708
4th quarter 1999 11.80 7.20 6,926,034

2000 I'st quarter 2000 22.05 11.05 12,686,954
2nd quarter 2000 19.75 14.50 12,162,677
3rd quarter 2000 18.20 13.00 9,722,398
4th quarter 2000 16.65 9.50 15,324,781

2001 Ist quarter 2001 10.50 3.60 18,773,947
2nd quarter 2001 8.00 3.75 15,578,011
3rd quarter 2001 8.00 3.40 12,714,264
October 2001 4.50 3.00 3,148,225
November 2001 3.90 2.50 9,239,136
December 2001 4.40 3.40 5,254,186

2002 January 2002 442 3.30 4,452,123
February 2002 4.25 2.66 13,336,839
March | to March 8, 2002 4.15 3.80 4,949,310

RISK FACTORS

The following risk factors, as well as the other information contained in this short form
prospectus, should be considered carefully:

Implementation of “Go Forward Plan”:

We have recently announced the details of our “Go Forward Plan” which addresses and describes
our strategic, financial, operational and cultural priorities and plans as an organization. In addition, we have
announced that we will undergo a review of our operating capacity which will likely result in headcount reductions
in selected divisions. The Company expects to eliminate approximately 10% of its workforce and consolidate a
number of its locations. The Company is currently estimating the costs related to this restructuring to be in the range
of $10,000,000 to $14,000,000, In connection with this reduction in workforce, we may face labour law issues in
various jurisdictions in which we operate. We intend to update our specific restructuring plans, related costs and
anticipated savings as the “Go Forward Plan” unfolds and is implemented in the first half of 2002. We cannot be
certain either that we will be able to successfully implement our “Go Forward Plan” or that it will successfully
address our needs. If the “Go Forward Plan” fails to successfully achieve its goals, our operating results could suffer
and the resulting economic shortfall could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

Dependence on Key Personnel:

As in any service business, our success has been in the past and is expected to continue to be
dependent upon the leadership shown by a number of key executive and management personnel. The successful
implementation of our “Go Forward Plan”, for example, will rely heavily on the leadership of our CEO and our
other key executive and management personnel. Relationships we have with our clients could be lost if key
personnel leave, and our ability to generate revenue may be harmed by the departure of individuals who work on our
projects as we are dependent on their expertise. Competition for such personnel may be intense and there can be no
assurance that we will be successful in identifying, attracting, hiring, training and retaining such personnel in the
future. If we are unable to identify, attract, hire, train and retain qualified personnel in the future, such inability
could have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results and financial condition.
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Leverage and Debt Service:

As of December 31, 2001, our outstanding senior indebtedness aggregated approximately
$164,000,000 and we had outstanding US$57,000,000 in COPrS. The net proceeds from this Offering will be used
to reduce the amount of indebtedness outstanding pursuant to the Senior Credit Facility.

Qur ability to meet our debt service obligations will depend on our future performance, which will
be subject to prevailing economic conditions and to financial, business and other factors beyond our control. While
we are currently in compliance with all of our financial and operating covenants contained in the Senior Credit
Facility and the COPrS agreement, there can be no assurance that we will be in compliance in the future with such
covenants, including subsequent to implementation of the Company's proposed restructuring as detailed in its ”Go
Forward Plan.” The existence of our financial leverage could have important consequences to holders of Common
Shares, including (i) our ability to obtain additional financing for working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions,
general corporate purposes or other purposes; and (ii) a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations will be
dedicated to the payment of principal and interest on our outstanding indebtedness, thereby reducing the funds
available to us for our existing operations and any future acquisitions or other business opportunities. The
Company’s debt facilities are subject to renewal from time to time. There can be no assurance that such facilities
will be renewed, or if renewed, that the renewal will occur on same or similar terms.

Uncertainty in Customer Revenue:

We are subject to revenue uncertainties resulting from factors such as loss of clients, cancellation
or delay of committed client projects, the undertaking of unprofitable client work and the failure of clients to pay.
We attempt to mitigate these risks by dealing primarily with large credit-worthy customers, by collecting, whenever
possible, in advance of rendering services, by entering into written agreements with our clients and by using project
budgeting systems. We believe that we do not face significant concentration of credit risk issues resulting from a
dependence on a limited member of significant customers. While multiple service contracts with AT&T Wireless
represented over 27% of our revenues in fiscal 2001, each of our other clients accounted individually for less than
7% of our total revenues.

Acquisitions:

Acquisitions could create risks for us, including difficulties in assimilation of acquired personnel,
operations and technology. In addition, if we consummate acquisitions through an exchange of our securities, our
existing shareholders could suffer significant dilution. Any future acquisitions, even if successfully completed, may
not generate any additional revenue or provide any benefit to our business.

New Accounting Standards Relating to the Treatment of Goodwill:

We have adopted in fiscal 2002 the accounting standards of The Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants Handbook Sections 1581 — Business Combinations and 3062 — Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.
Effective January 1, 2002, we are no longer required to amortize goodwill. In accordance with these new standards,
we are required to perform transitional impairment tests on goodwill that existed as at January 1, 2002. Impairment
of goodwill is tested by a two-step approach at a level of reporting referred to as a reporting unit. The first step
compares the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying amount, including goodwill, to identify potential
impairment. If the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, there is a second step that requires the
fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill be compared with its carrying amount to measure impairment loss, if any.
We have until the end of the second quarter of fiscal 2002 to complete the first step of the transitional goodwill
impairment test and until the end of fiscal 2002 to calculate the magnitude of any resulting impairment loss as at
January 1, 2002. Any such transitional impairment loss will be recorded under GAAP as an adjustment to January 1,
2002, or opening fiscal 2002, retained earnings. Under the new standards, we will also be required to perform
additional impairment tests of goodwill at least annually, but more frequently if indications of impairment exist. Any
impairment losses occurring in fiscal 2002 or later will be recorded in operating income for that period under
GAAP. We had $589,700,000 of goodwill recorded on our balance sheet as of December 31, 2001. Accordingly, the
adoption of the new standards could result in a significant charge to our reported earnings in the future. Such non-
cash charge could have an impact on our financial statements and our share price.
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AT&T Relationship:

Effective January 2002, we discontinued our direct marketing customer acquisition contract with
AT&T Wireless as profitability levels on this contract fell below target levels. This work represented
US$90,600,000 or 18% of our revenue during 2001. We are currently negotiating the financial arrangements and
other terms of the discontinuance of this work. In the event that a satisfactory resolution is not achieved, either we or
AT&T Wireless may elect to settle this matter through binding arbitration. In February 2002, we notified AT&T
Wireless of our intention to arbitrate should a mutually agreeable resolution not be reached. We do not anticipate
any material negative impact on our financial position resulting from such negotiation or arbitration.

Competition;

We currently compete against a wide range of companies, as the services we provide can be
categorized in three functional solutions: direct marketing customer acquisition and retention solutions, marketing
and infrastructure solutions, and sales solutions and research. We have competition in all major markets in which we
do business from competitors that range from large multinationals to small and mid-size agencies. We must compete
with these companies, firms and agencies in order to maintain existing client relationships and to obtain new clients
and assignments. Competitive factors include creative capabilities and reputation, management, personal
relationships, quality and reliability of service and expertise in particular niche areas of the marketplace. Although
the price of services may be a competitive factor in obtaining new clients, it is the results that are generated by
marketing campaigns that we believe are most relevant to a client.

Information Technology:

We are dependent on the use of a number of Information Technology (“IT”) tools in the course of
delivering our services and on direct access to IT systems of certain of our clients in order to activate customers,
thus exposing us to risks related to unauthorized access to our computer systems, mishandling or destruction of data,
data privacy issues and systems failure. We manage these risks through the use of appropriate electronic privacy and
security tools. We also carry out regular testing of our security systems and proprietary applications to ensure their
functionality.

Currency Exchange Rate Risk:

Changes in the relative values of foreign currencies to the Canadian dollar affect our financial
position as we incur either gains or losses in the translation of foreign currency to Canadian dollars. To manage this
risk, we have attempted to hedge against movements in the US dollar and UK pound, the foreign currencies material
to our operations, in a manner that relates to our long-term client contracts, by entering into a series of short-term
foreign currency forward contracts. In addition, we have hedged against fluctuations in the value of the US dollar by
financing a portion of our US operations with US dollar-denominated commitments, including US$69,000,000 in
debt at December 31, 2001, pursuant to our Senior Credit Facility and US$57,000,000 through the issuance of
COPrS. If we are unable to hedge effectively against adverse movements in foreign currency exchange rates, our
operating results may suffer. '

Taxation :

We are subject to the income tax laws of various jurisdictions. We use a number of tax planning
strategies to reduce our overall income tax rate. There can be no assurance that income tax laws or tax treaties will
not be changed in a way which adversely affects the Company's effective tax rate in the future or with respect to the
continuing effectiveness of our tax planning strategies.

Interest Rate Risk:

We attempt to manage the risks inherent in the variable interest rates under our Senior Credit
Facility in part by using floating-for-fixed interest rate swap arrangements with large financial institutions. The
effect of these instruments at the end of 2001 was to fix the rate on US$25,000,000 of debt at 8.0% and on
$50,000,000 of debt at approximately 7.34% based on the credit spread charged on the Senior Credit Facility at
December 31, 2001. If we are unable to hedge successfully against interest rate movements, there could be a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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Intellectual Property Rights:

Our success and ability to compete depends upon our intellectual property, including our trade
secrets and other confidential information, as the markets in which we operate are dependent on this information and
know-how. We rely on trademark, trade secret and copyright laws to protect our intellectual property. Our protective
measures may prove inadequate to protect our proprietary rights, and any failure to enforce or protect our rights
could cause us to lose a valuable asset.

Economic Uncertainty:

The markets in which we operate are cyclical and subject to the effects of economic downturns.
The current political, social and economic conditions, including the impact of terrorism on consumer and business
behaviour, make it difficult for us, our vendors and our customers to accurately forecast and plan future business
activities. We face risks associated with our clients changing their business plans and/or reducing their marketing
budgets.

Fluctuation in Stock Price:

The market price of our Common Shares has been and is likely to continue to be highly volatile
and may fluctuate substantially. The price of the Common Shares that will prevail in the market after this Offering
may be higher or lower that the price you pay, depending on many factors, some of which are beyond our control. In
particular, the announcement of any significant customer developments, or our failure to achieve expected financial
results could have a material adverse effect on our stock price.

Commercial Risks:

Business operations are subject to normal commercial risks. We have a consolidated umbrella
liability insurance policy, and management believes it has adequate and appropriate insurance in respect of insurable
commercial risks.

LEGAL MATTERS

Certain legal matters relating to the issue and sale of the Offered Shares will be passed upon on
behalf of the Company by Fraser Milner Casgrain LLP, Toronte, and on behalf of the Underwriters by Goodmans
LLP. As of the date of this short form prospectus, the partners and associates of Fraser Milner Casgrain LLP and
Goodmans LLP, respectively, as a group own beneficially, directly or indirectly, less than 1%, respectively, of the
Common Shares.

The Company is not currently a party to any material litigation proceedings involving the
Company, its business or its operations. To the best of the knowledge of management of the Company, no such
material proceedings are pending or threatened.

AUDITORS, TRANSFER AGENTS AND REGISTRAR

The auditors of Mosaic are Emst & Young LLP, Ernst & Young Tower, 222 Bay Street, Toronto,
Ontario MSK 1J7, Canada. The transfer agent and registrar for the Common Shares is CIBC Mellon Trust Company
at its principal offices in Toronto, Ontario.

PURCHASERS’ STATUTORY RIGHTS OF WITHDRAWAL AND RESCISSION

Securities legislation in certain of the provinces of Canada provides purchasers with the right to
withdraw from an agreement to purchase securities within two business days after receipt or deemed receipt of a
prospectus and any amendment. In several of the provinces of Canada securities legislation further provides a
purchaser with remedies of rescission or, in some jurisdictions, damages if the prospectus and any amendment
contains a misrepresentation or is not delivered to the purchaser, but such remedies must be exercised by the
purchaser within the time limit prescribed by the securities legislation of his or her province. The purchaser should
refer to the applicable provisions of the securities legislation of the purchaser’s province for the particulars of these
rights or consult with a legal adviser.
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CERTIFICATE OF THE COMPANY

Dated March 11, 2002

This short form prospectus, together with the documents incorporated in this short form
prospectus by reference, constitute full, true and plain disclosure of all material facts relating to the securities offered
by this short form prospectus as required by the securities legislation of each of the provinces of Canada. For the
purpose of the Province of Québec, this short form prospectus, as supplemented by the permanent information
record, contains no misrepresentation that is likely to affect the value or the market price of the securities to be
distributed.

(Signed) MARC BYRON (Signed) BEN W.KAAK
Vice-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

On behalf of the Board of Directors

(Signed) WILLIAM BIGGAR (Signed) THEODORE SANDS
Director ‘ Director




CERTIFICATE OF THE UNDERWRITERS

Dated March 11, 2002

To the best of our knowledge, information and belief], this short form prospectus, together with the
documents incorporated in this short form prospectus by reference, constitutes full, true and plain disclosure of all
material facts relating to the securities offered by this short form prospectus as required by the securities legislation
of each of the provinces of Canada. For the purpose of the Province of Québec, to our knowledge, this short form
prospectus, as supplemented by the permanent information record, contains no misrepresentation that is likely to

affect the value or the market price of the securities to be distributed.

YORKTON SECURITIES INC. SCOTIA CAPITAL INC.
By: (Signed) MARK R. MCQUEEN ByY: (Signed) MELANIE E. RUBY
BMO NESBITT BURNS INC. CIBC WORLD MARKETS INC.
BY: (Signed) A.G. RHIND By: (Signed) DANIEL J. MCCARTHY
HSBC SECURITIES (CANADA) INC. TD SECURITIES INC.
BY: (Signed) BRADLEY J. GOLDHAR By: (Signed) G. STEPHEN DEMBROSKI
C-2
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PROXY

Solicited by Management for use at the Annual and Special Meeting of
Shareholders to be held on Tuesday, May 14, 2002

The undersigned shareholder of Mosaic Group Inc. (the ‘‘Corporation’’) hereby appoints

Marc Byron, Vice-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation or, failing him, Ben
Kaak, Executive Vice-President and Chief Financial Officer of the Corporation or, failing him,
Catherine Barbaro, Corporate Secretary of the Corporation or, instead of any of the foregoing,

as proxyholder of the undersigned, with full power of substitution, to

attend, act and vote for and on behalf of the undersigned at the annual and special meeting of
shareholders of the Corporation (the ‘‘Meeting’’) to be held at the Design Exchange, 234 Bay Street,
Toronto, Ontario at 11:00 a.m. (Toronto time) on Tuesday, May 14, 2002 and at any adjournment
thereof, in the following manner:

1.

In respect of the election as directors of the nominees specified in the management proxy
circular of the Corporation dated as of April 4, 2002 (the “Circular™):

VOTE FOR WITHHOLD
FROM VOTING

In respect of the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP, Chartered Accountants, as auditors of
the Corporation for the ensuing year and the authorization of the directors to fix their
remuneration:

VOTE FOR WITHHOLD
FROM VOTING

In respect of the proposed resolution set out in Schedule A to the Circular authorizing the
continuance of the Corporation under the Canada Business Corporations Act:

VOTE FOR VOTE AGAINST

To vote in the discretion of the proxyholder indicated above on any amendment or variation
which may properly come before the Meeting or any adjournment thereof with respect to any
matter identified in the notice of the Meeting and on any other matter which may properly
come before the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

The undersigned hereby revokes any proxies given by the undersigned and dated prior to the

date hereof in respect of the Meeting.

Dated: , 2002,

Signature of Shareholder

Print Name

I

7




Notes:

(i)

(i1)

(iii)

(iv)

)

To be valid at the Meeting, this proxy must be signed by the shareholder or by his or her
attorney authorized in writing or, if the shareholder is a corporation, by a duly authorized
officer or attorney, and must be deposited with the Corporation, c/o CIBC Mellon Trust
Company, P.O. Box 7010, Adelaide Street Postal Station, Toronto, Ontario, M5K 2W9,
Attention: Proxy Department, prior to 5:00 p.m. (Toronto time) on the last business day
preceding the date of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof or with the Chairman of the
Meeting at any time prior to the commencement of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

If this proxy is not dated in the blank space above, this proxy will be deemed to bear the date
on which it was mailed by management of the Corporation.

This proxy is solicited by or on behalf of management of the Corporation. A shareholder
may appoint any person who need not be a shareholder, as nominee, other than the
persons specifically named above, to attend, act and vote on such shareholder’s behalf at
the Meeting by inserting the name of such person in the blank space provided above or
by completing another appropriate form of proxy.

The common shares represented by this proxy will be voted in accordance with the
shareholder’s instructions indicated above. If no instructions are given for a particular
item, the common shares represented by this proxy will be voted FOR that item.

All holders of common shares should refer to the accompanying Circular for further
information regarding the completion and use of this proxy and other information pertaining
to the Meeting.




REAL SOLUTIONS. REAL RESULTS.

MOSAIC GROUP INC.
469A King Street West
Toronto, Ontario
M5V 3M4

NOTICE OF ANNUAL AND SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Notice is hereby given that the annual and special meeting of shareholders of Mosaic Group Inc.
(the “Corporation™) will be held at the Design Exchange, 234 Bay Street, Toronto, Ontario on Tuesday,
May 14, 2002 at 11:00 a.m. (Toronto time) for the following purposes: ‘

1. to receive and consider the audited consolidated financial statements of the Corporation for the
year ended December 31, 2001 together with the report of the auditors thereon;

2. to elect directors;

3. to appoint auditors and to authorize the board of directors of the Corporation to fix their
remuneration;

4, to consider, and if deemed advisable, pass, with or without variation, a special resolution in the
form attached as Schedule A to the accompanying management proxy circular (the “Circular”)
authorizing the continuance of the Corporation under the Canada Business Corporations Act (the
“Continuance”), as summarized in the Circular; and

3. to transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment
thereof.

Pursuant to the Business Corporations Act (Ontario), shareholders of the Corporation have a right
to dissent in respect of the Continuance and to be paid the fair value of their shares, subject to certain
conditions. These rights are described in the Circular.

Accompanying this notice are the Corporation’s 200! annual report containing the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2001, the Circular
containing details of the matters to be dealt with at the meeting, and a form of proxy.

Shareholders who are unable to attend the meeting in person are requested to date and sign the
enclosed form of proxy and to return it in the envelope provided. Proxies to be used at the meeting must
be received by the Corporation’s transfer agent, CIBC Mellon Trust Company, P.O. Box 7010, Adelaide
Street Postal Station, Toronto, Ontario, M5K 2W9, Attention: Proxy Department, prior to 5:00 p.m.
(Toronto time) on the last business day prior to the date on which the meeting or any adjournment thereof
is to be held, or may be deposited with the Chairman of the meeting at any time prior to the
commencement of the meeting or any adjournment thereof.




DATED at Toronto, Ontario, as of April 4, 2002.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Mm by

Marc Byron
Vice-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer




MOSAIC

REAL SOLUTIONS. REAL RESULTS.

MANAGEMENT PROXY CIRCULAR

SOLICITATION OF PROXIES

This management proxy circular (the “Circular”) is furnished in connection with the
solicitation of proxies by the management of Mosaic Group Inc. (the “Corporation” or “Mosaic”)
for use at the annual and special meeting (the “Meeting”) of the common shareholders of the
Corporation to be held at the Design Exchange, 234 Bay Street, Toronto, Ontario at 11:00 a.m. on
Tuesday, May 14, 2002 for the purposes set forth in the accompanying Notice of Annual and
Special Meeting of Shareholders (the “Notice of Meeting”) or any adjournment thereof.

It is expected that the solicitation will be primarily by mail. Proxies also may be solicited
personally, by telephone or otherwise, by directors, officers, employees or agents of the Corporation. The
cost of any such solicitation will be borne by the Corporation.

APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES

The persons named in the enclosed form of proxy are directors or officers of the Corporation and
will represent management at the Meeting. A registered holder of common shares has the right to
appoint a person (who need not be a shareholder) other than the persons named in the enclosed
form of proxy to represent the shareholder at the Meeting or any adjournment thereof. To exercise
this right, a shareholder may either insert the name of such other person in the blank space
provided for that purpose in the enclosed form of proxy or complete another proper form of proxy.

To be valid at the Meeting, a proxy must be signed by the shareholder or the shareholder’s
attorney authorized in writing or, if the shareholder is a corporation, by a duly authorized officer or
attorney, and must be deposited with the Corporation, c/o CIBC Mellon Trust Company, P.O. Box 7010,
Adelaide Street Postal Station, Toronto, Ontario, M5K 2W9, Attention: Proxy Department, prior to 5:00
p.m. (Toronto time) on the last business day preceding the date of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof
or with the Chairman of the Meeting at any time prior to the commencement of the Meeting or any
adjournment thereof.

Only registered holders of common shares or the persons they appoint as their proxies are
permitted to vote at the Meeting. However, in many cases, common shares beneficially owned by a
person (a “Non-Registered Holder”) are registered either (i) in the name of an intermediary (an
“Intermediary”) (including banks, trust companies, securities dealers or brokers and trustees or
administrators of self-administered RRSP’s, RRIF’s, RESP’s and similar plans) that the Non-Registered
Holder deals with in respect of the shares, or (ii) in the name of a clearing agency (such as the Canadian
Depository for Securities Limited) of which the Intermediary is a participant. In accordance with the
requirements of the Canadian Securities Administrators, the Corporation will have distributed copies of
the Notice of Meeting, this Circular, and the enclosed form of proxy (collectively, the “Meeting
Materials™) to Intermediaries and clearing agencies for onward distribution to Non-Registered Holders of
common shares.
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Intermediaries are required to forward the Meeting Materials to Non-Registered Holders unless a
Non-Registered Holder has waived his or her right to receive them. Intermediaries often use service
companies to forward the Meeting Materials to Non-Registered Holders. Generally, Non-Registered
Holders who have not waived the right to receive Meeting Materials will either:

i) be given a form of proxy which has already been signed by the Intermediary (typically by
a facsimile stamped signature), which is restricted as to the number of shares beneficially
owned by the Non-Registered Holder, but which is otherwise uncompleted. This form of
proxy need not be signed by the Non-Registered Holder. In this case, the Non-Registered
Holder who wishes to submit a proxy should properly complete the applicable form of
proxy and submit it to the Corporation’s transfer agent, CIBC Mellon Trust Company, at
the address set out above, with respect to the shares beneficially owned by such Non-
Registered Holder; or

(1) more typically, be given a form of proxy which is not signed by the Intermediary and
which, when properly completed and signed by the Non-Registered Holder and returned
to the Intermediary or its service company, will constitute authority and instructions
{often called a “proxy authorization form”) which the Intermediary must follow.
Typically, the Non-Registered Holder will be given a page of instructions which contains
a removable label containing a bar-code or other information. In order for the form of
proxy to validly constitute a proxy authorization form, the Non-Registered Holder must
remove the label from the instructions and affix it to the form of proxy, properly
complete and sign the form of proxy and submit it to the Intermediary or its service
company in accordance with the instructions of the Intermediary or its service company.

In either case, the purpose of this procedure is to permit the Non-Registered Holder to direct the
voting of the shares he or she beneficially owns.

Should a Non-Registered Holder who receives either form of proxy wish to vote at the
Meeting in person, the Non-Registered Holder should strike out the persons named in the proxy
and insert the Non-Registered Holder’s name in the blank space provided. In either case, Non-
Registered Holders should carefully follow the instructions of their Intermediary, including those
regarding when and where the proxy or proxy authorization form is to be delivered.

YOTING OF PROXIES AND DISCRETION

The common shares represented by any proxy submitted for the Meeting will be voted or
withheld from voting on any ballot which may be called for in accordance with the instructions of the
shareholder indicated thereon. In the absence of such instructions, it is the intention of the
representatives of management of the Corporation named in the enclosed form of proxy to vote
such common shares (i) FOR the election of the nominees hereinafter set forth as directors of the
Corporation, (ii) FOR the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP, Chartered Accountants as auditors
of the Corporation and the authorization of the directors to fix the remuneration of the auditors,
and (iii) FOR the special resolution in the form attached as Schedule A hereto authorizing the
continuance of the Corporation under the Canada Business Corporations Act.

The enclosed form of proxy confers discretionary authority upon the representatives of
management of the Corporation named therein with respect to amendments of or variations to matters
identified in the Notice of Meeting or any other matters that may properly come before the Meeting or
any adjournment thereof. As of the date of this Circular, the management of the Corporation is not aware
of any such amendments, variations or other matters.




REVOCATION OF PROXIES

Proxies given by registered shareholders for use at the Meeting may be revoked at any time prior
to their use. In addition to revocation in any other manner permitted by law, a proxy may be revoked by
depositing an instrument in writing (including another form of proxy) executed by the shareholder or by
the shareholder’s attorney authorized in writing (or, if the shareholder is a corporation, by an officer or
attorney thereof duly authorized), or by transmitting, by telephonic or electronic means, a revocation
signed by electronic signature, which in either case is received (i) at the registered office of the
Corporation, 469A King Street West, Toronto, Ontario, M5V 3M4, at any time up to and including the
last business day preceding the day of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof, at which the proxy is to be
used, or (ii) by the Chairman of the Meeting on the day of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

VOTING SHARES

On April 4, 2002, the record date established for notice of the Meeting, the Corporation had
outstanding 123,766,633 common shares. Each common share carries one vote. Each holder of common
shares of record at the close of business on April 4, 2002 will be entitled to vote on each matter arising at
the Meeting except to the extent that such holder has transferred any common shares after the record date
and the transferee of such common shares establishes ownership thereof and demands, no later than
May 4, 2002 (10 days before the date of the Meeting), to be included in the list of shareholders entitled to
vote at the Meeting.

PRINCIPAL HOLDERS OF VOTING SHARES

To the knowledge of the directors and officers of the Corporation, no person beneficially owns,
directly or indirectly, or exercises control or direction over more than 10% of the votes attached to the
outstanding common shares.

PARTICULARS OF MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON
Election of Directors

The board of directors of the Corporation currently consists of nine (9) directors. The present
term of office of each director of the Corporation who is a director on the date of the Meeting will expire
at the close of the Meeting. At the Meeting, it is proposed that seven (7) directors be elected. Each of
William Biggar, R. B. Matthews and Raymond Verdon has advised the Corporation that he does not
intend to stand for re-election. G. Michael Preston has advised the Corporation that he intends to resign as
. a director following the effective date of the Continuance (as defined below) if the Continuance is
approved by shareholders at the Meeting. See “— Continuance Under the Canada Business
Corporations Act”.

The following table sets out for each proposed nominee for election as a director all major
positions and offices with the Corporation or its affiliates now held by the nominee, if any, his or her
principal occupation within the past five years, the year in which he or she was first elected or appointed
as a director and the number of common shares beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, or over which
control or direction is exercised by the nominee as at April 4, 2002. Certain of the information set out
below, not being within the knowledge of the Corporation, has been furnished by the respective nominees
individually.




Name and Municipality
of Residence

Current Position with
the Corporation

Principal Occupation within the
Past Five Years

Director
Since

Number of Common
Shares Beneficially
Owned or over which
Control or Direction is
Exercised

John R. Barnett
Toronto, Ontario

Marc Byron
Englewood Cliffs,
New Jersey

John E. Caldwell
Toronto, Ontario

Gregory F. Kiernan®®

Chappaqua, New York

Catherine McQueen
Toronto, Ontario

G. Michael Preston®
Toronto, Ontario

Theodore D. Sands™®®
New York, New York

Notes:

Director

Vice-Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer and
Director

Director

Director

Chairman and Director

Director

n Member of Audit Committee.
2) Member of Corporate Governance Committee.
3) Member of Human Resources and Compensation Committee.

President and Chief Executive
Officer, Rothmans Inc. (tobacco
company); from 1995-1998, was
President and Chief Executive Officer
of Molson Breweries (beer company)

Officer of the Corporation or its
subsidiaries; prior to its acquisition by
the Corporation in December 2000,
was Chief Executive Officer of
Paradigm Direct LLC (marketing
company)

Corporate director and Consultant;
from 2000-2001, was President and
Chief Executive Officer of Geac
Computer Corporation Limited
(software company); from 1993-1999,
was President and Chief Executive
Officer of CAE Inc. (simulator and
control technology company)

President and Chief Executive
Officer, Sonostar Ventures LLC
(venture capital and public investment
firm)

Deputy Chair, CTV Inc. (broadcast
communications company); from
2001 to February, 2002, was President
and Chief Operating Officer of CTV
Inc.; from 1999-2001, was Executive
Vice-President of CTV Inc.; from
1995-1999, was President of
Discovery Channel (media company)

Consultant; prior to 2002, was
Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Corporation

President, HAAS Capital, LLC
(investment management firm); from
1991-1999, was Managing Director of
Investment Banking at Merrill Lynch
(investment banking firm)

2002

2001

2002

2002

1993

1999

25,000

8,715,026

8,000

3,939,402

Nil

3,767,223

25,000

The persons named in the enclosed form of proxy intend to vote for the election of the
nominees whose names are set forth above. Management does not anticipate that any of the
nominees will be unable to serve as a director but, if that should occur for any reason prior to the
Meeting, the persons named in the enclosed form of proxy reserve the right to vote for another
nominee in their discretion. With the exception of G. Michael Preston who intends to resign as a
director following the Continuance (as defined below), each director elected will hold office until the
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close of the next annual meeting or until his successor is duly elected or appointed unless his office is
earlier vacated in accordance with the by-laws of the Corporation. See “— Continuance Under the
Canada Business Corporations Act”.

Appointment of Auditors

At the Meeting, management proposes to nominate Ernst & Young LLP, Chartered Accountants
for appointment as the auditors of the Corporation to hold office unti! the close of the next annual meeting
of shareholders. Emnst & Young LLP have been the Corporation’s auditors since December 7, 1999.

The aggregate fees billed by Ernst & Young LLP to the Corporation for audit and audit-related
services during the financial year ended December 31, 2001 were $525,000. The aggregate fees billed by
Ernst & Young LLP to the Corporation for non-audit services (including tax, securities, acquisition due
diligence and other services) during the year were $184,000. The Audit Committee has determined that
the nature of the non-audit services rendered during 2001, and the aggregate fees paid in respect of such
services, were compatible with Ernst & Young LLP maintaining its independence.

Continuance Under the Canada Business Corporations Act

Shareholders will be asked at the Meeting to consider and, if deemed advisable, to pass a special
resolution (the “Continuance Special Resolution™), the text of which is set out in Schedule A to this
Circular, authorizing the continuance of the Corporation (the “Continuance”) from the Business
Corporations Act (Ontario) (the “OBCA”) to the Canada Business Corporations Act (the “CBCA”),
subject to regulatory approval.

Reasons for the Continuance

The principal reason for continuing the Corporation under the CBCA is to enable the Corporation
to benefit from recent amendments to the CBCA which, among other things, reduce the number of
directors of a corporation organized under that statute who must be resident Canadians to at least 25%.
Currently, as a corporation organized under the OBCA, a majority of the Corporation’s directors are
required to be resident Canadians.

The Corporation operates primarily in three regions: Canada, the United States and the United
Kingdom. During its financial year ended December 31, 2001, the Corporation’s consolidated revenues
attributed to services provided in Canada represented 16% of the Corporation’s consolidated revenues,
with 61% being attributable to services provided in the United States and 23% in the United Kingdom.
Management of the Corporation believes that the international nature of the Corporations business
requires that the Corporation have the flexibility to elect or appoint directors based on merit without the
requirement that a majority of directors be resident Canadians.

If the Continuance Special Resolution is approved and the Corporation is continued under the
CBCA, in addition to the residency requirements of that statute, as a TSE-listed company the Corporation
will continue to be required to have at least two Canadian directors.

An additional benefit to the Corporation arising from the Continuance is that under the CBCA,
unlike under the OBCA, the board of directors may hold any number of meetings at any place in or
outside of Canada. The board of directors believes that the greater flexibility afforded the Corporation
under the CBCA will enable it to schedule meetings in the United States and the United Kingdom where
the Corporation’s operating units are located. Further, the Continuance will not have any material
business or tax consequences for the Corporation.
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Summary Comparison of Shareholder Rights

The CBCA provides shareholders substantially the same rights as are available to shareholders
under the OBCA, including rights of dissent and appraisal and rights to bring derivative actions and
oppression actions. However, there are certain differences between the two statutes and the regulations
thereunder. The following is a summary of certain differences between the OBCA and the CBCA
which management of the Corporation considers to be of significance to shareholders. This
summary is not an exhaustive review of the two statutes. Reference should be made to the full text
of both statutes and the regulations thereunder for particulars of any differences between them,
and shareholders should consult their legal or other professional advisors with regard to the
implications of the Continuance which may be of importance to them.

(1

(it)

(iii)

(iv)

Director Residency Requirements. Under the OBCA, a majority of a company’s
directors must be resident Canadians. Under the CBCA, subject to certain exceptions
which do not currently apply to the Corporation, at least 25% percent of a company’s
directors must be resident Canadians.

Place of Shareholders’ Meetings. Under the OBCA, a shareholders’ meeting may be
held at such place in or outside Ontario (including outside Canada) as the directors may
determine. Under the CBCA, a shareholders’ meeting may be held at any place in
Canada, or at a place outside Canada if such place is specified in the articles of the
company. Accordingly, the draft articles of continuance attached as Schedule B to this
Circular provide that shareholders’ meetings may be held at any place within Canada or
in any of New York, New York; Fort Lee, New Jersey; Chicago, Illinois; Dallas, Texas;
or London, U.K, each of which is a principal place of the Corporation’s business.

Solicitation of Proxies. Under the OBCA, a person who solicits proxies, other than by
or on behalf of management of the company, must send a dissident’s proxy circular in
prescribed form to each shareholder whose proxy is solicited and certain other recipients.
Under the CBCA, proxies may be solicited other than by or on behalf of management of
the company without the sending of a dissident’s proxy circular if (i) proxies are
solicited from fifteen (15) or fewer shareholders, or (ii) if the solicitation is conveyed by
public broadcast, speech or publication containing certain of the information that would
be required to be included in a dissident’s proxy circular. Furthermore, under the CBCA,
the definition of “solicit” and “solicitation” specifically excludes (i) certain public
announcements by a shareholder of how he or she intends to vote and the reasons for that
decision, (ii) communications for the purpose of obtaining the number of shares required
for a shareholder proposal, and (iii) certain other communications made other than by or
on behalf of management of the company, including communications by one or more
shareholders concerning the business and affairs of the company or the organization of a
dissident’s proxy solicitation where no form of proxy is sent by or on behalf of such
shareholders, by financial and other advisers in the ordinary course of business to
shareholders who are their clients, or by any person who does not seek directly or
indirectly the power to act as proxy for a shareholder.

Record Date for Shareholders” Meetings. Under the OBCA, where a company fixes a
record date for the determination of shareholders entitled to vote at a shareholders’
meeting and a shareholder transfers shares after the record date, the transferee of such
shares is entitled to vote such shares at the meeting if the transferce establishes that he or
she owns the shares and demands, not later than ten (10) days before the meeting, that his
or her name be included in the list of shareholders entitled to vote at the meeting. If no
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record date is fixed and a list of shareholders entitled to vote at the meeting is prepared as
of the date (the “deemed record date”) preceding the date on which notice of the meeting
is given, a transferee of shares after the deemed record date is entitled to vote such shares
under similar circumstances. Under the CBCA, sharcholders are entitled to vote only
shares held by them on the record date or the deemed record date, as the case may be.
Transferces of shares after the record date or the deemed record date, as the case may be,
are not entitled to vote the transferred shares at the meeting.

v) Notice of Shareholders’ Meetings. Under the OBCA, a public company must give
notice of a meeting of shareholders not less than twenty-one (21) days and not more than
fifty (50) days before the meeting. Under the CBCA, such notice must be provided not
less than twenty-one (21) days and not more than sixty (60) days before the meeting.
However, public companies incorporated under either statute are currently subject to the
requirements of National Policy 41 of the Canadian Securities Administrators which
provides for minimum notice periods of greater than the minimum twenty-one (21) day
period in either statute.

(vi) Telephonic or Electronic Meetings. Under the OBCA, a meeting of shareholders’ may
be held by telephonic or electronic means (and shareholders may participate in and vote
at the meeting by such means) only if permitted by the articles or by-laws of the
company. The Corporation’s current articles and by-laws are silent as to the holding of
shareholders’ meetings by such means. Under the CBCA, a company does not require its
articles or by-laws to expressly permit the holding of meetings of shareholders by
telephonic or electronic means in order to do so. If a company provides shareholders
with a telephonic, electronic or other means of communication that permits all
participants to communicate adequately with each other during the meeting, then any
person entitled to attend the meeting may participate by such means. In addition, if the
company’s by-laws so provide, a meeting of shareholders may be held entirely by such
means. It is proposed that the Corporation’s by-laws following the Continuance will
permit a meeting of shareholders to be held entirely by such means. See “— Adoption of
New By-Law No. 1” below.

(vii)  Shareholder Proposals. Under the OBCA, only registered shareholders may submit
shareholder proposals relating to matters which the shareholder wishes to raise at a
shareholders” meeting. Under the CBCA, shareholder proposals may be submitted by
both registered and beneficial shareholders, provided that (i) the shareholder must have
owned, of record or beneficially, for at least six (6) months prior to the submission of the
proposal, voting shares at least equal to 1% of the total number of outstanding voting
shares of the company or whose fair market value is at least $2,000, whichever is less, or
(i1) the proposal must have the support of persons who in the aggregate have owned, of
record or beneficially, such number of voting shares for such period.

(vii))  Registered Office. Under the OBCA, a company’s registered office must be in Ontario.
Under the CBCA, a company’s registered office may be at any place in Canada. The
draft articles of continuance attached as Schedule B to this Circular provide that the
registered office shall be in Ontario.

Articles of Continuance

If the Continuance is approved by shareholders, the Corporation intends to file with the Director
under the CBCA articles of continuance in the form of the draft articles attached as Schedule B to this
Circular.




Adoption of New By-Law No. !

The board of directors has passed a resolution adopting, upon the effective date of the
Continuance, By-Law No. I of the Corporation in the form attached as Schedule C to this Circular (the
“CBCA By-Law”). The CBCA By-Law repeals and replaces the existing By-Law No. 1 of the
Corporation (the “OBCA By-Law”). The following is a summary of the significant differences
between the CBCA By-Law and the OBCA By-Law. Reference should be made to the full text of
the CBCA By-Law attached as Schedule C to this Circular.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(v1)

References to Statutes. References in the OBCA By-Law to the OBCA and other
Ontario statutes have been replaced in the CBCA By-Law with references to the CBCA
and the corresponding federal statutes, respectively.

Electronic Meetings and Other Matters. The CBCA By-Law contains certain
provisions not in the OBCA By-Law relating to the acceptance of proxies, the execution
of instruments and the giving of notice by electronic or certain other means. These
provisions are consistent with recent amendments to the CBCA which provide for certain
kinds of corporate activity to be conducted electronically. The CBCA By-Law also
provides that the directors who call a meeting of shareholders of the Corporation may
determine that such meeting shall be held entirely by means of a telephonic, electronic or
other communication facility that permits all participants to communicate adequately
with each other during the meeting,

Dividends. The CBCA contains certain provisions not in the OBCA By-Law relating to
the payment of dividends. Under the CBCA By-Law, the mailing by the Corporation of a
cheque in payment of a dividend will generally satisfy and discharge the Corporation’s
liability for such dividend to the extent of the amount of the cheque plus the amount of
any tax which the Corporation is required to and does withhold. In addition, any dividend
which remains unclaimed after six (6) years from the date the dividend was declared
payable will be forfeited and will revert to the Corporation.

Actions by Certain Officers. Certain sections of the OBCA By-Law which require
certain actions to be taken by the President or, in some cases, a Vice-President of the
Corporation have been amended in the CBCA By-Law to require that such actions be
taken by the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation. In light of changes to the
management structure of the Corporation made in connection with the Corporation’s “Go
Forward Plan” announced in January 2002, including the appointment of a President in
charge of each of its principal business units (Performance Solutions, North American
Sales Solutions, Marketing and Technology Solutions, and Mosaic UXK.), the board of
directors believes it appropriate that the Chief Executive Officer be authorized to take
such actions. The CBCA By-Law also amends the list of officers of the Corporation who
are entitled, by virtue of their offices, to execute documents on behalf of the Corporation.

Board Procedures. The CBCA By-Law contains different procedures from the OBCA
By-Law for determining who shall act as chairman of a board of directors meeting if the
Chairman of the Corporation is not present. The CBCA By-Law also eliminates the
provision of the OBCA By-Law which afforded the chairman of any board meeting a
second or casting vote in the event of a tie vote.

Board Committees. The names of certain committees of the board of directors referred
to in the OBCA By-Law have been replaced in the CBCA By-Law with the current
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names of such committees: the Audit Committee, the Human Resources and
Compensation Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee,

Required Approval and Recommendation of the Board of Directors

The Continuance Special Resolution requires the approval of at least two-thirds of the votes cast
in person or by proxy at the Meeting in respect of the resolution. The board of directors has determined
that the proposed Continuance is in the best interests of the Corporation and its shareholders. The
board of directors unanimously recommends that shareholders vote in favour of the Continuance
Special Resolution set out in Schedule A to this Circular. In the absence of contrary instructions,
the persons named in the accompanying form of proxy intend to vote any common shares
represented by such proxy FOR the Continuance Special Resolution.
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth information concerning the total compensation paid to the Chief

Executive Officer of the Corporation and to the other four most highly compensated executive officers of
the Corporation and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Named Executive Officers”) who earned more than
$100,000 during the Corporation’s financial year ended December 31, 2001.

Annual Compensation” Long-Term Compensation
Awards Payouts
Name and Securities Restricted
Principal Under Shares or
Position in 2001 . Other Annual Options Restricted LTIP
Year Salary Bonus Compensation Granted (#) Share Units Payouts

G. Michael Preston, | 2001 $250,000 - $24,060% 46,353 - -

Chairman and Chief

Exccutive Officer 2000 $190,584 $60,000 $24,060¢ - - -~

1999 $250,000 $60,000 $24,060° 85,000 - -

Marc Byron, 2001 $371,607 - - - - -

Vice-Chairman

2000 $27,692 - - - - -

1999 - - - - - -

Colin Moore, 2001% | $289,773 $250,000 $7,000® 301,500 - -
President

2000 - - - - - -

1999 - - - - - -

Brian Meagher, 2001 $298,673 - $84,6977 320,000 - -

Chief Operating

Officer, North 2000%® $96,729 - $9,744¢ 150,000 - -

America

1999 - - - - - -

Ben Kaak, 2001 $320,000 - $34,629% 223,500 - -

Executive Vice-

President and 2000 $239,717 ~ $27,300¢" _ _ _

Chief Financial

Officer 1999 $270,000 | $50,000 $27,314"7 165,000 - -

Notes:

(¢)] All dollar amounts in this table are expressed in Canadian dollars. Certain of the amounts indicated above originated in U.S. dollars and
have been converted into Canadian dollars based upon the noon spot rate of exchange quoted by the Bank of Canada on December 31 of
the relevant year.

2) The offices of the Named Executive Officers indicated in this table are their offices as at December 31, 2001, Since that date, certain of
‘the Named Executive Officers have changed their offices within the Corporation. G. Michael Preston resigned as Chief Executive Officer
as of December 31, 2001 and was succeeded by Marc Byron. Mr. Preston continues to provide consulting services to the Corporation. In
addition, in connection with the implementation of the Corporation’s “Go Forward Plan” announced in January 2002, Colin Moore’s and
Brian Meagher’s titles have changed to Chief Operating Officer and President, North American Sales Solutions, respectively.

3) Includes an RRSP contribution of $13,500 and the remainder was paid as a car allowance.

) Marc Byron became an officer of a subsidiary of the Corporation on December 14, 2000 upon the Corporation’s acquisition of Paradigm

Direct LLC, of which Mr. Byron was Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Byron was appointed Chief Operating Officer, Performance
Marketing in August 2001 and Vice-Chairman and CEO Designate in November 2001,

¢
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(5) Colin Moore was appointed an officer of the Corporation in June 2001.

6) Paid as a car allowance.

() Includes an RRSP contribution of $13,500, a car allowance of $14,400, forgiveness of $50,000 aggregate principal amount of an interest
free loan granted by the Corporation to enable Mr. Meagher to purchase Mosaic common shares, and the remainder represents interest
benefit on such loan.

8) Brian Meagher joined the Corporation in August 2000 as President, Mosaic Group Canada.

) Includes $4,652 paid as a car allowance and the remainder represents interest benefit from the loan referred to in Note 7 above.

(10)  Includes an RRSP contribution of $13,500, a car allowance of $10,800 and the remainder represents forgiveness of a housing loan.

(1Y) Includes an RRSP contribution of $13,500, a car allowance of $10,800 and the remainder represents interest benefit from a housing loan.

Option Grants During the Most Recently Completed Financial Year

The following table sets forth information concerning the grant of options to each of the Named

Executive Officers during the Corporation’s financial year ended December 31, 2001.

Market Value of
Common Shares % of Total Common Shares
Under Options Options Granted Exercise or Base Underlying Options
Granted to Employees in Price on Date of Grant
Name (€3] 2001 ($/Common Share) | ($/Common Share) Expiration Date

G. Michael 43,250 1.3% $4.71 $4.71 December 31, 2003

Preston 3,103 0.1% $4.35 $4.60 March 14, 2006

Marc Byron - - - - ~

Colin Moore 300,000 9.2% $7.49 $7.49 June 30, 2006

1,500 0.0% $7.37 $7.24 July 16, 2006

Brian Meagher © 300,000 9.2% $4.71 $4.71 December 31, 2005

20,000 0.6% $4.71 $4.71 December 31, 2003
Ben Kaak ¢ 200,000 6.1% $4.71 $4.71 December 31, 2005
20,500 0.6% $4.71 $4.71 December 31, 2003

3,000 0.1% $4.35 $4.60 March 14, 2006

Notes:

n Mr. Preston’s stock options became fully vested on January 1, 2002 in connection with his retirement as Chief Executive Officer. See “ ~
Employment Contracts”.

) 300,000 options were granted to Mr, Moore on June 8, 2001 under the Corporation’s Incentive Compensation Plan (the “ICP”), of which
20% vested immediately with a further 20% vesting on each June 30 from 2002 until 2005, A further 1,500 options were granted on July
16, 2001 under the Corporation’s 1998 Employee Share Purchase and Option Plan (the “ESOP”), of which 20% vested immediately with
a further 20% vesting on each June 30 until 2005,

3) 300,000 ICP options were granted to Mr, Meagher on March 26, 2001, of which 20% vested immediately with a further 20% vesting on
each December 31 until 2004, A further 20,000 ICP options were granted to Mr. Meagher on March 26, 2001, all of which vested on
December 31, 2001.

) 200,000 ICP options were granted to Mr, Kaak on March 26, 2001, of which 20% vested immediately with a further 20% vesting on each

December 31 until 2004, 20,500 ICP options were granted to Mr. Kaak on March 26, 2001, all of which vested on December 31, 2001. A
further 3,000 ESOP options were granted to Mr. Kaak an March 14, 2001, of which 20% vested immediately with a further 20% vesting
on each June 30 from 2002 until 2005.
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Aggregated Option Exercises During the Most Recently Completed Financial Year and Financial
Year-End Option Values

The following table sets forth, on an aggregate basis, details of each exercise of stock options
during the financial year ended December 31, 2001 by the Named Executive Officers and the number and

value of unexercised options as at December 31, 2001.

Value of Unexercised in
Unexercised Options at the-Money Options at
Common Shares Financial Year-End (#) Financial Year-End
Acquired on
Exercise Aggregate Value (Exercisable/ (Exercisable/
Name # Realized Unexercisable) Unexercisable)
G. Michae! Preston - Nil 162,871/53,482 $89,000/$22,250
Marc Byron ~ Nil Nil/Nil Nil/Nil
Colin Moore - Nil 60,300/241,200 Nil/Nil
Brian Meagher - Nil 200,000/270,000 Nil/Nil
Ben Kaak - Nil 718,100/205,400 $1,056,490/$23,210
Notes:

m Mr. Preston’s stock options became fully exercisable on January 1, 2002 in connection with his retirement as Chief Executive Officer.
See ““— Employment Contracts”.

Employment Contracts

G. Michael Preston has entered into a retirement agreement with the Corporation in connection
with his retirement as Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation on January 1, 2002. Pursuant to this
agreement, Mr. Preston was paid a one-time retirement allowance of $56,000 on January 1, 2002. All
stock options granted to him became immediately exercisable on January 1, 2002 and must be exercised
by the earlier of their original expiry date and January 31, 2005. The Corporation will continue to
contribute $13,500 annually to his RRSP through 2004. The Corporation has also entered into a
consulting agreement with a company controlled by Mr. Preston pursuant to which Mr. Preston was paid
a retainer fee of $766,900 to provide consulting services to the Corporation for a period of three (3) years
ending December 31, 2004. Mr. Preston is prohibited from competing with the Corporation or soliciting
its clients, prospective clients or employees for twelve (12) months following his resignation as a director
of the Corporation.

Marc Byron has agreed with the Corporation that he is currently entitled to an annual salary of
US$500,000, an annual bonus and executive benefits as Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation. The
other terms and conditions of his employment will be set out in an employment agreement with the
Corporation that is currently being negotiated.

Colin Moore has entered into an employment agreement with the Corporation pursuant to which
he is currently entitled to an annual salary of $500,000, an annual RRSP contribution of $13,500 and a car
allowance. In the event that Mr. Moore is terminated other than for cause by the Corporation (including
any such termination within six (6) months following a change of control of the Corporation), he is
entitled to a payment of $415,000 in lieu of notice. Mr. Moore is prohibited from competing with the
Corporation or soliciting its clients, prospective clients or employees for twelve (12) months following
any termination of his employment with the Corporation.
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Brian Meagher has entered into an employment agreement with the Corporation pursuant to
which he is currently entitled to an annual salary of $300,000, an annual RRSP contribution of $13,500
and a car allowance. If Mr. Meagher is terminated other than for cause by the Corporation, he is entitled
to eighteen (18) months’ salary and benefits in lieu of notice. Mr. Meagher is prohibited from competing
with the Corporation or soliciting its clients, prospective clients or employees for eighteen (18) months
following termination of his employment with the Corporation. Mr. Meagher’s employment agreement
for the 2002 financial year is currently being negotiated.

Ben Kaak has entered into an employment agreement with the Corporation pursuant to which he
is currently entitled to an annual salary of $320,000, an annual RRSP contribution of $13,500 and a car
allowance. If Mr. Kaak is terminated other than for cause by the Corporation, he is entitled to a payment
of $300,000 in lieu of notice, or $450,000 in lieu of notice if such termination occurs within two (2) years
following certain events involving a change in control or effective control of the Corporation. Mr. Kaak is
prohibited from competing with the Corporation for twelve (12) months, and from soliciting its clients,
prospective clients or employees for eighteen (18) months, in each case following termination of his
employment with the Corporation. Mr. Kaak’s employment agreement for the 2002 financial year is
currently being negotiated.

Compensation of Directors

During the 2001 financial year, non-executive directors received from the Corporation §1,500 for
each meeting of the board of directors and $1,000 for each meeting of a committee (§1,250 for the Chair
of the committee) of the board of directors, plus reimbursement for out-of-pocket expenses. In addition, if
more than four hours of air travel were required to attend such meetings, such directors received an
additional $1,500.

For the 2002 financial year, in addition to the meeting fees set out in the preceding paragraph
(which the Corporation estimates will be an average of $25,000 annually per director in 2002), directors
will be entitled to the following annual compensation: (i) an annual fee of $20,000, with the exception of
the Chairman of the Corporation who will be entitled to receive $40,000, and (ii) stock options issued
under the ICP having a value of $80,000 determined in accordance with the Black-Scholes option pricing
model, with such determination being made on or about the date of each annual general meeting, subject
to a minimum of 25,000 options and a maximum of 50,000 options being granted.

Non-employee directors have in the past received, and may continue to receive, options granted
under the ICP from time to time. During the 2001 financial year, 5,000 ICP options were granted to
Raymond Verdon and 20,000 ICP options were granted to R. B. Matthews upon his becoming a director
of the Corporation. ‘

" Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Corporation has purchased directors’ and officers’ liability insurance with a policy limit of
$20,000,000 per year. The annual premium for this policy is currently approximately $51,831, which is
paid by the Corporation. The Corporation is required to pay $75,000 towards the cost of a securities
claim, $25,000 towards the cost of an employment practices claim and $25,000 to the cost of other claims
for any successful third party claim under the policy.

Composition of the Human Resources and Compensation Committee

During the Corporation’s financial year ended December 31, 2001, Paul Alofs, Anthony Moore
and Raymond Verdon served as the initial members of the Human Resources and Compensation
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Committee. In June 2001, Mr. Moore resigned as a director of the Corporation and R. B. Matthews and
Theodore D. Sands became members of the committee. Upon the resignation of Mr. Alofs as a director
of the Corporation on January 7, 2002, Mr. Matthews was appointed Chair of the Committee and Gregory
F. Kiernan was appointed a member of the Committee in February 2002.

Report on Executive Compensation

The Corporation has adopted the Incentive Compensation Plan in accordance with the
Corporation’s current objectives, which are to encourage and reward actions, decisions and behaviour that
will contribute to the generation of shareholder value.

Salaries are established annually by the Human Resources and Compensation Committee and
management for each executive position based on an evaluation of competitive practices in other similar
organizations for positions of similar responsibility and scope. The Human Resources and Compensation
Committee also seeks guidance from the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation regarding the
performance of executive officers. The Human Resources and Compensation Committee believes that, in
general, the compensation (including bonuses) of all senior managerial and professional employees,
including the Chief Executive Officer, should be related to the attainment of the Corporation’s financial
objectives, the attainment of the objectives of the business unit for which the executive has responsibility
and the employee’s contribution to each of the foregoing.

Submitted by the Human Resources and Compensation Committee as at April 4, 2002:

R. B. Matthews (Chair)
Gregory F. Kiernan
Theodore D. Sands
Raymond Verdon
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Shareholder Return Comparison

The following graph compares the cumulative shareholder return of $100 invested on December
31, 1996 in the Corporation’s common shares and the TSE 300 Composite Index, respectively, assuming
full reinvestment of dividends in each case:

Relative Performance
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INTEREST OF INSIDERS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

On November 6, 2001, the Corporation announced that it had amended the Amended and
Restated Merger Agreement dated December 14, 2000, as subsequently amended by Amendment No. 1
thereto dated January 25, 2001 (as so amended, the “Merger Agreement”) between the Corporation,
certain direct and indirect subsidiaries of the Corporation, Paradigm Direct LLC (“Paradigm”) (now
Mosaic Performance Solutions Inc., a part of the Mosaic Performance Solutions Division in the United
States), and the equity holders of Paradigm (the “Paradigm Vendors”), pursuant to which Mosaic had
originally acquired Paradigm. The amendments to the Merger Agreement (the “Amendments”) fixed the
amount of the earn-out consideration payable by the Corporation to the Paradigm Vendors pursuant to the
Merger Agreement. The Amendments provided that the remaining earn-out payments to the Paradigm
Vendors would be satisfied by the issuance by the Corporation of 20,540,000 common shares in January
2002, cash consideration of US$26,500,000 payable on April 1, 2002 (collectively, the “Initial
Consideration”), and US$26,000,000 of additional consideration (collectively with the Initial
Consideration, the “Amended Consideration”). The Initial Consideration was paid on or about January 7,
2002. The US$26,000,000 of additional consideration was to be satisfied either in cash or in common
shares, at the Corporation’s option, based upon a ratio of 0.48 common shares for each US dollar of
consideration to a maximum of 12,480,000 common shares. The additional consideration was paid on or
about April 1, 2002 and was satisfied through the payment of US$1,784,290 in cash and the issue of
11,763,621 common shares. At a special meeting of shareholders of the Corporations held on January 7,
2002, shareholders approved the issuance of the maximum number of common shares that could be
required to be issued to the Paradigm Vendors as earn-out consideration, as well as certain related
amendments to the Corporation’s shareholder rights plan (the “Rights Plan”) to provide that no person
would be considered to be acting jointly or in concert with another person for purposes of the Rights Plan
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solely by acquiring or offering to acquire common shares as a result of the Merger Agreement, as
amended.

Each of Marc Byron of Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey, David Graf of New York, New York,
David Byron of Tenafly, New Jersey and Paul Bogutsky of New York, New York was, at the time of the
Amendments, an insider of the Corporation by virtue of being a senior officer of Paradigm, a subsidiary
of the Corporation. Each of these individuals continues to be a director or senior officer of the
Corporation or one of its subsidiaries. Each of these individuals, as well as the David E. Byron
Irrevocable Trust I, a trust of which Marc Byron is a trustee (collectively, the “Paradigm Insiders”), was a
Paradigm Vendor. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, as amended, the Paradigm Insiders were paid the
following approximate proportions of the Amended Consideration: Marc Byron — 25.5%; David Graf —
15.2%; David Byron — 5.5%; Paul Bogutsky — 1.0%; and the David E. Byron Irrevocable Trust I - 0.3%.
Gregory F. Kiernan, who is currently a director of the Corporation and a proposed nominee for election as
a director at the Meeting, was also a Paradigm Vendor and was paid approximately 14.1% of the
Amended Consideration. As at April 4, 2002, no such individual held more than 8% of the common
shares of the Corporation.

Except as otherwise disclosed in this Circular, since January 1, 2001, no director, senior officer or
other insider of the Corporation, proposed nominee for election as a director, or any of their respective
associates or affiliates, has had any material interest, direct or indirect, in any transaction or proposed
transaction that has materially affected or would materially affect the Corporation or any of its affiliates.

INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

During 1998, Ben Kaak of Toronto, Ontario, currently Executive Vice-President and Chief
Financial Officer of the Corporation, borrowed $100,000 from the Corporation, all of which was applied
towards the purchase of a home. The loan was unsecured and bore no interest unless the employment of
Mr. Kaak was terminated, in which case the loan was to bear interest at prime. The largest amount
outstanding under that loan since January 1, 2001 was $71,429. The loan was repaid in its entirety by
March 2001. :

During 2000, Brian Meagher of Mississauga, Ontario, currently President, North American Sales
Solutions of the Corporation, borrowed $150,000 from the Corporation, all of which was applied towards
the purchase of 10,623 common shares of the Corporation. The loan is unsecured and bears no interest,
and is to be forgiven in three equal annual installments on June 7, 2001, 2002 and 2003. As at April 4,
2002, $100,000 of this amount was outstanding and had not been forgiven.

Other than the foregoing, since the beginning of the Corporation’s 2001 financial year no
director, executive officer, senior officer, proposed nominee for election as a director, or any of their
respective associates, was indebted to the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries, nor was the indebtedness
of any such person to another entity the subject of any guarantee, support agreement, letter of credit or
similar arrangement provided by the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
General
The Toronto Stock Exchange requires that each listed company disclose on an annual basis its

approach to corporate governance. The Corporation’s approach to corporate governance is set forth
below. The disclosure is cross-referenced to the guidelines of The Toronto Stock Exchange (the “TSE
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Guidelines™) which are set forth in Section 474 of the Company Manual published by The Toronto Stock
Exchange.

Board of Directors Stewardship (TSE Guidelines 1 and 11)

The mandate of the board of directors (the “Board”) is one of stewardship and oversight of the
Corporation and its business. The Board relies on the Corporation’s officers to manage the Corporation
through a delegation of general management responsibilities to the Corporation’s officers. The Board then
monitors management’s achievement of the Corporation’s goals and objectives as part of its responsibility
to supervise the business and affairs of the Corporation. In fulfilling its mandate, the Board is responsible,
among other things, for:

) overseeing a management-driven strategic planning process within the Corporation based
on business plan and strategic review presented to the Board by management, generally
on an annual basis;

(i) monitoring the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control and management
information systems;

(i) assessing the principal risks of the Corporation’s business and ensuring appropriate
systems are in place to manage such risks (including review and approval of
acquisitions);

(iii) succession planning for the Corporation including appointing, monitoring, evaluating,
and selecting senior management; and

(iv)  overseeing a communications policy and program for the Corporation, which includes
oversight of the Corporation’s policies and practices with respect to disclosure.

The role and responsibilities of management include day-to-day operation of the Corporation’s
businesses as well as developing individual business units and overall corporate strategies, with the Board
reviewing these strategies annually. Management also updates the Board on a regular basis at Board
meetings on strategic issues. Committees such as the Audit Committee have been designated to monitor
risks and evaluate corporate control systems and disclosure policies in key areas such as accounting,
finance and information systems, all of which are of significance to the business of the Corporation.

The Board is involved in monitoring and assessing senior management both through its Human
Resources and Compensation Committee and direct regular contact as a result of senior management
presentations to the Board on a variety of matters including strategic direction and the setting of corporate
goals and objectives.

The Board has generally delegated the Corporation’s communications policy to senior
management. Management’s responsibilities therefore include speaking on behalf of the Corporation in
communications with its shareholders and other stakeholders. These responsibilities are generally handled
by the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer. Generally, the Board, directly or through
its Committees, reviews and, where appropriate, approves public disclosure documents required to be
filed with securities regulators and other similar bodies.

The Board retains plenary power for functions not delegated to management. The Board has not
specifically defined the limits of management’s responsibilities in the sense of having a position
description for the Chief Executive Officer and the board of directors. The Board does, however, through
its Corporate Governance and Human Resources and Compensation Committees, annually review those
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matters which are considered to require Board approval. In addition to exercising the powers which it
must exercise as a matter of law, the Board specifically approves significant matters such as material
acquisitions, divestitures, and capital expenditures as well as the Corporation’s short-term and long-term
business plan.

There were eleven (11) meetings of the Board during the year ended December 31, 2001,
Composition of the Board of Directors (TSE Guidelines 2, 3, 7 and 12)

A majority of the current directors qualify as “unrelated directors”. An unrelated director is a
director who is independent of management and is free from any interest and any business or other
relationship which could, or could reasonably be perceived to, materially interfere with the director’s
ability to act with a view to the best interests of the Corporation, other than interests and relationships
arising from shareholding. For the 2001 financial year, each of G. Michael Preston and Marc Byron were
related directors by virtue of being members of management of the Corporation. None of the unrelated
directors have been employed by the Corporation or its subsidiaries or have material contracts with the
Corporation or its subsidiaries except as otherwise disclosed in this Circular,

The Corporation, under its current Articles, is permitted to have a board of between one (1) and
fifteen (15) directors. The Board is of the view that a board of at least five (5) directors and not more than
twelve (12) directors is appropriate for the Corporation in its current circumstances. The Board currently
has nine (9) members. Seven (7) nominees are proposed for election at the Meeting, although it is
expected that one of the nominees, G. Michael Preston, will resign following the effective date of the
Continuance. The Board, through its Corporate Governance Committee, evaluates the size and
composition of the Board on an ongoing basis.

Committees of the Board and Related Matters (TSE Guidelines 9 and 12)

The Board relies on its Committees to assist it in discharging its responsibilities, The Board has
appointed three Committees, which are: an Audit Committee, a Corporate Governance Committee and a
Human Resources and Compensation Committee. Each Committee currently consists entirely of unrelated
directors. The Board does not have an executive committee.

Corporate Governance Committee (TSE Guidelines 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 10)

The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for advising the Board on corporate
governance matters and for monitoring the corporate governance systems of the Corporation, the
effectiveness of the Board (including its size, composition, and its committees), and the performance of
the directors. The Committee discharges its responsibilities in a variety of ways including through holding
meetings of the unrelated directors. The Committee is also responsible for identifying and recommending
potential appointees to the Board and for the orientation and education of new directors. The Committee
is charged with reviewing on an annual basis the compensation and benefits paid to the directors.

Periodically, the Chair of the Corporate Governance Committee requires the Board to meet,
without management present, to address certain issues. Such meetings permit the board of directors to
independently review issues related to the effectiveness of the Board as a whole as well as Committees of
the Board.

The Committee reports to the Board at each meeting of the Board following Committee meetings.
The Committee met five (5) times during the year ended December 31, 2001. The members of the
Committee are Theodore D. Sands (Chair), William Biggar, Gregory F. Kiernan, R. B. Matthews, G.
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Michael Preston and Raymond Verdon. All are unrelated directors with the exception of G. Michael
Preston who provides consulting services to the Corporation.

Audit Committee (TSE Guideline 13)

The Audit Committee plays an important role in monitoring the control environment and the
integrity of the management information systems, including management reporting on internal controls,
with the objective of ensuring that those systems are producing accurate information. The Committee
reviews the annual and interim financial statements of the Corporation and certain other public disclosure
documents required by regulatory authorities and makes recommendations to the Board with respect to
such statements and documents. The Committee also directly supervises and reviews the report of the
internal auditor, makes recommendations to the Board regarding the appointment of independent auditors,
reviews the nature and scope of the annual audit as proposed by the auditors and management, and
reviews with management the risks inherent in the Corporation’s business and risk management programs
relating thereto.

The Committee reports to the Board at each meeting of the Board following Committee meetings. -
The Committee met seven (7) times during the year ended December 31, 2001. Pursuant to Board policy,
the Committee is composed entirely of unrelated Directors. The members of the Committee are William
Biggar (Chair), R. B. Matthews and Theodore D. Sands.

Human Resources and Compensation Committee (TSE Guideline 11)

The Human Resources and Compensation Committee is responsible for reviewing the levels and
form of total compensation paid to the Corporation’s senior employees and for overseeing the
Corporation’s Employee Share Purchase and Option Plan and the Incentive Compensation Plan. The
Committee annually assesses the performance of the Chief Executive Officer and senior officers of the
Corporation and determines each of such person's compensation and benefits. It reviews succession
planning for the Corporation’s senior management as part of its general mandate to review the
Corporation’s organizational structure to determine if such structure is appropriate to carry out the
business of the Corporation.

The Committee reports to the Board at each meeting of the Board following meetings of the
Committee. The Committee met five (5) times during the year ended December 31, 2001. Pursuant to
Board policy, the Committee is composed entirely of unrelated directors. The members of the Committee
are R. B. Matthews (Chair), Gregory F. Kiernan, Theodore D. Sands and Raymond Verdon.

Other Matters (TSE Guideline 14)

In certain circumstances, it could become appropriate for an individual director to engage an
outside advisor or advisors at the expense of the Corporation. The engagement of outside advisors is
subject to the approval of the Corporate Governance Committee.

Communications and Related Matters

The Corporation receives and responds to shareholder enquiries through management. Important
management communications with shareholders include a review of material matters in each quarterly
financial report prepared by the Corporation and a report to shareholders in each year’s Annual Report.
Generally, the Board is not directly involved in communications, but does oversee the Corporation’s
communication policy and program.
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RIGHTS OF DISSENTING SHAREHOLDERS

The Continuance Special Resolution entitles a holder of common shares to be paid the fair value
of all, but not less than all, of such common shares in accordance with section 185 of the OBCA if the
shareholder dissents to the resolution under the OBCA and if the Continuance becomes effective.
Holders of common shares are not entitled to dissent with respect to their common shares if they vote any
of such shares in favour of the Continuance Special Resolution or if the directors do not act to implement
the special resolution. A brief summary of the provisions of section 185 of the OBCA is set out below.
The following summary does not purport to provide a comprehensive statement of the procedures to be
followed by a dissenting shareholder who seeks to exercise dissent rights. Section 185 of the OBCA
requires strict adherence to the procedures established therein and failure to do so may result in the loss of
dissent rights. Accordingly, each shareholder who might desire to exercise dissent rights should carefully
consider and comply with the provisions in section 185 of the OBCA, the full text of which is set out in
Schedule D to this Circular.

Each dissenting shareholder of the Corporation who wishes to exercise dissent rights is required
to send a written objection to the Continuance Special Resolution to the Corporation at or prior to the
Meeting. The address of the Corporation for such purpose is: 469A King Street West, Toronto, Ontario,
M5V 3M4. The execution or exercise of a proxy does not constitute a written objection for the purposes
of section 185 of the OBCA. Within ten (10) days after the Continuance Special Resolution is adopted by
shareholders, the Corporation must so notify each of the dissenting shareholders who is then required,
within twenty (20) days after receipt of such notice (or, if such person does not receive such notice, within
twenty (20) days after learning of the adoption of the special resolution), to send to the Corporation a
written notice containing that person's name and address, the number of common shares in respect of
which that person dissents and a demand for payment of the fair value of such shares. Within thirty (30)
days after sending such written notice, the dissenting shareholder must also send to the Corporation the
share certificate or certificates representing all of that person's common shares. If the Continuance
contemplated in the Continuance Special Resolution becomes effective, the Corporation is required to
determine the fair value of the common shares and to make a written offer to pay such amount to the
dissenting shareholder. If such offer is not made or not accepted within thirty (30) days, any dissenting
shareholder may apply to the court to fix the fair value of the shares. There is no obligation on the
Corporation to apply to the court. If any application is made, the dissenting shareholder will be entitled to
be paid the amount fixed by the court.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Upon request made to the Corporate Secretary of the Corporation at 469A King Street West,
Toronto, Ontario, M5V 3M4, the Corporation will provide to any person, and in the case of a security
holder of the Corporation without charge, one copy of:

(1) the Corporation’s most recent annual information form filed with securities commissions
or similar regulatory authorities in Canada, together with the pertinent pages of any
document incorporated by reference therein;

(i1) the Corporation’s most recently filed comparative annual financial statements, together
with the report of the Corporation’s auditors thereon, and any interim financial statements
filed for any period after the end of its most recently completed financial year; and

(1))  the Corporation’s management proxy circular for its most recent annual meeting of
shareholders at which directors were elected.
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The foregoing information is also available on the Corporation’s web site at
wWww.mosaicgroupinc.com.

EFFECTIVE DATE OF INFORMATION AND APPROVAL OF MANAGEMENT PROXY
CIRCULAR

‘ The information herein is given as at April 4, 2002 unless otherwise stated. All amounts set forth
herein are expressed in Canadian dollars unless otherwise stated. The contents of this Circular and the
mailing thereof to the shareholders have been approved and authorized by the board of directors of the

Corporation.
Mm

Marc Byron
Vice-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

DATED at Toronto, Ontario as of April 4, 2002,




Schedule A

CONTINUANCE SPECIAL RESOLUTION

RESOLVED AS A SPECIAL RESOLUTION THAT:

L.

Mosaic Group Inc. (the “Corporation™) is authorized to apply to the Director appointed under the
Canada Business Corporations Act (the “CBCA”) pursuant to section 187 of the CBCA for a
certificate of continuance continuing the Corporation as if it has been incorporated thereunder
(the “Continuance”).

The Corporation is authorized to apply to the Director appointed under the Business Corporations’
Act (Ontario) (the “OBCA”) for authorization to permit the Continuance.

Subject to the issuance of a certificate of continuance under the CBCA, and without affecting the
validity or existence of the Corporation under its current articles or by-laws or of any act done
thereunder:

(a) the articles of the Corporation are amended by deleting all of the provisions thereof and
substituting therefor articles of continuance in the form set out as Schedule B to the
management proxy circular of the Corporation dated as of April 4, 2002 (the “Circular™);
and

(b) By-Law No. | of the Corporation, as amended by deleting all of the provisions thereof
and substituting therefor By-Law No. ! in the form set out as Schedule C to the Circular,
is hereby approved and confirmed.

Notwithstanding that this special resolution shall have been duly passed by the shareholders of
the Corporation, the directors of the Corporation are authorized, in their sole discretion, to
abandon the application for a certificate of continuance under the CBCA at any time prior to the
issue thereof without further approval of the shareholders of the Corporation.

Any director or officer of the Corporation is authorized and directed to execute and deliver or
cause to be executed and delivered all such documents and instruments and to take or cause to be
taken all such other actions as such director or officer may determine to be necessary or desirable
to carry out the intent of the foregoing special resolutions, such determination to be conclusively
evidenced by the execution and delivery of such documents and instruments and the taking of
such actions.




Schedule B
DRAFT ARTICLES OF CONTINUANCE

i .’I sty Sanee sy Ganece ARTICLES%%’RgO‘“ﬂNUANCE CLAUSEEOI;!EMF"JI'%-(E)gaGATION
Ganada Business prodrieresiicd A (SECTION 187) (ARTICLE 187)
1 - Name of corporation Dénomination de la société
MOSAIC GROUP INC.
2 - The place in Canada where the registered office is to be Lleu au Canada ol doit &tro situs le siége socisl
Province of Ontario
3-The classes and any maximum number of shares that mmutout nombre maximal d'actions que la
the corporation is authorized to lssue ost autorisée & émettre

An unlimited number of common shares and an unlimited number of preference shares, issuable in series.
The annexed Schedule 1 is incorporated in this form.

4 - Restrictions, if any, on share transfers Restrictions sur le transfert des actions, 8'll y a tieu
No restrictions

§ - Number (or minimumn and maximum number) of directors Nombre (ou nombre minimal et maximal) d'administrateurs
Minimum of 3, maximum of 15.

6 - Restrictions, if any, on business the corporation may carry on Limites imposées & I'activité commercisie de ia société, s'ily a lieu
None

7 -(1) if change of name effected, previous name (1) S y a changement de dénomination, dénomination
Not applicable
(2) Details of incorporation (2) Détalls de la constitution

Formed by the amalgamation of MOSAIC GROUP INC. and S&MG MARKETING LIMITED / S&§MG MARKETING
LIMITEE under the Business Corporations Act (Ontario) on January 1, 1998,

8 - Other provisions, if any Autres dispositions, 8l y a lieu

(a) Meetings of the shareholders of the Corporation may be held at any place within Canada or in any of New York, New York;
Fort Lee, New Jersey; Chicago, Illinois; Dallas, Texas; or London, U.K.

(b) The actual number of directors within the minimum and maximum number set out in paragraph 5 may be determined from
time to time by resolution of the directors. Any vacancy among the directors resulting from an increase in the number of directors
as so determined may be filled by resolution of the directors. ‘

Dats Signature Title - Titre

FOR DEPARTMENTAL USE ONLY - A L'USAGE DU MINISTERE SEULEMENT - Déposbe
Corporation No. - N* de la société lm

N Nk
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Schedule 1

1. The rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attaching to the Common Shares are as follows:

(@)

(b)

(c)

Payment of Dividends

The holders of the Common Shares shall be entitled to receive dividends if, as and when
declared by the board of directars of the Corporation out of the assets of the Corporation
properly applicable to the payment of dividends in such amounts and payable in such
manner as the board of directors may from time to time determine. Subject to the rights
of the holders of any other class of shares of the Corporation entitled to receive dividends
in priority to or concurrently with the holders of the Common Shares, the board of
directors may in its sole discretion declare dividends on the Common Shares to the
exclusion of any other class of shares of the Corporation.

Participation upon Liquidation, Dissolution or Winding-Up

In the event of the liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Corporation or other
distribution of assets of the Corporation among its shareholders for the purpose of
winding up its affairs, the holders of the Common Shares shall, subject to the rights of the
holders of any other class of shares of the Corporation entitled to receive the assets of the
Corporation upon such a distribution in priority to or concurrently with the holders of the
Common Shares, be entitled to participate in the distribution. Such distribution shall be
made in equal amounts per share on all the Common Shares at the time outstanding
without preference or distinction.

Voting Rights
The holders of the Common Shares shall be entitled to receive notice of and to attend all

annual and special meetings of the shareholders of the Corporation and to one vote in
respect of each Common Share held at such meetings.

2. The rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attaching to the Preference Shares are as

follows:

(@

Directors’' Authority to Issue Series

The board of directors of the Corporation may issue the Preference Shares at any time
and from time to time in one or more series. Before the first shares of a particular series
are issued, the board of directors of the Corporation shall fix the number of shares in such
series and shall determine, subject to the limitations set out in the articles, the
designation, rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions to attach to the shares of such
series including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the rate or rates, amount
or method or methods of calculation of preferential dividends, whether cumulative or
non-cumulative or partially cumulative, and whether such rate(s), amount or method(s) of
calculation shall be subject to change or adjustment in the future, the currency or
currencies of payment, the date or dates and place or places of payment thereof and the
date or dates from which such preferential dividends shall accrue, the redemption price
and terms and conditions of redemption (if any), the rights of retraction (if any), and the
prices and other terms and conditions of any rights of retraction and whether any
additional rights of retraction may be vested in such holders in the future, voting rights
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and conversion or exchange rights (if any) and any sinking fund, purchase fund or other
provisions attaching thereto.

Ranking of Preference Shares

M

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

™

No rights, privileges, restrictions or conditions attaching to a series of Preference
Shares shall confer upon a series a priority in respect of dividends or return of
capital in the event of the liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the
Corporation over any other series of Preference Shares. The Preference Shares
of each series shall rank on a parity with the Preference Shares of every other
series with respect to priority in the payment of dividends and the return of
capital and the distribution of assets of the Corporation in the event of the
liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Corporation, whether voluntary or
involuntary, or any other distribution of the assets of the Corporation among its
shareholders for the purpose of winding up its affairs.

The Preference Shares shall be entitled to priority over the Common Shares of
the Corporation and over any other shares of any other class of the Corporation
ranking junior to the Preference Shares with respect to priority in the payment of
dividends and the return of capital and the distribution of assets in the event of
the liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Corporation, whether voluntary
or involuntary, or any other distribution of the assets of the Corporation among
its shareholders for the purpose of winding up its affairs.

If any amount of cumulative dividends, whether or not declared, or declared non-
cumulative dividends or amount payable on a return of capital in the event of the
liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Corporation in respect of a series of
Preference Shares is not paid in full, the Preference Shares of all series shall
participate concurrently in respect of all accumulated cumulative dividends,
whether or not declared, and all declared non-cumulative dividends in
accordance with the sums that would be payable on such shares if all such
dividends were declared and paid in full, and in respect of amounts payable on
return of capital in the event of the liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the
Corporation in accordance with the sums that would be payable on such
repayment of capital if all sums so payable were paid in full; provided, however,
that in the event of there being insufficient assets to satisfy in full all such claims
as aforesaid, the claims of the holders of the Preference Shares with respect to
amounts payable on return of capital shall first be paid and satisfied and any
assets remaining thereafter shall be applied towards the payment and satisfaction
of claims in respect of dividends.

The Preference Shares of any series may also be given such other preferences not
inconsistent with the provisions hereof over the Common Shares and over any
other shares ranking junior to the Preference Shares as may be determined in the
case of such series of Preference Shares.

In the event of the liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Corporation,
whether voluntary or involuntary, or any other distribution of the assets of the
Corporation among its shareholders for the purpose of winding up its affairs, the
holders of each series of Preference Shares shall, before any amount shall be paid
to or any property or assets of the Corporation distributed among the holders of
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the Common Shares of the Corporation or any other shares of the Corporation
ranking junior to the Preference Shares, be entitled to receive (i) an amount equal
to the stated capital attributed to each series of Preference Shares, respectively,
together with, in the case of a series of Preference Shares entitled to cumulative
dividends thereon, all unpaid accumulated cumulative dividends, whether or not
declared (which for such purpose shall be calculated as if such cumulative
dividends were accruing from day to day for the period from the expiration of the
last period for which such cumulative dividends were paid up to but excluding
the date of distribution) and, in the case of a series of Preference Shares entitled
to non-cumulative dividends, all declared and unpaid non-cumulative dividends
thereon, and (ii) if such liquidation, dissolution, winding-up or distribution shall
be voluntary, an additional amount, if any, equal to any premium which would
have been payable on the redemption of any series of Preference Shares had they
been called for redemption by the Corporation effective the date of distribution
and, if any series of Preference Shares could not be redeemed on such date, then
an additional amount equal to the greatest premium, if any, which would have
been payable on the redemption of any other series of Shares.

Restrictions on Dividends and Redemptions, etc.

No dividends shall at any time be declared or paid or set apart for payment on the
Common Shares or any other shares of the Corporation ranking junior to the Preference
Shares unless all dividends up to and including the dividend payable for the last
completed period for which such dividends shall be payable on each series of Preference
Shares then issued and outstanding shall have been declared and paid or set apart for
payment at the date of such declaration or payment or setting apart for payment on the
Common Shares or such other shares of the Corporation ranking junior to the Preference
Shares; nor shall the Corporation call for redemption, redeem, purchase for cancellation,
acquire for value or reduce or otherwise pay off any of the Preference Shares or any
Common Shares or any other shares of the Corporation ranking junior to the Preference
Shares unless and until all dividends up to and including the dividends payable for the
last completed period for which such dividends shall be payable on each series of
Preference Shares then issued and outstanding shall have been declared and paid or set
apart for payment at the date of such call for redemption, purchase, acquisition, reduction
or other payment.




Schedule C
MOSAIC GROUP INC.

BY-LAW NO. 1

A by-law regulating generally the transaction of the business and affairs of Mosaic Group Inc.

1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

Section 1
INTERPRETATION

Definitions. In this by-law, which may be cited as the General By-law, unless the context
otherwise requires:

“Act” means the Canada Business Corporations Act, and any statute that may be substituted
therefor, as from time to time amended, and includes the regulations made thereunder;

“Articles” means the articles of the Corporation as defined in the Act;

“Board” means the board of directors of the Corporation;

“Corporation” means Mosaic Group Inc.;

“meeting of shareholders” means any meeting of shareholders including an annual meeting;

“non-business day” means Saturday, Sunday and any other day that is a holiday as defined in the
Interpretation Act (Canada); and

“recorded address” means in the case of a shareholder his address as recorded in the securities
register; and in the case of joint shareholders the address appearing in the securities register in
respect of such joint holding or the first address so appearing if there are two or more; and in the
case of a director, officer or auditor, his latest address as recorded in the records of the
Corporation.

Construction. Save as aforesaid, words and expressions defined in the Act have the same
meanings when used herein; words importing the singular include the plural and vice versa;
words importing gender include the masculine, feminine and neuter genders; and words
importing persons include individuals, bodies corporate, partnerships, trusts and unincorporated
organizations.

Section 2
MEETINGS OF SHAREHOLDERS

Meetings of Shareholders. The annual meeting of shareholders shall be held in each year on a
date to be determined by the Board. The Board, the Chairman or the Chief Executive Officer may
call a meeting of shareholders, other than an annual meeting of shareholders, at any time.

Chairman, Secretary and Scrutineers. The chairman of any meeting of shareholders shall be
the Chairman or, in the absence of the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer or, in the absence
of such officer, any director who is present and willing to act as chairman of the meeting. If no
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such person is present within fifteen minutes from the time fixed for holding the meeting, the
persons present and entitled to vote shall choose one of their number to act as chairman. The
secretary of any meeting of shareholders shall be the Secretary of the Corporation. If the
Secretary is absent, the chairman shall appoint some person, who need not be a shareholder, to act
as secretary of the meeting. The chairman may appoint one or more persons who need not be
shareholders to act as scrutineers at the meeting.

Persons Entitled to be Present. The only persons entitled to be present at a meeting of
shareholders shall be those entitled to vote thereat, the directors, the auditor of the Corporation
and others who, although not entitled to vote, are entitled or required under any provision of the
Act or the Articles to be present. Any other person may be admitted with the consent of the
meeting or of the chairman of the meeting.

Proxies. To the extent permitted by the Act, the Board may from time to time pass resolutions
regarding the lodging of instruments appointing a proxyholder at some place or places other than
the place at which a meeting or adjourned or postponed meeting of shareholders is to be held and
for particulars of such instruments to be telegraphed, telecopied, sent by facsimile or in writing or
otherwise communicated by such electronic means that is capable of producing a written copy
before the meeting or adjourned meeting to the Corporation or any agent of the Corporation
appointed for the purpose of receiving such particulars and providing that instruments appointing
a proxy so lodged may be voted upon as though the instruments themselves were produced at the
meeting or adjourned meeting and votes given in accordance with such resolutions shall be valid
and shall be counted. The chairman of any meeting of shareholders may, subject to any
resolutions made as aforesaid and applicable law, in his or her discretion accept telegraphic,
telecopy, facsimile or written communication or electronic communication that is capable of
producing a written copy, as to the authority of anyone claiming to vote on behalf of and to
represent a shareholder notwithstanding that no instrument of proxy conferring such authority has
been lodged with the Corporation, and any votes given in accordance with such telegraphic,
telecopy, facsimile, written or electronic communication accepted by the chairman of the meeting
shall be valid and shall be counted.

Quorum. Except as otherwise provided in the Articles, a quorum for the transaction of business
at any meeting of shareholders shall be at least two persons present in person, each being a
shareholder entitled to vote thereat or a duly appointed proxyholder for such a shareholder and
together holding or representing by proxy not less than 25% of the outstanding shares of the
Corporation entitled to be voted at the meeting.

Meetings by Telephone, Electronic or Other Communication Facility. The directors of the
Corporation who call a meeting of shareholders pursuant to the Act may determine that the
meeting shall be held, to the extent and in the manner permitted by law, entirely by means of a
telephonic, electronic or other communication facility that permits all participants to
communicate adequately with each other during the meeting.

Section 3
DIRECTORS

Number of Directors. Subject to the Articles, the number of directors of the Corporation may be
fixed from time to time by resolution of the Board.
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Term of Office. Subject to Section 3.3 hereof, each director shall be elected to hold office until
the close of the first annual meeting of shareholders following his election.

Qualification of Directors. In addition to the disqualifications provided for in the Act, no person
shall be elected or appointed a director if he exceeds the age of seventy-five years. A director
ceases to hold office (a) when he ceases to be qualified as a director under the Articles, (b) should
he be a salaried officer of the Corporation other than the Chairman or the Chief Executive
Officer, when he ceases to be a salaried officer of the Corporation or (c) at the close of the annual
meeting of shareholders next held following the date on which he reaches the age of seventy-five
years.

Quorum. A majority of the directors shall form a quorum of the Board.

Meetings of the Board. Meetings of the board shall be held from time to time at a time and
place determined by the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer or a majority of the directors.

Notice of Meeting. Subject to any resolution of the Board, notice of the time and place of each
meeting of the Board requiring notice shall be given to each director not less than two days
(excluding non-business days) before the date on which the meeting is to be held.

Chairman. The chairman of any meeting of the Board shall be the Chairman or, in the absence
of such officer, any lead director designated by the Board from time to time or, in the absence of
such director, the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation or, in the absence of such officer,
any director who is present and willing to act as chairman of the meeting.

Votes to Govern. At all meetings of the Board, every question shall be decided by a majority of
the votes cast.

Remuneration. No director who is a salaried officer of the Corporation shall be entitled to any
remuneration for the performance of his duties as a director. If any director or officer of the
Corporation shall be employed by or shall perform services for the Corporation otherwise than as
a director or officer or shall be a member of a firm or a shareholder, director or officer of a body
corporate which is employed by or performs services for the Corporation, the fact of his being a
director or officer of the Corporation shall not disentitle such director or officer or such firm or
body corporate, as the case may be, from receiving proper remuneration for such services.

Section 4
COMMITTEES

Committees. The Board shall appoint annually members of an Audit Committee and may
appoint annually members of a Human Resources and Compensation Committee and a Corporate
Governance Committee and such additional committees as it deems necessary and, subject to the
Act, delegate to the committees such powers of the Board and assign to the committees such
duties as the Board considers appropriate.

Composition of Committees. Each of the committees appointed shall consist of not less than
two nor more than ten directors, at least a majority of whom in the case of the Human Resources
and Compensation Committee, and all of whom in the case of the Audit Committee and the
Corporate Governance Committee, shall not be officers of the Corporation or any subsidiary of
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the Corporation, or directors or officers of any corporation owning more than 20% of the voting
shares in the capital of the Corporation.

Operation of Committees. In the case of each committee, a majority of members shall
constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. The Board shall appoint a chairman of each
committee. Each committee shall meet at the call of its chairman. All acts or proceedings of any
committee shall be reported to the Board at or before the next meeting thereof.

Section 5
THE TRANSACTION OF BUSINESS

Execution of Instruments. All instruments and documents of whatsoever kind in written,
electronic or any other form binding upon the Corporation may be signed in writing or in
electronic form or otherwise assented to in any legally effective manner on behalf of the
Corporation by any one of the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, the Corporate Secretary or
by any two directors. In addition, the Board may from time to time determine the manner in
which and the person or persons by whom any particular instrument or document or class of
instruments or documents may or shall be signed in writing or in electronic form or otherwise
assented to in any legally effective manner, including the use of facsimile reproduction of any or
all signatures and the use of the corporate seal or a facsimile reproduction thereof.

Cheques. The Board may from time to time authorize the signing and countersigning of cheques
and other financial instruments by means of a facsimile signature or otherwise.

Section 6
DIVIDENDS

Dividends. The Board may from time to time declare dividends payable to shareholders
according to their respective rights.

Dividend Payment. A dividend payable in money may be paid by cheque drawn on the
Corporation’s bankers, or one of them, to the order of each registered holder of shares of a class
or series in respect of which the dividend has been declared, and mailed by prepaid ordinary mail
to such registered holder at his recorded address. In the case of joint holders the cheque shall,
unless such joint holders otherwise direct, be made payable to the order of all of such joint
holders and mailed to them at their recorded address. The Corporation may pay a dividend by
cheque to a registered holder or to joint holders other than in the manner herein set out, if the
registered holder or joint holders so request. The mailing of such cheque as aforesaid, unless the
same is not paid on due presentation, shall satisfy and discharge the liability for the dividend to
the extent of the sum represented thereby plus the amount of any tax which the Corporation is
required to and does withhold.

Idem. The Corporation may, when so directed by a registered holder of a share in respect of
which a dividend in money has been declared, pay the dividend in the manner so directed.

Non-receipt or Loss of Dividend Cheques. In the event of non-receipt or loss of any dividend
cheque by the person to whom it is sent, the Corporation shall issue to such person a replacement
cheque for a like amount on such terms as to indemnity, reimbursement of expenses and evidence
of non-receipt or loss and of entitlement as the Board, the Vice-President in charge of finance, the
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Treasurer or the Controller may from time to time prescribe, whether generally or in a particular
case.

Unclaimed Dividends. To the extent permitted under applicable law, any dividend unclaimed
after a period of six years from the date on which such dividend has been declared payable shall
be forfeited and shall revert to the Corporation.

Section 7
PROTECTION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Limitation of Liability. No director or officer shall be liable for the acts, receipts, neglects or
defaults of any other director, officer, employee or agent, or for joining in any receipt or act for
conformity, or for any loss, damage or expense happening to the Corporation through the
insufficiency or deficiency of title to any property acquired by, for or on behalf of the
Corporation, or for the insufficiency or deficiency of any security in or upon which any of the
moneys of the Corporation shall be placed out or invested, or for any loss or damage arising from
the bankruptcy, insolvency or tortious act of any person with whom any moneys, securities or
effects shall be lodged or deposited, or for any loss, conversion, misapplication or
misappropriation of or any damage resulting from any dealings with any moneys, securities or
other assets belonging to the Corporation, or for any other loss, damage or misfortune whatever
which may happen in the execution of the duties of his respective office or trust or in relation
thereto unless the same shall happen by or through his failure to act honestly and in good faith
with a view to the best interests of the Corporation and to exercise the care, diligence and skill
that a reasonably prudent person would exercise in comparable circumstances.

Indemnity. The Corporation shall indemnify a director or officer of the Corporation, a former
director or officer of the Corporation or a person who acts or acted at the Corporation’s request as
a director or officer of a body corporate of which the Corporation is or was a shareholder or
creditor, and his heirs and legal representatives, to the extent permitted by the Act or otherwise by
law.

Section 8
NOTICES

Method of Giving Notices. Any notice, communication or document to be given, sent, delivered
or served pursuant to the Act, the regulations thereunder, the Articles, the General By-law or
otherwise, to a shareholder, director, officer or auditor shall be sufficiently given if delivered
personally to the person to whom it is to be given or if delivered (including by courier) to the
person’s recorded address or if mailed to the person at the person’s recorded address by prepaid
ordinary or air mail or if sent to the person at the person’s recorded address by any means of
prepaid transmitted or recorded communication, including facsimile, telex, telegram, email or
other electronic means that is capable of producing a written copy. A notice so delivered shall be
deemed to have been given when it is delivered personally or to the recorded address as aforesaid;
a notice so mailed shall be deemed to have been given on the third business day following the
deposit thereof in a post office or public letter box; and a notice so sent by any means of
transmitted or electronic communication shall be deemed to have been given when dispatched or
delivered to the appropriate communication company or agency or its representative for dispatch.
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Omissions and Errors. The accidental omission to give any notice to any shareholder, director,
officer or auditor or the non-receipt of any notice by any such person or any error in any notice
not affecting the substance thereof shall not invalidate any action taken at any meeting to which
the notice related.

Persons Entitled by Death or Operation of Law. Every person who, by operation of law,
transfer, death of a shareholder or any other means whatsoever, becomes entitled to any share,
shall be bound by every notice in respect of such share which shall have been duly given to the
shareholder from whom he derives his title to such share prior to his name and address being
entered on the securities register.

Waiver of Notice. A shareholder, proxyholder, director, officer or auditor may at any time waive
any notice, or waive or abridge the time for any notice, required to be given to him under any
provision of the Act, the regulations thereunder, the Articles, the General By-Law or otherwise
and such waiver or abridgement, whether given before or after the meeting or other event of
which notice is required to be given, shall cure any default or defect in the giving or in the time of
such notice, as the case may be. Any such waiver or abridgement shall be in writing except a
waiver of notice of a meeting of shareholders or of the Board or of a committee of the Board
which may be given in any manner.

Section 9
EFFECIVE DATE AND REPEAL

Effective Date. The General By-law shall come into force as of the date of issuance of a
certificate of continuance under the Canada Business Corporations Act in respect of the
Corporation.

Repeal. All previous by-laws of the Corporation are repealed on the coming into force of the
General By-law.

Effect of Repeal. All persons appointed or elected under any by-law repealed on the coming into
force of the General By-law shall continue to act until ceasing to hold office or until re-appointed
or re-elected and all resolutions of the shareholders or the Board having continuing effect and
passed under any repealed by-law or otherwise shall continue to be operative until amended or
repealed to the extent that they are inconsistent with the General By-law.



Schedule D
SECTION 185 OF THE BUSINESS CORPORATIONS ACT (ONTARIO)
Rights of Dissenting Shareholders
185. (1) Subject to subsection (3) and to sections 186 and 248, if a corporation resolves to,

(a) amend its articles under section 168 to add, remove or change restrictions on the issue,
transfer or ownership of shares of a class or series of the shares of the corporation;

(b) amend its articles under section 168 to add, remove or change any restriction upon the
business or businesses that the corporation may carry on or upon the powers that the
corporation may exercise;

(c) amalgamate with another corporation under sections 175 and 176;
(d) be continued under the laws of another jurisdiction under section 181; or
(e) sell, lease or exchange all or substantially all its property under subsection 184 (3),
H a holder of shares of any class or series entitled to vote on the resolution may dissent.
2) If a corporation resolves to amend its articles in a manner referred to in subsection 170 (1), a

holder of shares of any class or series entitled to vote on the amendment under section 168 or 170 may
dissent, except in respect of an amendment referred to in,

(2) clause 170 (1) (a), (b) or (e) where the articles provide that the holders of shares of such
class or series are not entitled to dissent; or

(h) subsection 170 (5) or (6).

(3) A shareholder of a corporation incorporated before the 29th day of July, 1983 is not entitled to
dissent under this section in respect of an amendment of the articles of the corporation to the extent that
the amendment,

(1) amends the express terms of any provision of the articles of the corporation to conform to
the terms of the provision as deemed to be amended by section 277; or

G) deletes from the articles of the corporation all of the objects of the corporation set out in
its articles, provided that the deletion is made by the 29th day of July, 1986.

4) In addition to any other right the shareholder may have, but subject to subsection (30), a
shareholder who complies with this section is entitled, when the action approved by the resolution from
which the shareholder dissents becomes effective, to be paid by the corporation the fair value of the
shares held by the shareholder in respect of which the shareholder dissents, determined as of the close of
business on the day before the resolution was adopted.

(5) A dissenting shareholder may only claim under this section with respect to all the shares of a
class held by the dissenting shareholder on behalf of any one beneficial owner and registered in the name
of the dissenting shareholder.
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(6) A dissenting shareholder shall send to the corporation, at or before any meeting of shareholders at
which a resolution referred to in subsection (1) or (2) is to be voted on, a written objection to the
resolution, unless the corporation did not give notice to the shareholder of the purpose of the meeting or
of the shareholder's right to dissent.

N The execution or exercise of a proxy does not constitute a written objection for purposes of
subsection (6).

(8 The corporation shall, within ten days after the shareholders adopt the resolution, send to each
shareholder who has filed the objection referred to in subsection (6) notice that the resolution has been
adopted, but such notice is not required to be sent to any shareholder who voted for the resolution or who
has withdrawn the objection.

9 A notice sent under subsection (8) shall set out the rights of the dissenting shareholder and the
procedures to be followed to exercise those rights.

(10) A dissenting shareholder entitled to receive notice under subsection (8) shall, within twenty days
after receiving such notice, or, if the shareholder does not receive such notice, within twenty days after
learning that the resolution has been adopted, send to the corporation a written notice containing,

(a) the shareholder's name and address;
(b) the number and class of shares in respect of which the shareholder dissents; and
(c) a demand for payment of the fair value of such shares.

(11)  Not later than the thirtieth day after the sending of a notice under subsection (10), a dissenting
shareholder shall send the certificates representing the shares in respect of which the shareholder dissents
to the corporation or its transfer agent.

(12) A dissenting shareholder who fails to comply with subsections (6), (10) and (11) has no right to
make a claim under this section.

(13) A corporation or its transfer agent shall endorse on any share certificate received under subsection
(11) a notice that the holder is a dissenting shareholder under this section and shall return forthwith the
share certificates to the dissenting shareholder.

(14)  On sending a notice under subsection (10), a dissenting shareholder ceases to have any rights as a
shareholder other than the right to be paid the fair value of the shares as determined under this section
except where,

(k) the dissenting shareholder withdraws notice before the corporation makes an offer under
subsection (15);

)] the corporation fails to make an offer in accordance with subsection (15) and the
dissenting shareholder withdraws notice; or

(m) the directors revoke a resolution to amend the articles under subsection 168 (3), terminate
an amalgamation agreement under subsection 176 (5) or an application for continuance
under subsection 181 (5), or abandon a sale, lease or exchange under subsection 184 (8),




D-3

in which case the dissenting shareholder's rights are reinstated as of the date the dissenting shareholder
sent the notice referred to in subsection (10), and the dissenting shareholder is entitled, upon presentation
and surrender to the corporation or its transfer agent of any certificate representing the shares that has
been endorsed in accordance with subsection (13), to be issued a new certificate representing the same
number of shares as the certificate so presented, without payment of any fee.

(15) A corporation shall, not later than seven days after the later of the day on which the action
approved by the resolution is effective or the day the corporation received the notice referred to in
subsection (10), send to each dissenting shareholder who has sent such notice,

(n) a written offer to pay for the dissenting shareholder's shares in an amount considered by
the directors of the corporation to be the fair value thereof, accompanied by a statement
showing how the fair value was determined; or

(0) if subsection (30) applies, a notification that it is unable lawfully to pay dissenting
shareholders for their shares.

(16)  Every offer made under subsection (15) for shares of the same class or series shall be on the same
terms.

(17)  Subject to subsection (30), a corporation shall pay for the shares of a dissenting shareholder
within ten days after an offer made under subsection (15) has been accepted, but any such offer lapses if
the corporation does not receive an acceptance thereof within thirty days after the offer has been made.

(18)  Where a corporation fails to make an offer under subsection (15) or if a dissenting shareholder
fails to accept an offer, the corporation may, within fifty days after the action approved by the resolution
is effective or within such further period as the court may allow, apply to the court to fix a fair value for
the shares of any dissenting shareholder.

(19)  If a corporation fails to apply to the court under subsection (18), a dissenting shareholder may
apply to the court for the same purpose within a further period of twenty days or within such further
period as the court may allow.

(20) A dissenting shareholder is not required to give security for costs in an application made under
subsection (18) or (19).

(21)  If a corporation fails to comply with subsection (15), then the costs of a shareholder application
under subsection (19) are to be borne by the corporation unless the court otherwise orders.

(22)  Before making application to the court under subsection (18) or not later than seven days after
receiving notice of an application to the court under subsection (19), as the case may be, a corporation
shall give notice to each dissenting shareholder who, at the date upon which the notice is given,

(p) has sent to the corporation the notice referred to in subsection (10); and
(@ has not accepted an offer made by the corporation under subsection (15), if such an offer
was made,

of the date, place and consequences of the application and of the dissenting shareholder's right to appear
and be heard in person or by counsel, and a similar notice shall be given to each dissenting shareholder
who, after the date of such first mentioned notice and before termination of the proceedings commenced
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by the application, satisfies the conditions set out in clauses (a) and (b) within three days after the
dissenting shareholder satisfies such conditions.

(23)  All dissenting shareholders who satisfy the conditions set out in clauses (22) (a) and (b) shall be
deemed to be joined as parties to an application under subsection (18) or (19) on the later of the date upon
which the application is brought and the date upon which they satisfy the conditions, and shall be bound
by the decision rendered by the court in the proceedings commenced by the application.

(24)  Upon an application to the court under subsection (18) or (19), the court may determine whether
any other person is a dissenting shareholder who should be joined as a party, and the court shall fix a fair
value for the shares of all dissenting shareholders.

(25)  The court may in its discretion appoint one or more appraisers to assist the court to fix a fair value
for the shares of the dissenting shareholders.

(26)  The final order of the court in the proceedings commenced by an application under subsection
(18) or (19) shall be rendered against the corporation and in favour of each dissenting shareholder who,
whether before or after the date of the order, complies with the conditions set out in clauses (22) (a) and

(b).

(27)  The court may in its discretion allow a reasonable rate of interest on the amount payable to each
dissenting shareholder from the date the action approved by the resolution is effective until the date of
payment.

(28)  Where subsection (30) applies, the corporation shall, within ten days after the pronouncement of
an order under subsection (26), notify each dissenting shareholder that it is unable lawfully to pay
dissenting shareholders for their shares.

(29)  Where subsection (30) applies, a dissenting shareholder, by written notice sent to the corporation
within thirty days after receiving a notice under subsection (28), may,

(r) withdraw a notice of dissent, in which case the corporation is deemed to consent to the
withdrawal and the shareholder’s full rights are reinstated; or

(s) retain a status as a claimant against the corporation, to be paid as soon as the corporation
is lawfully able to do so or, in a liquidation, to be ranked subordinate to the rights of
creditors of the corporation but in priority to its shareholders.

(30) A corporation shall not make a payment to a dissenting shareholder under this section if there are
reasonable grounds for believing that,

(1) the corporation is or, after the payment, would be unable to pay its liabilities as they
become due; or

(u) the realizable value of the corporation's assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of
its liabilities.

(31) Upon application by a corporation that proposes to take any of the actions referred to.in
subsection (1) or (2), the court may, if satisfied that the proposed action is not in all the circumstances one
that should give rise to the rights arising under subsection (4), by order declare that those rights will not
arise upon the taking of the proposed action, and the order may be subject to compliance upon such terms
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and conditions as the court thinks fit and, if the corporation is an offering corporation, notice of any such
application and a copy of any order made by the court upon such application shall be served upon the
Commission.

(32)  The Commission may appoint counsel to assist the court upon the hearing of an application under
subsection (31), if the corporation is an offering corporation.




024,
MOSAIC GROUP INC.
PROXY

Solicited by Management of Mosaic Group Inc.
for use at the Special Meeting of Shareholders
to be held on Monday, January 7, 2002

The undersigned shareholder of Mosaic Group Inc. (the ‘‘Corporation’’) hereby appoints
G. Michael Preston, Chairman of the Corporation or, failing him, Ben W. Kaak, Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of the Corporation or, failing him, Catherine G. Barbaro,
Corporate  Secretary of the Corporation or instead of any of the foregoing,
as proxyholder of the undersigned, with full power of
substitution, to attend, act and vote for and on behalf of the undersigned at the special meeting of
shareholders of the Corporation (the ‘‘Meeting’’) to be held at the Design Exchange, 234 Bay
Street, Toronto, Ontario at 11:00 a.m. (Toronto time) on Monday, January 7, 2002 and at any
adjournment thereof, in the following manner:

1) To approve the proposed resolution set out in Schedule ‘A’ to the management proxy
circular of the Corporation dated November 29, 2001 mailed to shareholders in
connection with the Meeting.

VOTE FOR VOTE AGAINST

2) To vote in the discretion of the proxyholder indicated above on any amendment or
variation which may properly come before the Meeting or any adjournment thereof with
respect to any matter identified in the Notice of Meeting and on any other matter which
may properly come before the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

The undersigned hereby revokes any proxies given by the undersigned and dated prior to
the date hereof in respect of the Meeting.

Dated: , 200___.

Signature of Shareholder

Print Name
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INVESTMENT DEALER OR BROKER SOLICITING THIS PROXY
Identify the investment dealer or broker, if any, who solicited this proxy
(please print or type):

(Firm) (Telephone Number) (Fax Number)

(Registered Representative) (Address)

Number of Common Shares Represented (Address)

O Check here if the Common Shares represented are beneficially held by person(s) other than the .
investment dealer or broker listed above, and provide name(s) of beneficial holder(s).

(Beneficial Holder(s)) (Beneficial Holder(s))
Notes:
{1 To be valid at the Meeting, this proxy must be signed by the shareholder or by his or her attorney

authorized in writing or, if the shareholder is a corporation, by a duly authorized officer or
attorney, and must be deposited with the Corporation, c/o CIBC Mellon Trust Company,
200 Queens Quay East, Unit 6, Toronto, Ontario, M5SA 4K9, Attention: Proxy Department, prior
to 5:00 p.m. (Toronto time) on the last business day preceding the date of the Meeting or any
adjournment thereof or with the Chairman of the Meeting at any time prior to the commencement
of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

(ii) If this proxy is not dated in the blank space above, this proxy will be deemed to bear the date on
which it was mailed by management of the Corporation.

(iii) This proxy is solicited by or on behalf of management of the Corporation. A shareholder
may appoint any person other than the persons specifically named above as his or her
nominee to attend, act and vote on such shareholder’s behalf at the Meeting by inserting the
name of such person in the blank space provided above or by completing another
appropriate form of proxy.

(iv) The common shares represented by this proxy will be voted on any ballot that may be called for in
accordance with the shareholder’s instructions indicated above. In the absence of any such
instructions above, it is the intention of the management representatives named above to
vote such common shares FOR the proposed resolution referred to in item 1 above.

(v) All holders of common shares should refer to the accompanying management proxy circular for
further information regarding the completion and use of this proxy and other information
pertaining to the Meeting.
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MOSAIC GROUP INC.
469A King Street West
Toronto, Ontario
M5V 3M4

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Notice is hereby given that a special meeting of shareholders of Mosaic Group Inc. (the

““Corporation’’) will be held at the Design Exchange, 234 Bay Street, Toronto, Ontario on Monday,
January 7, 2002 at 11:00 a.m. (Toronto time) for the following purposes:

1.

the enc

to consider and, if thought advisable, pass, with or without variation, a resolution approving the
issuance by the Corporation of up to an additional 17,364,728 common shares to certain former
direct and indirect equity holders of Paradigm Direct LLC (*‘Paradigm’’) pursuant to the Amended
and Restated Merger Agreement dated as of December 14, 2000, as amended, entered into in
connection with the Corporation’s acquisition of Paradigm, and a related amendment to the
Corporation’s shareholder rights plan agreement, as summarized in the management proxy circular
accompanying and forming part of this Notice; and

. to transact such other business as may properly come before the special meeting or any adjournment

thereof.
A management proxy circular and a form of proxy accompany this Notice.

Shareholders who are unable to attend the special meeting in person are requested to date and sign
losed form of proxy and to return it in the envelope provided. Proxies to be used at the special

meeting must be deposited with the Corporation, c/o CIBC Mellon Trust Company, 200 Queens Quay East,

Unit 6,
last bus

Toronto, Ontario, MSA 4K9, Attention: Proxy Department, prior to 5:00 p.m. (Toronto time) on the
iness day preceding the date of the special meeting or any adjournment thereof or with the Chairman

of the special meeting at any time prior to the commencement of the special meeting or any adjournment

thereof.

DATED at Toronto, Ontario, as of November 29, 2001.

By Order of the Board of Directors

(oot

G. Michael Preston (signed)
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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MANAGEMENT PROXY CIRCULAR
SOLICITATION OF PROXIES

This Management Proxy Circular is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies by
the management of Mosaic Group Inc. (the ‘“Corporation’’ or, together with its direct and indirect
subsidiaries, ‘““‘Mosaic’’) for use at a special meeting (the ‘‘Meeting’’) of the holders of common shares of
the Corporation (the ‘‘Common Shares’’) to be held at the Design Exchange, 234 Bay Street, Toronto,
Ontario at 11:00 a.m. (Toronto time) on Monday, January 7, 2002, and at any adjournment thereof, for the
purposes set forth in the accompanying Notice of Special Meeting of Shareholders (the ‘‘Notice of
Meeting’’).

In addition to the solicitation of proxies by mail, proxies may also be solicited personally, by
telephone or otherwise, by directors, officers, employees or agents of the Corporation. The cost of any such
solicitation will be borne by the Corporation. The Corporation has engaged the services of Scotia Capital
Inc. as lead manager and TD Securities Inc. as co-manager (collectively, the ‘‘Dealer Managers’’), to form
and manage a group of securities dealers (the ‘‘Soliciting Dealer Group’’) to assist the Corporation in
soliciting proxies. If the resolution set out in Schedule ‘“A’’ to this Management Proxy Circular (the
‘‘Proposed Resolution’’) is passed, the Corporation will pay to any member of the Soliciting Dealer Group
identified in a form of proxy voted in favour of the Proposed Resolution, a solicitation fee of C$0.03 per
Common Share, subject to a minimum fee of C$85 and a maximum fee of C$1,500 with respect to each
beneficial owner of Common Shares covered by such form of proxy. No solicitation fee shall be payable if a
beneficial owner votes fewer than 1,500 Common Shares with respect to Common Shares beneficially
owned by directors, officers and employees of the Corporation or its subsidiaries or affiliates. In addition,
the Corporation has agreed to pay the Dealer Managers an aggregate fee of up to C$175,000 for services
rendered.

APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES

The persons named in the enclosed form of proxy are representatives of management of the
Corporation and are directors or officers of the Corporation. A shareholder has the right to appoint a
person (who need not be a shareholder) other than the persons named in the enclosed form of proxy
to represent the shareholder at the Meeting or any adjournment thereof. To exercise this right, a
shareholder may either insert the name of such other person in the blank space provided for that
purpose in the enclosed form of proxy or complete another proper form of proxy.

To be valid at the Meeting, a proxy must be signed by the shareholder or the shareholder’s attorney
authorized in writing or, if the shareholder is a corporation, by a duly authorized officer or attorney, and
must be deposited with the Corporation, c/o CIBC Mellon Trust Company, 200 Queens Quay East, Unit 6,
Toronto, Ontario, M5A 4K9, Attention: Proxy Department, prior to 5:00 p.m. (Toronto time) on the last
business day preceding the date of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof or with the Chairman of the
Meeting at any time prior to the commencement of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.




VOTING OF PROXIES AND DISCRETION

The Common Shares represented by any proxy submitted for the Meeting will be voted on any
ballot which may be called for in accordance with the instructions of the shareholder indicated thereon. In
the absence of such instructions, it is the intention of the representatives of management of the
Corporation named in the enclosed form of proxy to vote such Common Shares FOR the Proposed
Resolution.

The enclosed form of proxy confers discretionary authority upon the representatives of management
of the Corporation named therein with respect to amendments or variations to matters identified in the
Notice of Meeting or any other matters that may properly come before the Meeting or any adjournment
thereof. As of the date of this Management Proxy Circular, the management of the Corporation is not aware
of any such amendments, variations or other matters.

REVOCATION OF PROXIES

Proxies given by registered shareholders for use at the Meeting may be revoked at any time prior to
their use. In addition to revocation in any other manner permitted by law, a proxy may be revoked by
depositing an instrument in writing (including another form of proxy) executed by the shareholder or by the
shareholder’s attorney authorized in writing, or by transmitting, by telephonic or electronic means, a
revocation signed by electronic signature, which in either case is received (i) at the registered office of the
Corporation, 469A King Street West, Toronto, Ontario, M5V 3M4, at any time up to and including the last
business day preceding the day of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof, at which the proxy is to be used,
or (ii) by the Chairman of the Meeting on the day of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

VOTING SHARES

On November 19, 2001, the Corporation had outstanding 75,401,612 Common Shares. Each
Common Share carries one vote. Except as set out under ‘‘Recommendation of the Board of Directors and
Majority Approval’’ below, each holder of Common Shares of record at the close of business on
November 26, 2001, the record date established for notice of the Meeting, will be entitled to vote on each
matter arising at the Meeting except to the extent that such holder has transferred any shares after the record
date and the transferee of such shares establishes ownership thereof and demands, no later than
December 28, 2001 (10 days before the date of the Meeting), to be included in the list of shareholders
entitled to vote at the Meeting.

PRINCIPAL HOLDERS OF VOTING SHARES

To the knowledge of the directors and officers of the Corporation, no person beneficially owns,
directly or indirectly, or exercises control or direction over more than 10% of the votes attached to the
outstanding Common Shares. ‘

EXCHANGE RATES

Certain financial information contained in this Management Proxy Circular is expressed in US
dollars (“‘US$”’). Based on the noon spot rate quoted by the Bank of Canada, the rate of exchange for
Canadian dollars (*‘C$’") per US dollar in effect on November 5, 2001, the day before the Amendments (as
defined below) were entered into, was 1.5956, and the average rate of exchange for Canadian dollars per US
dollar for the first ten months of 2001 was 1.5418.




THE PROPOSED RESOLUTION

Shareholders are being requested at the Meeting to consider and, if thought advisable, pass, with or
without variation, the Proposed Resolution approving the issuance by the Corporation of up to an additional
17,364,728 Common Shares to certain former direct and indirect equity holders of Paradigm Direct LLC
(*‘Paradigm’’) pursuant to the Merger Agreement (as defined below), as amended in the manner described
below, entered into in connection with Mosaic’s acquisition of Paradigm, and a related amendment to the
Corporation’s shareholder rights plan agreement.

Management of the Corporation believes, for the reasons set out under ‘‘The Amendments”’
below, that the Amendments (as defined below) and the approval of the Proposed Resolution at the
Meeting are in the best interests of the Corporation and its shareholders.

The Merger Agreement

On December 14, 2000, Mosaic acquired Paradigm, a Delaware limited liability company. This
acquisition (the ‘‘Paradigm Acquisition’’) was made pursuant to an Amended and Restated Merger
Agreement dated as of December 14, 2000 between the Corporation, Paradigm, Paradigm Holding
Company (‘‘PHC”’), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Corporation, certain other direct and
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Corporation, and the direct and indirect equity holders of
Paradigm (the ‘‘Paradigm Vendors’’), as subsequently amended by Amendment No. 1 dated as of
January 235, 2001 (as so amended, the ‘‘Merger Agreement’’). As a result of the Paradigm Acquisition,
Paradigm became a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of the Corporation.

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, PHC caused Mosaic to pay aggregate initial consideration of
US$102,000,000 to the Paradigm Vendors, consisting of US$85,000,000 in cash and 2,344,728 Common
Shares (the ‘‘Initial Merger Consideration’’). In addition, PHC agreed to make future earnout payments to
all but one of the Paradigm Vendors (the ‘‘Earnout Vendors’’) based upon Paradigm’s adjusted earnings
(“‘EBITDA") for its 2000 and 2001 fiscal years. No such earnout payment was required in respect of
Paradigm’s 2000 fiscal year. The final earnout payment was to be due on or after April 1, 2002 in an amount
to be determined based upon Paradigm’s EBITDA for its 2001 fiscal year using certain formulas specified
in the Merger Agreement (the ‘‘Final Merger Consideration’’ and, together with the Initial Merger
Consideration, the ‘‘Merger Consideration’”). The Final Merger Consideration was to be payable in cash or
Common Shares or a combination of cash and Common Shares, at the option of PHC. If PHC opted to pay
all or any portion of the Final Merger Consideration in Common Shares, the number of Common Shares
issuable by the Corporation was to be determined based on the weighted average trading price of the
Common Shares on The Toronto Stock Exchange (the *“TSE’’) for the ten trading days preceding April 1,
2002.

A portion of the Common Shares issued to certain of the Paradigm Vendors as consideration were to
be held in escrow and released to such Paradigm Vendors in several tranches, with the final tranche being
released on January 1, 2004. In addition, each of the Earnout Vendors entered into lockup agreements
pursuant to which they agreed not to sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of the Common Shares issued to
them as Initial Merger Consideration for specified periods of time. The Earnout Vendors also agreed to
enter into lockup agreements pursuant to which they would agree not to sell, transfer or otherwise dispose
of a portion of any Common Shares subsequently issued to them as Merger Consideration for agreed
periods of time.

As agreed in the Merger Agreement, PHC adopted a supplementary management incentive plan (the
*‘SMIP*"), pursuant to which options to purchase shares of common stock of PHC have been granted to
certain PHC employees. Such options will become exercisable commencing April 1, 2004 and may
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require the issuance of Common Shares (which may require TSE approval or shareholder approval at the
time of issuance) or the payment of cash at such time.

At the time of the Paradigm Acquisition, the TSE conditionally approved the issuance of a total of
18,000,000 Common Shares pursuant to the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, including
the issuance of Common Shares under the SMIP.

Subsequent Developments

Since the completion of the Paradigm Acquisition, Paradigm’s financial performance has exceeded
the Corporation’s expectations and management of the Corporation believes that this trend will continue for
the remainder of 2001. In the nine month period ended September 30, 2001, Paradigm’s revenues and
EBITDA were 59% and 95% greater, respectively, than the corresponding amounts for the nine month
period ended September 30, 2000. This growth exceeded original forecasts by a substantial margin as a
result of several business opportunities developed by Paradigm in 2001. Based upon the assumptions and
estimates of management of the Corporation in respect of Paradigm’s EBITDA for the 2001 fiscal year, the
Corporation currently estimates that, in the absence of the amendments to the Merger Agreement described
below, the Final Merger Consideration would be between US$100 million and US$125 million.

Due to the size of this potential payment and a significant decline in the price of the Common
Shares, management of the Corporation believes that payment of the Final Merger Consideration under the
Merger Agreement would likely result in significant dilution of the holdings of the Corporation’s existing
shareholders, additional debt incurrence by Mosaic, or both. Management of the Corporation also believes
that the uncertainty concerning the amount of the Final Merger Consideration and the number of Common
Shares which may be required to be issued in satisfaction of this obligation has negatively affected the
trading price of the Common Shares. In addition, as a result of the decline in the price of the Common
Shares since the date of the Paradigm Acquisition, the issuance of the 15,655,272 remaining unissued
Common Shares which were conditionally approved by the TSE in connection with the Paradigm
Acquisition would only satisfy approximately US$27 million of the anticipated Final Merger Consideration
of US$100 million to US$125 million, based upon the closing price of the Common Shares on the TSE on
November 5, 2001.

The Amendments

On November 6, 2001, the parties to the Merger Agreement entered into a second amending
agreement to the Merger Agreement (the ‘‘Amending Agreement’’). The Amending Agreement, among
other things, replaces the uncertain Final Merger Consideration with a pre-determined range of cash and
Common Share payment obligations. Subject to the satisfaction or waiver of the conditions set out in the
Amending Agreement, including the approval of the Proposed Resolution by the Corporation’s shareholders
in the manner required by the TSE, and as more fully discussed below under ‘‘The Amended
Consideration’’, PHC is required to cause Mosaic to issue between 20,540,000 and 33,020,000 Common
Shares (the ‘‘Consideration Shares’’) and pay a cash amount between US$26,500,000 and US$52,500,000
in full satisfaction of the Final Merger Consideration. The exact amount of cash and number of
Consideration Shares within these ranges will be determined by the extent to which PHC elects to pay,
under the terms of the Merger Agreement, as amended by the Amending Agreement (the ‘‘Amended
Merger Agreement’’), up to US$26 million of the cash amount through the issuance of Common Shares at a
ratio of 0.48 Common Shares per US dollar of consideration payable.
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Management of the Corporation believes the Amending Agreement and certain related amendments

to other Paradigm Acquisition transaction documents (collectively, the ‘‘Amendments’”) provide the
following significant benefits to the Corporation and its shareholders:

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

Based upon the closing price of the Common Shares on the TSE of C$2.80 on the day before the
Amendments were entered into and the C$/US$ exchange rate in effect on that day, the following
table summarizes the estimates by the Corporation’s management of the ranges of the financial
impact of the Amendments upon Mosaic and its shareholders:

Estimated Range as of
November 5, 2001°

High Low
Final Merger Consideration, prior to Amendments US$125 million US$100 million
Amended Consideration (as defined below), after US$89 million US$84 million
Amendments
Savings from adoption of Amendments and payment of US$41 million US$11 million
Amended Consideration'
Additional Common Share dilution avoided by adoption of 23.4 million 6.3 million
Amendments and payment of Amended Consideration’ Common Shares Common Shares

Notes:

! The low end of the savings range is calculated by subtracting the high end of the Amended Consideration
range from the low end of the Final Merger Consideration range, and the high end of the savings range is
calculated by subtracting the Jow end of the Amended Consideration range from the high end of the Final
Merger Consideration range.

? Equal to the number of Common Shares whose value equals the savings from the adoption of the Amendments
and payment of Amended Consideration.

3 Based upon the closing price of the Common Shares on the TSE of C$3.70 on November 19, 2001 and the
C$/USS$ exchange rate in effect on that date, the estimated ranges set out above would be the following: Final
Merger Consideration — same as above; Amended Consideration — US$100 million to US$104 million;
savings from adoption of Amendments and payment of Amended Consideration — an additional cost of
US$4 million to savings of US$25 million; and additional Common Share dilution avoided by adoption of
Amendments and payment of Amended Consideration — increased dilution of 1.7 million Common Shares to
dilution avoided of 10.7 million Common Shares.

The Amendments provide finality and increased certainty with respect to the amount and timing of
the earnout payments, and fix the maximum number of Common Shares issuable to the Earnout
Vendors in satisfaction of these payments. Accordingly, management of the Corporation believes
that the Amendments will reduce or eliminate the negative effect that any uncertainty regarding
these amounts has had on the Corporation’s share price.

While the Amendments will result in dilution of the holdings of the Corporation’s existing
shareholders, the Amendments eliminate the risk of substantially greater dilution which existed
under the Merger Agreement prior to the Amendments by fixing the maximum number of Common
Shares issuable to the Earnout Vendors pursuant to the Paradigm Acquisition.

The Amendments allow the Corporation to retain financial flexibility in terms of the level of debt
incurred to satisfy the Paradigm cash earnout payments.
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(e) The Amendments will reduce the time and effort spent by management of both the Corporation and
Paradigm on settling the Final Merger Consideration payment and will further facilitate the
integration of Paradigm into Mosaic’s overall operating structure, increasing Mosaic’s operational
and management flexibility to respond quickly and effectively to increased competition, market
demands and technological change.

(f) The Amendments provide finality and increased certainty with respect to the earnout consideration
for the Earnout Vendors, many of whom are employees of PHC, allowing these individuals to focus
their business efforts exclusively on the success of Mosaic.

The following is a summary of the material terms to the Corporation’s shareholders of the
Amendments.

The Amended Consideration

Following the satisfaction or waiver of all of the Conditions (as defined below), in lieu of paying the
Final Merger Consideration, PHC is obligated to make or cause to be made the following payments
(collectively, the ‘‘Amended Consideration’’):

(a) as soon as practicable, a payment consisting of (i) an aggregate of 20,540,000 Common Shares (the
““Initial Shares’’), and (ii) subject to obtaining the consent of the Corporation’s principal bank
lenders, up to a further US$26,500,000 in cash; and

(b)  on April 1, 2002, a final payment consisting of (i) any unpaid balance of the US$26,500,000 cash
amount referred to in (a)(ii) above, and (ii) a further US$26,000,000 to be satisfied, at PHC’s option,
in cash or by the issuance of Common Shares at a ratio of 0.48 Common Shares per US dollar of
consideration payable, or by a combination of both. The number of Common Shares to be issued in
payment of the amount in (b)(ii) (the ‘‘Final Shares’’) will not exceed 12,480,000 Common Shares.

The number of Initial Shares, the maximum number of Final Shares and the 2,344,728 Common
Shares issued to the Paradigm Vendors as part of the Initial Merger Consideration collectively comprise
35,364,728 Common Shares. 18,000,000 of these Common Shares have previously been conditionally
approved by the TSE for issuance pursuant to the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement,
including the SMIP, and are not subject to shareholder approval. The TSE has conditionally approved the
issuance of the additional 17,364,728 Common Shares which may be required for the Amended
Consideration (the ‘‘Additional Shares’’), subject to the approval of the Corporation’s shareholders
(excluding votes attached to Common Shares held, directly or indirectly, by the Paradigm Vendors or their
respective associates or affiliates) being obtained at the Meeting.

Conditions and Alternative Consideration

PHC’s entitlement to pay the Amended Consideration is conditional upon (i) the approval of the
Proposed Resolution by the Corporation’s shareholders in the manner required by the TSE, (ii) the
conditional approval of the TSE of the issuance of the maximum number of Consideration Shares, and
(ii1) other customary conditions, including the receipt of all other required approvals and consents and the
delivery of required legal opinions (collectively, the ‘‘Conditions’’).

If all of the Conditions have not been satisfied or waived on or prior to January 15, 2002, then the
aggregate earnout consideration payable to the Earnout Vendors will be increased and fixed at
US$125,000,000, payable as follows (collectively, the ‘‘Alternative Consideration’’):

(a) as soon as practicable, (i) PHC will cause the Corporation to issue all of the remaining unissued
Common Shares which have been approved by the TSE for issuance in connection with the
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transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, valued at US$2.50 (approximately C$4.00) per
Common Share (the ‘‘Alternative Initial Shares’’), and (ii) subject to obtaining the consent of the
Corporation’s principal bank lenders, PHC will pay or cause to be paid up to a further
US$20,000,000 in cash; and

(by  on April 1, 2002, the balance will be due and payable in cash or Common Shares or a combination
of cash and Common Shares, at the option of PHC. If PHC elects to pay all or any portion of this
balance in Common Shares, the number of Common Shares issuable by the Corporation will be
determined based on the lesser of the weighted average trading price of the Common Shares on the
TSE for the ten trading days preceding April 1, 2002 and US$2.50 (approximately C$4.00) per
Common Share. '

All the Conditions, other than the approval of the Proposed Resolution which is to be considered at
the Meeting, have been or are expected to be satisfied or waived prior to the Meeting. Accordingly,
management of the Corporation expects that if the Proposed Resolution is approved, the Amended
Consideration will become payable and Mosaic can avoid triggering the greater obligations under the
Alternative Consideration.

If the Proposed Resolution is not approved at the Meeting, it is highly likely that payment of the
Alternative Consideration will require shareholder approval in any event if additional Common Shares are
proposed to be issued in satisfaction of all or part of such payment. It is also highly likely that, for a
significant portion of the Alternative Consideration to be paid in cash, Mosaic will be required to incur
additional debt (which will require it to obtain either an amendment or a waiver of certain terms of its credit
facility with its principal bank lenders) or dispose of assets to generate sufficient cash to fund such payment.
Such circumstances would reduce the certainty afforded by the Amended Consideration, may expose the
existing holders of Common Shares to potentially greater dilution and result in the disposition of substantial
assets of the Corporation.

Other Provisions

As provided for in the Amendments, Mr. Marc Byron, previously the Chief Operating Officer,
Performance Marketing of the Corporation, was appointed Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
designate and a director of the Corporation effective November 6, 2001. Mr. Byron will assume his role as
Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation effective January 1, 2002, subject to the negotiation of a
mutually satisfactory employment agreement. Mr. Michael Preston, Mosaic’s current Chief Executive
Officer, will remain as Chairman of the Corporation after such date. In addition, as soon as practicable
following the first payment of the Amended Consideration or the Alternative Consideration, as the case may
be, the number of directors of the Corporation will be increased from seven to eight and the board of
directors will appoint Mr. Gregory F. Kiernan, a second nominee of the Paradigm Vendors, to fill the
vacancy created effective as of a date on or before April 1, 2002, at Mr. Kiernan’s discretion.

The Amendments also provide for changes to the escrow provisions contained in the Merger
Agreement and add certain resale arrangements relating to the earnout consideration which were not
contemplated by the Merger Agreement. 75% of the Initial Shares or the Alternative Initial Shares, as the
case may be (the ‘‘Escrowed Shares’’), issued to Marc Byron, David Byron (including Common Shares
issued to the David E. Byron Irrevocable Trust I), Robert Franco and David Graf (collectively, the
‘“Management Vendors’’), all of whom are senior members of Paradigm management, and 75% of any cash
amount paid in lieu thereof to comply with US securities laws (the ‘‘Escrowed Cash’’), will be placed in
escrow by such Management Vendors. One-third of the Escrowed Shares and Escrowed Cash will be
released on December 31, 2002, and the balance will be released on December 31, 2003, subject to earlier
release provisions in the event of a change of control of the Corporation or in certain other circumstances.
Pursuant to lockup agreements entered into between the Corporation and each of the
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Management Vendors, the Management Vendors shall not sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of the
Escrowed Shares while they remain in escrow except under certain circumstances, including a prospectus
offering in Canada by the Corporation of Common Shares in connection with which the Management
Vendors and certain other Earnout Vendors may be permitted (subject to compliance with volume
limitations and minimum share requirements) to offer for sale their Common Shares acquired in connection
with the Paradigm Acquisition (the ‘*Vendor Sale Rights’’). Non-employee Earnout Vendors will not enter
into escrow agreements, but will enter into lockup agreements which will provide that 75% of the Common
Shares issued to them as Amended Consideration or Alternative Consideration will not be sold for a period
of 90 days following their date of issuance. Non-management employees who are Earnout Vendors will not
be required to enter into lockup agreements nor will any of their earnout consideration be subject to escrow.
The escrow and lockup arrangements applicable to the Initial Merger Consideration are not altered by the
Amendments, other than by the addition of the Vendor Sale Rights, and remain in effect.

If the Alternative Consideration is not paid in full when due (a ‘‘Default’’) and any Alternative
Consideration remains unpaid as of December 31, 2002 (a ‘‘Continuing Default’’), then any and all
consideration, including Initial Merger Consideration, held in escrow for the Management Vendors will be
immediately released from escrow and will cease to be subject to lockup agreements. The escrow and
lockup arrangements in respect of consideration held for the other Earnout Vendors will remain in effect.
Upon a Continuing Default, the non-competition provisions contained in employment agreements between
PHC and each of Marc Byron and David Graf, the Chief Executive Officer and President of PHC,
respectively, will terminate. These provisions currently prohibit these individuals from engaging in
competition with PHC for a period of one to two years following their resignation or other termination of
employment with PHC, depending on the circumstances. In addition, upon a Continuing Default, provisions
in the Merger Agreement, as amended, applicable to the Paradigm Vendors other than Marc Byron and
David Graf, prohibiting any of such Paradigm Vendors from soliciting business from customers or suppliers
of Paradigm until December 2003 will terminate.

The Amendments will not alter Mosaic’s obligations pursuant to the SMIP except to establish a
minimum price per Common Share of C$1.00 for determining the number of Common Shares that may be
issued in satisfaction of Mosaic’s obligations thereunder.

The Amendments provide that the Corporation will use commercially reasonable efforts to dispose
of assets reasonably sufficient to generate proceeds of at least US$20,000,000 in cash prior to April 1, 2002.

Amendment to the Rights Plan

Subsequent to the Paradigm Acquisition, the Corporation entered into a shareholder rights plan
agreement (the ‘‘Rights Plan’’) with CIBC Mellon Trust Company, as rights agent, effective March 13,
2001. The adoption of the Rights Plan was approved by the Corporation’s shareholders at the Corporation’s
annual general meeting held on June 7, 2001. Under the Rights Plan, if a transaction occurs by which a
person becomes an ‘‘Acquiring Person’’, the holders of the rights issued under the Rights Plan, other than
the Acquiring Person and certain joint actors, have the right to acquire Common Shares at a discount to
market value. This right subjects the Acquiring Person to potentially significant dilution if holders of
Common Shares exercise the right and purchase additional Common Shares in this manner. An Acquiring
Person is any person who, together with, among others, any other person acting jointly or in concert,
acquires Beneficial Ownership (as defined in the Rights Plan) of 20% or more of the Common Shares, other
than in circumstances permitted by the Rights Plan. Subject to certain exceptions, a person is generally
considered to be acting jointly and in concert with another person who, as a result of any
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agreement, commitment or understanding with the first person, whether formal or informal, acquires or
offers to acquire Common Shares.

The Corporation believes that because the Merger Agreement predated the Rights Plan and none of
the Paradigm Vendors will hold more than 10% of the Common Shares, the issuance of Common Shares as
contemplated by the Amending Agreement should not result in any person becoming an Acquiring Person.
Some uncertainty, however, exists under the terms of the Rights Plan as to whether the Paradigm Vendors
might be considered to be acting jointly or in concert. The Amending Agreement provides that a condition
of PHC’s obligation to pay the Amended Consideration is the amendment of the Rights Plan to remove this
uncertainty. Accordingly, the Corporation is proposing an amendment to the Rights Plan which is intended
to avoid circumstances in which the acquisition of Common Shares pursuant to the transactions
contemplated by the Amended Merger Agreement may inadvertently engage the provisions of the Rights
Plan.

In addition to approving the issuance of the Additional Shares, the Proposed Resolution consents to
an amendment to the definition of ‘‘acting jointly or in concert’’ in the Rights Plan to provide that no person
will be considered to be acting jointly or in concert with another person for the purposes of the Rights Plan
solely by acquiring or offering to acquire Common Shares as a result of the Amended Merger Agreement,
any agreement, commitment or understanding contemplated therein, or any agreement to which Mosaic is a
party entered into in connection therewith. A person may still be considered to be acting jointly or in
concert with another person for purposes of the Rights Plan if he or she acquires or offers to acquire
Common Shares as a result of other agreements, commitments or understandings. If any person (including a
Paradigm Vendor) acquires Beneficial Ownership of Common Shares, the Common Shares so acquired will
be added to Common Shares already Beneficially Owned by such person and by any person acting jointly or
in concert with such person, in determining whether such person is an Acquiring Person.

The proposed amendment to the Rights Plan described above is also subject to the written consent of
the TSE being obtained prior to the amendment being made. The Corporation expects that this consent will
have been obtained prior to the date of the Meeting.

RECOMMENDATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MAJORITY APPROVAL

The board of directors has unanimously determined that the approval of the issuance of up to
an additional 17,364,728 Common Shares to the Earnout Vendors as Consideration Shares pursuant
to the Amended Merger Agreement, and the proposed amendment to the Rights Plan, is in the best
interests of the Corporation and its shareholders. The board of directors recommends that
shareholders vote in favour of the Proposed Resolution, the full text of which is set out in
Schedule *A”’ to this Management Proxy Circular. Each of the directors (other than Marc Byron,
who, as a Paradigm Vendor, is excluded from voting on the Proposed Resolution) currently intends to
vote all Common Shares beneficially owned by him, or over which he exercises control or direction, in
favour of the Proposed Resolution.

It is a condition of the TSE’s approval of the issuance of the Additional Shares that such issuance be
approved at a meeting of shareholders of the Corporation, excluding votes attached to Common Shares held,
directly or indirectly, by the Paradigm Vendors or their respective associates and affiliates. Under the terms
of the Rights Plan, any amendment to the Rights Plan requires the prior consent of shareholders given by
the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast by Independent Shareholders (as defined in the Rights
Plan). The Corporation is of the view that, as of the date hereof, all shareholders qualify as Independent
Shareholders. Accordingly, the Proposed Resolution requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes
cast by shareholders who vote in person or by proxy on the resolution, excluding
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votes attached to Common Shares held, directly or indirectly, by the Paradigm Vendors or their respective
associates and affiliates. Unless specified in the form of proxy that the Common Shares represented by the
form of proxy shall be voted against the Proposed Resolution, the representatives of management of the
Corporation designated in the enclosed form of proxy intend to vote ‘“‘FOR’’ the resolution.

INTERESTS OF INSIDERS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

Each of Marc Byron of Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey, David Graf of New York, New York, David
Byron of Tenafly, New Jersey and Paul Bogutsky of New York, New York is an insider of the Corporation
by virtue of being a senior officer of PHC. In addition, Marc Byron is the Vice Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer designate and a director of the Corporation. Each of these individuals, as well as the
David E. Byron Irrevocable Trust I, a trust of which Marc Byron is a trustee (collectively, the ‘‘Paradigm
Insiders’’), is an Earnout Vendor and, with the exception of Paul Bogutsky, each of them is also a
Management Vendor. The Paradigm Insiders are entitled pursuant to the Amended Merger Agreement to be
paid the following approximate proportions of the Amended Consideration or the Alternative Consideration,
as the case may be: Marc Byron — 25.5%; David Graf — 15.2%; David Byron — 5.5%; Paul Bogutsky —
1.0%; and the David E. Byron Irrevocable Trust | — 0.3%.

Other than the interest of the Paradigm Insiders in the Amended Merger Agreement and related
transactions as summarized in this Management Proxy Circular, since January 1, 2000, no director, senior
officer or other insider of the Corporation, or any associate or affiliate thereof, has had any material interest,
either direct or indirect, in any transaction or proposed transaction that has materially affected or will
materially affect the Corporation or its affiliates.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Selected information relating to the compensation of executive officers and directors of the
Corporation is set out in Schedule “‘B’’ attached hereto.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Upon request made to the Vice President Legal and Corporate Secretary of the Corporation at 469A
King Street West, Toronto, Ontario, M5V 3M4, the Corporation will provide to any person, and in the case
of a security holder of the Corporation without charge, one copy of:

(a) the Corporation’s most recent annual information form filed with securities commissions or similar
regulatory authorities in Canada, together with the pertinent pages of any document incorporated by
reference therein;

(b) the Corporation’s most recently filed comparative annual financial statements, together with the
report of the Corporation’s auditors thereon, and any interim financial statements filed for any period
after the end of its most recently completed financial year; and

(c) the Corporation’s management proxy circular for its most recent annual meeting of shareholders at
which directors were elected.
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EFFECTIVE DATE OF INFORMATION AND APPROVAL OF MANAGEMENT PROXY
CIRCULAR

The information herein is given as at November 19, 2001 unless otherwise stated. The contents of
this Management Proxy Circular and the mailing thereof to the shareholders of the Corporation have been
approved and authorized by the board of directors of the Corporation.

DATED at Toronto, Ontario as of November 29, 2001.

(oot

G. Michael Preston (signed)
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer




SCHEDULE ¢“‘A”

PROPOSED RESOLUTION

RESOLVED THAT:

1.

the issuance by the Corporation of up to an additional 17,364,728 common shares pursuant
to an Amended and Restated Merger Agreement dated as of December 14, 2000 between the
Corporation, Paradigm Direct LLC (‘‘Paradigm’’), certain direct and indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Corporation and the direct and indirect equity holders of Paradigm, as
amended by Amendment No. 1 dated as of January 25, 2001 and Amendment No. 2 dated as
of November 6, 2001 (as so amended, the ‘‘Amended Merger Agreement’’) is approved;

an amendment to the shareholder rights plan agreement (the ‘‘Rights Plan’’) dated as of
March 15, 2001 between the Corporation and CIBC Mellon Trust Company to provide that a
Person (as defined in the Rights Plan) is not acting jointly or in concert with another Person
for the purposes of the Rights Plan solely by acquiring or offering to acquire common shares
as a result of the Amended Merger Agreement, as the same may be amended from time to
time, any agreement, commitment or understanding contemplated therein, or any agreement
to which the Corporation or any direct or indirect subsidiary of the Corporation is a party
entered into in connection therewith, is consented to; and

any director or officer of the Corporation is hereby authorized and directed to execute and
deliver all documents and instruments and to take such other actions as such director or
officer may determine to be necessary or desirable to carry out the intent of the foregoing
resolution, such determination to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery of
any such documents and instruments and the taking of any such actions.




SCHEDULE ¢B”

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Note: All dollar amounts in this Schedule ‘B’ are expressed in Canadian dollars.

Summary of Compensation

The following table sets forth information concerning the total compensation payable to the Chief
Executive Officer of the Corporation and to the other four most highly compensated executive officers of
the Corporation and its subsidiaries (collectively, the ‘‘Named Executive Officers’’) who earned more than
$100,000 during the Corporation’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2000.

Annual Compensation Long-Term Compensation
Name and Year Salary Bonus Other Annual Awards Payouts
P .Pf‘lnc.lpazlooo Compensation Securities Restricted
osmonl in Under Shares or
a Options/SARs Restricted LTIP
Granted Share Units Payouts

G. Michael 2000 $190,584 - $24,060(2) - - -
Preston, Chairman
and Chief 1999 $250,000 $60,000 $24,060(2) 85,000 - -

t'
Executive Officer 1998 $176,000 $60,000 $10,560(3) 85.000 - -
Michael Cotiman, 2000 $411.385 - $79,258(4) - - -
Vice-Chairman, 1999 $300,000 $60.000 $78.050(5) 350,000 - -
President and
Chief Operating 1998 $215,259 $190,744(6) $67.663(7) 80,000 - -
Officer
Stephen 2000 $257,600 - $76,570(8) - - -
McQuillan, Chief j
Operating Officer, 1999 $240,000 $48,000 $72,170(5) 100,000 - -
Europe

1998 $215,259 $190,744(6) $68,723(9) 80,000 - -
Anthony LaSorda, 2000 $270,000 - $24,300(2) - - -
Vice-Chairman
and North 1999 $220,000 - $27,300(10) 100,000 - -
American 1998 $176,000 $60,000 $24,3002) 85,000 - -
Development
Officer
Ben Kaak, 2000 $239,717 - $27,300(11) - - -
Executive Vice
President and 1999 $270,000 $50,000 $27,314(11) 165,000 - -
Chief Financial 1998 $210,000 $60,000 $27.314011) 85,000 - -
Officer
Notes:

1)  The offices of the Named Executive Officers indicated in this table are their offices as at December 31, 2000. Since that date, certain of the Named
Executive Officers have changed their offices within Mosaic. Each of Mr. Michael Cottman and Mr. Stephen McQuillan has assumed a non-
executive business development role in Mosaic. Mr. Anthony LaSorda has retired from the Corporation, although he continues in a leadership role
with Mosaic InfoForce. In addition, each of Mr, LaSorda and Mr. Cottman has resigned as a director of the Corporation.

2) Includes an RRSP contribution of $13,500 and the remainder was paid as a car allowance.

3) Car allowance.

4y Includes a pension contribution of $48,704 and the remainder was paid as a car allowance.

5) Includes a pension contribution of $43,488 and the remainder was paid as a car allowance.




6)
D)
8)
9N

S0

Includes a one-time payment of $129,276 pursuant to the terms of the 1997 acquisition of FMCG Limited by the Corporation.
Includes a pension contribution of $39,652 and the remainder was paid as a car allowance.
Includes a pension contribution of $58,852 and the remainder was paid as a car allowance.
Includes a pension contribution of $39,339 and the remainder was paid as a car allowance.
10) Includes an RRSP contribution in the amount of $13,500, a car allowance of $10,800 and the remainder represents a golf club membership.
11) Includes an RRSP contribution of $13,500, a car allowance of $10,800 and the remainder represents interest benefit from a housing loan.

Option/SAR Grants During the Most Recently Completed Financial Year

There were no option grants made to the Named Executive Officers during the financial year
ended December 31, 2000.

Aggregated Option/SAR Exercises During the Most Recently Completed Financial Year and
Financial Year-End Option/SAR Values

The following table sets forth, on an aggregate basis, details of each exercise of stock options
during the financial year ended December 31, 2000 by the Named Executive Officers and the number and
value of unexercised options as at December 31, 2000.

Name Securities Acquired Aggregate Value Unexercised Options/SARs Value of Unexercised in-
on Exercise Realized at Financial Year-End the-Money Options/SARs
at Financial Year-End
Exercisable/ Exercisable/
Unexercisable Unexercisable
G. Michael Preston - - 85,000/ 85,000 $354,900/ $236,600
Michael Cottman - - 188,000/ 242,000 $333,600/ $222,400
Stephen McQuillan - - 88,000/ 92,000 $333,600/ $222,400
Anthony LaSorda - - 91,000/ 94,000 $354,339/ $236,219
Ben Kaak 50,000 3495,000 567,000/ 133,000 $3,876,000/ $254,700

Employment Contracts

The Corporation has entered into employment contracts with all officers of the Corporation. The
contracts with officers provide protection for the Corporation in the form of notice by the officer of
termination of employment and a restriction on competition or solicitation of the Corporation’s clients and
personnel following termination. All senior employees of the Corporation have signed confidentiality and
non-disclosure agreements with the Corporation. Payments required upon termination of employment by
the Corporation without cause approximate the employees’ entitlement under common law.

Compensation of Directors

Non-executive directors receive from the Corporation $1,500 for each meeting of the board of
directors and $1,000 for each meeting of a committee ($1,250 for the Chair of the Committee) of the board
of directors, plus reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses. In addition, if more than four hours of air
travel is required to attend such meetings, such directors will receive an additional $1,500.




Indebtedness of Directors and Officers

During 1998, Mr. Ben Kaak of Toronto, Ontario, the Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of the Corporation, borrowed $100,000 from the Corporation, all of which was applied
towards the purchase of a home. The loan was unsecured and bore no interest unless Mr. Kaak was
terminated, in which case the loan was to bear interest at prime. The largest amount outstanding under
that loan since January 1, 2000 was $85,715. The loan was repaid in its entirety by March 2001.

During 2000, Mr. Brian Meagher of Mississauga, Ontario, the Chief Operating Officer, North
America of the Corporation, borrowed $150,000 from the Corporation, all of which was applied towards
the purchase of 10,623 Common Shares of the Corporation. The loan is unsecured and bears no interest,
and is to be forgiven in three equal annual installments on June 7, 2001, 2002 and 2003. As at November 1,
2001, $100,000 of this amount was outstanding and had not been forgiven.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Corporation has purchased directors’ and officers’ liability insurance with a policy limit of
$20,000,000 per year. The annual premium for this policy is currently approximately $51,831, which is
paid by the Corporation. The Corporation is required to pay $75,000 towards the cost of a securities
claim, $25,000 towards the cost of an employment practices claim and $25,000 to the cost of other claims
for any successful third party claim under the policy.

Composition of the Compensation Committee

During the financial year ended December 31, 2000, Ray Verdon (Chair), Paul Alofs, and
Anthony Moore served as members of the Compensation Committee.

Report on Executive Compensation

The Corporation has adopted the Incentive Compensation Plan in accordance with the
Corporation’s current objectives, which are to encourage and reward actions, decisions and behaviour that
will contribute to the generation of shareholder value.

Salaries are established annually by the Compensation Committee for each executive position
based on an evaluation of competitive practice in other similar organizations for positions of similar
responsibility and scope. The Compensation Committee also seeks guidance from the Chairman
regarding the performance of executive officers. The Compensation Committee believes that, in general,
the compensation (including bonuses) of all senior managerial and professional employees, including the
Corporation’s Chief Executive Officer, should be related to the attainment of the Corporation’s financial
objectives, the attainment of the objectives of the business unit for which the executive has responsibility
and the employee’s contribution to each of the foregoing.

Submitted by the Compensation Committee:

Paul Alofs (Chair)
Robert Matthews
Theodore Sands
Raymond Verdon

November 19, 2001




Shareholder Return Comparison

The following graph compares the cumulative shareholder return of $100 invested on
October 27, 1995, the date of the Corporation’s initial public offering, in the Corporation’s common shares
and the TSE 300 Composite Index, respectively, assuming full reinvestment of dividends in each case:

Relative Performance
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MOSAIC GROUP INC. RERAAE
469A King Street West
Toronto, Ontario
M5V 3M4

Notice of Annual and Special Meeting of Shareholders

Notice is hereby given that the annual and special meeting of shareholders of Mosaic Group
Inc. (the “Corporation”) will be held at the Design Exchange, 234 Bay Street, Toronto, Ontario
on Thursday, June 7, 2001 at 4:30 p.m. for the following purposes:

1.

to receive and consider the financial statements of the Corporation for the year ended
December 31, 2000 together with the report of the auditors thereon;

to elect directors;
to appoint auditors and to authorize the directors to fix their remuneration;

to consider, and if thought fit, pass, with or without variation, a resolution authorizing an
increase in the maximum number of common shares reserved for issuance under the
Corporation’s 1998 Employee Share Purchase and Option Plan, as summarized in the
management proxy circular accompanying and forming part of this Notice;

to consider, and if thought fit, pass, with or without variation, a resolution authorizing an
increase in the maximum number of common shares reserved for issuance under the
Corporation’s Incentive Compensation Plan, as summarized in the management proxy
circular accompanying and forming part of this Notice;

to consider, and if thought fit, pass, with or without variation, a resolution approving,
ratifying and confirming the Corporation’s shareholder rights plan, as summarized in the
management proxy circular accompanying and forming part of this Notice; and

to transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any
adjournment thereof.

An annual report and management proxy circular accompany this Notice. Shareholders who
are unable to attend the meeting in person are requested to date and sign the enclosed form of
proxy and to return it in the envelope provided. Proxies to be used at the meeting must be
received by the Secretary of the Corporation ¢/o CIBC Mellon Trust Company, 200 Queens Quay
East, Unit 6, Toronto, Ontario, MSA 4K9, Attention: Proxy Department, prior to the close of
business (5:00 p.m.) on Wednesday, June 6, 2001.

DATED at Toronto, Ontario, as of May 3, 2001.

By Order of the Board

(ot

G. Michael Preston
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer




MOSAIC GROUP INC.
MANAGEMENT PROXY CIRCULAR

SOLICITATION OF PROXIES

This Management Proxy Circular is furnished in connection with the solicitation of
proxies by the management of Mosaic Group Inc. (the "Corporation’ or "Mosaic") for use at
the Annual and Special Meeting (the "Meeting") of the common shareholders of the
Corporation to be held at the Design Exchange, 234 Bay Street, Toronto, Ontario at 4:30 p.m. on
Thursday, June 7, 2001 for the purposes set forth in the accompanying Notice of Annual and
Special Meeting of Shareholders (the "Notice of Meeting'') or any adjournment thereof. It is
expected that the solicitation will be primarily by mail. Proxies also may be solicited personally or by
telephone or by officers and directors or employees or other representatives of the Corporation. The
cost of this solicitation will be borne by the Corporation.

APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES

The persons named in the enclosed form of proxy are directors and officers of Mosaic and will
represent management of the Corporation at the Meeting. A shareholder has the right to appoint a
person (who need not be a shareholder) other than the persons named in the form of proxy
provided herewith to represent the sharcholder at the Meeting, or any adjournment thereof, and
may do so by inserting the name of that person in the blank space provided for that purpose on
the form of proxy and deleting the names of the designated persons or by completing another
proper form of proxy and, in either case, depositing it with CIBC Mellon Trust Company,
Attention: Proxy Department at any time up to and including the close of business on
Wednesday, June 6, 2001.

VOTING OF PROXIES AND DISCRETION

The common shares represented by any proxy submitted for the Meeting will be voted or
withheld from voting on any ballot which may be called for and, if the shareholder submitting the
proxy specifies a choice with respect to any matter to be acted upon, common shares represented by
that proxy shail be voted on any ballot in accordance with the specifications so made. Itis the
intention of the persons named in the enclosed form of proxy to vote (i) for the election of
directors, (ii) for the appointment of auditors and the authorization of the directors to fix the
remuneration of the auditors, (iii) for an increase in the number of common shares reserved for
issuance under the Corporation’s 1998 Employee Share Purchase and Option Plan by 1,000,000
to 2,826,188, (iv) for an increase in the number of common shares reserved for issuance under
the Corporation’s Incentive Compensation Plan by 500,000 to 6,891,128, (v) for the approval,
ratification and confirmation of the Corporation’s shareholder rights plan, and (vi) in
accordance with management's recommendations with respect to any other matters that may
properly come before the Meeting, or any adjournment thereof, unless otherwise instructed by
the shareholder in the form of a proxy executed by the shareholder.

The enclosed form of proxy confers discretionary authority upon the persons named therein
with respect to amendments of or variations to matters identified in the Notice of Meeting or any other
matters that may properly come before the Meeting or any adjournment thereof. As of the date of this
Management Proxy Circular, the management of the Corporation is not aware of any such
amendments, variations or other matters.




REVOCATION OF PROXIES

Proxies given by shareholders for use at the Meeting may be revoked. In addition to
revocation in any other manner permitted by law, a proxy may be revoked by depositing an instrument
in writing that is executed by the shareholder or by his or her attorney authorized in writing, (or, if the
shareholder is a corporation, by an officer or attorney thereof duly authorized), or by transmitting, by
telephonic or electronic means, a revocation signed by electronic signature, and that in each case is
received either (i) at the registered office of the Corporation, 469A King Street West, Toronto, Ontario,
M5V 3M4 at any time up to and including the last business day preceding the day of the Meeting, or
any adjournment thereof, at which the proxy is to be used; or (ii) by the Chairman of the Meeting on
the day of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

VOTING SHARES

On April 20, 2001, the Corporation had outstanding 75,961,065 common shares. Each such
share carries one vote. Each holder of common shares of record at the close of business on the record
date, April 20, 2001, will be entitled to vote on each matter arising at the Meeting except to the extent
that such holder has transferred any shares after the record date and the transferee of such shares
establishes ownership thereof and demands, no later than 10 days before the date of the Meeting, to be
included in the list of shareholders entitled to vote at the Meeting.

PRINCIPAL HOLDERS OF VOTING SHARES

To the knowledge of the directors and officers of the Corporation, no person beneficially owns
or exercises control or direction over more than 10% of the votes attached to the outstanding common
shares.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The following table sets forth information concerning the total compensation payable to the
Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation and to the other four most highly compensated executive
officers of the Corporation and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Named Executive Officers”) who
earned more than $100,000 during the Corporation's fiscal year ended December 31, 2000.




Summary of Compensation

Annual Compensation Long-Term Compensation All Other
Compensation
Awards Payouts
Name and Year Salary Bonus Other Annual
Principal Compensation Securities Restricted LTIP
Position in 2000 Under Shares or Payouts
M Options/SARs Restricted
Granted Share Units

G. Michael 2000 $190,584 - $24,060 (2) - - - -
Preston,
Chairman and 1999 $250,000 $60,000 $24,060 (2) 85,000 - . -
Chief Executive
Officer

1998 $176,000 $60,000 $10,560 (3) 85,000 - - -
Michael Cottman, 2000 $411,385 - $79,258(4) - - - -
Vice-Chairman,
President and 1999 $300,000 560,000 $78,050(5) 350,000 - - .
Chief Operating
Officer

1998 $215,259 $190,744(6) $67,663(7) 80,000 - -
Stephen
McQuillan, Chief 2000 $257,600 - $76,570(8) - - - -
Operating Officer,
Europe 1999 $240,000 $48,000 $72,170(5) 100,000 - - -

1998 $215,259 $190,744(6) $68,723(9) 80,000 - - -
Anthony LaSorda,
Vice-Chairman 2000 $270,000 - $24,300(2) - - - -
and North
American 1999 $220,000 - $27,300(10) 100,000 - - -
Development
Officer 1998 $176,000 $60,000 $24,300(2) 85,000 - - -
Ben Kaak,
Executive Vice 2000 $239,717 - $27,300(11) - - - -
President and
Chief Financial 1999 $270,000 $50,000 $27,314(11) 165,000 - - -
Officer

1998 $210,000 $60,000 $27,314(11) 85,000 - - -




Notes:
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1) The offices of the Named Executive Officers indicated in this table are their offices as at
December 31, 2000. As a result of a realignment of Mosaic’s management team, which became
effective March 2001, certain of the Named Executive Officers have changed their offices within
the Corporation. Each of Mr. Michael Cottman and Mr. Stephen McQuillan assumed a non-
executive business development role in Mosaic, Mr. Anthony LaSorda has become Vice-Chairman
and Mr. Ben Kaak has become Executive Vice President.

2) Includes an RRSP contribution of $13,500 and the remainder was paid as a car allowance.

3) Carallowance.

4) Includes a pension contribution of $48,704 and the remainder was paid as a car allowance.

5) Includes a pension contribution of $43,488 and the remainder was paid as a car allowance.

6) Includes a one-time payment of $129,276 pursuant to the terms of the 1997 acquisition of FMCG

Limited by the Corporation.

7) Includes a pension contribution of $39,652 and the remainder was paid as a car allowance.

8) Includes a pension contribution of $58,852 and the remainder was paid as a car allowance.

9) Includes a pension contribution of $39,339 and the remainder was paid as a car allowance.

10) Includes an RRSP contribution in the amount of $13,500, a car allowance of $10,800 and the
remainder represents a golf club membership.

11) Includes an RRSP contribution of $13,500, a car allowance of $10,800 and the remainder

represents interest benefit from a housing loan.

Option/SAR Grants During the Most Recently Completed Financial Year

There were no option grants made to the Named Executive Officers during the financial year
ended December 31, 2000.

Aggregated Option/SAR Exercises During the Most Recently Completed Financial Year and
Financial Year-End Option/SAR Values

The following table sets forth, on an aggregate basis, details of each exercise of stock options
during the financial year ended December 31, 2000 by the Named Executive Officers and the number

and value of unexercised options as at December 31, 2000.

Name

Securities Acquired
on Exercise

Aggregate Value
Realized

Unexercised Options/SARs
at Financial Year-End

Exercisable/
Unexercisable

Value of Unexercised in-
the-Money Options/SARs
at Financial Year-End

Exercisable/
Unexercisable

G. Michael Preston

85,000/ 85,000

$354,900/ $236,600

Michael Cottman

188,000/ 242,000

$333,600/ $222,400

Stephen McQuillan

88,000/ 92,000

$333,600/ §222,400

Anthony LaSorda

91,000/ 94,000

$354,339/$236,219

Ben Kaak

50,000

$495,000

567,000/ 133,000

$3,876,000/ $254,700




Employment Contracts

The Corporation has entered into employment contracts with all officers of the Corporation.
The contracts with officers provide protection for the Corporation in the form of notice by the officer
of termination of employment and a restriction on competition or solicitation of the Corporation's
clients and personnel following termination. All senior employees of the Corporation have signed
confidentiality and non-disclosure agreements with the Corporation. Payments required upon
termination of employment by the Corporation without cause approximate the employees' entitlement
under common law.

Compensation of Directors

Non-executive directors receive from the Corporation $1,500 for each meeting of the Board of
Directors and $1,000 for each meeting of a committee ($1,250 for the Chair of the Committee) of the
Board of Directors, plus reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses. In addition, if more than four
hours of air travel is required to attend such meetings, such directors will receive an additional $1,500.

Directors' and Officers' Liability Insurance

The Corporation has purchased directors' and officers' liability insurance with a policy limit of
$20,000,000 per year. The annual premium for this policy is currently approximately $51,831, which
is paid by the Corporation. The Corporation is required to pay $75,000 towards the cost of a securities
claim, $25,000 towards the cost of an employment practices claim and $25,000 to the cost of other
claims for any successful third party claim under the policy.

Composition of the Compensation Committee

During the financial year ended December 31, 2000, Ray Verdon (Chair), Paul Alofs, and
Anthony Moore served as members of the Compensation Committee.

Report on Executive Compensation

The Corporation has adopted the Incentive Compensation Plan in accordance with the
Corporation's current objectives, which are to encourage and reward actions, decisions and behaviour
that will contribute to the generation of shareholder value.

Salaries are established annually by the Compensation Committee for each executive position
based on an evaluation of competitive practice in other similar organizations for positions of similar
responsibility and scope. The Compensation Committee also seeks guidance from the Chairman
regarding the performance of executive officers. The Compensation Committee believes that, in
general, the compensation (including bonuses) of all senior managerial and professional employees,
including the Corporation’s Chief Executive Officer, should be related to the attainment of the
Corporation's financial objectives, the attainment of the objectives of the business unit for which the
executive has responsibility and the employee's contribution to each of the foregoing.
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Submitted by the Compensation Comumittee:

Ray Verdon (Chair)
Paul Alofs
Anthony Moore

Shareholder Return Comparison

The following graph compares the cumulative shareholder return of $100 invested on October
27, 1995, the date of the Corporation's initial public offering, in the Corporation's common shares and
the TSE 300 Composite Index, respectively, assuming full reinvestment of dividends in each case:

Relative Performance
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ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Corporation currently consists of 7 directors. Of these, Anthony
Moore has advised the Corporation that he does not intend to stand for re-election. The present term
of office of each director of the Corporation will expire immediately prior to the election of directors at
the Meeting. The persons named in the enclosed form of proxy intend to vote for the election of
nominees whose names are set forth below. Management does not contemplate that any of the
nominees will be unable to serve as a director but, if that should occur for any reason prior to
the Meeting, the persons named in the enclosed form of proxy reserve the right to vote for
another nominee at their discretion. Each director elected will hold office until the next annual
meeting or until his successor is duly elected or appointed unless his office is earlier vacated in
accordance with the by-laws of the Corporation.

The following table sets out the names of each of the persons proposed to be nominated for
election as a director, all other major positions and offices with the Corporation or its affiliates now
held by them, if any, their principal occupations, the year in which they were first elected as directors
and the number of common shares beneficially owned or controlled by them at April 20, 2001. The
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information as to the number of common shares beneficially owned or controlled, not being within the
knowledge of the Corporation, has been furnished by the respective nominees individually.

Number of Common

Current Position Principal Occupation Shares Owned or over
Name and Municipality with Corporation (where different from Director or which Control or
of Residence or Subsidiary Current Position with Officer Since Direction is exercised
Corporation)
Paul Alofs (2) (3) * Director Corporate Director 1999 -
Toronto, Ontario 1995-1997
William J. Biggar (1) (2) ** Director Corporate Director 1995 i
Etobicoke, Ontario
Anthony F. LaSorda Director, Vice- 1996 1,894,421
Campbellville, Ontario Chairman and Chief :

Development Officer,
Mosaic North America

Robert B. Matthews****#* None President, Manitou Capital N/A
Toronto, Ontario Corporation (Investment
management firm)

) . . 1995 3,760,257
G. Michael Preston Director, Chairman and -
Toronto, Ontario Chief Executive Officer
Theodore Sands (1) (2)*** Director President, HAAS Capital, 1999 -
New York, New York LLC (Investment
management firm)
. . 1997 181,000
Raymond Verdon (1) (2) (3)**** Director Corporate Director

Qakville, Ontario

Notes:
1) Member of Audit Committee.
2) Member of Corporate Governance Committee.
3) Member of Compensation Committee.

*Mr. Paul Alofs was President and General Manager of BMG Music Canada from 1995-1997, General Manager
and Executive Vice President of the Disney Store North America from 1997-1999 and President of Strategic
Business Units of MP3.com during 1999.

**Mr. William Biggar was Executive Vice President of Cambridge Shopping Centres Ltd. from 1999-2001,
Senior Vice President Barrick Gold Corporation from 1996 to 1999, and Senior Vice-President of the Horsham
Corporation from 1993 to 1996.

**#*Mr. Theodore Sands was Managing Director of Investment Banking at Merrill Lynch from 1995-1999 and
has held his current position since 1999,

****Mr. Raymond Verdon was President of Nabisco Company (US) from 1993-1997 and Chairman of Nabisco
Ltd. Canada from 1987-1997.

»=+++ Mr. Robert B. Matthews was a Partner with McCarthy Tétrault from 1986-1998 and has held his current
position since 1999.




INTEREST OF INSIDERS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

During the Corporation’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2000, no director or senior officer of
the Corporation, or any associate or affiliate thereof, had any material interest, either direct or indirect,
in any transaction or proposed transaction that materially affected or will materially affect the
Corporation or its affiliates.

INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The only director or senior officer of the Corporation, or associate thereof, who was indebted
to the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries at any time since the beginning of 2000 was Mr. Ben Kaak
of Toronto, Ontario, who was during such year the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer of the Corporation. Mr. Kaak borrowed $100,000 from the Corporation in 1998, all of which
was applied towards the purchase of a home. At December 31, 2000 $71,429 of the loan remained
outstanding, all of which was repaid in March 2001. The loan from the Corporation to Mr. Kaak was
unsecured and bore no interest unless Mr. Kaak was terminated in which case the loan was to bear
interest at prime.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

General

The Toronto Stock Exchange requires that each listed company disclose on an annual basis its
approach to corporate governance. The Corporation’s approach to corporate governance is set forth
below. The disclosure is cross-referenced to The Toronto Stock Exchange Guidelines (“TSE
Guidelines”), which are set forth in Section 474 of the Company Manual published by The Toronto
Stock Exchange.

Board of Directors Stewardship (TSE Guidelines 1 and 11)

The mandate of the Board of Directors is one of stewardship and oversight of the Corporation
and its business. The Board relies on the Corporation’s officers to manage the Corporation through a
delegation of general management responsibilities to the Corporation’s officers. The Board then
monitors management’s achievement of the Corporation’s goals and objectives as part of its
responsibility to supervise the business and affairs of the Corporation. In fulfilling its mandate, the
Board is responsible, among other things, for:

a) overseeing a management-driven strategic planning process within the Corporation
based on business plan and strategic review presented to the Board by management,
generally on an annual basis;

b) monitoring the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control and management
information systems;

c) assessing the principal risks of the Corporation’s business and ensuring appropriate
systems are in place to manage such risks (including review and approval of
acquisitions);
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d) succession planning for the Corporation including appointing, monitoring, evaluating,
and selecting senior management; and

e) overseeing a communications policy and program for the Corporation, which includes
oversight of the Corporation’s policies and practices with respect to disclosure.

The role and responsibilities of management include day-to-day operation of the Corporation’s
businesses as well as developing individual business units and overall corporate strategies, with the
Board reviewing these strategies annually. Management also updates the Board on a regular basis at
Board meetings on strategic issues. Committees such as the Audit Committee have been designated to
monitor risks and evaluate corporate control systems in key areas such as accounting, finance and
information systems, all of which are of significance to the business of the Corporation.

The Board is involved in monitoring and assessing senior management both through its
Compensation Committee and direct regular contact as a result of senior management presentations to
the Board on a variety of matters including strategic direction and the setting of corporate goals and
objectives.

The Board has generally delegated the Corporation’s communications policy to senior
management. Management’s responsibilities therefore include speaking on behalf of the Corporation
in communications with its shareholders and other stakeholders. These responsibilities are generally
handled by the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer. Generally, the Board, directly
or through its Committees, reviews and, where appropriate, approves public disclosure documents
required to be filed with securities regulators and other similar bodies.

The Board retains plenary power for functions not delegated to management. The Board has
not specifically defined the limits of management’s responsibilities in the sense of having a position
description for the Chief Executive Officer and the Board of Directors. The Board does, however,
through its Corporate Governance Committee annually review those matters which are considered to
require Board approval. In addition to exercising the powers which it must exercise as a matter of law,
the Board specifically approves significant matters such as material acquisitions, divestitures, and
capital expenditures as well as the Corporation’s short-term and long-term business plan.

There were 13 meetings of the Board during the year ended December 31, 2000.
Composition of the Board of Directors (TSE Guidelines 2, 3, 7 and 12)

A majority of the Directors qualify as *“unrelated directors”. An unrelated director is a director
who is independent of management and is free from any interest and any business or other relationship
which could, or could reasonably be perceived to, materially interfere with the director’s ability to act
with a view to the best interests of the Corporation, other than interests and relationships arising from
shareholding. None of the unrelated Directors have been employed by the Corporation or its
subsidiaries or have material contracts with the Corporation or its subsidiaries except as otherwise
disclosed in this Management Proxy Circular.

The Corporation, under its Articles, is permitted to have a board of between 1 and 15
directors. The Board is of the view that a board of at least 6 directors and not more than 10 directors is
appropriate for the Corporation in its current circumstances. The Board currently has 7 members.
Seven nominees are proposed for election at the Meeting. The Board, through its Corporate
Governance Committee, evaluates the size and composition of the Board on an ongoing basis.
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Committees of the Board and Related Matters (TSE Guidelines 9 and 12)

The Board relies on its Committees to assist it in discharging its responsibilities. The Board
has appointed three Committees, which are: an Audit Committee, a Corporate Governance Committee
and a Compensation Committee. Each Committee consists entirely of unrelated Directors. The Board
does not have an executive committee.

Corporate Governance Committee (TSE Guidelines 4, §, 6, 7, 8 and 10)

The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for advising the Board on corporate
governance matters and for monitoring the corporate governance systems of the Corporation, the
effectiveness of the Board (including its size, composition, and its committees), and the performance
of the Directors. The Committee discharges its responsibilities in a variety of ways including through
holding meetings of the unrelated Directors. The Committee is also responsible for identifying and
recommending potential appointees to the Board and for the orientation and education of new
Directors. The Commiittee is charged with reviewing on an annual basis the compensation and benefits
paid to the Directors.

The Board meets periodically, without management present, under the direction of the Chair
of the Corporate Governance Committee. Such meetings permit the Board of Directors to
independently review issues related to the effectiveness of the Board as a whole as well as Committees
of the Board.

The Committee reports to the Board at each meeting of the Board following Committee
meetings. The Committee met five times during the year ended December 31, 2000. Pursuant to
Board policy, the Committee is composed entirely of unrelated Directors. The members of the
Committee as at December 31, 2000 included all the unrelated Directors who were T. Sands (chair), P.
Alofs, W.J. Biggar, A.R. Moore and R. Verdon.

Audit Committee (TSE Guideline 13)

The Audit Committee plays an important role in monitoring the control environment and the
integrity of the management information systems, including management reporting on internal
controls, with the objective of ensuring that those systems are producing accurate information. The
Committee reviews the annual and interim financial statements of the Corporation and certain other
public disclosure documents required by regulatory authorities and makes recommendations to the
Board with respect to such statements and documents. The Committee also makes recommendations
to the Board regarding the appointment of independent auditors, reviews the nature and scope of the
annual audit as proposed by the auditors and management, and reviews with management the risks
inherent in the Corporation’s business and risk management programs relating thereto.

The Committee reports to the Board at each meeting of the Board following Committee
meetings. The Committee met 4 times during the year ended December 31, 2000. Pursuant to Board
policy, the Committee is composed entirely of unrelated Directors. The members of the Committee as
at December 31, 2000 were W.J. Biggar (chair), T. Sands and R. Verdon.

Compensation Committee (TSE Guideline 11)

The Compensation Committee is responsible for reviewing the levels and form of total
compensation paid to the Corporation's senior employees and for overseeing the Corporation's
Employee Share Purchase and Option Plan and the Incentive Compensation Plan. The Committee
annually assesses the performance of the Chief Executive Officer and senior officers of the
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Corporation and determines each of such person's compensation and benefits. It reviews succession
planning for the Corporation's senior management as part of its general mandate to review the
Corporation's organizational structure to determine if such structure is appropriate to carry out the
business of the Corporation.

The Committee reports to the Board at each meeting of the Board following meetings of the
Committee. The Committee met 3 times during the year ended December 31, 2000. Pursuant to
Board policy, the Committee is composed entirely of unrelated Directors. The members of the
Committee as at December 31, 2000 were R. Verdon (chair), P. Alofs and A.R. Moore.

Communications and Related Matters

The Corporation receives and responds to Shareholder enquiries through management.
Important management communications with Shareholders include a review of material matters in
each quarterly financial report prepared by the Corporation and a report to Shareholders in each year's
Annual Report. Generally, the Board is not directly involved in communications, but does oversee the
Corporation's communication policy and program.

Other Matters (TSE Guideline 14)

In certain circumstances, it could become appropriate for an individual Director to engage an
outside advisor or advisors at the expense of the Corporation. The engagement of outside advisors is
subject to the approval of the Corporate Governance Committee.

APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

" At the Meeting; management proposes to nominate Ernst & Young Lip, Chartered
Accountants for appointment as the auditors of the Corporation to hold office until the next annual
meeting of shareholders. Emst & Young LLp have been the Corporation’s auditors since December 7,
1699.

1998 EMPLOYEE SHARE PURCHASE AND OPTION PLAN

On November 2, 1997, the directors of the Corporation approved the 1998 Employee Share
Purchase and Option Plan (the “Employee Plan™). The Employee Plan entitles directors and
employees of the Corporation who, in the case of employees, have been permanently employed by the
Corporation or its affiliates for at least three months (in each case, an “Eligible Employee”) to purchase
common shares of the Corporation during each calendar year that the plan remains in effect. The
number of common shares that each Eligible Employee is entitled to purchase from the Corporation
cannot exceed 1,500 shares per year or 20,000 shares in the aggregate (in each case as adjusted,
subject to regulatory approval, for stock dividends, stock splits or similar corporate changes). Shares
are purchased from the Corporation’s treasury at the beginning of each month. The purchase price of
shares issued pursuant to the Employee Plan is an amount in Canadian dollars equal to the weighted
average trading price for the Corporation’s common shares on the TSE during the last five trading days
in the month immediately preceding the date of purchase.

For every share purchased by an Eligible Employee under the Employee Plan, the Corporation
will grant an option to such Eligible Employee to acquire an additional common share of the
Corporation at an exercise price in Canadian dollars, which is equal to the purchase price of the
common shares purchased by the Eligible Employee. New options granted under the Employee Plan
expire on the fifth June 30 following the date of grant and vest as to one-fifth of the total number of
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options granted on each of the date of grant and on June 30 of each year for four years following the
date of grant.

Currently, and subject to regulatory approval, the maximum number of common shares
permitted for issuance under the Employee Plan is 1,826,188, being 988,950 common shares for the
share purchase portion of the plan and 837,238 common shares for the option portion of the plan (in
each case as adjusted, subject to regulatory approval, for stock dividends, stock splits or similar
corporate changes). The Corporation now wishes, subject to regulatory and shareholder approval, to
increase the number of common shares reserved for issuance under the Employee Plan by 1,000,000 to
2,826,188. Assuming approval of this increase, a maximum of 1,488,950 common shares would be
reserved for issuance pursuant to the share purchase portion and 1,337,238 common shares would be
reserved pursuant to the option portion of the plan (subject to the same adjustment factors as set forth
above) (in 2000 the Corporation issued 388,526 shares and options in respect of the Employee Plan).
This increase, together with the proposed increase in the number of common shares reserved for
issuance under the Incentive Compensation Plan, could result in the issuance in a given one-year
period under the Corporation’s various share compensation arrangements of a number of common
shares of the Corporation exceeding 10% of all issued and outstanding shares and, pursuant to the
requirements of the TSE, requires the approval of shareholders.

The text of the proposed resolution approving the Employee Plan and authorizing an increase
in the maximum number of common shares reserved for issuance thereunder is set out in Schedule A
to this Management Proxy Circular. Pursuant to the requirements of the TSE, the resolution must be
passed by a majority of the votes cast thereon, other than votes attaching to common shares owned by
directors and senior officers of the Corporation and their associates, to be effective. The number of
common shares owned by directors and senior officers of the Corporation and their associates is
5,942,673 shares.

INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN

The shareholders of the Corporation approved the Incentive Compensation Plan (the “ICP”) at
the Annual and Special Meeting of Shareholders held on May 28, 1998. The ICP provides for options
to purchase common shares to be granted to directors, officers and key employees of Mosaic.
Currently, and subject to regulatory approval, a maximum of 6,391,128 common shares can be issued
under the ICP upon the exercise of options. Any options granted under the ICP are exercisable over no
more than a ten-year period with vesting provisions to be determined by the Board of Directors at the
time of grant.

The Corporation now wishes, subject to regulatory and shareholder approval, to amend the
ICP to increase the number of common shares reserved for issuance under the ICP by 500,000 to
6,891,128 shares. Additional ICP option grants will assist the Corporation in attracting new members
to its senior executive team.

The text of the proposed resolution authorizing an increase in the maximum number of
common shares reserved for issuance under the ICP is set out in Schedule B of this Management Proxy
Circular. Pursuant to the requirements of the TSE, the resolution must be passed by a majority of the
votes cast thereon, other than votes attaching to common shares owned by directors and senior officers
of the Corporation and their associates, to be effective. The number of common shares owned by
directors and senior officers of the Corporation and their associates is 5,942,673 shares.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS PLAN

Shareholders will be asked at the Meeting to consider and, if deemed advisable, to approve a
resolution, the text of which is set forth in Schedule C to this Management Proxy Circular (the “Rights
Plan Resolution™), to approve, ratify and confirm the adoption of a shareholder rights plan agreement
dated as of February 21, 2001 between the Corporation and CIBC Mellon Trust Company (the “Rights
Plan”). A summary of the material terms of the Rights Plan is set out below.

The Board of Directors has determined that the Rights Plan is in the best interests of the
Corporation and recommends that shareholders vete in favour of the Rights Plan. The Rights
Plan Resolution is required to be approved by a majority of the votes cast thereon.

The Rights Plan was unanimously adopted by the Board of Directors and became effective on
February 21, 2001 and will continue in effect if shareholders approve the Rights Plan Resolution.

Canadian Take-over Bid Legislation

In considering whether to adopt the Rights Plan, the Board considered the current legislative
framework in Canada governing take-over bids. Under provincial securities legislation, a take-over bid
generally means an offer to acquire voting or equity shares of a corporation that, together with shares
already owned by the bidder and certain parties related thereto, amount to 20% or more of the
Corporation’s outstanding shares. The existing legislative framework for take-over bids in Canada
presents the following concerns for shareholders:

Time

Current legislation in most Canadian provinces permits a take-over bid to expire 35 days after
it is commenced. The Board of Directors is of the view that this is not sufficient time to permit
shareholders to consider a take-over bid and to make a reasoned and unhurried decision.

Pressure to Tender

A shareholder may feel compelled to tender to a take-over bid which the shareholder considers
to be inadequate, out of concern that in failing to do so, the shareholder may be left with illiquid or
minority discounted shares. This is particularly so in the case of a partial take-over bid (a bid for less
than all shares), where the bidder wishes to obtain a control position but does not wish to acquire all of
the shares. The Rights Plan provides a shareholder with an approval mechanism which is intended to
ensure that a shareholder can separate the decision to tender from the approval or disapproval of a
particular take-over bid.

Unequal Treatment

The Board of Directors is also concerned that a person seeking control of the Corporation
might attempt, among other things, a gradual accumulation of shares in the open market, the
accumulation of a large block of shares in a highly compressed period of time from institutional
shareholders and professional speculators or arbitrageurs, a partial offer that unfairly pressures
shareholders or an offer for any or all of the common shares at what the Board of Directors considers
to be less than full and fair value. The Rights Plan effectively prohibits the acquisition of more than
20% of the common shares in such a manner. The Rights Plan is designed to encourage any bidder to
provide shareholders with equal treatment in a take-over bid and full value for their investment.
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Purpose

The Rights Plan is designed to give shareholders of the Corporation adequate time to assess
the merits of a bid without undue pressure, to allow competing bids to emerge and to give the Board of
Directors time to consider other alternatives. The adoption of the Rights Plan does not affect the duty
of the Board of Directors to act honestly and in good faith with a view to the best interests of the
Corporation and its shareholders. :

The issuance of the Rights (as defined below) will not in any way alter the financial condition
of the Corporation. The issuance is not of itself dilutive and will not change the way in which
shareholders would otherwise trade common shares. By permitting holders of Rights other than an
Acquiring Person (as defined below) to acquire shares of the Corporation at a discount to market
value, the Rights may cause substantial dilution to a person or group that acquires 20% or more of the
voting securities of the Corporation other than by way of a Permitted Bid (as defined below) or other
than in circumstances where the Rights are redeemed or the Board of Directors waives the application
of the Rights Plan.

A potential bidder can avoid the dilutive features of the Rights Plan by making a bid that
conforms to the requirements of a Permitted Bid. The Permitted Bid requirements enable each
shareholder to make two separate decisions. First, a shareholder will decide whether the bid or any
competing bid is adequate on its own merits. In making this decision the shareholder need not be
influenced by the likelihood that the bid will succeed. If there is sufficient support such that at least
50% of the independently held common shares have been tendered, a shareholder who has not already
tendered to that bid or to a competing bid will have a further ten business days to decide whether to
withdraw his or her common shares from a competing bid, if any, and whether to tender to the bid.

A large number of publicly-held corporations in Canada and the United States have adopted
shareholder rights plans.

Summary

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Rights Plan.
Effective Date

The effective date of the Rights Plan is February 21, 2001 (the "Effective Date").
Term

The term of the Rights Plan is ten years, subject to ratification by the shareholders at every
third annual meeting of the shareholders of the Corporation thereafter.

Issue of Rights

On the Effective Date, one right (a "Right") has been issued and attached to each outstanding
common share. One Right will also attach to any subsequently issued common shares. If a Flip-in-
Event (as defined below) occurs, each Right will entitle the registered holder thereof to receive, upon
payment of the appropriate exercise price, common shares, subject to certain anti-dilution provisions.
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Rights Exercise Privilege

The Rights will separate from the shares to which they are attached and will become
exercisable at the time (the "Separation Time") that is eight trading days after the earlier of (i) the
announcement that a person has become an Acquiring Person (as defined below), or (ii) the
commencement, announcement or other date determined by the Board of Directors in respect of a take-
over bid to acquire 20% or more of the common shares, in each case other than by an acquisition
pursuant to a take-over bid permitted by the Rights Plan (a "Permitted Bid").

The acquisition of Beneficial Ownership (as defined in the Rights Plan) by any person (an
"Acquiring Person"), including others acting in concert, of 20% or more of the common shares, other
than by way of a Permitted Bid, is referred to as a "Flip-in Event". Under the Rights Plan, there are
certain exceptions to that rule, including (i) the Corporation or a subsidiary of the Corporation, (ii) a
person (a "Grandfathered Person") who is the Beneficial Owner of 20% or more of the common shares
on the Effective Date, (iii) a person who acquires 20% or more of the outstanding common shares
through, among other things, a share redemption or a Permitted Bid, or (iv) an underwriter or selling
group shareholder during the course of a public distribution. A Grandfathered Person will become an
Acquiring Person in the event that such person subsequently acquires additional common shares as a
result of which its Beneficial Ownership of common shares increases by more than 1% of the number
of common shares outstanding on the Effective Date, other than in accordance with the Rights Plan.

Any Rights held by an Acquiring Person on or after the earlier of (i) the Separation Time, or
(ii) the first date of public announcement by the Corporation or an Acquiring Person that an Acquiring
Person has become such, will become void upon the occurrence of a Flip-in Event.

Eight trading days after the occurrence of the Flip-in Event, the Rights (other than those held
by the Acquiring Person) will permit the holder to purchase, for the exercise price of the Rights,
common shares having a value (based on the then prevailing market price) equal to twice such exercise
price (i.e., at a 50% discount). The exercise price of the Rights will be equal to three times the
prevailing market price at the Separation Time.

The issue of the Rights is not initially dilutive. Upon a Flip-in Event occurring and the Rights
separating from the attached shares, reported earnings per common share on a fully diluted or non-
diluted basis may be affected. Holders of Rights who do not exercise their Rights upon the occurrence
of a Flip-in Event may suffer substantial dilution.

Certificates and Transfer

Prior to the Separation Time, the Rights will be evidenced by a legend imprinted on
certificates for common shares issued from and after the Effective Date. Rights are also attached to
such common shares outstanding on the Effective Date, although share certificates issued prior to that
date will not bear such a legend. Prior to the Separation Time, Rights will not be transferable
separately from the attached common shares. From and after the Separation Time, the Rights will be
evidenced by Rights certificates which will be transferable and traded separately from the common
shares.
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Permitted Bid Requirements
The requirements of a Permitted Bid include the following:

a) the take-over bid must be made by way of a take-over bid circular to all holders of
common shares other than the bidder;

b) the take-over bid must not permit common shares tendered pursuant to the take-
over bid to be taken up prior to the expiry of not less than 60 days and only if at
such time more than 50% of the common shares held by shareholders other than
the bidder, its affiliates, associates and persons acting jointly or in concert with the
bidder (the "Independent Shareholders") have been tendered pursuant to the take-
over bid and not withdrawn; and

¢) if more than 50% of the common shares held by Independent Shareholders are
tendered to the take-over bid within the 60 day period, the bidder must make a
public announcement of that fact and the take-over bid must remain open for
deposits of common shares for not less than an additional ten business days from
the date of such public announcement.

The Rights Plan allows a competing Permitted Bid (a "Competing Permitted Bid") to be made
while a Permitted Bid is in existence. A Competing Permitted Bid must satisfy all the requirements of
a Permitted Bid except that, provided it is outstanding for a minimum period of 21 days, it may expire
on the same date as the Permitted Bid.

Waiver and Redemption

The Board of Directors may, prior to a Flip-in Event, waive the dilutive effects of the Rights
Plan in respect of a particular Flip-in Event that would result from a take-over bid made by way of a
take-over bid circular to all holders of common shares. If the Board of Directors waives the dilutive
effects of the Rights Plan in respect of such a take-over bid, the Board of Directors will be deemed to
have granted a similar waiver in respect of any competing take-over bid made by way of a take-over
bid circular to all holders of common shares.

The Board of Directors may also waive the Rights Plan in respect of a particular Flip-in Event
that has occurred through inadvertence, provided that the Acquiring Person that inadvertently triggered
such Flip-in Event reduces its beneficial holdings to less than 20% of the outstanding voting shares of
the Corporation within 14 days or such other period as may be specified by the Board of Directors. At
any time prior to the occurrence of a Flip-in Event, the Board of Directors may with the prior approval
of the holders of the common shares or the Rights redeem all, but not less than all, of the outstanding
Rights at a price of $0.001 each.

Supplements and Amendments

The Corporation is authorized to make amendments to the Rights Plan to correct any clerical
or typographical error or, subject to subsequent ratification by shareholders or Rights holders, to
maintain the validity of the Rights Plan as a result of changes in law or regulation. Other amendments
or supplements to the Rights Plan may be made with the prior approval of shareholders or Rights
holders.
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EFFECTIVE DATE OF INFORMATION AND APPROVAL OF MANAGEMENT PROXY
CIRCULAR

The information herein is given as at May 3, 2001 unless otherwise stated. All amounts set
forth herein are expressed in Canadian dollars unless otherwise stated. The contents of this
Management Proxy Circular and the mailing thereof to the shareholders have been approved and
authorized by the Board of Directors of the Corporation.

DATED at Toronto, Ontario as of May 3, 2001.

(et

G. Michael Preston
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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Schedule A

TEXT OF PROPOSED RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE 1998
EMPLOYEE SHARE PURCHASE AND OPTION PLAN

RESOLVED THAT:

1.

An amendment to the Corporation’s 1998 Employee Share Purchase and Option Plan
to increase the maximum number of common shares reserved for issuance thereunder
from 1,826,188 to 2,826,188 shares, as summarized in the Management Proxy
Circular of the Corporation dated as of May 3, 2001, is hereby approved; and

Any director or officer of the Corporation is hereby authorized and directed to execute
and deliver all documents and instruments and to take such other actions as such
director or officer may determine to be necessary or desirable to carry out the intent of
the foregoing resolution, such determination to be conclusively evidenced by the
execution and delivery of any such documents and instruments and the taking of any
such actions.
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Schedule B

TEXT OF PROPOSED RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE
INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN

RESOLVED THAT:

1.

&

An amendment to the Corporation’s Incentive Compensation Plan to increase the
maximum number of common shares reserved for issuance thereunder from 6,391,128
to 6,891,128 shares, as summarized in the Management Proxy Circular of the
Corporation dated as of May 3, 2001, is hereby approved; and

Any director or officer of the Corporation is hereby authorized and directed to execute
and deliver all documents and instruments and to take such other actions as such

'director or officer may determine to be necessary or desirable to carry out the intent of

the foregoing resolution, such determination to be conclusively evidenced by the
execution and delivery of any such documents and instruments and the taking of any
such actions.
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Schedule C

TEXT OF PROPOSED RESOLUTION APPROVING, RATIFYING AND CONFIRMING
THE SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS PLAN

RESOLVED THAT:

1. The shareholder rights plan agreement dated as of February 21, 2001 between the
Corporation and CIBC Mellon Trust Company, as summarized in the Management
Proxy Circular of the Corporation dated as of May 3, 2001, is hereby approved,
ratified and confirmed; and

2. Any director or officer of the Corporation is hereby authorized and directed to execute
and deliver all documents and instruments and to take such other actions as such
director or officer may determine to be necessary or desirable to carry out the intent of
the foregoing resolution, such determination to be conclusively evidenced by the
execution and delivery of any such documents and instruments and the taking of any
such actions.




MOSAIC GROUP INC.

FORM OF PROXY
Proxy Solicited by Management

The undersigned shareholder of Mosaic Group Inc. (the “Corporation™) hereby appoints G.

Michael Preston, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation or, failing him, Anthony F.
LaSorda, Vice Chairman of the Corporation, or, instead of and to the exclusion of all of the foregoing,

, as nominee, to attend, act and vote for the undersigned at the

annual and special meeting of shareholders of the Corporation, to be held on Thursday, June 7, 2001
and at any adjournment thereof in the following manner:

D

2)

3

4)

5)

6)

To elect directors as specified in the Management Proxy Circular of the Corporation dated as of
May 3, 2001 (the “Management Proxy Circular”).

VOTE FOR WITHOLD FROM VOTING

To appoint Ernst & Young LLP, Chartered Accountants, as auditors of the Corporation for the
ensuing year and to authorize the directors to fix their remuneration.

VOTE FOR WITHOLD FROM VOTING

To authorize an amendment to the Corporation’s 1998 Employee Share Purchase and Option Plan
to increase the maximum number of common shares reserved for issuance thereunder from
1,826,188 shares to 2,826,188 shares, as summarized in the Management Proxy Circular.

VOTE FOR VOTE AGAINST

To authorize an amendment to the Corporation’s Incentive Compensation Plan to increase the
maximum number of common shares reserved for issuance thereunder from 6,391,128 to
6,891,128 shares, as summarized in the Management Proxy Circular.

VOTE FOR VOTE AGAINST

To approve, ratify and confirm the Corporation’s shareholder rights plan, a summary of which is
set forth in the Management Proxy Circular.

VOTE FOR VOTE AGAINST

To vote in the discretion of the nominee named above on any amendment which may properly be
put before the meeting with respect to any matter identified in the notice of the meeting and on any
other matter which may properly come before the meeting.

The undersigned hereby revokes any proxies dated
prior to the date hereof.

DATED , 2001.

Signature of Shareholder

Print Name




1
2)

3)

4)

NOTES:
A proxy must be signed by the shareholder or his attorney authorized in writing.

If the proxy is not dated in the blank space above, the proxy is deemed to bear the date on which it is
mailed by the person making the solicitation.

This proxy is solicited on behalf of management of the Corporation. You may appoint any person
who need not be a shareholder, as nominee, other than those persons specifically named above, to
attend and act on the shareholder’s behalf at the meeting by inserting the name of such person in the
blank space provided above or by completing another appropriate form of proxy.

Your shares will be voted in accordance with your instructions given above. If no instructions are given
for a particular item, your shares will be voted for that item. '
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Letter to Shareholders

My commitment when | took over the CEO role in January of 2002 was to ensure that
going forward, Mosaic’s financial disclosure is more consistent, more transparent and
provides more clarity in what we do. | believe we achieved this objective with our year-end
earnings release in February and again in May with our first quarter 2002 earnings.

My intention is to discuss and disclose all aspects, positive and challenging, of our
business in our Management’s Discussion and Analysis, which, in addition to our quarterly
mailings, will be press released along with our full financials every quarter. This will help
our investors better understand in a timely manner our business, our metrics, our risks and
our opportunities.

In January, | committed to you that we will make Mosaic into a great investment over time.
We also reduced our Q1 and full-year guidance so that our disclosure to you would be both
open and realistic. We delivered on that guidance and you can count on us to work our
hardest and smartest to continue to deliver on our promises quarter after quarter.

Our first quarter was not without its challenges. We restructured Mosaic financially,
operationally and culturally. This was a major undertaking, accomplished with speed,
decisiveness and fiscal prudence. Throughout this dramatic change, our focus on the
bottom line never wavered and we delivered on our promise of making our numbers.

We hope that these accomplishments provide you with a greater sense of confidence in
Mosaic, our Management Team, and our ability to manage our growth going forward. With
a new business pipeline more robust than at any other time in Mosaic’s history, we are a
‘when’ story — not an ‘if’ story. It's now a matter of a few quarters before we re-establish
our revenue and earnings growth, which we will achieve consistently over time.

I encourage you to fully read Mosaic’s attached MD&A. | think you will find it informative
and complete. As always, | make myself available to you should you want to talk about any
aspects of Mosaic. | can be reached at 201-242-3500.

Respectfully,

Mm by
Marc Byron

Vice Chairman and CEO
Mosaic Group Inc.




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of our quarterly report provides Management’s Discussion and Analysis of the
financial condition and performance of Mosaic Group Inc.’s (“the Company’s”) operations
for the three months ended March 31, 2002 and 2001. The focus of this analysis is on key
measures used to monitor the Company'’s overall financial performance and the financial
condition of its continuing operations. The analysis should be read in conjunction with, ana
is based on the unaudited consolidated financial statements, which are presented later in
this quarterly report. For major financial risks and uncertainties as well as additional
financial disclosures and analysis thereon, the reader is directed to the 2001 annual report
to shareholders. All amounts are in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated.

Go Forward Plan

The Company has made significant progress towards implementation of the “Go Forward
Plan” announced in January 2002. The following summarizes the progress made to date:

(a) The reorganization of Mosaic into the following four business divisions.
* Mosaic Performance Solutions (North America);
* Mosaic Sales Solutions (North America);
* Mosaic Marketing & Technology Solutions (North America); and
* Mosaic UK (United Kingdom).

These divisions now operate as fully integrated units to realize the benefits of a
streamlined organization, shared services, and client focused cross-functional teams.

(b) The establishment of a new business development unit directly reporting to the CEO.
This unit continues to be developed and has focused on developing cross-selling
initiatives in respect of major clients, new business pitches, product innovation, the
organization of Company-wide sales teams, and the utilization and development of
business development tools throughout the Company.

(c) The introduction of compensation and incentive systems to encourage cross-selling
and focus efforts towards new business development.

(d) The re-branding of Mosaic with the development of a new logo and consistent go-to-
market positioning.

(e) Mosaic’s previously announced restructuring plan is being implemented, with
initiatives described in greater detail in the section entitled “Restructuring”. Mosaic is
now focused on improving its operating metrics through margin improvement and
overhead reductions.

(f) The Company completed the first step toward a reduction of its debt though the issue
of 13.8 million shares in March 2002 with net proceeds, after issue costs and income
taxes, of $50.2 million. The Company will take further steps to restructure its debt by
seeking alternative sources of debt capital to provide longer average debt maturities
and to diversify debt capital sources.




Restructuring

In January 2002, Mosaic made public its “Go Forward Plan” to its major stakeholders. In
conjunction with this announcement, management approved a restructuring plan aimed at
reducing costs and improving efficiencies through the realignment and integration of
Mosaic’s operating units. Key restructuring actions include the consolidation of a number
of physical locations, the exit from various unprofitable customer accounts, divestment of
certain non-core businesses and the elimination of excess capacity through a reduction in
the workforce.

For the three months ended March 31, 2002, the Company recorded a pretax restructuring
charge of $13.8 million, including a non-cash write-down of assets of approximately
$3.0 million. This restructuring charge includes provisions related to employee severances
of $7.3 million (approximately 180 positions), lease terminations of $2.9 million, asset
write-offs amounting to $3.0 million and other related costs of $0.6 million. After income
taxes, the impact of the restructuring charge on the first quarter 2002 income is
$10.6 million or $0.09 per share.

As a result of the various restructuring actions, the Company expects to generate annual
pre-tax savings of approximately $8 million net of lost margins from discontinued
businesses with an estimated $4 million of saving in fiscal 2002. This is lower than the
previous estimates of $10 million in annual savings due to an increase in expected lost
margins from discontinued client activity.

The following table shows the pro forma net earnings and earnings per share for the three
months ended March 31, 2002 excluding the impact of restructuring costs:

(in thousands of dollars, except for per share amounts)

Three months ended
March 31, 2002

Net loss as per consolidated statement of operations $ (8,139)
Add: restructuring costs, net of taxes of $3,198 10,590
Pro forma net earnings $ 2,451
Pro forma earnings per share
Basic : $ 0.01
Diluted $ 0.01

The following is a summary of the actions substantially completed during the first quarter
of 2002.

(a) Mosaic UK consolidated its operations by exiting four locations and reorganizing the
business into one operating entity. The organization is now aligned around major
Brand Partners and core skills rather than by physical locations and services, thus
enabling the business to deliver comprehensive solutions to its Brand Partners. The
UK business has also commenced a review of a significant number of unprofitable
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customer accounts with a view to either improving profitability or exiting from those
business relationships. As a result of the above actions, approximately 82 positions
have been eliminated. During the quarter, the Company divested its operations
in reland.

(b) The Mosaic Performance Solution business in the US has divested one of its
unprofitable operations and has reduced its workforce by approximately 36 positions.
The business has been reorganized in light of the reduced capacity required
subsequent to the termination by Mosaic of the AT&T Wireless direct marketing
customer acquisition contract and the commencement of a new wireless customer
acquisition relationship with WorldCom Wireless.

(c) The Mosaic Marketing and Technology Solutions business in Canada completed a
realignment of operations and will exit from one of its locations. This business has also
structured its account management teams around Brand Partners and operations
around core skill sets in order to realize efficiencies and offer an array of services on
an integrated basis. It has also commenced a review of unprofitable contracts and
reduced its workforce by approximately 35 positions.

(d) The Mosaic Sales Solutions business in North America has commenced actions
towards a reduction in physical locations and a reduction of its workforce to eliminate
excess capacity, resulting in the elimination of approximately 27 positions.

The reconciliation of the restructuring liability as at March 31, 2002 is as follows:

(in thousands of dollars, except for per share amounts)

Cash Balance
Provision  Expenditures Non-cash  March 31, 2002
Severance costs $ 7,261 $ 1,882 $ - $ 5,379
Lease terminations 2,857 - - 2,857
Asset write-offs 3,039 - 570 2,469
Other 631 - - 631
Total ) $ 13,788 $ 1,882 $ 570 $ 11,336

As part of the restructuring plan the Company has either exited or is in the process of
exiting from several physical locations. As a result, the Company will have ongoing lease
commitments until the property leases can either be terminated or transferred for value. An
estimate of the ongoing commitments has been included in the amount of lease
termination costs. The provision for asset write-offs relate mainly to leasehold
improvements and equipment, which will be written off as a result of the exit from certain
leased locations. Other costs include legal costs and expenses associated with executing
the restructuring program.

The Company expects that substantially all remaining severance payments and asset
write-offs will occur within the next twelve months while payments against certain lease
commitments may extend up to a period of 18 months.
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Acquisition of Custom Offers

During January 2002, the Company acquired Evanston, lllinois based Custom Offers LLC,
now renamed Mosaic Data Solutions. Mosaic Data Solutions is an Internet marketing
solutions company, focused on aggregating large volumes of high quality data. Data is
monetized through performance driven marketing programs and through the sale of data
to third parties. In 2001, prior to acquisition, Mosaic Data Solutions generated over
US$3 million in revenue and achieved profitability.

Mosaic Data Solutions adds further depth to Mosaic’s customer acquisition capabilities.
This business will complement the services offered by the Performance Solutions division,
which has traditionally supplemented its internal capabilities with third party Internet
marketing resources for its customer acquisition programs. Mosaic Data Solutions will also
be instrumental in using its data to exploit proprietary products offered by the Company.

The initial consideration was US$6 million of which US$5.7 million was paid in Mosaic -
common shares with the balance in cash. In March 2002, Mosaic Data Solutions met the
earnings criteria and other conditions for the payment of a further US$4.0 million of interim
consideration to its original vendors. This payment was made subsequent to quarter end,
with approximately US$3.9 million paid in Mosaic common shares.

Additional future contingent consideration (“earnout”) is based on a multiple of up to 5
times the average 2002 and 2003 pre-tax earnings (less consideration previously paid)
and will be settled primarily in Mosaic common shares. The maximum consideration paid
in aggregate cannot exceed US$49.9 million, with any Mosaic common shares issued
subject to a floor price of US$1.80. Further consideration, when determined, will be
recorded as additional goodwill.

The following table summarizes the amounts paid or payable as at March 31, 2002 and
preliminary allocation of the purchase price:

(in thousands of dollars, except per share amounts)

Cash, including transaction costs, net of cash acquired $ 2,335
Common shares of the Company 15,429
17,764
Costs of integration 130
Total consideration, after integration costs 17,894
Assigned value of assets and liabilities acquired:
Property and equipment $ 598
Other assets 652
Goodwill ” 18,312
Non-cash working capital (1,668)
$ 17,894




Completion of the Paradigm Direct Earnout

In the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company entered into an agreement with the vendors of
Paradigm Direct LLC (“Paradigm”), now renamed Mosaic Performance Solutions,
amending certain terms related to the contingent consideration (“earnout”) payable as per
the original merger agreement. Shareholders approved the terms of the amending
agreement on January 7, 2002. The Company completed the earnout payment between
January and April 2002. For more details the reader is directed to note 4 of the
consolidated financial statements.

As per the terms of the original merger agreement, Paradigm adopted a Supplementary
Management Incentive Program (the “SMIP”) applicable to certain senior management
employees (“Participants”) of Paradigm. The payments under the SMIP to the Participants
were contingent upon continuing employment, achieving minimum earnings growth rates
and achieving pre-established earnings levels during fiscal years 2001, 2002, and 2003.
The maximum payment under this plan was US$50 million payable on April 1, 2004. In
April 2002, the Company reached an agreement with the Participants to modify the SMIP.
Under the modified agreement, the amount payable has been fixed at approximately
US$6.3 million. Of this amount no less than US$2.85 million is payable in cash and the
balance in Mosaic common shares (subject to regulatory approval) on April 1, 2004. The
payments will only vest for employees who continue to remain employed with Mosaic
through April 1, 2004. However, the payment may be accelerated upon a change of control
of Mosaic. With the finalization of this agreement Mosaic has now eliminated the remaining
uncertainty related to the Paradigm Direct acquisition and has introduced a significant
incentive for the retention of senior management in this business. The amounts payable
under the SMIP will be accrued in the second quarter of 2002 with a corresponding
addition to goodwill.

Proprietary Subscription-Based Services and Joint Ventures

Mosaic’s growth strategy includes the development of proprietary subscription-based
services and joint ventures in the insurance, telecom and financial services sectors. This
initiative leverages Mosaic’s own data assets and expertise in customer acquisition and
customer management to create Mosaic-owned offers to consumers. Mosaic is positioning
itself to become a leader in integrating and executing digital, data and direct marketing
transaction solutions for its own account. Essentially programs will be designed with the
following general characteristics:

(a) Wide appeal products in the insurance, telecom and financial services products and
sectors;

(b) Visible and sustainable recurring revenue streams, with subscription-based products
and programs designed to provide ongoing revenues to Mosaic and its partners;

(c) Customer bases which have a value and can be sold or otherwise monetized:;
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(d) Limited product risk to Mosaic. For example, in respect of specialty insurance services
Mosaic would re-insure with a major carrier any insurance risk arising in the program;

(e) Low or immaterial levels of inventories; and

(f) Limited capital investment by Mosaic. Where program investments are significant
Mosaic will create a joint venture with a major partner or partners to reduce or
eliminate required capital investment by Mosaic.

In May 2002, the Company entered into a definitive option agreement to acquire Dallas,
Texas based Secured Promotions LLC (“Secured Promotions”). Secured Promotions
combines technology and licensing to create cutting-edge proprietary product solutions
and promotions for Mosaic and its Brand Partners that are scalable and provide stable,
recurring revenues, margins and return on investment. It is Mosaic’s intention to leverage
the proprietary product development expertise of Secured Promotions to enhance
Mosaic’s proprietary product revenues. '

The total enterprise value being placed by Mosaic on Secured Promotions is a maximum
of US$3,075,000 payable principally in Mosaic common shares. The up front payment
consists of US$250,000 in cash and US$250,000 in Mosaic common shares.

Mosaic is currently operating two significant and successful proprietary programs in the
telecom sector:

Canadian Long Distance: Mosaic is currently offering long distance marketing programs
in Canada through various Brand Partners including CIBC, Ontario Hydro Energy and
Eastlink Cable. The CIBC program, marketed as CIBC Guaranteed Proof, is one of
Canada’s fastest growing and most competitive residential long distance telephone
services marketed to all CIBC VISA customers. Utilizing a unique “rate and compare”
billing technology, participating customers have their long distance calls priced against a
pre-selected popular rate plan offered by Sprint Canada, Primus Canada and their local
phone company (Bell Canada in Ontario and Quebec). The customer is then billed the
lowest aggregated tariff among the three major carriers less an additional 10%, with the
monthly charges applied directly to their CIBC VISA credit card.

As part of a recently renewed 5 year contract with CIBC, Mosaic Performance Solutions
will be utilizing its customer acquisition platform to aggressively build out the program over
the next six months, with initial marketing test results indicating that the Company should
have 150,000 (an increase from approximately 50,000 at December 31, 2001) long
distance customers in this program by the end of the third quarter. Average monthly
revenue per subscriber for the CIBC Guaranteed Proof program for March 2002 is
approximately $27.05.

By the end of the third quarter, Mosaic expects to have over 200,000 subscribers across
all of the Canadian long distance programs, effectively making Mosaic one of the largest
and most profitable long distance resellers in Canada. The Company plans to expend
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$6 to $8 million in direct marketing costs this year to enable this growth. These costs will
be amortized over the estimated subscriber life, not to exceed two years.

The Canadian long distance programs and related long distance customers are owned
and managed by Mosaic the program manager and reseller. Mosaic contracts its long
distance services from Bell Nexxia under a long-term wholesale services agreement.
Brand Partners such as CIBC and Eastlink Cable typically receive a portion of the program
revenues in exchange for access to their customer base and usage of their brand name.
All the long distance programs continue to be profitable in the current year.

UK Mobile Services: Sainsbury’s Mobile is a joint venture between J. Sainsbury plc, a
UK grocer, and Mosaic. The program provides private label wireless services in the
UK marketplace. Wireless services for the program are contracted from BT Cellnet, a UK
cellular service provider. This program was re-launched in the fourth quarter of 2001 after
a less than successful initial launch in 2000. Since the re-launch this program has
experienced significant success in acquiring wireless customers in the competitive UK
wireless market with just over 50,000 billed customers at the end of the first quarter. It is
anticipated that the program will have over 150,000 subscribers by the end of 2002. This
program is also based on a “rate and compare” model with the program offering the lowest
rate with a comparison of 42 wireless plans in the UK. Mosaic is the program manager and
integrator, generating several revenue streams for the Company including non-refundable
management fees, a share of program earnings (the Company is not, however,
responsible for program losses) as well as revenue from in-store customer acquisitions by
Mosaic’s field sales force. This program became profitable to Mosaic in the fourth quarter
of 2001 and continues to remain profitable.

The following table summarizes the subscriber base under the two programs:

Billed subscriber base of Mosaic’s proprietary programs

Average
Billed subscriber base | Monthly Revenue
as at March 31, 2002 | Per Subscriber

Long Distance
Marketing — Canada (all programs) 104,000 $22.17
Sainsbury’s Mobile — UK 52,000 $53.26

'Revenue not recorded in Mosaic’s financial statements as Mosaic only records its share
of the Sainsbury’s Mobile net program earnings.




Results of Operations and Financial Condition

Operating results for three months ended March 31, 2002, compared to three
months ended March 31, 2001

Summary financial information

(in thousands of dollars, except percentages)

Three months ended
March 31 Better | Change
2002 2001 | (Worse) | (%)
Revenue 143,690 | 171,842 | (28,152) (16%)
Gross Profit 45,655 50,771 (5,116) (10%)
% of Revenue 31.8% 29.5% 2.3%
SG&A 31,766 33,175 1,409 (4%)
% of Revenue 22.1% 19.3% (2.8%)
EBITDA 13,889 17,596 (3,707) (21%)
% of Revenue 9.7% 10.2% (0.5%)
Earnings from
continuing operations
before goodwill
charges and excluding
net of tax restructuring
charges 2,451 7,075 (4,624) (65%)

The results for the first quarter of 2002 were in line with management’s estimates for the
quarter provided in January 2002 and in the 2001 annual report to shareholders.

The following table summarizes the reported diluted and pro forma earnings per share
(“EPS”) from continuing operations.

For the three months ended
March 31
2002 2001
EPS $ (0.08) $ 0.06
Pro Forma EPS! $ 0.01 $ 0.03

"Pro Forma EPS reflects the impact of Mosaic Performance Solutions earnout (“earnout”)
as if it had occurred on January 1, 2001 and the exclusion of restructuring costs, net of
taxes, of $10.6 million from the first quarter 2002 results. This determination of per share
earnings is based on the following assumptions in respect of the earnout:

(i) the transaction was effective on January 1, 2001,

(i) 32,308,621 common shares were issued on that date including the first payment of
20,540,000 shares and a further US$24.2 million settled in shares (11.77 million);
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(iii) the consideration of US$28.3 million was paid in cash, and financed through
borrowings at an interest rate of 6% with a tax shield of 25% on the interest expense,

and

(iv) the US dollar to Canadian dollar exchange rate during the period was 1.59 for
purposes of determining the Canadian dollar interest cost on an after tax basis.

Revenues and Gross Profit

The following table summarizes revenues in the first quarter by business division.

(in millions of dollars, except percentages)

For the three months ended March 31

2002 2001 Change
Mosaic Performance Solutions $43.8 $71.0 (38%)
Mosaic Sales Solutions 53.5 42.4 26%
Mosaic Marketing & Technology 11.9 15.4 (23%)
Mosaic UK 34.5 43.0 (20%)
Mosaic Consolidated $143.7 $171.8 (16%)

Revenues for the first quarter of 2002 decreased by 16% over the prior year, with declines
in Performance Solutions, Marketing & Technology Solutions and the UK partly offset by
growth in the Sales Solutions business.

Pro forma revenues, excluding revenues from the acquisition of Mosaic Data Solutions
and the divestment from Ireland in the first quarter of 2002, declined by 19% compared to
the first quarter of 2001. During the three months ended March 31, 2002 pro forma
revenues in local currency terms declined by 19% compared to the corresponding period
of 2001. The US dollar and the British pound strengthened significantly year over year
resulting in a positive impact on revenues translated into Canadian dollars.

In terms of first quarter 2002 reported revenues, although they were down year over year,
the decline can be almost completely attributable to our discontinuance in 2002 of the
AT&T Wireless direct marketing customer acquisition business which had revenues of
$40.9 million in first quarter 2001. Excluding AT&T, Mosaic revenues would have risen by
10% with our Sales Solutions business increasing by a very strong 26% year over year as
this division starts to benefit from an improved North American business climate.

Reported revenues in the first quarter of 2002 were impacted by the following factors:

(@) The exit from the AT&T Wireless direct marketing contract at the beginning of the year
which recorded revenues of $40.9 million in the first quarter of 2001 with no revenues
recorded in the first quarter of 2002, combined with a delay in the launch of the
WorldCom Wireless contract to late March 2002;
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(b) The exit from two unprofitable direct selling contracts in the United Kingdom in the
third quarter of 2001 and the loss of certain other accounts in 2001 partly offset by
growth in the Sainsbury’s Mobile program;

(c) The decline in revenues of the Marketing and Technology Solutions business from
client losses in the second half of 2001; offset partly by

(d) The growth of 26% in first quarter 2002 in the Sales Solutions business in the US and
Canada from several business wins during the second half of 2001 as well as the
commencement of new business lines at Mosaic InfoForce’s operations in the US.

The Performance Solutions division launched the WorldCom Wireless customer
acquisition program in late March 2002 as part of Mosaic’s stated strategy of creating new
non-exclusive subscriber acquisition relationships in the wireless industry. Although initially
expected to launch in January, the program implementation commenced later than
originally anticipated as the Company dealt with operational issues which needed to be
resolved prior to launch.

In March 2002, the Company acquired approximately 7,500 wireless customers for
WorldCom Wireless under this program. The customer acquisition levels have significantly
ramped up in April 2002, as the program becomes fully operational, with approximately
80,000 wireless customers expected to be acquired in the second quarter of 2002.

Mosaic expects to be a significant resource for WorldCom Wireless to develop its market
share of wireless customers. The WorldCom Wireless program once ramped up will
generate lower quarterly revenues by approximately US$10 to US$12 million compared to
the revenues from the AT&T Wireless program that was in place during the prior year.
However, the new program is expected to generate approximately the same level or better
of profit margin per customer acquired as:

* the Company is not responsible for owning phone inventory or incurring certain
customer verification and fulfilment costs; and

* the Company has limited responsibility for customer churn in comparison with the
AT&T Wireless contract arrangements.

Credit terms for WorldCom Wireless are net 40 days after the month end in which the
related commissions are earned, with no payments overdue at this time. With the current
uncertainties surrounding WorldCom, the Company is actively monitoring and adjusting its
business practices and exposure to WorldCom.

In April 2002, the Performance Solutions division discontinued its business with New
Power, an affiliate of Enron, in order to eliminate credit risk arising from the financial
condition of the client. During fiscal 2001, the revenues from New Power were
approximately US$10.8 million.
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The Go Forward Plan includes a significant investment in sales and marketing activities for
Mosaic. This investment in business development, which commenced in the first quarter
of 2002, has resulted in significant new business pitches being made during the quarter.
The following table summarizes some of the major new business wins to date in 2002.
These contracts result in annualized revenues of approximately $35 million.

Significant New Business Wins in 2002

AMP Pearl United Kingdom 5-year contract for the collection,
accounting and banking of

insurance premiums

CIBC Canada 5-year extension of Mosaic’s
proprietary long-distance marketing
program offered to CIBC VISA
customers

Echo Star United States Direct marketing customer acquisition
program for satellite TV subscription
in NRTC markets

Brown & Williamson United States Data collection and market
intelligence

Ontario Hydro Energy Canada Test Field marketing program for
acquisition of electricity customers

Wal-Mart/ United States Test for in-store banking

TD Canada Trust

Best Buy United States Test for in-store wireless sales

Gross profit as a percentage of revenue increased to 32% in the first quarter of 2002 from
30% in the corresponding period of 2001. Gross profit declined from $50.8 million in the
first quarter of 2001 to $45.7 million in 2002. Consolidated gross profit was favorably
impacted by the following factors:

(a) Change in the revenue mix due to the exit from the AT&T program which typically
operated at a lower gross margin percentage in relation to the rest of the business;

(b) The discontinuance of unprofitable Brand Partner contracts in fiscal 2001 including
two direct selling contracts in the UK;

(c) The improved profitability of the Sainsbury’s Mobile program which incurred a loss
during the first quarter of 2001 but was profitable in the first quarter of 2002;

(d) The impact of cost reduction initiatives completed in the second half of 2001 through
employee terminations and reduction of excess capacity; and

(e) The inclusion of Mosaic Data Solutions, which was acquired in the first quarter of
2002, and which experiences gross margins significantly higher average margins than
the rest of the business.
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Selling, General, and Administrative (“SG&A”) Expenses

Selling, general, and administrative expenses have reduced on a year over year basis by
$1.4 million, declining from $33.2 million in 2001 to $31.8 million in 2002. SG&A as a
‘percentage of revenues increased to 22% compared to 19% during the first quarter of
2001. SG&A amounts were controlled largely through the workforce reduction initiated in
the second half of 2001 and the first quarter of 2002 offset partly by the increase in
spending on business development and the inclusion in overheads of the newly acquired
Mosaic Data Solutions.

Earnings from Continuing Operations Before Depreciation and
Amortization, Interest, Restructuring Charges, Minority Interest and
Income Taxes (EBITDA)

EBITDA was $13.9 million in the first quarter of 2002 excluding restructuring charges
compared to $17.6 million during the same period of 2001. EBITDA excluding restructuring
charges as a percentage of revenues was 9.7% in the first quarter of 2001 compared to
10.2% during the corresponding period in 2001. The decline in EBITDA was largely as a
result of the decline in gross profit and the inability to reduce SG&A proportionately to the
decline in revenues and gross margins experienced during the first quarter of 2002.
Overall the following factors resulted in lower EBITDA in the first quarter of 2002 compared
to 2001:

(a) Discontinuance of the AT&T Wireless direct marketing program with a negative
EBITDA impact of approximately $4.4 million;

(b) Start up costs amounting to $0.5 million associated with the launch of the new
WorldCom Wireless customer acquisition contract in the first quarter
of 2002;

() The investment of approximately $0.8 million in the first quarter towards new business
development; offset partly by

(d) The positive effect of lowering fixed direct costs and overheads due to the various cost
reduction measures taken in the third and fourth quarters of 2001; and

(e) The favorable impact of $2.6 million in earnings from the acquisition of Mosaic Data
Solutions in the first quarter of 2002.

Depreciation and Other Amortization

Depreciation and other amortization expenses in the first quarter of 2002 were $6.1 million
or 4.2% of revenues compared to $3.4 million or 2% of revenues in the corresponding
period of 2001. The increase is mainly due to:

(a) Significant investments made by Mosaic’s InfoForce in data collection equipment for
the US market during the second half of 2001;
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(b) Investment in technology during 2001 in the Performance Solutions and the Sales
Solutions businesses in North America; and

(c) The inclusion of Mosaic Data Solutions which was acquired in the first quarter of 2002,
and which has a capital-intensive technology infrastructure.

Interest Costs

Interest costs were $3.4 million in the first quarter of 2002, a reduction of $1.6 million from
- $5.0 million in the same period last year. Interest expense is lower as the result of:

(a) The private placement of equity instruments in June 2001 in the amount of
US$57.0 million, the proceeds of which were applied towards a reduction in senior
bank debt; and a

(b) Lower interest rate environment in Canada and the United States, the two primary
markets in which the Company’s debt is priced; offset partly by

(c) The increase in the credit spread of 75 basis points on the Company’s senior bank
debt effective in December 2001.

Mosaic’s senior bank debt carries interest at banker’s acceptance rates or LIBOR plus
2.15% to 3.05% depending on Mosaic’s funded debt to EBITDA ratio. Based on the
Company’s funded debt to EBITDA ratio, the credit spread on the debt facility at March 31,
2002 was 2.40%.

Mosaic has floating for fixed interest rate swaps which have the effect of fixing the interest
rate on US$25.0 million of debt at 5.85% and $50.0 million of Canadian dollar debt at
5.19%, plus the credit spread on both instruments.

Income Taxes

Income taxes for the first quarter of 2002 provided a recovery of $2.5 million compared to
an expense of $2.4 million in the prior year. The income taxes provision for the quarter is
net of a tax recovery of $3.1 million related to the restructuring costs booked during
the quarter.

Loss from Continuing Operations, Diluted Loss Per Share from
Continuing Operations and Discontinued Operations

Loss from continuing operations in the first quarter of 2002 was $8.1 million compared to
earnings of $4.5 million in the corresponding period last year. Excluding the impact of
restructuring costs net of income tax recoveries, of $10.6 million, income from continuing
operations in the first quarter of 2002 was $2.5 million.

Effective January 1, 2002 the Company adopted the new accounting standards released
by the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants as applied to business combinations
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and accounting for acquisition related goodwill. These new standards effectively eliminate
the ongoing amortization of goodwill but will require the Company to periodically carry out
tests that are significantly more rigorous than prior standards to determine whether there
has been impairment in the carrying value of goodwill in the consolidated financial
statements. The change in accounting policy is not applied retroactively and the amounts
presented for prior periods have not been restated for this change. Note 1(a) to the
consolidated financial statements shows the impact of the change on prior year
comparatives. During the first quarter of 2001 the Company recorded a goodwill charge,
net of taxes, of $2.6 million with earnings from continuing operations before goodwill
charges of $7.1 million.

Diluted loss per share from continuing operations were $0.08 per share in the first
quarter of 2002 compared to earnings of $0.06 per share during the corresponding period
last year. During the first quarter of 2002 the Company recorded a restructuring charge of
$13.8 million. After income taxes, the impact of the restructuring charge on the first quarter
2002 income was $10.6 million or $0.09 per share.

The pro forma earnings per share from continuing operations was $0.01 in the first quarter
of 2002 compared to $0.03 in the same period of 2001. This figure reflects the exclusion
of restructuring charges, net of the related income tax benefit in the first quarter of 2002,
and the impact on earnings per share for the first quarter of 2001 as if the Mosaic
Performance Solutions earnout had occurred on January 1, 2001.

The Company took an $8.3 million after tax charge for Discontinued Operations in the
first quarter of 2001 related to the shut down of its Continental European operations. Such
charge amounted to approximately $0.11 per diluted share, resulting in a net loss in the
first quarter of 2001 of $3.8 million or $0.05 per diluted share compared to a net loss of
$8.1 million or $0.08 per share in 2002. No charge for discontinued operations was
recorded in the first quarter of 2002.

2002 Management Estimates

The revenue visibility for fiscal 2002 as at the beginning of April 2002 was approximately
75% to 80%. The Company measures visibility in terms of projected fiscal 2002 revenues,
which are either contracted or highly probable (defined as a contract which is expected to
be renewed during 2002, where Mosaic has a distribution arrangement or where Mosaic
is an agency of record and a budget has been identified by the Brand Partner).
Management's revenue estimates for fiscal 2002 remain in the range of $730 to
$750 million with revenues for the second quarter of 2002 estimated to be in the range of
$170 to $180 million.

The following table summarizes management’s revenue estimates for the three months
ended June 30, 2002 and for fiscal 2002 by division.

15




(in millions of dollars)

Three months
ended
June 30, 2002 | Fiscal 2002
Estimates Estimates

Mosaic Performance Solutions
(North America) $70 - $75 | $310 - 8315
Mosaic Sales Solutions
(North America) 65 - 70 230 - 235
Mosaic Marketing & Technology
Solutions (North America) 11 -13 55 - 60
Mosaic UK Solutions (United Kingdom) 25 -30 135 - 140
Mosaic Consolidated $170 — $180 | $730 - $750

The outlook takes into consideration the following factors:

(a) The impact on the Performance Solutions business with the discontinuance of the
AT&T Wireless direct marketing and the New Power contracts, offset in part by the
ramp up of the WorldCom Wireless subscriber acquisition contract;

(b) The expected growth in proprietary telecom programs in Canada and the UK;

(c) The impact of new business wins in the Sales Solutions business in North America;

(d) The expected decline in revenues in the UK due to the exit from several unprofitable
accounts which will be partly offset by the rollout of the AMP Pearl contract; and

(e) The exit from unprofitable contracts in the Marketing and Technology Solutions

business in Canada.

Earnings for fiscal 2002 will be positively impacted by the restructuring initiatives
commenced in the first quarter of 2002. Annualized savings from restructuring are
estimated at approximately $8 million net of lost margins from discontinued businesses
with an estimated $4 million saving to be realized in fiscal 2002.

The following table summarizes the outlook for the three months ending June 30, 2002 and

for fiscal 2002.

(in millions of dollars, except per share amounts)

Three months
ended
June 30, 2002 Fiscal 2002
Estimates Estimates
Revenue $170 to $180 $730 to $750
EBITDA $20 to $21 $89 to $91
Diluted pro forma EPS $0.05 $0.30 to $0.32
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Summarized Consolidated Casﬁ Flows

(in millions of dollars)

Three months ended March 31
2002 2001

Net cash provided by/(used in):

Continuing operations $10.2 $11.1

Net change in non-cash
operating working Capital

from continuing operations 0.5 0.9
Financing activities 38.4 (13.9)
Investing activities

(continuing operations) (52.7) (8.0)
Discontinued operations (0.1) (4.1)
Effect of exchange rate changes

on cash | 0.2 . 0.2
Net change in cash position $ (3.5) $(13.8)

During the quarter ended March 31, 2002, the Company’s operating activities generated
$10.7 million in cash flow compared to $12.0 million in first quarter of 2001. Although, the
Company incurred a net loss of $8.1 million during the three months ended 2002, the cash
flow from continuing operations after add-back of non-cash charges was $10.2 million
compared to $11.1 million in 2001. The year over year reduction in cash flow from
operations was mainly due to the first quarter 2002 $1.9 million cash expenditure on
restructuring. The working capital reduction during the three months ended 2002
generated $0.5 million in cash flow, which was marginally lower than $0.9 million
generated in the same period last year.

Financing activities generated $38.4 million of cash in the first quarter of 2002. In March
2002, the Company issued 13.8 million shares in a public common share offering for gross
proceeds of $52.4 million and net proceeds of $50.2 million after net-of-tax issue costs.
Proceeds of the common share offering were used to reduce the balance owing under the
Company’s senior credit facility. Partly offsetting this repayment of debt was a draw of
$42.1 million in January 2002 to finance the payment of a portion of the Mosaic
Performance Solutions earnout (the reader is directed to the section entitied “Completion
of Paradigm Direct Earnout”).

Investing activities used $52.7 million of cash during the first quarter of 2002. Of this
amount, $46.1 million was used for acquisition costs including the payment of the cash
portion of the Mosaic Performance Solutions earnout. In addition, $4.1 million was used to
acquire property and equipment and $2.5 million was invested in other long-term assets.
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Capital expenditure in the first quarter of 2002 was not significantly different from that in
the same period last year.

Investments

The Company ended the first quarter of 2002 with total assets of $830.5 million, an increase
of 1.2% from the year ended December 31, 2001. The largest component of this increase
was goodwill, with a recorded value of $603.8 million, an increase of $14.0 million over
last year.

The increase in goodwill arises from the following:

(@) Acquisition of Custom Offers LLC, now called Mosaic Data Solutions, which added
$18.3 million to goodwill;

(b) Divestiture of the Irish operations, and adjustments arising from the acquisition of the
minority interest in Medium One at lower than its book value, reducing goodwill by
$1.6 million; and the impact of the

(c) Weakening British pound in relation to the Canadian dollar resulting in a decrease in
the recorded amount of goodwill by $2.7 million.

The Company is required to assess whether goodwill is impaired as of January 1, 2002 in
connection with the newly adopted accounting standards as applied to business
combinations and accounting for acquisition related goodwill and other intangible assets.
The Company has not yet determined the impact of this transitional goodwill impairment
assessment on its financial statements. The reader is directed to note 1 (a) to the
consolidated financial statements regarding the Company’s accounting policies and the
adoption of new accounting standards related to accounting for goodwill effective
January 1, 2002.

Capital Resources

On March 19, 2002, Mosaic completed an underwritten equity offering through the issuance of
13.8 million shares at a gross issue price of $3.80 per share with gross proceeds of
$52.4 million and net proceeds of $50.2 million after net-of-tax issue costs. The proceeds from
the common share offering were applied towards a reduction in the balance owing under the
senior credit facility. This represents a first step towards restructuring and reducing debt levels
and strengthening the Company’s balance sheet. The Company intends to take further steps
over the balance of fiscal 2002 to restructure its debt by seeking alternative sources of debt
capital to provide longer average debt maturities and to diversify debt capital sources.

Mosaic's long-term debt, including the current portion, at March 31, 2002 was
$167.9 million, drawn almost entirely from Mosaic’s senior credit facility. The long-term
debt includes $9.8 million of liabilities related to capitalized leases. With the completion of
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the share offering in March 2002, the Company amended its credit agreement with the
lending syndicate to reduce the committed amount available under the committed
revolving term facility from $300 million to $253 million. The committed amount will further
reduce to $243 million by October 5, 2003. The term of the facility is three years, which
can be extended for a further year on each anniversary of the facility, and is currently due
October 2004. Management intends to further reduce the commitments under these
facilities as part of the previously discussed plan to restructure debt.

As at March 31, 2002, Mosaic had unused capacity under this credit facility of
approximately $86 million subject to draw limits arising from financial covenants under the
facility. This is adequate to meet Mosaic’s working capital requirements, ongoing capital
expenditure and commitments for acquisition related payments.

Mosaic’s shareholders’ equity was $470.1 million as at March 31, 2002, an increase of
$51.1 million, from $419.0 million at December 31, 2001. This net increase in shareholders
equity resulted from:

(@) The issuance of $50.2 million in common shares net of issue costs and related income
tax benefits through the equity offering in March 2002;

(b) The net issuance of shares of $0.9 million including $0.3 million on exercise of options
by employees, $0.7 million against a contract for services, and a reduction in shares
from the repurchase of shares under the Company’s Normal Course Issue Bid of
$0.1 million; partially offset by the

(c) Net loss of $8.1 million during the period and distributions on equity instruments of
$1.3 million, net of income taxes; and

(d) A net change of $3.2 million in the foreign currency translation adjustment in respect
of Mosaic’s net investment in self-sustaining foreign operations due to a strengthening
of the Canadian dollar in relation to the British pound.

Excluding the COPrS instrument, the company to date has not paid any dividends on its
common shares, and does not intend to do so in 2002.

Outstanding Shares

At March 31, 2002, Mosaic had approximately 112 million common shares outstanding
with the same amount on a diluted basis.

In April 2002, a further 11.77 million shares were issued to satisfy the final payout under
the Paradigm earnout. In addition 1.55 million shares were issued to the former equity
holders of Mosaic Data Solutions towards payment of interim consideration. The following
table summarizes the changes in the number of common shares on a pro-forma basis for
the above noted transactions:
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Common
Pro forma Changes to Basic Common Shares Shares
March 31, 2002 per consolidated financial statements 112,112,618
April 2002 issue for Mosaic Data Solutions
acquisition payment 1,554,459
April 2002 issue for final Paradigm earnout payment 11,768,621
| Total pro forma basic common shares 125,435,698

Financial Risks and Uncertainties

In the normal of business, the financial position and results of operations of the Company
are subject to a variety of risks that are set out in detail in the Company’s 2001 annual
report to shareholders. The major risks and uncertainties include, client and credit risk,
workforce related risks, electronic security risks, interest rate risk, foreign currency risk
and general commercial risks. The details related to foreign currency risk have been
updated below.

Foreign currency risk

A significant part of the Company’s operations are concentrated in self-sustaining
operations in the United States and the United Kingdom. The operations in the United
States are naturally hedged, as the cash borrowed to pay for the cash component of those
acquisitions was borrowed in US dollars with US$75 million held in debt instruments and
US$57 million in equity instruments denominated in that currency at March 31, 2002.

The Company has entered into a series of short-term foreign currency torward contracts
to manage its exposure to movements in the UK pound and the US dollar. The forward
contracts are designated as hedges against the UK pound and US dollar receipts under
certain long-term client contracts. At March 31, 2002, the Company has entered into
£5.1 million of UK pound forward contracts and $17.7 million in US dollar forward contracts
for the balance of fiscal 2002. No other currencies are material to Mosaic’s operations.
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Changes in Accounting Principles

Business combinations and acquisition related goodwill:

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted the new accounting standards released
by the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants as applied to business combinations
and accounting for acquisition related goodwill and other intangible assets. For more
details please refer to note 1(a) to the March 31, 2002 consolidated financial statements.

Stock-based compensation:

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted the new accounting standards as it
relates to stock-based compensation arrangements. For more details refer to note 1(b) to
the March 31, 2002 consolidated financial statements.

Hedging Relationships:

The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants has recently released Accounting
Guideline No. 13, Hedging Relationships. The new guideline will be applicable to hedging
relationships in effect in fiscal years beginning on or after July 1, 2002. It is not applicable
to prior periods, but requires the discontinuance of hedge accounting for hedging
relationships established in prior periods that do not meet the conditions for hedge
accounting at the date it is first applied. The Company has not yet assessed the impact of
the new accounting guideline on the consolidated financial statements.

Supplemental Earnings Measures

In addition to providing earnings measures in accordance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP), the Company presents certain supplemental earnings
measures, specifically — EBITDA, and Pro forma earnings. These earnings measures do
not have any standardized meaning prescribed by GAAP and are therefore may not be
comparable to similar measures presented by other companies.

(a) EBITDA - defined as earnings from continuing operations before depreciation and
amortization, restructuring costs, interest, minority interest and income taxes and
goodwill charges. This measure is provided to assist investors in determining the
ability of the Company to generate cash from operations. EBITDA is disclosed in the
statement of income. '

(b) Pro forma earnings per share for 2001 reflects the impact of the Paradigm earnout as
if it had occurred on January 1, 2001 to assist investors in assessing the potential
dilutive impact of this transaction. The determination of pro forma share earnings is
based on the assumptions previously disclosed.

(c) Pro forma earnings per share for 2002 further refiects the exclusion of net-of-tax
restructuring costs of $10.6 million, and is provided to enable the reader to measure
the impact of restructuring charges on 2002 earnings and to provide another measure
of comparability with prior year earnings.
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Forward Looking Statements

Mosaic and its representatives periodically make written and spoken forward-looking
statements and projections, including those contained in the annual and quarterly reports
to shareholders. Substantial risks and uncertainties exist with respect to such factors as
the maintenance of client relationships, client credit risk, the performance of capital
markets, changes in interest rates, changes in foreign currency exchange rates, the
retention of key management and availability of employees for hire, changes in labour and
other laws to which the Company is subject, the impact of terrorism on consumer and
business behavior, competition, and overall economic performance, as well as various
other risk factors that will be listed from time to time in Mosaic’s report or other forms of
public disclosure whether written or oral. Because of these risks and uncertainties, actual
results could differ materially from those contained in the Company’s projections or other
forward-looking statements. Mosaic cautions readers when making decisions to consider
the risks and uncertainties inherent in relying on forward-looking statements made by the
Company and its representatives at this or any other time.

Mosaic Group Inc., with operations in Canada, the United States, and the United Kingdom,
is a world-leading provider of results-driven, measurable marketing solutions for global
brands. Mosaic specializes in three functional solutions: Direct Marketing Customer
Acquisition and Retention; Marketing & Infrastructure Solutions; and Sales Solutions &
Research, offered as integrated end-to-end solutions. Mosaic differentiates itself by
offering solutions steeped in technology, driven by efficiency and providing measurable
and sustainable results for our Brand Partners. Mosaic trades on the TSX under the
symbol MGX. Further information on Mosaic can be found on its web site at
WwWw.mosaic.com.
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Consolidated Statements of Operations

Three months ended March 31 (unaudited)
(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts)

2002 2001
Revenues $ 143690 $ 171,842
Direct costs 98,035 121,071
Gross profit 45,655 50,771
Selling, general and administrative 31,766 33,175
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before
depreciation and amortization, interest, restructuring
charges, minority interest and income taxes (EBITDA) 13,889 17,596
Depreciation and other amortization 6,102 3,417
Interest, net 3,442 5,049
Restructuring costs (note 2) 13,788 -
Minority interest 1,282 (295)
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations
before income taxes, and goodwill charges (10,725) 9,425
Income tax expense (recovery):
Current (1,331) 1,880
Future (1,255) 470
(2,586) 2,350
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations
before goodwill charges (8,139) 7,075
Goodwill charges, net of income taxes (2001 — $788) - 2,553
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations (8,139) 4,522
Loss on divestiture or discontinuance of
operations net of income taxes (2001 — $5,000) - (8,324)
Net earnings (loss) $ (8,139) $ (3,802
Earnings (loss) per share (note 7):
Basic $ (0.08) $ (0.05)
Diluted $ (0.08) $ (0.05)
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations
per share (note 7).
Basic $ (0.08) $ 0.06
Diluted $ (0.08) $ 0.06
Weighted average number
of shares outstanding (in thousands):
Basic 112,269 75,998
Diluted 112,269 77,446

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Three months ended March 31 (Unaudited)
(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts)

2002 2001
Cash provided by (used in):
Operations:
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations $ (8,139 § 4,522
Items not involving cash:
Depreciation and other amortization 6,102 3,417
Non-cash interest and finance costs 291 422
Future income taxes (1,255) 470
Goodwill charges - 2,553
Minority interest 1,282 (295)
Restructuring costs (note 2) 11,906 -
Cash flow from continuing operations 10,187 11,089
Net change in non-cash operating working capital
from continuing operations 505 924
10,692 12,013
Financing:
Issue of common shares, net of costs
and share repurchases 49,269 310
Proceeds on issue of long-term debt 103,586 24,000
Repayment of long-term debt (109,142) (35,999)
Decrease in bank indebtedness (1,539) (2,193)
Distributions on equity instruments (2,372) -
Distributions to minority interest holders (1,401) -
38,401 (13,882)
Investments:
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired (46,080) (1,957)
Additions to property and equipment (4,102) (4,159)
Additions to other assets (2,477) (1,854)
(52,659) (7,970)
Impact of foreign exchange effect on cash 147 200
Net cash used in discontinued operations (100) (4,111)
Increase (decrease) in cash position (3,519) (13,750)
Cash, beginning of period 4,630 15,413
Cash, end of period $ 1,111 § 1,663
Cash flow from continuing operations per share:
Basic $ 009 $ 0.15
Diluted $ 0.09 $ 0.14

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. Cash flow from continuing operations
per share is calculated using the cash provided from continuing operations excluding net changes in

non-cash working capital.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

(In thousands of dollars)

March 31, December 31,

2002 2001
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Assets

Current assets:
Cash $ 1,111 § 4,630
Accounts receivable 79,674 92,538
Work in progress and unbilled revenue ' 30,660 21,825
Inventory and other current assets 14,467 17,936
Income taxes receivable 1,768 -
127,680 136,929
Property and equipment 62,458 63,110
Goodwill (note 5) 603,756 589,711
Future income taxes 21,748 18,221
Other assets 14,828 12,793

$ 830,470 $ 820,764

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Current liabilities:

Bank indebtedness $ 4404 % 5,943
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 105,108 99,968
Deferred revenue 25,422 24,697
Accrued acquisition liabilities 33,251 72,845
Income taxes payable - 2,705
Current portion of long-term debt 4,224 3,828
172,409 209,986
Long-term debt 163,703 169,347
Future income taxes 22,158 19,758
Minority Interest 2,114 2,685
Shareholders’ equity:
Share capital (note 6) 439,503 375,780
Foreign currency translation adjustment (7,025) (3,849)
Retained earnings 37,608 47,057
470,086 418,988

$ 830,470 $ 820,764

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Retained Earnings

Three months ended March 31 (Unaudited)
(In thousands of dollars)

2002 2001

Retained earnings, beginning of period $ 47057 $ 32,357
Net loss (8,139) (3,802)
Repurchase of shares in excess of average

issue price 5) - (1,097)
Distributions on equity instruments, net of

income taxes of $1,067 (1,305) -
Retained earnings, end of period $ 37608 $ 27,458

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars, except for share and per share amounts)

1. Significant accounting policies

These unaudited interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared by
management in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.
These statements should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2001. These statements follow the same accounting policies
and methods as the most recent annual financial statements, except the following:

(a) Business combinations, goodwill and other intangible assets:

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted the new accounting standards released
by The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants as applied to business combinations
and accounting for acquisition related goodwill and other intangible assets. These new
standards eliminate the ongoing amortization of goodwill but will require the Company to
periodically carry out tests that are significantly more rigorous than prior standards to
determine whether there has been impairment in the carrying value of goodwill in the
consolidated financial statements. The standards also specify criteria that intangible
assets must meet to be recognized and reported apart from goodwill.

In connection with the transitional goodwill impairment evaluation as required by the new
accounting standards, the Company is required to assess whether goodwill is impaired as
of January 1, 2002. As a first step, the Company has to determine the fair value of its
reporting units and compare that to the carrying amounts of its reporting units. The
Company is required to complete the first step within a period of six months from the
beginning of the year. To the extent a reporting unit's carrying amount exceeds its fair
value, the Company must perform a second step to measure the amount of impairment in
a manner similar to a purchase price allocation. This second step is to be compieted no
later than December 31, 2002. The Company has not yet determined the impact of this
transitional goodwill impairment assessment on its financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars, except for share and per share amounts)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Business combinations, goodwill and other intangible assets (continued):

This change in accounting policy is not applied retroactively and the amounts presented
for prior periods have not been restated for this change. The impact of this change on prior
year comparatives is as follows:

Three months ended

March 31
2002 2001
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations $ (8,139) 5 4,522
Add back: goodwill charges, net of income taxes — 2,553
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before
goodwill charges (8,139) 7,075
Discontinued operations — (8,324)
Adjusted net loss (8,139) (1,249)
Earnings (loss) per share from continuing operations
before goodwill charges:
Basic $ (0.08) $ 0.09
Diluted $ (0.08) $ 0.09
Adjusted net loss per share:
Basic $ (0.08) $ (0.02)
Diluted $ (0.08) $ (0.02)

(b) Stock-based compensation and other stock-based payments:

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted the new accounting standard which
requires that a fair value based method of accounting be applied to all stock-based
payments to non-employees and to direct awards of stock to employees. However, the
new standard permits the Company to continue its existing policy of recording no
compensation cost on the grant of stock options to employees but with additional
disclosures of pro forma information. The Company has applied the pro forma disclosure
provisions of the new standard to awards granted on or after January 1, 2002. The pro
forma effect of awards granted prior to January 1, 2002 has not been included. The
standard requires the disclosure of pro forma net earnings and earnings per share
information as if the Company had accounted for employee stock options under the fair
value method. The fair value of the options issued in the quarter was determined using the
Black Scholes option pricing model. The following table shows the assumptions used in
the pricing model and the impact on the net earnings and earnings per share for the
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars, except for share and per share amounts)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) Stock-based compensation and other stock-based payments (continued):

quarter. For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options is
amortized to income over the vesting period.

Pro forma stock compensation disclosures:

Three months ended
March 31, 2002

Net loss $ (8,139)
Estimated stock-based compensation costs (740)
Pro forma net loss (8,879)
Pro forma loss per share
Basic ‘ $ (0.09)
Diluted . $ (0.09)
Assumptions:
Expected lives (in years) 3-5
Risk-free interest rates 4%
Dividend yield 0%
Volatility 62%

2. Provision for restructuring costs

In January 2002 the Company unveiled its “Go Forward Plan” to its major stakeholders.
Later in the quarter, management approved a restructuring plan aimed at reducing costs
and improving efficiencies by realignment and integration of operations. Key restructuring
actions include the consolidation of a number of physical locations, the exit from various
unprofitable customer accounts, divestment of certain non-core businesses and
elimination of excess capacity through a reduction in workforce.

During the first quarter the Company substantially completed the actions related to the
consolidation of operations in the United Kingdom by exiting four locations and
reorganizing the business into one operating entity. The UK business has also commenced
a review of a significant number of unprofitable customer accounts with a view to either
improving profitability or exiting from those business relationships. As a result of the above
actions, approximately 82 positions have been eliminated. During the quarter, the
Company divested its operations in Ireland.

The Performance Solution business in the US has divested from one unprofitable
operation and has reduced its workforce by approximately 36 positions.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars, except for share and per share amounts)

2. Provision for restructuring costs (continued)

The Marketing and Technology business in Canada completed the realignment of operations
and will be exiting from one of its locations. It has also commenced a review of unprofitable
contracts and reduced its workforce by approximately 35 positions.

The Sales Solutions North America business has commenced actions towards a reduction
in the number of physical locations and a reduction of workforce to eliminate excess
capacities resulting in the elimination of approximately 27 positions.

For the three months ended March 31, 2002, the Company recorded a pretax restructuring
charge of $13.8 million. This restructuring charge includes provisions related to employee
severances of $7.3 million (approximately 180 positions), lease terminations of
$2.9 million, asset write-offs amounting to $3.0 million and other costs of $0.6 million. As
part of the plan, the company has either exited or is in the process of exiting from several
physical locations. As a result, the Company will have ongoing lease commitments until the
property leases can either be terminated or transferred for value. An estimate of these
ongoing commitments has been included in the amount of lease termination costs.

The reconciliation of the restructuring liability as of March 31, 2002 is as follows:

Cash Balance

Provision Expenditures Non-cash March 31,2002

Severance costs $ 7,261 $ 1882 $ - $ 5,379
Lease terminations 2,857 - - 2,857
Asset write-offs 3,039 - 570 2,469
Other 631 - - 631
Total $ 13,788 § 1882 § 570 $ 11,336

The Company expects that substantially all remaining severance payments and asset
write-offs will occur within the next twelve months while payments against certain lease
commitments may extend up to a period of 18 months.

3. Acquisition of Custom Offers

During January 2002, the Company acquired Evanston, lllinois based Custom Offers LLC,
now renamed Mosaic Data Solutions. Mosaic Data Solutions is an Internet marketing
solutions company, focused on aggregating large volumes of high quality data. Data is
monetized through performance driven marketing programs and through the sale of data
to third parties. In 2001, the company’s start-up year, Mosaic Data Solutions generated
over US$3,000,000 in revenue and achieved profitability.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars, except for share and per share amounts)

3. Acquisition of Custom Offers (continued)

The initial purchase price was US$6 million of which US$5.7 million was paid with the issue
of 2,293,067 common shares and the balance in cash. In March 2002, Mosaic Data
Solutions met the conditions for the payment of a further US$4.0 million of interim
consideration to its original vendors. This was paid subsequent to the quarter end with the
issuance of 1,554,459 shares valued at US$3.9 million and US$136,000 in cash, with
Mosaic’s. share capital as at March 31, 2002 including an amount of approximately
Cdn.$6.3 million in respect of such shares.

Additional future contingent consideration is based on a multiple of up to 5 times the
average 2002 and 2003 pre-tax earnings (less consideration previously paid) and will be
settled primarily in Mosaic common shares. The maximum consideration paid in the
aggregate cannot exceed US$49.9 million, with any Mosaic common shares issued
subject to a floor price of US$1.80. Further consideration, when determined, will be
recorded as an increase to goodwill.

The following table summarizes the amounts paid or payable as at March 31, 2002
and preliminary allocation of the purchase price:

Cash, including transaction costs, net of cash acquired $ 2,335
Common shares of the Company 15,429
17,764
Costs of integration 130
Total consideration, after integration costs 17,894
Assigned value of assets and liabilities acquired:
Property and equipment $ 598
Other assets 652
Goodwill 18,312
Non-cash working capital (1,668)
$ 17,894

4., Paradigm acquisition consideration

In the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company entered into an agreement with the vendors of
Paradigm Direct LLC (“Paradigm”), now renamed Mosaic Performance Solutions,
amending certain terms related to the contingent consideration (“earnout”) payable as per
the original merger agreement. Shareholders approved the terms of the amending
agreement on January 7, 2002. The Company completed the earnout payment between
January and April 2002.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars, except for share and per share amounts)

4. Paradigm acquisition consideration (continued)

The following table summarizes the amounts paid as per the agreement:

20,540,000 shares issued in January 2002 $ 57,512
Cash paid in January 2002 42,135
11,768,621 shares issued in April 2002

(included in share capital as at March 31, 2002) 38,503
Cash paid in April 2002 2,837
Total additional consideration $ 140,987

As per the terms of the original merger agreement with Paradigm’s equity holders,
Paradigm adopted a Supplementary Management incentive Program (the “SMiIP”)
applicable to certain senior management employees (“Participants”) of Paradigm. The
payments under the SMIP to the Participants were contingent upon continuing
employment, achieving minimum earnings growth rates and achieving pre-established
earnings levels during fiscal years 2001, 2002, and 2003. The maximum payment under
this plan was US$50 million payable on April 1, 2004. In April 2002, the Company reached
an agreement with the Participants to modify the SMIP. Under the modified agreement, the
amount payable has been fixed at approximately US$6.3 million. Of this amount no less
than US$2.85 million is payable in cash and the balance in Mosaic common shares
(subject to regulatory approval) on April 1, 2004. The payments will only vest for
employees who continue to remain employed with Mosaic through April 1, 2004. However,
the payment may be accelerated upon a change of control of Mosaic. The amounts
payable under the SMIP will be recorded in the second quarter of 2002 as an increase
to goodwill.

5. Goodwill

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the three months ended
March 31, 2002 are as follows:

At December 31, 2001 $ 589,711
Additions — Mosaic Data Solutions 18,312
Disposals (1,591)
Currency translation changes (2,676)
Goodwill as at March 31, 2002 $ 603,756
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars, except for share and per share amounts)

6. Share capital:

tssued and outstanding at March 31:

Number of
shares Amount
Common shares outstanding, December 31, 2001 75,194,371 $ 191,578
Issued on acquisitions 22,833,067 66,707
Issued on exercise of options 99,800 280
Issued on share offering 13,800,000 50,204
Other, net of share repurchases under a Normal
Course Issuer Bid 185,380 648
Common shares outstanding, March 31, 2002 112,112,618 309,417
Other equity instruments:
Canadian Originated Preferred Securities 85,350
Paradigm acquisition obligation to be settled in shares ‘ 38,503
Custom Offers acquisition obligation to be settled in shares 6,233
Total share capital, March 31, 2002 $ 439,503

On March 19, 2002, Mosaic completed an underwritten equity offering through the
issuance of 13.8 million shares at a gross issue price of $3.80 per share with gross
proceeds of $52.4 million and net proceeds of $50.2 million after net-of-tax issue costs.

7. Earnings per share

a) Earnings per share calculations are based on net income from continuing operations
after deducting distributions on equity instruments, net of income taxes, amounting to
$1,305,000 (2001 — nil) as the numerator in the calculation and the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the period as the denominator.

For purposes of determining diluted earnings per share, only the rights to acquire
common shares, including contingent share consideration on acquisitions that would
be dilutive to earnings have been considered.

8. Segmented information

Mosaic’s businesses exhibit similar economic characteristics driven by the nature of
services provided, the method of delivery and similar long-term financial performance and
are accordingly aggregated for reporting purposes into one segment.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars, except for share and per share amounts)

8. Segmented information (continued)

The Company operates primarily in Canada, the United States and the United Kingdom.
Revenues are attributed to customers based on where services are provided.

Geographic Information:
For the three months ended and as at March 31

Capital assets

Revenue and goodwill
2002 2001 2002 2001
Canada $ 29,855 $ 28,710 $ 68,020 $ 54,326
United States 79,350 100,072 470,623 301,151
UK (includes Ireland
in 2001) 34,485 43,060 127,571 133,818

$ 143,690 $171,842 $ 666,214 $ 489,295
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FinaNciaL HIGHLIGHTS

THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
(IN THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS)
Revenues $171,842 is 91,127 $ 80,020 $ 36,829 § 18,333
Gross profit 50,771 31,906 25,389 12,591 6,504
EBITDA®" 17,596 9,837 6,014 3,052 1,499
Earnings from continuing operations 7,075 4,880 2,683 1,201 697
before goodwill charges
Earnings from continuing operations 4,522 3,461 1,622 656 521
PER SHARE AMOUNTS
Earnings from continuing operations
before goodwill charges .
Basic 0.09 0.07 0.04 0.03 0.02
Diluted 0.09 0.07 0.04 0.03 0.02
Diluted (% increase) 29% 75% 33% 50% -
Earnings from continuing operations
Basic 0.06 0.05 0.03 0.02 0.02
Diluted 0.06 0.05 0.03 0.02 0.02
Diluted (% increase) 20% 67% 33% - —

Revenues
(in millions of dollars)

EBITDA
(in millions of dollars)

Earnings before goodwill charges
(in millions of dollars)
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The above financial information reflects the results from the continuing operations of Mosaic Group Inc. and excludes

the results of all of the Company’s Continental European operations.

“"Earnings from continuing operations before interest, minority interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization.
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

At the end of the last fiscal year your
management team made some important
decisions designed to farther improve
the strength and health of our company.
Our decisions have proven us right.

* We are a stronger company.

* We are performing better.

* We are growing the business.

* We are on the right track.

TaxkiNng Our BusineEss FARTHER

We have positioned ourselves to take advantage of the
trends in client spchding that have emerged in an
uncertain period. In this environment, Increasing
market share for our clients becomes even more
essential for their success. When consumers are
spending less on products and services, they become
more selective in what they buy.
* This is when they nced to make the greatest
impact on consumers.
* This is when they neced to engage consumers in
a way that will elicit a response to buy.
* This is when they need to ensure their brand
messaging is scen and heard above their
competitors.

* This is when our clients need us the most.

Our clients turn to us because we make an immediate
impact when they need sales. Comparing the first
quarter of 2001 to the previous year, Mosaic
continued to grow significantly.

Mosaic’s top 25 clients, who were clients in 2000,
spent 38 percent more with us in the first quarter of
2001 versus the first quarter of 2000. Of these, 17
were served by more than one of our business units

showing the true “Mosaic” at work.

TaxiNg Our CLIENTS BuSINESsS

FARTHER

In the first quarter of 2001, through new business
wins, cross-selling initiatives, and increases in
spending from some existing clients, Mosaic made
significant progress in closing its new business gap for

the year.

DIRECTV

Mosaic’s newly acquired business unit, Paradigm,
expanded its existing relationship with DIRECTY, the
US television satellite provider, by signing a contract
worth between $9 to $15 million a year. Paradigm
enabled DIRECTV to take on more business by
developing an upgraded Order Management System
(OMS). Although Paradigm had built DIRECTV’s
previous OMS infrastructure, Paradigm recognized
there would be a future need for added flexibility in
the system.

The newly developed OMS not only allows for the

placement and tracking of customer orders; it

‘conducts credit checks and financial processing,

validates customers’ addresses and integrates with
DIRECTV’s

installations. This fee for service work is in addition to

existing  systems to schedule
the pay for performance customer acquisition work

we are also doing for DIRECTV.

We have helped DIRECTV take their business even
farther.

New Power

Paradigm also signed a contract with New Power, a
division of Enron Corp., the largest buyer and seller
of electricity and natural gas in North America. The
contract is worth between $7.5 million and $10.5
million a year in revenues. Paradigm has already
started to provide New Power with performance-
based customer acquisition work utilizing:

* inbound telemarketing

* outbound telcmarketing




* direct mail

* and “fect on the street” programs.

Paradigm is using the same proven and successful
customer acquisition platform that is utilized for
AT&T Wircless, which means higher expected

returns on the program for Mosaic.

We are taking New Power’s busincss farther.

Coke in the UK

In the latter part of 2000, Mosaic’s UK marketing
division developed, designed and launched an online
auction site for Coke. Due to the unprecedented
success of this program, Coke came back to Mosaic to

create the second version of www.cokeauction.co,uk,

which uses pull tabs and labels as bidding currency.
This site is now the third largest on-line auction site
in the UK, after ebay.co.uk and QXL.com.

Using the database from the 2000 campaign,
participants were emailed an opt-in feature to re-
register with the new “Coke Rush”. Within a week of
the pre-registration site being launched, more than

half of last year’s participants opted back in.

We are very proud to have received numerous awards
for our innovative and effective integration of digital
interactive media with direct marketing and sales

promotion.
We are taking the Coke brand even farther.

Our ORGANIZATIONAL
STRUCTURE FARTHER

TakING

Mosaic is working together to grow organically. We
arc communicating consistently across our business
units. We are bringing in more sizeable deals as a
result of cross-selling initiatives. These are the
characteristics of a mature company able to 1everage a

robust and diverse range of service offerings.

We continue to build on our organization by

broadening and  strengthening our  senior
management tcam. We have hired Ed Brown as
Mosaic’s new Chief Operating Officer for Europe
(UK /Ireland).
McVitie’s — a division of United Biscuits in the UK

and one of the leading snack food companies in that

Mr. Brown comes to us from KP

country. Mr. Brown was the Commercial Director
responsible for ficld sales, strategy and finance,
planning and operations, and training and
development. Mr. Brown was also a member of the
KPM Board of Directors where he provided strategic

insight on a broad spectrum of commercial issues.

With a career that spans over 20 years, Mr. Brown has
worked in marketing and corporate capacities for
companies such as PepsiCo and Colgate Palmolive.
Mr. Brown has an outstanding reputation in the
industry for being able to motivate his people to
achieve results. Mr. Brown is excited about joining

Mosaic and developing our UK/Ireland business even

farther.

TakxiNng Our Resurts FARTHER

Our business decisions to date have demonstrated
prudent management style cognizant of, and able to
manage through, changing market conditions. We
have matured as a company. We are putting a
management infrastructure in place to allow us to
maintain our growth into the future. We have the
right people to serve our clients. We deliver for our
clients and earn their ongoing trust. By delivering to
our clients we are therefore able to continue to

deliver for you, our sharcholders.

G. Michael Preston
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of our quarterly report provides
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of the financial
condition and performance of Mosaic Group Incs
continuing operations for the three months ended
March 31, 2001 and 2000. This excludes the impact
on operating results of Mosaic’s exit from Continental
Europe, which have been disclosed in the financial
statements as discontinued operations. Comparative
figures for 2000 have been restated to reflect
continuing operations. The focus of this analysis is on
key measures used to monitor the Company’s overall
financial performance and the financial condition of
its continuing operations. The analysis should be read
in conjunction with, and is based on, the unaudited
consolidated financial statements, which are
presented later in this quarterly report. For major
financial risks and uncertainties as well as additional
financial disclosures and analysis thereon, the reader
is directed to the 2000 annual report to shareholders.
All amounts are in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise

indicated.

ReEsuLrts OoF OPERATIONS AND

FinanciaL CONDITION

Mosaic’s key measures of performance for the first
quarter of 2001 improved significantly compared to
the same period in 2000:

* Revenues were $171.8 million, up 89% over
the first quarter of 2000;

* EBITDA from continuing operations incrcased
79% to $17.6 million from $9.8 million in
2000;

* Earnings from continuing operations before
goodwill charges (“cash earnings”) were up 45%

to $7.1 million;

* Diluted cash earnings per share from continuing
operations (“cash EPS”) rose 29% to $0.09; and
* Diluted EPS from continuing operations was

$0.06, up 20% from the same period in 2000.

OPERATING RESULTS FOR THREE
MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2001,
COMPARED TO THREE MONTHS

ENDED MARCH 31, 2000

Revenues for the first quarter of 2001 grew
by 89% over the prior year, increasing from $91.1
million in 2000 to $171.8 million in the current year.

Pro forma organic revenue growth in the first
quarter was 27% in local currency terms. Organic
growth has been calculated on a pro forma basis to
include operating results for Paradigm Direct in the
first quarter of 2000. The impact of exchange rate
movements on revenues in the first quarter of 2001
was not very significant with a stronger US dollar
offsetting a weaker British pound. Organic growth of
revenues factoring in exchange rate movements was
26%.

On a segmented basis, North America posted
strong revenue growth at 40% over the prior year,
growing from $41.4 million to $57.8 million. Mosaic
InfoForce continues to be a strong contributor to
revenue growth, along with the marketing services
and lcarning and development businesses in Canada.

The Performance Marketing segment was set up at
the beginning of the first quarter of 2001, combining
the eForce business in Canada and Europe with newly
acquired Paradigm Direct (“Paradigm”) in the US. The
growth in this segment was mainly caused by the
inclusion of Paradigm, which has experienced a
significant increasc in revenues from its major clients,

as well as new business wins since its acquisition.




MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Revenues in the first quarter of 2001 of Mosaic’s
UK and Ireland segment were lower by §5.7 million
compared to the same period last year decreasing
from $47 million to $41.3 million. This was
consistent with management’s expectations, and
mainly due to the previously reported decline in the
NR Consulting business that began in the second
quarter of 2000, as well as the negative impact of
exchange rate movements of the British pound in
relation to the Canadian dollar.

Management has not changed revenue
expectations for the balance of the year with
estimated revenues for fiscal 2001 of approximately
$800 million. For the second quarter of 2001,
management cxpects that revenues will be in the
range of $185 million to $205 million. The pro forma

organic growth rate for revenues should be between

15% and 25% in the second quarter.

Gross Profit as a percentage of revenues declined
from 35% in 2000 to 30% in 2001. This is in line
with management’s expectations, and is mainly due to
the inclusion of Paradigm, which has a high volume
but lower gross profit percentage business model.

Looking forward to the balance of the year, gross
profit as a percentage of revenues is expected to be in
the range of 28% to 30%.

Selling, General, and Administrative
(“SG&A”) Expenses increased from $22.1 million
in the first quarter of 2000 to $33.2 million in 2001
mainly due to the acquisition of Paradigm. Various
units  have undergone reorganization and
rationalization during the first quarter of 2001, which
should provide relief at the SG&A level that will be

felt during the balance of the year.

SG&A expenses as a percentage of revenues
declined to 19% in the first quarter of 2001 from
24% during the same period last year. The Paradigm
and Mosaic InfoForce operations have a significantly
lower level of SG&A expenses as a percentage of
revenues compared to rest of the business, resulting

in this steep overall decline.

Earnings from Continuing Operations
Before Depreciation and Amortization,
Interest, Minority Interest and Income Taxes
(EBITDA) were $17.6 million in the first quarter, up
79% from $9.8 million in the prior year. EBITDA as
a percentage of revenues was 10.2% in the first
quarter of 2001 compared to 10.8% during the
corresponding period in 2000. This was in line with
management’s expectation given the mix of business
during this period.

For the full year 2001, management anticipates

EBITDA to be approximately $96 million.

Depreciation and other amortization
expenses increased from $1.6 million in the first
quarter of 2000 to $3.4 million in the current year.
The increase reflects depreciation expense recorded
on capital assets purchased in 2000, as well as the
inclusion of depreciation from Paradigm and Mosaic
Infoforce, both of which were not acquired or set up

until the latter part of 2000.

Interest costs were $5.0 million in the current
quarter, an increase of $3.3 million from $1.7 million
for the same period last year. This was due to higher
utilization of debt facilities, required primarily to
finance the acquisition of Paradigm in the fourth

quarter of 2000. In addition, interest rates increased
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MANAGEMENT' 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

marginally upon the expansion of Mosaic’s credit
facility in October.

During the quarter, long-term debt was reduced
by $2 million, despite a movement in the exchange
rates that increased the Canadian equivalent of the
$US denominated debt by over $10 million. Mosaic’s
syndicated revolving debt facility generally carries
interest at bankers’ acceptance rates or LIBOR plus
1.4% to 2.3%, depending on Mosaic’s funded debt to
EBITDA ratio. As at March 31, 2001, the credit
spread on the debt facility was 2.15%.

Mosaic has floating-for-fixed interest rate swaps
which have the effect of fixing the interest rate on US
$25 million of debt at 8% and on $50 million of
Canadian dollar debt at 7.34%, given the credit
spread on the debt facility at March 31, 2001.

Income Taxes as a percentage of earnings before
taxes and goodwill charges remained at a level
consistent with the first quarter of 2000, at 25%. This
percentage remained low due to the effective use of
tax planning stratcgies. Management expects that the
overall tax rate for fiscal 2001 will be in the range of
22% to 24%. Management continues to actively

monitor and manage the Company’s tax expense.

Cash Earnings from Continuing Operations
were $7.1 million for the quarter, up 45% from $4.9
million in the first quarter of 2000. Mosaic considers
cash carnings, defined as earnings from continuing
operations before goodwill charges, as the most
rclevant measure of its operating performance. This
enables a like-to-like comparison of Mosaic’s carnings

with its US peers who generally use pooling of

interests accounting for business combinations and
thereby avoid goodwill charges.

Diluted cash EPS was $§0.09 in the quarter, a 29%
improvement from $0.07 in the prior year.

The full-year 2001 diluted cash EPS is estimated to
be approximately $0.62.

Goodwill charges, net of income taxes,
increased to $2.6 million in the first quarter of 2001
from $1.4 million in 2000. Goodwill charges are
shown net of the tax benefit of deductible goodwill,
which was $0.79 million in 2001 and $0.25 million
in 2000. The increase in goodwill charges was caused
by several acquisitions completed in 2000, the most
significant being Paradigm Direct in the latter part of
the year.

Full-year goodwill charges should approximate §9

to $10 million, before further acquisitions.

Earnings from continuing operations were
$4.5 million in the first quarter, up 31% from §$3.5
million in the prior year.

Diluted EPS from continuing operations was up
20%, increasing from §0.05 to $0.06. As discussed in
the notes to financial statements, the Company has
retroactively adopted the new recommendations for
determining carnings per share issued by The
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants.

The Company anticipates that the full-year 2001
diluted EPS from continuing operations will be
approximately $0.50. For the second quarter of
2001, diluted EPS from continuing operations is
anticipated to be in the range of $0.11 to $0.12.



MANAGEMENT' 'S DISCUSSION AND

ANALYSIS

Loss oN DIVESTITURE OR
DISCONTINUANCE OF OPERATIONS

NeT ofF IncomEe TAXES

As announced in the first quarter of 2001, Mosaic
has decided to exit from its operations in Continental
Europe. This has resulted in a one-time net of tax
charge in the first quarter of 2001 of $8.3 million.
Approximately half of this charge will be non-cash.
Management does not anticipate any further charges

related to the divestitures or shutdown.

ForeieNn CurRRENCY Risk

Significant parts of the Company’s operations are
concentrated in sclf-sustaining operations in the
United Kingdom and the United States. The
Company’s investment and operations in the United
States are naturally hedged as the cash borrowed to
pay for the cash component of those acquisitions was
largely borrowed in US dollars. US $116 million in
US dollar-denominated debt instruments were held at
March 31, 2001. Mosaic does not have any pound
sterling denominated debt, but has entered into £11.4
million in forward contracts for the balance of fiscal
2001 to partially hedge exchange rate movements in
2001. In addition, the Company has entered into a
series of forward sale contracts with a nominal value
of US$19.1 million for rest of the year to partially
hedge exposure to fluctuations in the US dollar in
relation to the Canadian dollar. No other currencies

arc material to Mosaic’s operations.

OUTSTANDING SHARES

At March 31, 2001, Mosaic had approximately 76
million common shares outstanding, and 77 million
shares on a diluted basis. The difference between the
basic and diluted common shares relates to employee
and director stock options.

No significant transactions have occurred in the
first quarter of 2001 that would have a material

impact on the number of shares outstanding.

LiquipiTy AND CAPITAL

RESOURCES

The cash balance at March 31, 2001, was $1.7
million compared to §15.4 million at December 31,
2000.

Cash

operations in the first quarter of 2001 was $11.1

generated  from  continuing
million, a significant improvement from $6.5 million
during the same period in 2000. In addition, the
Company reduced the level of non-cash working
capital by $0.9 million compared to December 31,
2000. Mosaic was thereby able to fund its organic
growth through strong internal cash flow.

Financing activities used $13.9 million of cash in
the quarter. The Company reduced net debt by $14.2
million during the quarter. The issuance of common
shares net of repurchases generated $0.3 million.

Investing activities used $8.0 million of cash in the
first quarter of 2001. Integration and transaction
costs and payments pursuant to Contingent
consideration agreements related to acquisitions from

prior years used $2 million of cash during the quarter.
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MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In addition, $4.2 million was used to acquire

property

operations, including $1.6 million invested at

and equipment for the continuing
Paradigm for relocation of their offices and purchase
of computer equipment, and $1.9 million was
invested in other assets.

Cash used by discontinued operations in
Continental Europe was $4.1 million in the first
quarter of 2001. This includes severance payments
and exit costs for businesses being discontinued and
funding of operating losses while these businesses are

being shut down or sold.

Mosaic’s debt position net of cash was §224.8
million at March 31, 2001, drawn almost entirely
from Mosaic’s syndicated revolving debt facility. $400
million is available under the facility, which is fully
committed without amortization or reduction until
October of 2003. On cach anniversary date, the
commitment is renewable for an additional three
years. As at March 31, 2001, Mosaic was on-side with

the financial covenants under its credit agreement.

Mosaic’s level of shareholders’ equity was
$215.0 million at March 31, 2001, up from
$206.2 million at December 31, 2000. The increasc
resulted from:

* The issuance of $7.2 million in shares, including

$5.8 million towards part of the contingent

consideration payments for the acquisition of

M:\DRIVE and Pentagon, $0.5 million under
Mosaic’s Employce Share Purchase and Option
plan and §1.2 million upon exercise of
employee share options, partially offset by the
repurchase of $0.3 million in shares under the
Normal Course Issuer Bid of the Company;

* A change of $6.5 million in the foreign currency
translation adjustment related to Mosaic’s net
investment in self-sustaining forcign operations
caused by the growing strength of the US dollar
against the Canadian dollar;

* Partially offset by a net loss of $3.8 million
during the quarter, and reduction of $1.1
million in retained earnings due to loss on
repurchase of shares at prices in excess of

average issue price.

The Company to date has not paid any dividends
on its common shares, and does not intend to do so in
2001.

ForwaRD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Mosaic and its representatives periodically make
written and spoken forward-looking statements and
projections, including those contained in the annual
and quarterly reports to sharcholders. Substantial
risks and uncertainties exist with respect to such
factors as the maintenance of client relationships,

client credit risk, the performance of capital markets,




MANAGEMENT' S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

changes in interest rates, changes in foreign currency
exchange rates, the retention of key management and
availability of employees for hire, changes in labour
and other laws to which the Company is subject,
competition, and overall economic performance as
well as various other risk factors that will be listed
from time to time in Mosaic’s reports or other forms
of public disclosure whether written or oral. Because

of these risks and uncertainties, actual results could

differ materially from those contained in the
Company’s projections or other forward-looking
statements. Mosaic cautions readers when making
decisions to consider the risks and uncertainties
inherent in relying on forward-looking statements
made by the Company and its representatives at this

or any other time.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Three months ended March 31, 2001 and 2000 (unaudited)

(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 2001 2000
Revenues $ 171,842 $ 91,127
Direct costs 121,071 59,221
Gross profit 50,771 31,906
Selling, general and administrative 33,175 22,069
Earnings from continuing operations before depreciation and amortization,
interest, minority interest and income taxes (EBITDA) 17,596 9,837
Depreciation and other amortization 3,417 1,582
Interest, net 5,049 1,740
Minority interest (295) 41
Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes
and goodwill charges 9,425 6,474
Income taxes:
Current 1,880 1,292
Future 470 302
2,350 1,594
Earnings from continuing operations before goodwill charges 7,075 4,880
Goodwill charges, net of income taxes of $788 (2000 — $253) 2,553 1,419
Earnings from continuing operations 4,522 3,461
Loss from discontinued operations, net of
income taxes of nil (2000 — $94) (240)
Loss on divestiture or discontinuance of operations, net of
income taxes of $5,000 (2000 - nil) (8,324) -
Net carnings (loss) $  (3,802) $ 3,221
Earnings (loss) per share:
Basic $ (0.05) $ 0.05
Diluted $ (0.05) $ 0.05
Earnings per share from continuing operations before goodwill charges:
Basic $ 0.09 $ 0.07
Diluted $ 0.09 $ 0.07
Earnings per share from continuing operations:
Basic $ 0.06 $ 0.05
Diluted $ 0.06 $ 0.05
Weighted average number of shares outstanding (in thousands):
Basic 75,998 71,012
Diluted 77,446 75,035

See accompanying notes to Financial Statements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CasH FLrows

Three months ended March 31 (Unaudited)

(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 2001 2000
Cash provided by (used in):
Operations:
Earnings from continuing operations S 4,522 $ 3,461
Items not involving cash:
Depreciation and other amortization 3,417 1,582
Non-cash interest and finance costs 422 188
Future income taxes 470 301
Goodwill charges 2,553 1,419
Other (295) (458)
Cash flow from continuing operations 11,089 6,493
Net change in non-cash operating working capital from
continuing operations 924 1,731
12,013 8,224
Financing:
Issue of common shares, net of costs and share repurchases 310 3,990
Proceeds on issuc of long-term debt 24,000 9,750
Repayment of long-term debt (35,999) (4,996)
Decrease in bank indebtedness (2,193) (2,209)
(13,882) 6,535
Investments:
Acquisition of businesses, net of
cash acquired, continuing operations (1,957) (10,350)
Additions to property and equipment, continuing operations (4,159) (4,187)
Additions to other asscts, continuing operations {1,854) (1,902)
(7,970) (16,439)
Impact of foreign exchange effect on cash 200 (69)
Net cash used in discontinued operations (4,11 (541)
Decrease in cash position (13,750) (2,290)
Cash, beginning of period 15,413 10,036
Cash, end of period $ 1,663 $ 7,746
Cash flow from continuing operations per share:
Basic S 0.15 $ 0.09
Fully diluted S 0.14 $ 0.09

Cashﬂowfrom continuing operations per share is calculated using the cash provided from continuing operations excluding

net changes in non-cash working capital.

See accompan)/ing notes to Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

March 31,

December 31,

2001 2000
(In thousands of dollars) (Unaudited) (Audited)
Assets
Current assets:
Cash S 1,663 $ 15,413
Accounts receivable 93,008 77,387
Work in progress and unbilled revenue 31,220 23,430
Inventory and other current assets 17,982 16,299
Net assets of discontinued operations 1,568 5,781
145 441 138,310
Property and equipment 47,365 45,763
Goodwill, net of accumulated amortization 441,930 430,824
Future income taxes 6,550 7,020
Other assets 25,677 26,168
S 666,963 $ 648,085
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Bank indebtedness $ 952 $ 3,145
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 144,570 129,130
Deferred revenue 32,627 23,576
Accrued acquisition liabilities 30,147 38,424
Income taxes payable 1,608 2,424
Current portion of long-term debt 249 272
210,153 196,971
Long-term debt 225,288 227,337
Future income taxes 13,499 14,287
Minority Interest 3,026 3,321
Sharcholders’ equity:
Share capital 194,618 187,442
Foreign currency translation adjustment (7,079) (13,630)
Retained carnings 27,458 32,357
214,997 206,169
S 666,963 $ 648,085

See accompanying notes to Financial Statements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS

OF RETAINED EARNINGS

Three months ended March 31 (Unaudited)

(In thousands of dollars) 2001 2000
Retained carnings, beginning of period $ 32,357 $ 30,455
Net carnings (loss) (3,802) 3,221
Repurchase of shares in excess of average issue price (1,097) -
Retained earnings, end of period $ 27,458 $ 33,676

See accompan)/ing notes to Financial Statements.

NOTES ToO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

* These unaudited consolidated financial statements
have been prepared by management in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles. These statements should be read in
conjunction with the audited financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2000. These
statements follow the same accounting policies and
methods as the most recent annual financial

statements, in addition to the following:

Inventory:
Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and
replacement value. Cost is determined on a first-in,

first-out basis.

Earnings per share:

The Company has retroactively adopted the new
recommendations for determining earnings per
common share issued by The Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants. Accordingly, basic carnings

per share have been determined by dividing net

income attributable to common sharcholders by the
weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted carnings per
share are in accordance with the treasury stock
method and are based on the weighted average
number of common shares and dilutive common

share equivalents outstanding.

SEGMENTED INFORMATION

During the first quarter of 2001, the Company
established the Performance Marketing division with
the integration of Paradigm Direct and eForce. With
this, the Company’s continuing operations have three
operating segments: North America, Performance
Marketing and the United Kingdom/Ireland.
Segmented reporting for 2000 has been restated to
reflect the presentation adopted in the current
period. The determination of business segments is
based on the identification of the core management
teams which operate the Company’s business in its
principal geographic markets, and the inherent
operating risks of those segments.

continued on pg 14
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NoTEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Segmented information (continued):

The accounting policies of the segments are
the same as those described in the Company’s 2000
annual report and in the preceding paragraphs. The
Company cvaluates performance based on profit or
loss before interest, income taxes, non-recurring

Three months ended and as at March 31, 2001
(In thousands of dollars)

gains or losses, foreign exchange gains or losses and
goodwill charges in relation to the net investment
in the operating segment. The Company considers
the net investment to be total assets, less current
liabilities adjusted to exclude cash, bank indebtedness
and the current portion of long-term debt.

North Performance UK & Corporate Total
America Marketing Ireland

Revenues $ 57,800 s 72,720 § 41,322 § — § 171,842
Earnings (loss) before depreciation and

amortization, interest, minority interest

and income taxes $ 5,051 § 8925 § 4914 § (1,294) § 17,596
Depreciation and other amortization 1,909 463 994 51 3,417
Earnings (loss) before interest, income taxes,

minority interest and goodwill charges $ 3,142 § 8,462 § 3,920 § (1,345 § 14,179
Goodwill charges, net of income taxes $ 671 % 776 $ 1,106 $ - 3 2,553
Investments during the period:
Capital asscts, excluding goodwill 1,737 1,753 659 10 4,159
Goodwill - - - - -
Net investment, end of the period $147,061 § 185,554 § 120,634 §$ 1,531 § 454,780
Three months ended and as at March 31, 2000
(In thousands of dollars)

North Performance UK & Corporate Total
America Marketing Ireland

Revenues $ 41,384 § 2,745 § 46,998 § - $ 91,127
Earnings (loss) before depreciation and

amortization, interest, minority interest

and income taxes $ 3,642 % 395 § 6,428 3§ (628) § 9,837
Depreciation and other amortization 749 99 693 41 1,582
Earnings (loss) before interest, income taxes,

minority interest and goodwill charges $ 2,893 296 $ 5,735 § (669) $ 8,255
Goodwill charges, net of income taxes $ 596 3§ - $ 823 3§ - 3 1,419
Investments during the period:
Capital assets, excluding goodwill 1,624 - 2,563 - 4,187
Goodwill - - 9,740 - 9,740
Net investment, end of the period $123,340 s 9,227 § 92,075 § 5,436 § 230,078




NoTeEs TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Segmented information (continued):

Geographic Information:

The Company operates primarily in Canada, the  Revenues are attributed to customers based on where
United States and the United Kingdom and Ireland. services are provided.

For the three months ended and as at March 31
(In thousands of dollars)

Capital asscts

Revenues and goodwill
2001 2000 2001 2000
Canada S 28,710 $ 25,687 $ 54,326 $ 39,382
United States 100,072 18,442 301,151 73,404
UK and Ireland 43,060 46,998 133,818 105,496
$ 171,342 $ 91,127 $ 489,295 $ 218,282
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FinaNciaL HicGHLIGHTS

THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
(IN THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS)
Revenues $213,038:5 110,258 § 83,061 §$44,684 § 26,923
Gross profit 58,348 39,380 29,574 16,016 9,253
EBITDA® 23,200 15,211 9,183 4,780 2,662
Earnings from continuing operations
before goodwill charges 11,715 8,946 4,362 2,568 1,316
Earnings from continuing operations 9,172 7,432 3,213 1,912 1,045
PER SHARE AMOUNTS
Earnings from continuing operations
before goodwill charges

Basic $ 0.15:3 0.12 § 0.07 0.05 § 0.04

Diluted 0.15 0.12 0.07 0.05 0.03

Diluted (% increase) 25% 72% 40% 67% -
Earnings from continuing operations

Basic $ 0.12:¢ 0.10 8§ 005 s 004 s 0.03

Diluted 0.12 0.10 0.05 0.03 0.02

Diluted (% increase) 20% 50% 67% 50% -

Revenues EBITDA Earnings before goodwill charges

(in millions of dollars) (in millions of dollars) (in millions of dollars)
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The above financial irzformation reﬂects the results from the continuing operations #Mosaic Group Inc. and excludes

the results of all of the Company’s Continental European operations.

”’Eamings from continuing operations before interest, minority interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization.
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

In an economic environment that has been
plagued by earnings warnings, Mosaic stands
out as a strong performer. Mosaic’s
performance has been driven by our ability to
create new marketing space, and our
management team’s ability to create business
development opportunities by leveraging
our strong client relationships and our full
mosaic of services. We have restructured and
altered some of our business strategies to be
proactive in these weaker economic times.
These actions have enabled us to create
opportunities in these markets rather than

fall victim to them.

Our
VaLuE FARTHER

TAKING SHAREHOLDERS'

Mosaic continued to focus on building sharcholder
value in the second quarter. Accomplishments this
quarter included:

* Strong, profitable growth;

* Expanding rclationships with existing clients, in
addition to creating relationships with new
ones;

* Providing Mosaic with the financial flexibility
needed to grow in the future with the private
placement of US$57 million in Canadian
Originated Preferred Securities (COPrS); and,

* Completing the build of Mosaic’s new senior

management team.

Taxineg Our CrLIENTS’
BusinEeEsses EVEN FARTHER

Our clients have confidence in our ability to put them
in marketing space that gets them the sales they need.
As a result, our clients continue to spend with us.
Although we have scen some of our smaller clients
slow their marketing spends with us, our steady

growth continues to come from our largest clients.

Our top 25 clients, who were also clients in 2000,
have increased their spend with us this quarter by
over 40%. This includes significant increases in long-
term clients such as CIBC, Coca Cola and Microsoft,
as well as newer Paradigm clients such as AT&T
Wireless, DIRECTV and Metris. These clients know
we will provide them with the immediate and
measurable results they need to get sales in these

challenging times.

SunCom

Paradigm Direct will utilize its customer acquisition
platform to acquire wireless customers for SunCom,
a member of the AT&T affiliate network. SunCom’s
footprint runs throughout the central US from the
Great Lakes to the Gulf of Mexico and has a
subscriber base of approximately 10% the total size of
AT&T Wireless.

SunCom is looking to Paradigm Direct to become one
of its largest suppliers of customers. Should this
program perform to the same level as the AT&T
Wireless program, this will be another multi-year,
multi-million dollar contract for Mosaic.

We are taking SunCom’s client base even farther.

British Broadcasting Corporation (BBC)
Mosaic’s Sales Services unit in the UK is facilitating
the sale of TV licenses to households that have failed
to purchase a license. In the UK it is compulsory to
have a license if you own a television, and all proceeds
go towards funding the BBC.

Mosaic’s role is to remind people about licensing and
suggest ways they can pay to purchase a license using
our mosaic of direct marketing and doorstep

marketing services.

As part of the initial testing phase, Mosaic will be
visiting 400,000 homes over an 8-month period,
utilizing the Home Service team that is currently
being used to collect insurance premiums for The
Wesleyan and The Pru.




We are taking our Home Service platform cven

farther.

DIRECTV
Last quarter we announced that Paradigm Direct had
been contracted to develop and maintain an Internet-
based Order Management System for DIRECTV. This
quarter Paradigm expanded its relationship with
DIRECTV by

performance customer acquisition work.

agreeing to

provide pay-for-

By working hard to understand DIRECTV’s business,
its objectives, its target consumers and those

consumers’ motivations, the Paradigm tecam has been
able to take DIRECTV’s business farther.

Both the SunCom and the DIRECTV programs are
examples of how Paradigm is meeting its important
objective to diversify its client base to additional
Brand Partners using its successful customer

acquisition platform.

We are taking our significant investment in Paradigm

farther.

Guinness United Distillers and Vintners
(GUDYV)

GUDV is the world’s leading spirits and wine
company with a portfolio of brands enjoyed in over
200 countries. Its lincup of brands is extensive, and
until recently, its promotional activitics had been
handled by a number of different agencies. Over the
past two years Mosaic has conducted work for GUDV

in all of its five regions in the US.

Mosaic’s programs over the years have taken the
GUDV experience farther in a way that is cost
effective for GUDV. Our on and off-premise
programs have revitalized GUDV brands and achieved

tremendous conversion rates.

By providing these types of immediate and

measurable results, we further entrenched ourselves

with GUDV. We have become GUDV’s most valued
and trusted outsourcing partner as evidenced by
Mosaic winning 100 percent of the work in two
regions, 30 percent in the third region, and occasional

work in the remaining two.
We have taken the GUDV brands even farther.

AT& T Wireless

Mosaic’s US Sales Service business has won a new
contract to provide sales and merchandising support
to AT&T Wireless. Thanks in large part to a referral
from Paradigm, Mosaic now provides sales and
merchandising support to AT&T Wireless’ retail
partners on a fee for service basis, in addition to the
customer acquisition services provided by Paradigm

Direct.

This referral is just one example of the great things
that can be accomplished when our units understand
each other’s businesses and work in partnership to

benefit our clients.

We have taken our relationship with AT&T Wireless
farther.

In total these five contracts are expected to
represent approximately $85 million in
revenue for 2002. This is a significant step
towards (:losi_ng our new bhusiness gap for

2002.

Takxing Our MANAGEMENT TeEAM
FARTHER

We continue to put the required infrastructure in
place to support our growth and development. To that
end we have completed the build of an exceptionally
talented senior management team. Over the past six
months we have made the following appointments:
Colin Moore — President

Clint Becker — Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer
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David Thacker — Vice President Human Resources

Dominic Ieraci — Vice President Finance

Catherine Barbaro —Vice President Legal and
Corporate Secretary

Brian Meagher — COO North America

Ed Brown — COO Europe

Ben Kaak — COO Performance Marketing

We completed this team in May with the appointment

of Colin Moore. Colin has assumed leadership

responsibility for all of Mosaic’s operating divisions,

reporting directly to me.

Colin has more than 20 years of international
marketing, sales and general management experience
in the consumer goods and restaurant industries,
most recently as Senior Vice President of Tricon
Global Restaurants International. From 1996 to
2000, Colin was the President of Tricon Canada
where he led the Canadian KFC, Pizza Hut and Taco
Bell restaurant chains. Prior to returning to Canada,
Colin spent 8 years in the United States in a variety of
senior marketing and operational executive positions

with both KFC and Pepsi.

Colin has committed much of his time to assessing the
operating metrics of our Company. Together with his
team, Colin will continue to monitor and make the
necessary modifications to our infrastructure, our
cost structure and our business development

strategies.

Assembling a team with such strong marketing skills,
business development skills and operating skills is a
major accomplishment for Mosaic. Along with
myself, this team will ensure Mosaic’s continued

success into the future.

Taxking Our FinaNcCIAL
STRUCTURE FARTHER

In June Mosaic completed a private placement of
US$57 million in Canadian Originated Preferred
Securities (“COPrS”). The issue was placed with the
US investment arms of three major insurance

companies and was arranged by Merrill Lynch.

The proceeds of the issue were used to pay down
amounts drawn on Mosaic’s existing $400 million
revolving senior credit facility. This now gives us the
financial flexibility and the stable platform we need to

grow our business farther in the future.

Taking Our ReEsurLTts FARTHER

We are leaders in determining where the trends will
be and then developing new marketing space to take
advantage of those trends. We provide our clients with
immediate and measurable results. These are results
that get them sales. These are results that bring them
back to Mosaic for bigger and better programs.

We have now posted 19 consecutive quarters of year
over year growth, and we continue to outperform our
peers. It is not part of the Mosaic culture to be
complacent. I commit to you that we will continue to
work towards increased growth and increased

sharcholder value.
We will continue to take Mosaic farther.

A

G. Michael Preston
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer




MANAGEMENT' 'S DIiscussioN AND ANALYSIS

This section of our quarterly report provides
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of the financial
condition and performance of Mosaic Group Inc.’s
continuing operations for the three months and the six
months ended June 30, 2001 with comparatives for
the same periods in 2000. This excludes the impact on
operating results of Mosaic’s exit from its Continental
European operations, which have been separately
disclosed in the financial statements as discontinued
operations. Comparative figures for 2000 have been
restated to reflect continuing operations. The focus of
this analysis is on key measures used to monitor the
Company’s overall financial performance and the
financial condition of its continuing operations. The
analysis should be read in conjunction with, and is
based on, the unaudited consolidated financial
statements, which are presented later in this quarterly
report. For major financial risks and uncertainties as
well as additional financial disclosures and analysis
thereon, the reader is directed to the 2000 annual
report to shareholders. All amounts are in Canadian

dollars, unless otherwise indicated.

REsuLTs oF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL
CoNDITION

Operating results for the second quarter of 2001 as
well as year-to-date figures continue along a strong
growth trend as illustrated by our key performance
indicators:

* Revenues for the quarter were $213 million, up
93% over the same quarter in 2000. For the six
months ended June 30th, the increase was 91%.

* EBITDA from continuing operations for the
'second quarter increased by 53% to $23.2
million from $15.2 million in 2000. Cumulative
results for the first six months showed an
increase of 63% to $40.8 million from $25.0
million in 2000.

* Earnings from continuing operations before
goodwill charges (“cash ecarnings”) for the

quarter were $11.7 million, up 31% over the

same period last year, and higher by 36% for the
first half of the year at $18.8 million.

* Diluted cash carnings per share from continuing
operations (“cash EPS”) rose by 25% to $0.15
per share. The increase for the first six months
was 33% over the corresponding period in 2000.

* Diluted EPS from continuing operations were
$0.12, an increase of 20% over second quarter
of 2000. Year to date, diluted EPS increased by
29%. :

OPERATING RESULTS FOR THE THREE MONTHS
AND SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2001,
COMPARED TO THREE MONTHS AND SIX MONTHS
ENDED JUNE 30, 2000

Revenues for the second quarter grew 93% over
the same period in 2000, and on a year to date basis
increased 91% over the first six months of 2000.

Pro forma organic revenue growth in the second
quarter was 34% in local currency terms with a year
to date growth of 32%. Organic growth has been
calculated on a pro forma basis to include operating
results for Paradigm Direct in the same periods in
2000. The overall impact of exchange rate movements
on revenues in the second quarter and the first six
months was not significant, with a stronger US dollar
offsetting a weaker British pound.

Within Mosaic’s various reporting segments,
North America posted revenue growth in the second
quarter of 7% over last year. The overall revenue
increase is $21 million year to date or 20%. Revenue
growth in the data collection business in the US was a
significant contributor to this increase.

The Performance Marketing segment grew by $96
million in the second quarter of 2001 and $166
million in the first half mainly due to the inclusion of
the Paradigm Direct business in the current year.
Paradigm continues to experience significant revenue
growth from its major clients as well as from new
business wins since its acquisition.

Within Mosaic’s UK & Ireland segment, second
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quarter revenues rose $2.1 million over the same
period last year. The revenues for the first six months
of 2001 were lower than in the prior year, mainly due
to the previously reported decline in the learning and
development business, and the negative impact of
exchange rate movements with the weakening of the
British pound.

Management estimates that third quarter revenues
will be $225 million to $235 million while full year

revenues are now expected to exceed $825 million.

Gross Profit for the second quarter has increased
by $19 million or 48% to $58 million. When
expressed as a percentage of revenue, this dropped
from 36% in the second quarter of 2000 to 27% for
the second quarter of 2001. In the second quarter and
in the first half of 2001, gross profit as a percent of
revenues was lower than in the previous year but was
in line with management expectations, and was mainly
due to the change in the revenue mix arising from the
acquisition of Paradigm.

Looking forward to the balance of the year,
management expects gross profit as a percentage of
revenues to be in the range of 28% to 30%.
General, and Administrative
(“SG&A”) Expenses in the second quarter of 2001
This

represents a 45% increase which when combined with

Selling,
increased by $11.0 million over last year.
QI results, translates into a year-to-date increase of

$22.1 million or 48% for 2001.

mainly due to the inclusion of Paradigm in the current

This increase is

year. Also, as previously reported, various units have
undergone reorganization and rationalization over the
first half of the year, which will positively impact
SG&A during the latter half of this year.

Although SG&A expenses have increased on a year
over year basis, these expenses have not increased as a
percentage of revenues. SG&A as a percent of revenue
decreased to 16% in the second quarter of 2001 from
22% in the prior year. The change in the business mix

and the impact of the reorganization in some of

Mosaic’s units are the main reasons for this
improvement. This is offset partly by higher SG&A
expenses as a percentage of revenues in the UK and an
increase in corporate costs. In comparing the first six
months of 2001 to the same period in 2000, the trend
is consistent, as this percentage dropped from 23% to

18%.

Earnings from C(mtinuing Operati()ns

Before Depreciation and Amortization,
Interest, Minority Interest and Income Taxes
(EBITDA) showed a growth of 53% over 2000
reaching $23.2 million for the second quarter this
year. This growth is also reflected in EBITDA for the
first six months of 2001, which increased 63% on a
year-over-year basis. This is mainly due to the
acquisition of Paradigm, offset partly by lower
carnings in the UK operations as well as higher
corporate costs.

EBITDA as a percentage of revenues for the second
quarter of 2001 was 11%, compared to 14% last year.
This is mainly due to the change in the composition of
Mosaic’s business, and is in line with management’s
expectations.

For the full year 2001, management anticipates
EBITDA to be approximately $96 million.

Depreciation and other amortization
expenses were higher in the second quarter of 2001
compared to the previous year, however this increase
was approximately in line with the revenue growth.
The year-to-date expense rose from $3.2 million or
1.6% of revenues in 2000 to $6.6 million or 1.7% of
revenues in the current year. The increase reflects
depreciation expense recorded on capital assets
purchased mainly in 2000, as well as the inclusion of
depreciation from Paradigm and Mosaic InfoForce,

both of which were not acquired or set up until the
latter half of 2000.

Interest costs were $5.0 million in the current

quarter, an increase of $3.3 million from $1.7 million
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for the same period last year. This was due to higher
utilization of debt facilities, required primarily to
finance the acquisition of Paradigm in the fourth
quarter of 2000.

Interest costs are expected to decrease in the second
half of the year due to the reduction in debt enabled by
strong cash flows and the proceeds from the private
placement of equity instruments in June 2001.

Mosaic’s  syndicated revolving debt facility
generally carries interest at bankers’ acceptance rates
or LIBOR plus 1.4% to 2.3%, depending on Mosaic’s
funded debt to EBITDA ratio. Based on the Company’s
current debt level, the credit spread on the debt
facility is 1.4%.

Mosaic has floating-for-fixed interest rate swaps
which have the effect of fixing the interest rate on
US$25 million of debt at 7.25% and on $50 million of
Canadian dollar debt at 6.59%, given the current
credit spread on the debt facility.

Income Taxes as a percentage of carnings from
continuing operations before taxes and goodwill
charges were 24% for the second quarter and the first
half of 2001, a drop from 25% for the same periods in
2000. These percentages remained low due to the
cffective use of tax planning strategics. Management
expects that the overall tax rate for fiscal 2001 will be
in the range of 22% to 24%. Management continues
to actively monitor and manage the Company’s tax
expense.

Cash Earnings from Continuing Operations
were $11.7 million for the quarter, up 31% from $8.9
million in the second quarter of 2000. Mosaic
considers cash earnings, defined as carnings from
continuing operations before goodwill charges, as the
most relevant measure of its operating performance.
This cnables a like-to-like comparison of Mosaic’s
carnings with its US peers who generally use pooling
of interests accounting for business combinations and
thereby avoid goodwill charges.

Diluted cash EPS was $0.15 in the quarter, a 25%

improvement from $0.12 in the prior year. For the

first six months of 2001 diluted cash EPS was $0.24,
up 33% over last year.

The full-year 2001 diluted cash EPS is expected to
be approximately $§0.62.

Goodwill charges, net of income taxes, were
$2.5 million for the second quarter of 2001 and $5.1
million for the first half of the year. This represents an
increase of $1.0 million for the quarter and $2.2
million year-to-date. The increase was mainly due to
the acquisitions in the previous year, the most
significant being that of Paradigm Direct in the last
quarter of 2000.

Full-year goodwill charges should approximate §9
to $10 million.

Earnings from continuing operations rose
23% to $9.2 million in the second quarter of 2001.
For the first six months of 2001, ecarnings from
continuing operations were $13.7 million, an increase
of 26% from the previous year.

Diluted earnings per share from continuing
operations were $0.12 for the second quarter and
$0.18 for the first six months of 2001. In comparison
to the prior year, this represents a 20% increase in the
second quarter and a 29% increase for the first half of
2001. As
statements, the Company has retroactively adopted

discussed in the notes to financial

the new recommendations for determining earnings
per share issued by The Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants.

The Company anticipates that the full year 2001
diluted EPS from continuing operations will be
approximately $0.50 versus $0.41 for 2000, restated
from the previously reported $0.42 to reflect
retroactive adoption of the treasury method of
calculating EPS. For the third quarter of 2001, diluted
EPS from continuing operations is anticipated to be in
the range of $0.16 to $0.17, compared to third
quarter 2000 EPS of $0.15 as restated from $0.16 to
reflect retroactive adoption of the treasury method of

calculation.
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DiscoNTINUED OPERATIONS

During the first half of 2001, the Company
divested its operations in Continental Europe through
either the sale or closure of all businesses involved.
This resulted in a one-time net of tax charge in the
first quarter of 2001 of $8.3 million. Management
does not anticipate any further charges related to the

exit from Continental Europe.

ForeieN Currency Risk

Significant parts of the Company’s operations are
concentrated in self-sustaining operations in the
United Kingdom and the United States. The
Company’s investment and opecrations in the United
States are partially hedged as the monies borrowed to
pay for the cash component of thosc acquisitions was
largely borrowed in US dollars. Mosaic does not have
any pound sterling denominated debt, but has entered
into £7.9 million in forward contracts for the balance
of fiscal 2001 to partially hedge exchange rate
movements in 2001. In addition, the Company has
entered into a series of forward sale contracts with a
nominal value of US$14.5 million for the rest of the
year to partially hedge exposure to fluctuations in the
US dollar in relation to the Canadian dollar. No other

currencies are material to Mosaic’s operations.

OUTSTANDING SHARES

At June 30, 2001, Mosaic had approximately 76
million common shares outstanding, and 78 million
shares on a diluted basis. The difference between the
number of basic and diluted common shares relates to
employee and director stock options as calculated by
using the treasury stock method for diluted EPS.

No significant transactions occurred in the second
quarter of 2001 that would have a material impact on
the number of shares outstanding.

LiquipiTy AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Mosaic completed a private placement of US$57
million of Canadian Originated Preferred
Securities (COPrS) in June 2001. These equity
instruments have been issued in the form of unsecured
senior subordinated notes with an annual interest rate
of 10.5%. The COPrS have a final maturity of June
2009 with repayments in three equal installments
beginning June 2007. The Company has the option to
satisfy distribution and redemption obligations on
these instruments either in cash, or from the proceeds
of sale of the requisite number of common shares of
the company by a trustee to be appointed for that
purpose. Accordingly, these securities are included in
shareholders’ equity and any distributions thereon, net
of taxes, are recorded as a reduction of retained
carnings. The proceeds from this issue have been
applied towards the reduction of bank debt.

Cash generated from continuing
operations in the second quarter of 2001 was §15.7
million, an improvement from $12.0 million during
the same period in 2000. For the first six months of
2001, cash flow from continuing operations improved
by $8.4 million compared to the same period last year.
The increase arises mainly from strong earnings
growth and higher non-cash charges during the
current year.

Financing activities generated $12.3 million of cash
in the second quarter and used $1.6 million over the
first six months. The Company reduced net debt by
$86.1 million over the six-month period ended
June 30, including $71.9 million during the second
quarter. Common shares issued, net of repurchases,
generated $0.3 million in the second quarter, and the
placement of equity instruments discussed above
raised $83.9 million.

Investing activities used $5.9 million of cash in the
second quarter of 2001 for a total of $13.8 million
over the first six months of the year. Acquisition costs,

and payments pursuant to contingent consideration
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agreements related to acquisitions from prior years
used $2.9 million of cash during the quarter and $4.9
million during the first half of 2001. In addition, §2.5
million was used to acquire property and equipment
for the continuing operations during the second

quarter of this year.

Mosaic’s debt posit‘ion, net of cash was $153
million at June 30, 2001, drawn almost entirely from
Mosaic’s syndicated revolving debt facility. In total,
$400 million is available under this facility, which is
fully committed without amortization or reduction
until October of 2003. On cach anniversary date, the
commitment is renewable for an additional three
years. By actively focusing on paying down the amount
owed under this facility, Mosaic intends to reduce this
debt to $110 million by the end of the fiscal 2001.

In April 2002 Mosaic will be required to pay the
contingent consideration related to the acquisition of
Paradigm Direct. Mosaic expects to pay approximately
US$100 million to US$125 million should the
operating results of Paradigm continue to reflect the
success rate achieved in the last two quarters. This
payment may be made in cash or shares at Mosaic’s
option. Mosaic anticipates that approximately 50% of

the payment will be made in shares.

Mosaic’s level of sharcholders’ equity was
$298.4 million at June 30, 2001, up from $206.2
million at December 31, 2000. The increase resulted
from:

* The issuance of $85.3 million in COPrS net of

costs & income taxes;

* The issuance of $6.9 million in shares, including
$5.8 million towards part of the contingent
consideration payments for the acquisition of
M:\Drive and Pentagon, $0.8 million under
Mosaic’s Employee Share Purchase and Option
plan and $1.7 million upon exercise of employee
share options, partially offset by the repurchase
of $0.6 million in shares under the Company’s

Normal Course Issuer Bid and $0.4 million of
other share cancellations;

* Net carnings of §5.4 million and a reduction of
$1.3 million in retained earnings due to a loss on
the repurchase of shares at prices in excess of the
average issue price;

* A change of $4 million in the foreign currency
translation adjustment related to Mosaic’s net

investment in self-sustaining foreign operations.

The Company to date has not paid any dividends on
its common shares, and does not intend to do so in 2001.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS r

Mosaic and its representatives periodically make
written and spoken forward-looking statements and
projections, including those contained in the annual
and quarterly reports to sharcholders. Substantial
risks and uncertainties exist with respect to such
factors as the maintenance of client relationships,
client credit risk, the performance of capital markets,
changes in interest rates, changes in foreign currency
exchange rates, the retention of key management and
availability of employees for hire, changes in labour
and other laws to which the Company is subject,
competition, and overall economic performance as
well as various other risk factors that will be listed

from time to time in Mosaic’s reports or other forms

_of public disclosure whether written or oral. Because

of these risks and uncertainties, actual results could

differ materially from those contained in the

Company’s projections or other forward-looking

statements. Mosaic cautions readers when making
decisions to consider the risks and uncertainties
inherent in relying on forward-looking statcments
made by the Company and its representatives at this or

any other time.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS

OF OPERATIONS

Three months ended

Six months ended

(Unaudited) June 30 June 30
(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 2001 2000 2001 2000
Revenues $ 213,038 §110,258 5 384,880 § 201,385
Direct costs 154,690 70,878 275,761 130,099
Gross profit 58,348 39,380 109,119 71,286
Selling, general and administrative 35,148 24,169 63,323 46,238
Earnings from continuing operations
before depreciation and amortization,
interest, minority interest and income taxes (EBITDA) 23,200 15,211 40,796 25,048
Depreciation and other amortization 3,203 1,596 6,620 3,178
Interest, net 4,959 1,691 10,008 3,431
Minority interest (334) 16 (629) 57
Earnings from continuing operations
before income taxes and goodwill charges 15,372 11,908 24.797 18,382
Income taxes:
Current 2,946 2,244 4826 3,536
Future 711 718 1,181 1,020
3,657 2,962 6,007 4,556
Earnings from continuing operations before goodwill charges 11,715 8,946 18,790 13,826
Goodwill charges, net of income taxes 2.543 1,514 5,096 2,933
Earnings from continuing operations 9,172 7,432 13,694 10,893
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes (1,142 - (1,382)
Loss on divestiture or discontinuance of operations,
net of income taxes of $5,000 — - (8,324) -
Net earnings 5 9,172 8 6,290 § 5370 § 9,511
Earnings per share:
Basic S 0.12 8 0.09 3 0.07 3 0.1
Diluted $ 0.12 8 0.08 ¢ 0.07 3§ 0.13
Earnings per share from continuing
operations before goodwill charges:
Basic S 0.15 § 0.12 s 0.25 % 0.19
Diluted 0.15 % 0.12 s 024 % 0.1
Earnings per share from continuing operations:
Basic 8 0.12 3 100 s 0.18 8 0.15
Diluted $ 128 0.10 3 0.18 s 0.14
Weighted average number of shares outstanding (in thousands):
Basic 76,018 71,822 75,526 71,394
Diluted 77,715 75,522 77,091 75,255

See accompanying notes to Financial Statements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CasH Frows

Three months ended

Six months ended

(Unaudited) June 30 June 30
(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 2001 2000 2001 2000
Cash provided by (used in):
Operations:
Earnings from continuing operations 9,172 8 7,432 § 13,694 § 10,893
Items not involving cash:
Depreciation and other amortization 3,203 1,596 6,620 3,178
Non-cash interest and finance costs 434 188 856 376
Future income taxes 711 718 1,131 1,020
Goodwill charges 2,543 1,514 5,096 2,933
Other (334) 515 (629 56
Cash flow from continuing operations 15,729 11,963 26,318 18,456
Net change in non-cash operating working capital ,
from continuing operations (20,900) 487 (19,976) 2,218
(5,171) 12,450 6,842 20,674
Financing:
Issue of common shares, net of costs and share repurchases 277 1,186 587 5,176
Issue of equity instruments, net of costs 83,893 — 83,893 -
Proceeds on issue of long-term debt 300 24,690 24,300 34,440
Repayment of long-term debt (71,648) (9,222) {107,647y (14,218)
Decrease in bank indebtedness (558) (940) (2,751) (3,149)
12,264 15,714 (1,618) 22,249
Investments:
Acquisition of businesses, net of
cash acquired, continuing operations (2,938)  (14,023) (4,895)  (24,373)
Additions to property and cquipment, continuing operations  (2,532)  (2,952) {6,691) (7,139)
Additions to other long-term assets, continuing operations (4+05) (675) (2,259 (2,577)
(5,875 (17,650) (13,845)  (34,089)
Impact of foreign exchange cffect on cash (105) 69 95 -
Net cash used in discontinued operations (1,335) (990) (5,440) (1,531)
Increase (decrease) in cash position (222) 9,593 (13,972) 7,303
Cash, beginning of period 1,663 7,746 15,413 10,036
Cash, end of period L4418 17,339 0§ 1441 § 17,339
Cash flow from continuing operations per share:
Basic 0.21 % . $ 0.36 § 0.26
Fully diluted 0.20 $ 0.16 3 0.35 % 0.25

Cashﬂowfrom continuing operations per share is calculated using the cash provided from continuing operations excluding

net changes in non-cash working capital.
See accompanying notes to Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

June 30,

December 31,

2001 2000
(In thousands of dollars) (Unaudited) (Audited)
Assets
Current assets:
Cash § 1,441 s 15,413
Accounts receivable 128,165 77,387
Work in progress and unbilled revenue 21,066 23,430
Inventory and other current assets 17,262 16,299
Net asscts of discontinued operations - 5,781
167,934 138,310
Property and equipment 46,369 45,763
Goodwill, net of accumulated amortization 421,632 430,824
Future income taxes 7,294 7,020
Other assets 24 915 26,168
S 668,644 $ 648,085
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current liabilities: ‘
Bank indebtedness N 394 $ 3,145
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 144,189 129,130
Deferred revenue 28,155 23,576
Accrued acquisition liabilities 26,954 38,424
Income taxes payable : 920 2,424
Current portion of long-term debt 238 272
200,850 196,971
Long-term debt 153,982 227,337
Future income taxes 12,710 14,287
Minority interest 2,735 3,321
Sharcholders’ equity:
Share capital 279,661 187,442
Foreign currency translation adjustment (17,608) (13,630)
Retained earnings 36,314 32,357
298,367 206,169
S 668,644 $ 648,085

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF RETAINED EARNINGS

Three months ended

Six months ended

(Unaudited) June 30 June 30

(In thousands of dollars) 2001 2000 2001 2000
Retained ecarnings, beginning of period S 27,458 $33,676 5 32,357 $ 30,455
Net earnings 9172 6,290 5,370 9,511
Repurchase of shares in excess of average issue price (191) - (1,288) —
Distributions on equity instruments, net of income taxes of $102 (125) - (125) -
Retained earnings, end of period § 36,314 $39,996 5 36,314 § 39,966

See accompanying notes to Financial Statements.




NoTeEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

These unaudited consolidated financial statements
have been prepared by management in accordance
with Canadian gencrally accepted accounting
principles.  These statements should be read in
conjunction with the audited financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2000. These
statements follow the same accounting policies and
methods as the most recent annual financial

statements, in addition to the following:

Inventory:
Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and
replacement value. Cost is determined on a first-in,

first-out basis.

Equity instruments:

The Company has the ability to satisfy distribution
and redemption obligations on its equity instruments
by the issue of common shares. Accordingly, these
securities are included in sharcholders’ equity and any
distributions therecon, net of income taxes, are

recorded as a reduction of retained earnings.

Earnings per share:

The Company has retroactively adopted the new
recommendations for determining earnings per
common share issued by The Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants. Accordingly, basic earnings
per share have been determined by dividing net
income less the distributions on equity instruments
by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per
share are in accordance with the treasury stock
method and are based on the weighted average
number of common shares and dilutive common

share equivalents outstanding.

2. SHARE CAPITAL

Equity instruments - Canadian Originated
Preferred Securities (COPrS):

Share capital includes equity instruments, net of
costs, amounting to $85,349,870 issued in June 2001
through a private placement of COPrS. These
securities have been issued in the form of unsecured
senior subordinated instruments with an aggregate
principal amount of US$57,000,000 and an annual
interest rate of 10.5%. The COPrS have a final
maturity of June 2009 with repayments in three equal
installments beginning June 2007. The Company has
the option to satisfy distribution and redemption
obligations on these instruments cither in cash, or
from the proceeds of sale of the requisite number of
common shares of the Company by a trustee to be
appointed for that purpose. Under the terms of the
issue of COPrS, the Company is required to maintain

certain financial ratios.

3. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

During the first half of 2001, the Company
divested its operations in Continental Europe through
either the sale or closure of all businesses involved.
The results of these operations and the loss on
divestiture or discontinuance have been disclosed in
the financial statements as discontinued operations.
Comparative figures for 2000 have been restated to

reflect continuing operations.

4 . SEGMENTED INFORMATION

During the first quarter of 2001, the Company
established the Performance Marketing division with
the integration of Paradigm Direct and eForce. With
this, the Company’s continuing operations have three
operating segments: North America, Performance
Marketing and the United Kingdom and Ireland.
Segmented reporting for 2000 has been restated to

reflect the presentation adopted in the current ycar.
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NoTEs ToO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Segmented information {continued):

The determination of business segments is based
on the identification of the core management teams
which operate the Company’s business in its principal
geographic markets, and the inherent operating risks
of those segments.

The accounting policies of the segments are the

same as thosc described in the Company’s 2000

annual report and in note 1 above. The Company
evaluates performance based on profit or loss before
interest, income taxes, non-recurring gains or losses,
foreign exchange gains or losses and goodwill charges
in relation to the net investment in the operating
segment. The Company considers the net investment
to be total assets, less current liabilities adjusted to
exclude cash, bank indebtedness and the current

portion of long-term debt.

Three months ended and as at June 30, 2001 North Performance UK & Corporate Total
(In thousands of dollars) America Marketing  Ireland
Revenues § 66,536 § 99,016 §$ 47,486 § — % 213,038
Earnings (loss) before depreciation and

amortization, interest and income taxes $ 7,636 § 13,890 § 4,192 § (2,518) § 23,200
Depreciation and o'gbgr amortization 1,564 611 724 304 3 ,203
Earnings (loss) before interest, income taxes

and goodwill charges $ 6,072 § 13279 § 3,468 § (2,822) § 19997
Goodwill charges, net of income taxes $ 673 § 785 § 1,085 3§ — $ 2,543
Investments during the year:
Capital assets, excluding goodwill 2,116 565 (227) 78 2,532
Goodwill — — - - —
Net investment, end of the period $ 146,659 § 197,036 § 120,309 § 2,981 § 466,985
Three months ended and as at June 30, 2000 North Performance UK & Corporate Total
(In thousands of dollars) America Marketing  Ireland
Revenues $ 61,915 § 2,992 § 45351 § — § 110,258
Earnings (loss) before depreciation and

amortization, interest and income taxes $ 7,653 3§ 396§ 8,024 (862) § 15,211
Depreciation and other amortization 795 100 660 41 1,596
Earnings (loss) before interest, income taxes,

and goodwill charges $ 6,858 § 296 3§ 7,364 § (903) $ 13,615
Goodwill charges, net of income taxes $ 614 — 3 900 $ - $ 1,514
Investments during the year:
Capital assets, excluding goodwill 1,145 99 1,653 55 2,952
Goodwill 4,815 — 4,380 - 9,195
Net investment, end of the period $136,273 § 11,445 §103,777 § 21,484 § 272,979




NoTEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Six months ended and as at June 30, 2001 North  Performance UK & Corporate Total
(In thousands of dollars) America Marketing  Ireland
Revenues $124,336 §$ 171,736 § 88,808 § — § 384,880
Earnings (loss) before depreciation and

amortization, interest and income taxes $ 12,687 § 22,815 § 9,106 § (3,812) § 40,79
Depreciation and other amortization 3,473 1,074 1,718 355 6,620
Earnings (loss) before interest, income taxes

and goodwill charges $ 9,214 § 21,741 s 7,388 s (4,167) $ 34,176
Goodwill charges, net of income taxes s 1,344 3 1,561 § 2,191 3§ - $ 5,09
Investments during the year:
Capital asscts, excluding goodwill ‘ 3,853 2,318 432 88 6,691
Goodwill - - - - -
Net investment, end of the period $146,659 § 197,036 § 120,309 § 2,981 § 466,985
Six months ended and as at June 30, 2000 North Performance UK & Corporate Total
(In thousands of dollars) America Marketing  Ireland
Revenues $103,299 § 5,737 § 92,349 § — $ 201,385
Earnings (loss) before depreciation and '

amortization, interest and income taxes $§ 11,295 3§ 791 § 14,452 § (1,490) $ 25,048
Depreciation and other amortization 1,544 199 1,353 82 3,178
Earnings (loss) before interest, income taxes

and goodwill charges $ 9,751 % 592 § 13,099 § (1,572) $ 21,870
Goodwill charges, net of income taxes $ 1,210 3 - $ 1,723 3§ - § 2,933
Investments durin% the year:
Capital asscts, excluding goodwill 2,769 99 4,216 55 7,139
Goodwill 4,815 - 14,120 - 18,935
Net investment, end of the period $136,273 ¢ 11,445 $103,777 s 21,484 § 272,979

Geographic Information:

The Company operates primarily in Canada, the United States and the United Kingdom and Ireland.

Revenues are attributed to customers based on where services are provided.

For the three months ended and as at June 30 - Revenues Capital assests and goodwﬂl
(In thousands of dollars) 2001 2000 2001 2000
Canada $ 33,507 $ 36,464 $ 56,032 $ 53,885
United States 130,205 28,443 286,369 71,938
UK and Ireland 49,326 45,351 126,100 108,501

§ 213,038 $ 110,258 $ 468,501 $ 234,324
For the six months ended and as at June 30 Revenues Capltal assests and goodw1ll
(In thousands of dollars) 2001 2000 2001 ‘ 2000
Canada s 62,217 § 62,151 $§ 56,032 $ 53,885
United States 230277 46,885 286,369 71,938
UK and Ireland 92 386 92,349 126,100 108,501

§ 384 &80 $ 201,385 $ 468,501 § 234,324
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FinanciaL HIGHLIGHTS

THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30

(IN THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS) 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Revenues $ 209,377 $§ 146,511 $ 111,992 $ 88,070 $ 39,563
Gross Profit 60,162 52,003 38,402 27,027 12,346
EBITDA ® 25,906 21,427 12,766 9,171 3,859
Earnings from continuing operations
before goodwill charges 13,905 13,265 7,266 4 417 1,809
Earnings from
continuing operations 11,334 11,676 6,094 3,519 1,473
PER SHARE AMOUNTS
Diluted earnings from continuing
operations before goodwill charges
GAAP $ 0.16: § 0.18 $ 0.10 $ 0.07 $ 0.05
Pro Forma @ 0.12 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Diluted earnings from
continuing operations
GAAP $ 0.13: ¢ 0.15 $ 0.08 $ 0.06 $ 0.04
Pro Forma @ 0.09 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Revenues EBITDA

(in millions of dollars)

(in millions of dollars)

Earnings before goodwill charges

(in millions of dollars)
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The above financial information reflects the results from the continuing operations ofMosaic Group Inc
results of all of the Company’s Continental European operations.

. and excludes the

" Earnings from continuing operations before interest, minority interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization.
@ Pro Forma diluted earnings per share reflects the impact of the Paradigm Earnout as g'fit had occurred on January 1,

2001. Refer to note 5 of the September 30, 2001 consolidated financial statements for assumptions underlying the determi-
nation of Pro forma earnings per share calculations.
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

2001

Mosaic — one that

The third quarter of was one of

tremendous change for

launched us into our next level of

development. We took action on a number of

fronts to ensure that, even in these

cconomically uncertain times, we will
continue to grow stronger and improve our

performance.

Parabpiecm EaArnNouT FINALIZED

Our sharcholders told us the issue of the Paradigm
earnout made Mosaic a less attractive investment.
This quarter we undertook negotiations with the
former Paradigm sharcholders to settle this earnout
with an agreement signed on November 6th, 2001.
Based on the closing price of Mosaic’s common shares
the day before the earnout was finalized, the payment
will be in the range of US$84 to US$89 million — far
less that the US$100 to US$125 million we had

estimated last quarter.

This is good news for Mosaic for several reasons:

* It is a fair deal for all interested parties —
shareholders, lenders and the former Paradigm
sharcholders; '

* It clears up the outstanding share dilution and
debt leverage issue and provides balance
between the two;

* It let’s us get back to business. This issue has
been a distraction and now we can concentrate
on growing the business;

* Our debt levels following the carnout will be
manageable with the terms of the agreement
giving us financial flexibility going forward; and

* It demonstrates that the former Paradigm
sharcholders are committed to doing what’s
right for the business.

CEO APPOINTMENT

In our continuing focus to build a high impact team of

senior managers, we put the final piece in place with

the appointment of Marc Byron to the position of Vice
Chair. Effective January 1, 2002, Mr. Byron will
succeed me as Chief Executive Officer. I will remain
Chairman of the Board.

Mr. Byron was identified by me, by the organization,
and by the Board, as a results driven leader. As CEO
of Paradigm and COO of Mosaic’s Performance
Solutions business, Mr. Byron demonstrated his
ability to achieve outstanding results. He motivates
those around him, delivers great value to our clients
and in turn to our Company. He is considered a
pioneer in the US marketing industry and has a solid

track record in building businesses organically.

ApjusTING OPERATING METRICS

We have been extremely active in both the UK and
North America, making changes in our operations to
increase our efficiency, our effectiveness and to

reduce overhead costs.

Mosaic’s President Colin Moore has spent the past
three months identifying strengths, eliminating
duplication, adjusting our metrics and exiting
unprofitable programs. This is all part of our goal to
better integrate Mosaic’s many businesses, to enhance
EBITDA performance and to adjust our business to

the slowdown in the economy. Major steps included:

* Reducing Mosaic’s headcount in Canada, the US
and the UK by 127 at a cost of §3.6 million, for
an annualized savings of over $11 million;

* Changing the organizational structure and
integrating multiple units into three services
groups in the UK — sales solutions, marketing
solutions and performance solutions;

* Initiating shared back office services and group
purchasing programs for Selling, General and
Administrative (SG&A) items; and

* Exiting client programs that are not profitable.




Mosaic also undertook two major thrusts to improve

revenue generation:

* Changing all subsidiary names to the Mosaic
name. There is strength to be gained by
identifying ourselves as one strong organization
rather than a fragmented one. Additionally it
will facilitate an integrated cross-selling
approach; and

* Mr. Byron began the development of a Mosaic-
wide sales development initiative to pursue the
largest

possible opportunities for the

organization.

THiRD QUARTER REsuLTs

Although we are excited about the future of Mosaic,
results for the quarter are less than satisfactory. We
experienced year over year reductions in revenues
primarily in the UK, and to a lesser extent Canada.
Although these declines are ’disappointing, they are

consistent with what is happening in the industry.

Onc arca where we can identify specific revenue
declines came as a result of the September 11th
terrorist attacks. Our Performance Solutions group,
formerly known as Paradigm Direct, had an effective
halt in its activitics for the 10 days immediately
following the attacks. The impact was a reduction in
revenues between $15 to $17 million and $2.3 to
$2.5 million in earnings, or about $0.02 to $0.03 per

share.

We could use the excuse of September 11th and the
softening economy to explain our performance, but
the reality is this was not the only contributing factor
to our weaker than expected results. We have,
however, taken and continue to take, proactive steps
to reduce our cost structure and right size our

organization .

We have fully detailed the key influences on our
carnings in the Management Discussion and Analysis

that follows.

GoiNG FORWARD

Mosaic is now maturing from a rollup company of 27
acquisitions to that of an integrated operating
company. It was our vision to search out and bring
together companies that were leaders in their own
field. We now have the platform to build the world’s
premiere marketing solutions company. And now,
with Marc Byron as CEO, our employees, our clients
and our shareholders will see us emerge as world
leaders in our core areas of strength — customer
acquisition through direct marketing, and sales
solutions. These are areas where we will be dedicating

our resources going fOI‘VV&I‘d.

Although we will be facing a continued recession and
resulting margin pressures from our clients in 2002,
we are encouraged by the robust new business

pipeline already established.

The increased focus on our core strengths and
business development initiatives has positioned us to
take advantage of any upturn in the economy. When
businesses emerge from this recession, Mosaic’s
established platforms will enable clients to ramp up
their sales efforts, without adding additional

expensive headcount or expensive infrastructures.

I am excited about the outlook for Mosaic going
forward and its further development under the
guidance and leadership of Mr. Byron and his
management team.

GiA

G. Michael Preston
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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MANAGEMENT' S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of our quarterly report provides
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of the financial
condition and performance of Mosaic Group Inc.s
continuing operations for the three months and the
nine months ended September 30, 2001 with
comparatives for the same periods in 2000. This
analysis excludes the impact on operating results of
Mosaic’s exit from its Continental European
operations, which have been separately disclosed in
the financial statements as discontinued operations.
Comparative figures for 2000 have been restated to
reflect continuing operations. The focus of this
analysis is on key measures used to monitor the
Company’s overall financial performance and the
financial condition of its continuing operations. The
analysis should be read in conjunction with, and is
based on, the unaudited consolidated financial
statements, which are presented later in this quarterly
report. For major financial risks and uncertainties as
well as additional financial disclosures and analysis
thereon, the reader is directed to the 2000 annual
report to sharcholders. All amounts are in Canadian

dollars, unless otherwise indicated.

Parapiecm Direct EaArRNOUT

As stated in the 2001 second quarter report to
sharcholders:
“In April 2002 Mosaic will be required to pay the
contingent consideration related to the
acquisition of Paradigm Direct. Mosaic expects
to pay approximately US$100 million to
US$125 million should the operating results of
Paradigm continue to reflect the success rate
achieved in the last two quarters. This payment
may be made in cash or shares at Mosaic’s

option.”

As a result of the size of the potential carnout
payment, management was of the view that it is in the
best interest of the Company to provide certainty in
respect of the Paradigm Direct earnout (“Paradigm
Earnout”) because of the potentially significant
dilution and/or debt incurrance arising from this
carnout obligation. This need arose through a
combination of better than expected Paradigm
financial performance in 2001, increasing the
anticipated size of the earnout payment combined
with a significantly lower Mosaic share price.

On November 6, 2001 Mosaic and the former
equity holders of Paradigm agreed to amend the
merger agreement to fix the amount of the Paradigm
Earnout. Under the terms of the amended merger
agreement the total value of the Paradigm Earnout,
based on the Company’s share price on or just prior
to the date of the agreement, is approximately
US$100 million.

The Paradigm Earnout, as amended, will be
satisfied through the issuance of 20,540,000 Mosaic
common shares on closing which is expected to occur
in January 2002. 75% of the shares issued to senior
management employees of Paradigm will be placed in
escrow. One third of these shares will be released
from escrow on December 31, 2002 with the
remaining shares released on December 31, 2003. In
addition, cash consideration of US5$52.5 million will
be payable on April 1, 2002, of which US$26.5 million
could be payable earlier in certain circumstances. At
the option of the Company, up to US$26 million of the
cash consideration may be satisfied through the
issuance of common shares at a ratio of 0.48 shares for
cach US dollar of consideration payable to a maximum
of 12,480,000 common shares. The parties agreed to
the financial terms of the earnout based upon the

financial results of Paradigm to date, expected future
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financial results and the current trading price of
Mosaic shares on the TSE.

As per the terms of the original merger agreement
with the equity holders of Paradigm Direct, one of the
Company's subsidiaries adopted a Supplementary
Management Incentive Plan (the "SMIP") applicable
to certain senior management employees of Paradigm.
The payments under the SMIP to plan members are
contingent upon continuing employment, achieving
minimum carnings growth rates and achieving pre-
established earnings levels during fiscal years 2001,
2002 and 2003. These payments, if any, can be satisfied
in ecither cash or shares at Mosaic's option and, if
required to be made, will be payable on or after
April 1, 2004. The terms related to the SMIP remain
unchanged under the amended agreement, except that
a minimum Mosaic common share price floor of §1
was cstablished. No current officers or directors of
the Company are cligible for any payment under the
SMIP.

Mosaic believes this transaction has significant
benefits for its sharcholders as: (i) it provides finality
and certainty with respect to the amount and timing of
the Paradigm Earnout to the former equity holders of
Paradigm, including the maximum number of
additional Mosaic common shares issuable; (ii) it
climinates the risk of possibly higher sharcholder
dilution that may otherwise have occurred under the
terms of the original merger agreement; and (iii) it
allows the Company to retain financial flexibility in
terms of the ultimate level of debt incurred.

The Paradigm Earnout, as amended, is subject to
and conditional upon the approval of Mosaic’s
sharcholders, the listing of the additional Mosaic
shares on the TSE and compliance with applicable

securities laws.

MANAGEMENT AND BOARD

APPOINTMENTS

Marc Byron, currently Chief Operating Officer of
Mosaic Performance Solutions has been appointed as
Vice Chairman, immediately and Chief Executive
Officer of Mosaic cffective as of January 1, 2002. Mike
Preston will remain Chairman of the Board. As a result
of this move, David Graf, formerly President,
Performance Solutions has been appointed to the role
of Chief Operating Officer Performance Solutions.
Tony LaSorda, Vice-Chairman and Chief Development
Officer North America, has resigned his position on
Mosaic’s Board effective November 2001 and has
retired from Mosaic Group. He will continue in a
leadership role with Mosaic InfoForce — Mosaic’s joint
venture initiative with Information Resources Inc.

Mosaic has agreed to appoint two representatives of
the former equity holders of Paradigm, onc of whom
being Marc Byron, to the Board of Directors of

Mosaic.

SEPTEMBER 11 IMpPacT ON

BusiNESss

As with many companies, the Company was
impacted by the terrible events of September 11th and
the subsequent cconomic fallout. The short-term
impact of these events was felt in the Performance
Solutions business, which is paid commissions for
acquiring customers for major brands. In the 10-day
period which followed September 11, there was an
effective halt in the Performance Solutions consumer-
based direct marketing activities. The financial impact
was a reduction in revenues in the quarter of

approximately $15 million to $17 million and a

Mosaitc 2001 THirD QuARTER REPORT

0
i+

O




@ Mosaic 200t THIRD QUARTER REPORT

=2

MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

corresponding reduction in operating carnings
estimated at $2.3 to $2.5 million or $0.02 to $0.03
per share.

Additionally, the anthrax mail threats have forced
the Company to re-evaluate how it goes to market in
its customer acquisition business. For example, the
Company is using less direct mail and is increasing its
use of alternate media such as the Internet, telephone
and retail kiosks for securing customer acquisitions. In
the direct mail segment, the Company is
experimenting with the use of postcard format direct
mail picces, snap packs and by using clearly marked,
return addressed envelopes often including the logo of
the brand being represented. It will take time to assess
the longer-term impact of September 11 on costs and
customer response rates, but recent results indicate a
positive recovery in this business.

Management believes that the longer-term impact
of the events on September 11 is to considerably slow
economic growth and consumer confidence resulting
in a recessionary economic climate in the Company’s
major markets. The Company is most at risk in
connection with services such as traditional direct
marketing, event marketing and management, new
media services and training which are typically funded
through client marketing and training budgets and
which may be reduced in uncertain economic times.
Such revenues and services represent less than 20% of
the Company’s revenue base. To date there have been
limited marketing program cancellations as a direct
result of the September 11th tragedy. The remaining
revenues of the Company, or approximately 80%, are
typically funded through clients’ sales and distribution
budgets, which historically have proven less vulnerable
to reductions during a recession and in some cases
increase during a recession. Such revenues include

customer acquisition services, merchandising

services, outsourced selling and data collection
services. Finally, the Company believes there may be
pressure on gross margins across all service offerings

as clients become more cost focused.

ReEsuLts oF OPERATIONS AND

Financiar CONDITION

While operating results for the third quarter of
2001 as well as year-to-date figures show continued
upward growth, results from the United Kingdom and
to a lesser degree Canada were less than satisfactory in
the most recent fiscal quarter. Key performance
indicators for the quarter and year to date are as
follows: '

* Revenues for the quarter were $209 million, up
43% over the same quarter in 2000. For the nine
months ended September 30th, the increase was
71%. Revenues from U.S. operations for the
quarter were up approximately $91 million year
over year. However, pro forma revenues (which
include the fourth quarter 2000 acquisition of
Paradigm Direct) contracted by 4% in the quarter
in local currency terms in relation to the prior
year with improvements in the United States
offset by reductions in the United Kingdom and
Canada.

EBITDA from continuing operations for the third

quarter increased by 21% to $25.9 million from
$21.4 million in 2000. Cumulative results for the
first nine months showed an increase of 44% to
$66.7 million from $46.5 million in 2000.

* For the nine months ended September 30, 2001
the company eliminated 127 positions resulting in
severance and related costs of approximately
$3.6 million, reductions which are expected to

result in annualized savings of over $11